
 Mayor & City Council City of College Park 
  3667 Main Street 

 Regular Session Meeting College Park, GA  30337 

 
  http://www.collegeparkga.com 

 ~ Agenda ~ 404-669-3756 (Main) 

 
  Experience College Park 
  Georgia’s Global City 
 

Monday, June 21, 2021 7:30 PM Council Chambers 

Mayor & City Council Page 1 Printed 6/16/2021 

1. Opening Ceremonies 

A. Pledge Of Allegiance 

B. Invocation 

2. Additions, Deletions, Amendments, or Changes to the Agenda 

3. Presentation of Minutes of City Council 

A. Approval of Regular Session Minutes dated June 7, 2021 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

B. Approval of Workshop Session Minutes dated June 7, 2021. 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

4. Proclamations, Resolutions, Plaques, and Announcements 

A. Presentation of a Proclamation to Madison Gardner, member of the College Park Favor 

House Track Team and the College Park Recreation Department program for outstanding 

achievements in athletics, academics and community service.  See attached Proclamation. 

B. Presentation of a Proclamation to College Park Favor House Track team for their 

participation and accomplishments in the Georgia Recreation & Parks Association (GRPA) 

State Meet on May 7-8, 2021 in Augusta, Georgia. 

5. Remarks of Citizens 

6. Other Business 

A. Discussion and update on top ten delinquent property tax payers.  See memorandum dated 

June 15, 2021 from  Director of Finance & Accounting Althea Philord-Bradley.  Also, see 

attached background information. 

B. Discussion and update on top ten delinquent utility customer accounts.  See memorandum 

dated June 15, 2021 from the Director of Finance & Accounting Althea Philord-Bradley.  

Also, see attached background information. 



Regular Session Meeting Agenda June 21, 2021 

Mayor & City Council Page 2 Printed 6/16/2021 

C. College Park Utility Assistance Grant Program Update.  See memorandum dated June 16, 

2021 from Director of Finance & Accounting Althea Philord-Bradley.  Also, see attached 

supporting documentation. 

D. Consideration of and action on a request from Laster Chapel Church for approval to host a 

Summer Youth Event on Saturday, July 10, 2021 at Charles E. Phillips Park from 12:00 

p.m. until 4:00 p.m. See memorandum dated June 15, 2021 from City Clerk Shavala 

Moore.  Also, see attached City of College Park Special Event Form, Hold Harmless 

Agreement and Certificate of Insurance.  Ward 4. 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

7. Public Hearings 

8. Annual Contracts 

A. City Judge.  See memorandum dated June 16, 2021 from Interim Chief of Police Thomas 

Kuzniacki and a copy of the proposed Agreement.  This is a budgeted item. 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

B. City Judge Pro Tempore (Morrow).  See memorandum dated June 16, 2021 from Interim 

Police Chief Thomas Kuzniacki and a copy of the proposed Agreement.  This is a budgeted 

item. 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

C. City Judge Pro Tempore (Lacour).  See memorandum dated June 16, 2021 from Chief of 

Police Thomas Kuzniacki and a copy of the proposed Agreement.  This is a budgeted item. 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

D. City Solicitor.  See memorandum dated June 16, 2021 from Interim Chief of Police 

Thomas Kuzniacki and a copy of the proposed Agreement.  This is a budgeted item. 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

E. City Solicitor (Part-Time).  See memorandum dated June 16, 2021 from Interim Chief of 

Police Thomas Kuzniacki and a copy of the proposed Agreement.  This is a budgeted item. 



Regular Session Meeting Agenda June 21, 2021 

Mayor & City Council Page 3 Printed 6/16/2021 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

F. Public Defender.  See memorandum dated June 15, 2021 from Interim Chief of Police 

Thomas Kuzniacki and a copy of the proposed Professional Services Agreement.  This is a 

budgeted item. 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

G. City Photography.  See memorandum dated June 16, 2021 from Interim City Manager 

Mercedes Miller and a copy of the proposed Agreement.  This is a budgeted item. 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

H. Stenography Services.  See memorandum dated June 15, 2021 from City Clerk Shavala 

Moore and a copy of the proposed agreement.  This is a budgeted item. 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

9. Bids, Change Order Requests and Contracts 

A. Consideration of and action on a request to ratify the local fiscal recovery for non-

entitlement units award terms and conditions funding agreement between the City of 

College Park and the U.S. Department of Treasury.  See memorandum dated June 16, 2021 

from Director of Finance & Accounting Althea Philord-Bradley.  Also, see attached 

agreement. 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

B. Consideration of and action on a request for approval of the renewal of a federal lobbying 

services agreement between the City of College Park and The Ferguson Group (TFG).  See 

memorandum dated June 15, 2021 from Interim City Manager Mercedes Miller.  Also, see 

attached proposed agreement and Federal Advocacy Update 2020-2021 prepared by TFG.  

This is a budgeted item. 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 



Regular Session Meeting Agenda June 21, 2021 

Mayor & City Council Page 4 Printed 6/16/2021 

C. Consideration of and action on a request for approval of a Service Agreement with 

Interactive Utility Communications (IUC) to provide call center services for on-call 

assistance for power outages at a cost of $19,600 for the 1st year for 400 minutes per 

month.  Over 400 minutes will be $1.50 per minute.  See memorandum dated June 11, 

2021 from Power Director Hugh Richardson recommending approval.  Also, see attached 

Service Agreement.  This is a budgeted item. 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

D. Consideration of and action on a proposed agreement between the City of College Park and 

BDO USA for a Forensic Audit of the City’s Payroll Processes.  See the memorandum 

dated June 16, 2021 from the Director of Human Resources & Risk Management, along 

with the proposed agreement with BDO USA.  Also, see attached background information. 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

E. Consideration of and action on a request for approval of bids received for a Splash Pad 

(Task 1) and utilities and site improvement (Task 2) build at Charles E. Phillips Park.  See 

memorandum dated June 16, 2021 from Director of Recreation & Cultural Arts Michelle 

Johnson recommending at a cost of $584,000.  Funding is available through Fulton County 

Community Block Development (CDBG) funds.  Also, see attached supporting 

documentation. 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

F. Consideration of and action on a request for approval of a one year contract extension for 

audio visual services at the Georgia International Convention Center.  See memorandum 

dated June 15, 2021 from Interim Executive Director Denise Cole recommending extension 

of the contract with OnEvent Services (On Site).  Also, see attached proposed agreement.  

This is a budgeted item. 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

10. Unfinished (Old) Business 

11. New Business 

A. Consideration of and action to review and approve a request for a conditional height permit 

for a proposed hotel.  See memorandum dated June 15, 2021 from City Planner Nikki 

Washington recommending approval of the requested conditional height permit.  Also, see 

attached supporting documentation.  Ward 2. 



Regular Session Meeting Agenda June 21, 2021 

Mayor & City Council Page 5 Printed 6/16/2021 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

B. Consideration of an appointment for a Ward 1 College Park Board of Zoning Appeals 

(BZA) member.  See memorandum dated June 15, 2021 from City Planner Nikki 

Washington. 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

C. Consideration of and action on a request for approval of the Utility Credit Resolution for 

Fiscal Year 2021-2022.  See memorandum dated June 15, 2021 from Interim City Manager 

Mercedes Miller.  Also, see attached proposed Utility Credit Resolution 2021-13 and 

Utility Credit Resolution 2020-11 approved during the June 1, 2020 Regular Session 

Meeting. 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

D. Consideration of and action on a request for approval of changes for the Hawks Basketball 

Court Rules and Operational Policies.  See memorandum dated June 14, 2021 from the 

Director of Recreational & Cultural Arts Department Michelle Johnson.  Also, see attached 

PowerPoint presentation. 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

12. City Attorney's Report 

13. City Manager's Report 

14. Report of Mayor and Council 

15. Executive Session 

16. Approval of Executive Session Minutes 

17. Adjournment 



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8925  

Updated: 6/15/2021 12:24 PM by Shavala Moore  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: June 15, 2021 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Mercedes Miller, Interim Ciity Manager 

 

FROM: Gabrielle Thornton, Deputy City Clerk 

 

RE:  Regular Session Minutes dated June 7, 2021 

 

 

See attached Regular Session Minutes dated June 7, 2021. 

 

 

Thank you. 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 RS060721 (DOCX) 

 

Review: 

 Gabrielle Thornton Completed 06/16/2021 9:42 AM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 06/16/2021 9:42 AM 

 Mercedes Miller Completed 06/16/2021 9:45 AM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 06/21/2021 7:30 PM 

3.A

Packet Pg. 6



Regular Session 06/07/21 Page 1 of 21  

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 1 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 2 

REGULAR SESSION 3 

JUNE 7, 2021 4 

 5 

MINUTES 6 

  7 
Present: Mayor Bianca Motley Broom; Councilmen Ambrose Clay, Derrick Taylor, Ken 8 

Allen, and Roderick Gay; Interim City Manager Mercedes Miller; Deputy City 9 

Clerk Gabrielle Thornton; City Attorney Winston Denmark. 10 

 11 

Absent: City Clerk Shavala Moore.  12 

 13 

1. Opening Ceremonies. 14 

 15 

A. Pledge of allegiance to the flag. 16 

 17 

 B. Invocation by Chaplain Walker. 18 

 19 

(Councilman Gay joined the Zoom Meeting) 20 
 21 

2. Additions, Deletions, Amendments, Or Changes To The Agenda. 22 

 23 

 Mayor Motley Broom said I would like to add to the agenda Items 10a, Permission for a 24 

 Helicopter Landing at Badgett Field; and 10b, Approval of Fulton County T-SPLOST IGA.      25 

 26 

ACTION:  Councilman Clay moved to add to the agenda Items 10a, Permission for Helicopter 27 

Landing at Badgett Field; and 10b, Approval of Fulton County T-SPLOST IGA, 28 

seconded by Councilman Taylor and motion carried.  (All Voted Yes). 29 

 30 

3. Presentation Of Minutes Of City Council. 31 

 32 

A. Regular Session held May 17, 2021. 33 

 34 

ACTION:  Councilman Clay moved to approve Regular Session Minutes dated May 17, 2021, 35 

as presented, seconded by Councilman Allen and motion carried.  (All Voted Yes). 36 

  37 

B. Workshop Session held May 17, 2021. 38 

 39 

ACTION: Councilman Clay moved to approve Workshop Session Minutes dated May 17, 2021, 40 

as presented, seconded by Councilman Taylor and motion carried.  (All Voted Yes). 41 

 42 

        C.  Special Called Meeting held May 6, 2021. 43 

 44 

ACTION: Councilman Clay moved to approve Special Called Meeting dated May 6, 2021, as 45 

presented, seconded by Councilman Taylor and motion carried.  (All Voted Yes). 46 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 7



Regular Session 06/07/21 Page 2 of 21  

4. Proclamations, Resolutions, Plaques, And Announcements. 47 

 48 

A. Presentation of a Proclamation to Ensign Briana Alexis Willis for her commissioning at 49 

the 140th commencement ceremony of the United States Coast Guard Academy. 50 

 51 

 Mayor Motley Broom presented the Proclamation to Ensign Briana Alexis.  52 

 53 

 Councilman Clay said I believe Alexis is here to attend on this Zoom meeting.  I wonder if 54 

 Alexis had some really good pictures of the President and the head of the Coast Guard.  55 

 Maybe we could put one of them on the LED in front of City Hall.   56 

 57 

 Councilman Allen said that’s a great idea.   58 

 59 

 Mayor Motley Broom agreed. 60 

 61 

 Ms. Briana Alexis Willis said thank you Mayor & Council for recognizing me this evening.  62 

 It’s a complete honor to me and my family.  My family has called College Park home for 40 63 

 years.  And the City of College Park has played an integral role into shaping me into the 64 

 person I am today, and I am grateful for that.  In my experience for community programs,   65 

 such as Parks & Recreation, I have learned a sense of community, teamwork, and service.   66 

 These ideals have helped shape the clear path that I am on today.     67 

 68 

 Councilman Clay said well said Alexis.   69 

 70 

 Ms. Willis said I stand before you today, not only as an Officer in the U.S. Coast Guard, but 71 

 a part of College Park.  I will continue to strive to be the best and make College Park proud.  72 

 Thank you again for the proclamation.  And I will continue to make College Park proud.  73 

 And in the Coast Guard Motto:  Semper Paratus, Always Ready, and I am always ready to 74 

 serve.        75 

 76 

 Mayor Motley Broom said we are so grateful for your service and so proud of you. 77 

 78 

 Councilman Allen said thank you very much.  You are a credit to the City of College Park.  I 79 

 appreciate all that you have accomplished.   80 

 81 

B. Introduction of New Employees by Director of Human Resources and Risk Management 82 

Dwight Baker. 83 

 84 

Director of Human Resources & Risk Management Dr. Dwight Baker introduced the New 85 

Employees as follows: 86 

 87 

    Robin Polk    Jailer 88 

    Junior Cline     Electrical Line Worker 89 

    Vidhi Gadhavi   Project Engineer 90 

   Rudy Davis    Police Recruit  91 

   John Welles, III   Police Recruit 92 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 8



Regular Session 06/07/21 Page 3 of 21  

   Kimberly Holmes   EDP Clerk  93 

   Tammie Jackson   Accountant 94 

 95 

 Councilman Clay said welcome everybody.  96 

 97 

 Mayor Motley Broom said welcome.  Thank you Dr. Baker. 98 

 99 

 Director of Human Resources & Risk Management Dr. Dwight Baker said my pleasure. 100 

 101 

5. Remarks Of Citizens.  (Read by Deputy City Clerk)   102 

 103 

 a. Dear Mayor and Council: 104 

 105 

 We wish to join the many members of our City in hoping for a speedy recovery for Officer 106 

Ivory Morris. The injuries Officer Morris sustained are yet another reminder of the 107 

dangers our police officers take in protecting College Park. 108 

  109 

 Tom Coleman 110 

 Eileen Murphy 111 

 1993 Cambridge Ave. 112 

 College Park, GA 30337 113 

 114 

 b. Dear Mayor and Council, 115 

 116 

My name is Marjorie A. Dent and I reside at 4021 Jesses A. Dent Jr. Rd, College Park for 117 

the past 22 year.  I have been a citizen of College Park for 46 years.  I am requesting that 118 

Jesse A. Dent Jr. Rd remain closed at both ends, as it is at present, to prevent through 119 

traffic from the new development in progress.  Most of the residents there are seniors and 120 

added traffic will be jeopardizing their safety, health and general well-being. 121 

Please take this request into consideration. 122 

 123 

Thank you kindly, 124 

Pastor Marjorie A. Dent 125 

  126 

 c. Wilson N Flemister Jr  127 

  4195 Williamsburg Dr  128 

  College Park Ga. 30336 129 

 130 

Jus Wanted To Send A Good Neighbor SuperStar Shout Out To My Neighbor's College 131 

Park District 4 Councilman Roderick "Tha Great Neighbor" Gay & Tha Legendary Leon 132 

"Tha Tree Man" Williams For Coming To Our Rescue & Aid This Past Memorial Day 133 

When A Tree Fell On Our Home....Gotta Say FB Family God Is Mos Def Good All The 134 

Time. These Yung Men Were Truly  Godsend That Day...Its Really Refreshing To know 135 

That A Great Public Servant like Councilman Roderick Gay & Great Neighbor like  Leon 136 

Williams Understand The True Meaning Of Servanthood.  God Bless You. 137 

 138 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 9



Regular Session 06/07/21 Page 4 of 21  

#THA5TALENTMAN  139 

       #BLESSED  140 

       #GRATEFUL 141 

 142 

d. Good Evening, My home is located on Williamsburg Dr. Ward 4. We have a Big problem 143 

with other Residents on this street Parking on the street. Instead of in their Driveways!  144 

I'm not sure if they don't care or don't understand how hard it is to have to drive on the left 145 

side of the road in order to get to my house. I'm sure if the shoe was on the other foot they 146 

would want the cars off of the street. Not only being inconvenience trying to get to my 147 

house. I'm very concerned about my Property Value being less because the street looks 148 

like a Damn Parking Lot.(forgive my language)But I thought we are supposed to park in 149 

our driveways. If we need more room were Supposed to Expand our driveways?  Please 150 

correct me if I am wrong. You're help with this matter would be Greatly Appreciated. 151 

 152 

  xray263@aol.com 153 

 154 

 e. Good Afternoon, 155 

 156 

My name is Beverly Bearden and I live at 4371 York Road College Park, Georgia 30337. 157 

I have lived at this address for 34 years. Last month I had a tree to fall in my yard from 158 

the creek that is on one side of my house.  I am concerned about whether it is the 159 

responsibility of the City of College Park to maintain the creek basin. This is not the only 160 

tree that has fallen.  I have had several trees to fall from this creek which caused damage 161 

to my home along with the expense of me having to file insurance claims and/or having 162 

trees removed from my property.  I am on a fixed income and can’t afford to constantly 163 

have trees removed from my property that’s coming from this creek. 164 

I am asking the City of College Park to please assist me with the cleanup of this tree and 165 

to assist with making sure that the city is doing its part in maintaining the creek basin so 166 

that future trees will not be a threat to my safety and wellbeing. 167 

Your immediate attention will be greatly appreciated. 168 

 169 

Sincerely, 170 

Beverly Bearden 171 

 172 

Mayor Motley Broom asked if anyone would like to speak for 1 minute.  You can go 173 

ahead and raise your  hand at this time. 174 

 175 

 Chief Information Officer Michael Hicks said I’m watching. 176 

 177 

There were no hands raised for comment.    178 

 179 

6. Other Business. 180 

 181 

A. COVID-19 Update. 182 

 183 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 10



Regular Session 06/07/21 Page 5 of 21  

Fire Chief Wade Elmore said Dr. Mark Swancutt is here with the Fulton County Board of 184 

Health, and Mr. Doug  Schuster with the Atlanta Fulton County Emergency Management 185 

Agency.  They will give a power point update on COVID and the COVID vaccine. 186 

 187 

 Mayor Motley Broom said the floor is yours.   188 

     189 

 Dr. Swancutt gave a power point presentation on the COVID-19 update.  The situation with 190 

 COVID-19 is actually improving vastly all over the United States, even after our last peak in 191 

 January, and it has improved.  We had a few bumps  along the way, and there is a steady 192 

 decline down. 193 

      194 

 Dr. Swancutt explained the graph on the next slide of where we are with COVID.  The 195 

 major thing is we are, in fact, going down in all of the areas of the county.  In College Park 196 

 over the last 4 days, as of the last reporting period, there was a nearly 80 percent decrease in 197 

 the number of new cases that were reported.  So, it is pretty significant.   198 

 199 

Dr. Swancutt discussed the EPI Record of 6/2/21, to include Decatur, Lawrenceville, Marietta, 200 

Forest Park, Atlanta, and South Fulton.       201 

 202 

 Dr. Swancutt said the next slide is a hot spot map.  The left-hand side is confirmed cases 203 

 according to different zip codes.  College Park had fewer than 10 cases in that area.  On the 204 

 right-hand side there is a hot spot map that is color coded.   It goes from green being cold to 205 

 orange, meaning a higher concentration of cases.  It looks like it is really hot in and around 206 

 Atlanta and Southern  Fulton County.  The orange scale went up to as high as 80 or 90 207 

 before, so it is a drastic decrease from where we were in January.         208 

         209 

 Dr. Swancutt discussed the 5 major health districts.  There are patterns that arise where areas 210 

 in Fulton County go into DeKalb and follow into Gwinnett, and areas that go south into 211 

 Clayton.  These areas have also been going down intensely. 212 

 213 

Dr. Swancutt discussed the weekly flu report.  There were no flu reports over the winter,  not 214 

in Georgia or nationwide.  The dark-green is like no flu at all.  We are not having flu this year.  215 

Doug will take over now.  216 

 217 

Mr. Doug Schuster said the masks saved us in the month of January.  We met our goal of 218 

500,000 vaccinated on Friday total overall.  And to date, our last day we crossed the 300,000 219 

boundary at the GICC.  We struggled to find a good location early on, and we could not have 220 

done nearly what we did without partners with College Park and what we have been able to 221 

accomplish at the GICC.  We will continue to work there through the 26th of this month.  We 222 

have also partnered at the GICC with Children’s Hospital of Atlanta.  They have been a great 223 

partner.  I want to thank you all for that partnership.            224 

 225 

Mr. Schuster discussed the weekly totals today.  We were the only FEMA site run by locals.  226 

We are working with our teams to get to the groups that need it for equity and age.  The 227 

younger population is the ones that we need to reach.     228 

 229 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 11



Regular Session 06/07/21 Page 6 of 21  

Mr. Schuster discussed on the next slide the demographic map.  Darker colors are good.   That 230 

is fully vaccinated.  231 

 232 

Mr. Schuster discussed empirical evidence that the vaccines work is most of the new cases 233 

coming from the southern part of the country.  We are at 55 and over 80 percent vaccinated 234 

in the country and now accounting for 10 percent of all hospitalizations when it used to be 70 235 

percent.                236 

  237 

Mr. Schuster discussed 40-day average per case number. 238 

 239 

Mr. Schuster discussed the deaths in Fulton County is at 1.5 a day.  Through most of the winter 240 

months it was 6 to 7 per day.  So, that number has started to come down too.  The U.S. is 241 

dropping on their daily death rate too.       242 

 243 

  Mr. Schuster discussed the daily score board.  The column in blue is the county bed census.  244 

 The latest positivity rate for Fulton County is down to 1.7.  That number is trending even 245 

 more.  Questions? 246 

 247 

 Councilman Allen said I have no questions.   248 

 249 

 Mayor Motley Broom said I and your team with the Department of Health have worked 250 

 tirelessly to get us to this point.  And I want to thank you for all your efforts.  We have 251 

 enjoyed being a partner with the county in order to get vaccines and information to the 252 

 larger broader community.        253 

      254 

 Dr. Swancutt said if anybody has any ideas or events that you want us to be at, we will be 255 

 there for you guys.   256 

 257 

 Mr. Schuster said thank you for the cooperation.  We are almost there.  258 

 259 

B.  Update on the Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI), billing interface, and other 260 

 related software. 261 

 262 

Director of Power Hugh Richardson gave a power point update on the AMI System, to include 263 

the water meter endpoints and replacement and the new IR Communication Device.    264 

 265 

Director of Power Hugh Richardson discussed the on-call center assistant and outage 266 

management system.  I will have this on the next workshop session.   267 

 268 

Director of Power Hugh Richardson discussed the distribution automation, EV charging 269 

stations and increased street and park lighting.  We replaced 2,400 plus the 600 plus purple 270 

lights.      271 

 272 

Director of Power Hugh Richardson said the last thing is the 16 customer water leak accounts 273 

and the KWH sales difference from the pandemic.  274 

 275 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 12



Regular Session 06/07/21 Page 7 of 21  

 Mayor Motley Broom asked, any questions for Mr. Richardson? 276 

 277 

 Councilman Clay said the ability to record water usage every 15 minutes, will that be 278 

 available to the customer that they can actually see that history as well? 279 

 280 

 Director of Power Hugh Richardson said I think so.  Let me check on that.  281 

 282 

 Councilman Clay said I have some experience with customers who have simply a stuck 283 

 toilet.  When they flush the toilet, the flapper stays up, and it will use hundreds of gallons in 284 

 a very short time.  I know for me it boosted one month by a kilogallon.  And I know some 285 

 customers who had very high usages which we believe are due to a stuck toilet valve. 286 

 287 

 Mayor Motley Broom asked, any other questions or comments?      288 

 289 

        Councilman Clay said good report.  290 

 291 

C. Discussion and update on top ten delinquent property tax payers. 292 

 293 

 Mayor Motley Broom asked, any questions for Ms. Philord-Bradley on 6c or 6d?   294 

 295 

There were no questions.   296 

 297 

 Councilman Allen said no. 298 

 299 

D.   Discussion and update on top ten delinquent utility customer accounts. 300 

 301 

There were no questions.   302 

 303 

E.    College Park Utility Assistance Grant Program Update. 304 

 305 

 Director of Finance & Accounting Althea Philord-Bradley said we are still awarding the 306 

 Utility Assistance Grant to who have come in and met with our staff and completed the 307 

 application and submitted all the required documents.  However, it is still moving slowly.  308 

 We will be inserting new flyers into the utility bills, and we are doing a mass mailing and 309 

 sending those flyers out to our customers.   310 

 311 

 Director of Finance & Accounting Althea Philord-Bradley said we did get some good news 312 

 for our senior citizens.  Those whose sole income is Social Security or pension, they are 313 

 eligible to apply for the grant, as long as they meet all the other criteria, as far as a Fulton 314 

 County resident and provide all the required documents.  And they have to provide a 315 

 statement stating that there was a hardship.  We did deny some senior citizens’ applications 316 

 early on; however, we will be going back through those applications and contacting them.                                 317 

 318 

 Councilman Clay said excellent news.  319 

 320 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 13



Regular Session 06/07/21 Page 8 of 21  

F. Consideration of and action on a request from the Atlanta Airport District for approval to 321 

host a cycling race event, Spin the District, and related festivities on Sunday, August 29, 322 

2021 from 9:00 a.m. until 7:30 p.m. 323 

 324 

 Mayor Motley Broom said I think we have some of our friends on the line.  325 

 326 

 Ms. Cookie Smoaks said good evening to all Mayor & Council.  We are so excited to tell 327 

 you that the revolution is going to return.  And we have slated the date for August 29, 2021 328 

 for the Criterium in College Park, the same area that we have done it in both 2018 and 2019.  329 

 The race time is from 9:00 a.m. to 7:30 p.m.  We are planning a very action packed day with 330 

 lots of fun for the whole family.  It is the championship conclusion for the USA CRITS  331 

 Speed Week.  It will include a type of festival atmosphere where attendees can grab a beer 332 

 or some  food or check out local great artists.  We are not going to be doing the crawfish 333 

 boil this  time because it is not crawfish season, and we had to move the dates due to 334 

 COVID.           335 

 336 

 Ms. Smoaks said we are requesting road closures from 8:00 a.m. to 7:30 p.m.  We will have 337 

 movable barriers like we have done in the past.  And we will hire College Park Police 338 

 Officers.  There will be alcohol sales.  And we are just asking for approval to host the event 339 

 on the city streets and in the requested parking areas.  It includes marking the outlets that are 340 

 available for special events.  We are going to do banner placements, including a street 341 

 banner right across Main Street over Virginia Avenue and on the Virginia Avenue bridge, 342 

 and in front of City Hall.  We will be placing yard signs throughout the city and in other 343 

 outdoor locations.  We are also considering street pole banners.   We will be using the City’s 344 

 parking lot from 6:00 a.m. to 9:30 p.m. on Sunday for all the activities.  We would need the 345 

 City to block off that lot on Saturday night the 28th to prevent any vehicle from parking 346 

 overnight.             347 

 348 

 Ms. Smoaks said there will be restaurants placed on the lot on Friday.  There will be 349 

 dumpster and trash cans for the event.   And we will need (2) 60 amp power services, 350 

 one by the car charging stations and one by the main power panel, and then a barricade for 351 

 the public safety lot beginning on Saturday evening.  We will possibly use fire hydrant water 352 

 tie in on the hydrant that is located closest to Princeton Avenue and College Street in the 353 

 area with a water meter provided.  We will also need approval for alcohol sales via our 354 

 restaurant partner, The Corner Grill, which is who we used in the past.  And we will need 355 

 assistance with communicating road blocks with MARTA, in order to ensure that they can 356 

 reroute their buses.             357 

 358 

 Ms. Smoaks said some of us are familiar with the USA CRITS.  We are excited to host 359 

 the event live and in person.  The first year we did this event, we had about 90 cyclists.  The 360 

 second year in 2019, we had 250 cyclists representing 23 states and 13 countries.  So, it 361 

 really gives us an opportunity to put ourselves on the map.  Does anybody have any 362 

 questions for us?         363 

 364 

 Mayor Motley Broom asked, any questions for Ms. Smoaks? 365 

  366 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 14



Regular Session 06/07/21 Page 9 of 21  

 Councilman Clay said welcome Cookie.  It looks like you guys pulled off a real coup. 367 

 368 

 Ms. Smoaks said yes, we did.   369 

 370 

 Councilman Clay said I have residents in the Lindsay and the Longino buildings off 371 

 Princeton and on the cross street that comes across from it, and we have tried to in the past to 372 

 make sure that these people can get out of their building.  One gentleman indicated that he 373 

 had to park his truck and walk a good half a mile in order to get to where he needs to go to 374 

 do maintenance.   375 

 376 

 Councilman Clay said so, I would like to task Mercedes with the responsibility to organize a 377 

 kind of “lessons learned” between the Criterium organizers and the Police Department and 378 

 figure out from the “lessons learned” in the past what could we do better to give these 379 

 people better access during the event?  I am happy to get the event here, and I know it is 380 

 only 1 day, but you worry about emergencies.  These are elderly people in both of those 381 

 buildings.  What is our goal in response time?  Is there a service that we could provide 382 

 them?  For example, Lift or Uber could meet them at the corner of Princeton and College or 383 

 something like that that could do something to facilitate an egress and an ingress.                 384 

 385 

 Ms. Andria Towne said I would like to give some interim feedback for everybody.  We 386 

 would be happy to work with her to work through it.  We do have a multiple step process to 387 

 notify all the businesses and residents in the area.  We hand out flyers a couple of weeks 388 

 before the event, and we follow up the week of the event with the second round of flyers.  389 

 Each road closure has staffing there.  No one will have to or should have to wait more than a 390 

 couple minutes.  Once the bikes get to the other side of the course, we open it up.  I’m not 391 

 sure what happened in the case of the gentleman you were referring to, but we will not close 392 

 down the roads for the entire day. 393 

 394 

 Councilman Clay asked, what are a few minutes? 395 

 396 

 Ms. Towne said 3 to 5 minutes maximum. 397 

 398 

 Councilman Clay said there might have been a group of stragglers that were also there.  And 399 

 so, I don’t know how much of a window there is.  Someone at the Housing Authority could 400 

 provide more information.    401 

   402 

       Ms. Towne said in the event of an actual emergency, we will shut down the race 403 

 immediately and stop.  We are happy to look at other ways in making people aware.  The 404 

 riders are used to this kind of environment.  We do have some of the country’s premier 405 

 organizers that are working on our behalf to make this happen.  We are going to make sure 406 

 that people get in and out of their residence and make them aware in advance.            407 

 408 

 Councilman Clay said thank you.   409 

 410 

 Mayor Motley Broom asked, in regard to the request that you have from the City, are they 411 

 any different from the ones you had in 2019? 412 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 15



Regular Session 06/07/21 Page 10 of 21  

 Ms. Smoaks said no.   413 

 414 

 Mayor Motley Broom asked, are there any other questions, comments, concerns?  Are there 415 

 any speed humps installed along the route?  416 

 417 

 Councilman Clay said not on Princeton.   418 

 419 

 Councilman Allen said I road my bike around there the other day, and there was not any 420 

 speed humps, but that was like a week or so ago. 421 

 422 

 Councilman Clay said there is one on Atlanta, but Atlanta is not in the course. 423 

  424 

 ACTION:  Councilman Clay moved to approve a request from City Clerk Shavala Moore to 425 

allow Atlanta Airport District to host a cycling race event, Spin the District, and 426 

related festivities on Sunday, August 29, 2021 from 9:00 a.m. until 7:30 p.m., 427 

seconded by Councilman Allen and motion carried.  (All Voted Yes). 428 

 429 

 7. Public Hearings. 430 

 431 

A.  Public Hearing to receive comments on the proposed FY2021-2022 Budget. This is the 432 

second of two public hearings scheduled to receive public comments.  This is the final 433 

hearing to adopt the FY2021-2022 Budget. 434 

 435 

 Mayor Motley Broom said this is the final hearing to adopt the budget.  Any comments from 436 

 Council?  437 

 438 

 Councilman Clay said I have none.  439 

 440 

 Mayor Motley Broom declared the public hearing open. 441 

 442 

 Mayor Motley Broom asked if there was anyone from the public that would like to speak for 443 

 or against the proposed adoption of Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Budget.   If you wish to be heard, 444 

 raise your hand.   445 

 446 

 There were no comments from the public.   447 

 448 

 Mayor Motley Broom declared the public hearing closed.   449 

 450 

 B. Consideration of and action to approve the FY2021-2022 City of College Park Budget.  451 

 452 

ACTION: Councilman Clay moved to approve a request from Director of Finance & 453 

Accounting Althea Philord-Bradley to adopt the FY2021-2022 Budget, seconded by 454 

Councilman Allen and motion carried.  (All Voted Yes). 455 

 456 

8. Bid, Change Order Requests And Contracts.  457 

 458 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 16



Regular Session 06/07/21 Page 11 of 21  

A. Consideration of and action on a request for next three month extension approval of the 459 

agreement with Chick-fil-A ownership at 1065 Cleveland Avenue allowing a free 460 

standing kiosk on Main Street to sell limited menu items 3 days a week (Mon. thru Wed.), 461 

for the hours of 11 am-2 pm and to partner in this city sponsored event to facilitate a 462 

marketing study.  463 

 464 

Main Street Manager Renee Coakley explained the request.  We are requesting to move 465 

forward for the next (3) three months.  I did speak to the Police Department and there were 466 

no issues as far as traffic hindrances or accidents  or anything of that nature.  There were 467 

several businesses, along with city employees and MARTA riders, that support the kiosk.  We 468 

would like an extension of their contract for another (3) three months.      469 

 470 

 Mayor Motley Broom asked, any questions for Ms. Coakley? 471 

 472 

 There were no questions made. 473 

 474 

 Mayor Motley Broom called for a motion. 475 

  476 

ACTION: Councilman Clay moved to approve a request from Director of Economic 477 

Development Artie Jones, III for approval of the next three month extension of the 478 

agreement with Chick-fil-A ownership at 1065 Cleveland Avenue allowing a free 479 

standing kiosk on Main Street to sell limited menu items 3 days a week (Mon. thru 480 

Wed.), for the hours of 11:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m. and to partner in this city sponsored 481 

event to facilitate a marketing study, seconded by Councilman Allen and motion 482 

carried.  (All Voted Yes). 483 

 484 

B.   Consideration of and action on a request to authorize the refinancing of the multiple debt 485 

issues. 486 

 487 

Director of Finance & Accounting Althea Philord-Bradley said Ed Wall should be on the   488 

line. 489 

 490 

Chief Information Officer Michael Hick said he must have jumped off.  491 

 492 

Mayor Motley Broom asked, does anyone have any questions for Mr. Wall? 493 

   494 

There were no questions from Council.  495 

 496 

ACTION: Councilman Clay moved to approve a request from Director of Finance & 497 

Accounting Althea Philord-Bradley to authorize the refinancing of the multiple debt 498 

issues, seconded by Councilman Allen and motion carried.  (All Voted Yes). 499 

 500 

C. Consideration of and action on a request for approval to select a bond counsel to provide 501 

professional services to the City to issue the refinancing of existing debt on an “on-call 502 

basis”. 503 

 504 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 17



Regular Session 06/07/21 Page 12 of 21  

Mayor Motley Broom said Ms. Philord-Bradley has recommend Doug Selby of Hunton 505 

Andrews Kurth.   506 

 507 

Director of Finance & Accounting Althea Philord-Bradley said quotes were solicited by our 508 

Financial Advisor Ed Wall, and Doug Selby came in with the lowest bid.  So, we are 509 

recommending that the Council approve Doug Selby of Hunton Andrews Kurth, LLC as the 510 

City’s bond counsel on an on-call basis.   511 

           512 

 Councilman Clay said he seems to have a good history and good resume.  513 

 514 

 Councilman Gay asked, does that mean that our current bond counsel is no longer with us? 515 

 516 

Director of Finance & Accounting Althea Philord-Bradley said yes.   517 

 518 

Councilman Gay asked, was he under a contract?  519 

 520 

Director of Finance & Accounting Althea Philord-Bradley said it was on an on-call basis as 521 

well. 522 

 523 

ACTION: Councilman Clay moved to approve a request from Director of Finance & 524 

Accounting Althea Philord-Bradley to select Doug Selby of Hunton Andrews Kurth, 525 

LLC to provide professional services to the City to issue the refinancing of existing 526 

debt on an “on-call basis”, seconded by Councilman Taylor and motion carried.  (All 527 

Voted Yes). 528 

    529 

D.     Consideration of and action on a request authorizing the Mayor to execute Task Order #5 530 

with Kimley-Horn to provide professional design services for water and sewer relocation 531 

design for Rhodes Street.   532 

 533 

 Mayor Motley Broom asked, any questions for Mr. Jones? 534 

 535 

 Councilman Gay asked, what fund is this paid out of? 536 

 537 

 Mayor Motley Broom said I believe this is coming from the TAD Fund balance. 538 

 539 

 Councilman Clay said right.  540 

 541 

 Director of Economic Development Artie Jones said that is correct, the TAD Fund balance. 542 

 543 

 Councilman Clay said the cover memo is a little misleading, in that it implies that we have a 544 

 negative balance in the fund, which is true, because we have money that we owe back to 545 

 Fulton County.  But as a matter of fact, I asked the question beforehand.  We actually have 546 

 $400,000.00, as I  remember, in that fund.  So, we have cash, and the payback of what we 547 

 owe Fulton County is agreed to be done by us only getting half of the income that we are 548 

 supposed to get from the TAD over the next several years.  It’s believed to be 4 years and will 549 

 be paid back, but we will still be getting income.  And if COVID resurged, we would get 550 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 18



Regular Session 06/07/21 Page 13 of 21  

 less  revenue in, and we would pay less back at that time.  So, the payback period is open-551 

 ended.  So, there is no problem with having the money available to cover this. 552 

 553 

Director of Finance & Accounting Althea Philord-Bradley said that is correct. 554 

  555 

ACTION: Councilman Clay moved to approve a request from Director of Economic 556 

Development Artie Jones, III, authorizing the Mayor to execute Task Order #5 with 557 

Kimley Horn to provide professional design services for water and sewer relocation 558 

design for Rhodes Street in the amount of $44,000.00, seconded by Councilman 559 

Allen and motion carried.  (All Voted Yes). 560 

 561 

E. Consideration of and action on bids received for the annual power line right-of-way tree 562 

trimming contractor.  563 

 564 

ACTION: Councilman Gay moved to approve a request from Director of Power Hugh 565 

Richardson to approve W.A. Kendall for the annual power line right-of-way tree 566 

trimming contractor, seconded by Councilman Clay and motion carried.  (All Voted 567 

Yes). 568 

 569 

F. Consideration of and action on bids received for the annual power line construction 570 

contractor. 571 

 572 

ACTION: Councilman Clay moved to approve a request from Director of Power Hugh 573 

Richardson to approve ProSource Utility Contractors, LLC for the annual power line 574 

construction contractor, seconded by Councilman Gay and motion carried.  (All 575 

Voted Yes). 576 

  577 

G.   Consideration of and action on a request for approval of solid waste disposal services for 578 

residential and commercial solid waste.   579 

 580 

ACTION: Councilman Allen moved to approve a request from Director of Infrastructure and 581 

Development Jackson Myers to approve BFI Transfer System of Georgia, 582 

LLC/Republic Services of Georgia “East Point Transfer Station” as the City’s solid 583 

waste disposal facility for residential and commercial solid waste, seconded by 584 

Councilman Clay and motion carried.  (All Voted Yes). 585 

  586 

H.   Consideration of and action on a request for approval to upgrade the City’s emergency 587 

warning sirens.   588 

 589 

 Councilman Clay said we need to make sure that it is thoroughly tested to make sure that 590 

 what they have in the parallelogram overlay for the tornado or whatever is coming, is 591 

 actually in there and with the proper coordinates and our sirens are in there with the proper 592 

 coordinates.  So, hopefully, it is going to be well tested.  It sounds like a great innovation.         593 

 594 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 19



Regular Session 06/07/21 Page 14 of 21  

 Fire Chief Wade Elmore said I just received the maintenance agreement this evening from 595 

 the City Attorney, and he said it is good to go.  But he just wanted to make you all aware  596 

 that there will be an additional $1,600.00 a year, if I’m not mistaken.  597 

 598 

 Councilman Clay said I wondered about that.   599 

 600 

 Ms. Sharon Fornes (sp), MCA Mobil Communications of America, said the $1,600.00 is 601 

 annually.  That was all part of the bid.  I have Patrick Madrid and Lance Muncher with me 602 

 on the call.  They are our mass notification subject matter experts for the sirens.  Any 603 

 questions?        604 

 605 

 Councilman Clay said if we move a siren for some reason or update it, I got from your 606 

 answer that you gave me earlier that that would be covered under this normal maintenance 607 

 of the sirens; is that correct? 608 

 609 

 Mr. Lance Muncher said if you are taking about moving the siren within the software 610 

 yes, sir, but not physically coming out and moving a siren.  We will monitor the software 611 

 and fix any bugs or issues.   612 

 613 

 Councilman Gay asked, will the existing locations stay the same for the sirens?  And two, 614 

 what are we doing with the sirens, if we are going to replace them?  And, will we be  adding 615 

 any additional sirens?   616 

 617 

 Mr. Muncher said they are staying in the same location.  We are upgrading all but one.  618 

 There are 6 total.  One was approved at a much later date and did not need to be upgraded.  619 

 This is upgrading the 5 that were no longer supported.  There will be no additional sirens 620 

 added in this contract. 621 

 622 

 Councilman Clay said the point you were making clear was there was no charge on the 623 

 software side if we move it. 624 

 625 

 Mr. Muncher said you are correct, sir.  626 

           627 

ACTION: Councilman Clay moved to approve a request from Fire Chief Wade Elmore to 628 

upgrade the City’s emergency warning sirens, seconded by Councilman Gay and 629 

motion carried.  (All Voted Yes). 630 

 631 

I. Consideration of and action on a request to ratify approval of the acceptance of Community 632 

Development Block Grant (CDBG) COVID-3 CARES Act funding from Fulton County in 633 

the amount of $110,000.00 for Phase II Emergency Utility Assistance. 634 

 635 

ACTION: Councilman Clay moved to approve a request from Director of Infrastructure and 636 

Development Jackson Myers to ratify approval of the acceptance of Community 637 

Development Block Grant (CDBG) COVID-3 CARES Act funding from Fulton 638 

County in the amount of $110,000.00 for Phase II Emergency Utility Assistance, 639 

seconded by Councilman Allen and motion carried.  (All Voted Yes). 640 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 20



Regular Session 06/07/21 Page 15 of 21  

9. Unfinished (Old) Business. 641 

 642 

A. Consideration of and action on a request for approval for the Atlanta Airport Rotary Club 643 

to route funds donated for the Mayor’s Ball held on November 18, 2018 as scholarships 644 

to students entering college or technical schools. 645 

 646 

 Interim City Manager Mercedes Miller said as requested at the last meeting, I did speak with 647 

 the Rotary Club, and they will accept the funding. The scholarships will be given out by the 648 

 Rotary Club Foundation as soon as it is approved. 649 

 650 

 Mayor Motley Broom asked, any questions for Ms. Miller in regard to that information? 651 

 652 

 There were no questions.   653 

  654 

ACTION: Councilman Clay moved to approve a request from Interim City Manager Mercedes 655 

Miller for the Atlanta Airport Rotary Club to route funds donated for the Mayor’s 656 

Ball held on November 18, 2018 as scholarships to students entering college or 657 

technical schools, seconded by Councilman Gay.  Councilman Clay voted yes.  658 

Councilman Gay voted yes.  Councilman Taylor voted yes.  Councilman Allen 659 

abstained due to being a member of the Atlanta Airport Rotary Club.  Motion carried. 660 

 661 

B. Consideration of and action on a request for approval of revisions to the City of College 662 

Park Purchasing Department Policies and Procedures.  663 

 664 

ACTION: Councilman Clay moved to approve a request from Purchasing/Fleet Administrator 665 

Willis Moody for approval of revisions to the City of College Park Purchasing 666 

Department Policies and Procedures, seconded by Councilman Allen and motion 667 

carried.  (All Voted Yes). 668 

 669 

10.  New Business. 670 

 671 

A. Permission for Helicopter Landing at Badgett Field. 672 

 673 

Director of Recreation & Cultural Arts Michelle Johnson explained the request.   674 

 675 

Mr. Thomas Abair explained the program, to include leadership skills, structure, and 676 

fundamentals of aerodynamics and aeronautics.      677 

 678 

Lt. Christian L. Hunt, Atlanta Police Department, said I will be teaming up with these 679 

individuals to facilitate this flyover and have a meet and greet with our aviation team.  On that 680 

date, we will have 3 officers, 1 pilot, and 1 tactical field officer and myself to answer any 681 

questions that they may have concerning the helicopter and what we do at the police 682 

department.   683 

 684 

Director of Recreation & Cultural Arts Michelle Johnson said I appreciate it Lt. Hunt.  Any 685 

questions?  This is specifically the Phoenix Helicopter that they are studying.    686 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 21



Regular Session 06/07/21 Page 16 of 21  

Mr. Abair said they will be able to identify certain components of that helicopter.    687 

 688 

Councilman Gay asked, do we have to get FAA approval? 689 

 690 

Lt. Hunt said our hanger is at the Delta South Airport.  My pilot in command will get that 691 

clearance, and we will be good to go.   692 

 693 

 Councilman Clay said I know you guys know what you are doing.  If the wind is from the 694 

 east, planes are landing on Runway 8L coming about 200 feet over Main Street, and that is 695 

 probably about a quarter of a mile from Badgett Field.  I’m the guy who tracks aircraft for 696 

 this city.  I think it’s a fantastic program.  I might even show up for the helicopter landing.   697 

 698 

 Mayor Motley Broom asked, any other questions? 699 

 700 

 Councilman Taylor asked, how many kids do you have in the program?  And how long have 701 

 you been doing this in College Park?    702 

 703 

 Lt. Hunt said this will be our second week at the Brady Center.   704 

 705 

Director of Recreation & Cultural Arts Michelle Johnson said it is a new partnership. 706 

 707 

 Councilman Clay said amazing.  708 

 709 

 Mayor Motley Broom said it is an exciting opportunity.   710 

 711 

ACTION:  Councilman Clay moved to approve a request from Interim City Manager Mercedes 712 

Miller for helicopter landing at Badgett Field, seconded by Councilman Taylor and 713 

motion carried.  (All Voted Yes). 714 

 715 

B. Consideration of and action on an intergovernmental agreement with Fulton County in 716 

regard to the T-SPLOST IGA.   717 

 718 

 Mayor Motley Broom said we received this information a little earlier today.  Any 719 

 questions?   720 

 721 

Councilman Gay asked, does this T-SPLOST mean that we give a new list of projects, or are 722 

these projects that we have already considered? 723 

 724 

 Director of Infrastructure and Development Jackson Myers said instead of earmarking, I 725 

 looked at where we could do quick responses.  And when we get our first $5 million, we 726 

 should be able to move those wherever the Mayor & Council would like for those to be seen 727 

 in the future.      728 

 729 

 Councilman Clay said so right now you are asking for approval to enter into this IGA, with 730 

 the terms laid out therein and the projects that have been attached as well.     731 

 732 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 22



Regular Session 06/07/21 Page 17 of 21  

 Councilman Gay asked, the project list, when did we create that list, and is there an 733 

opportunity to add projects? 734 

 735 

 Director of Infrastructure and Development Jackson Myers said that is why I did quick  736 

 response so we didn’t get strapped to that.  What they did to us was, we are working through 737 

 some other policies to House Bill 368.  We want to be able to utilize it on other projects.  738 

 That is why I went with quick response.  It will be for the next 5 years. 739 

 740 

 Councilman Gay asked, so it is just a quick response; is that what you are saying?     741 

    742 

Director of Infrastructure and Development Jackson Myers said in the next 5 years we hope 743 

to collect enough money to be able to work on Six West.    744 

 745 

Councilman Gay said thank you.  746 

 747 

ACTION: Councilman Clay moved to approve a request from Interim City Manager Mercedes 748 

Miller to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with Fulton County T-SPLOST, 749 

seconded by Councilman Allen and motion carried.  (All Voted Yes). 750 

 751 

11.  City Attorney’s Report.  None. 752 

 753 

12. City Manager’s Report.  None. 754 

 755 

13. Report of Mayor And Council. 756 

 757 

 Councilman Gay – said great meeting.  I have a few items.  758 

 759 

 Councilman Gay said we have Renee Coakley looking at purchasing banners on the part of 760 

 Roosevelt that was changed to Main.   It is not a lot of banners, just a few to give that name 761 

 change some identity, please.    762 

 763 

  Councilman Gay said the second thing, I met with Chief Kuzniacki and the City Manager.  764 

 He talked about a police trailer that has cameras on it for our issues on Cayman Road.  We 765 

 would like to look at what that would cost, and bring it back to us.      766 

 767 

 Councilman Gay said third thing, Highways & Streets, we have met on-site.   There seems 768 

 to be an issue amongst my residents on which creeks are or are not the City’s responsibility.  769 

 I understand that there may be a stormwater map that we need to bring and discuss which 770 

 creek beds are or are not our responsibility.  That is all I have.   771 

 772 

 Councilman Allen – said first of all, I just want to wish Officer Ivory Morris well. 773 

 774 

 Councilman Allen said congratulations to Ms. Briana Alexis Willis.   775 

 776 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 23



Regular Session 06/07/21 Page 18 of 21  

 Councilman Allen said I want to thank Chick-fil-A for their program that they gave to our 777 

 employees last week.  I thought it was a fantastic program.  I hope all the employees enjoyed 778 

 it as much as I did.   779 

 780 

 Councilman Allen said some small streets have people parking on both sides.  You cannot 781 

 get a van or a delivery truck down the streets.  I had the Fire Marshal and the Fire Chief take 782 

 a look at it.  We are going to be coming to Mercedes and some other people to talk about it.   783 

 If you park on both sides, I think you would have trouble getting a ladder truck down there 784 

 for those 3-story townhouses.  That’s all I had.      785 

  786 

 Councilman Taylor – said congratulations to Ms. Willis for her accomplishments, doing 787 

 good things, and showing the young ladies that that is a good thing that she’s doing in 788 

 College Park.  789 

 790 

 Councilman Taylor said on 2900 Camp Creek we had a fire, and it displaced a few people.  791 

 I will be out there tomorrow checking whatever we can collect for the people in College 792 

 Park 2900 Camp Creek. A lot of the people for some reason are not getting the renters 793 

 insurance.  Can we get a discount for the people that have to go to hotels?  Red Cross gave 794 

 them $500.00.  That will last 3 or 4 days at $100.00 a night.   Just in case this happens again.  795 

 That’s all I have.          796 

        797 

 Councilman Clay – said I have 3 items.  They all pertain to Main Street.  And if Renee is 798 

 still on the call, I think she is.  She can chime in.  The first one is we have had issues with 799 

 litter on Main Street. And I think we have got some better support just on cleaning up the 800 

 litter.  But we have talked about putting in some signs on Main Street.  There are 2 types of 801 

 signs.  One will say “Please Help Keep Our City Clean”.  And it can show a picture of 802 

 someone throwing something into the waste basket.  A second sign would say “There Is A 803 

 Fine For Littering”.    804 

 805 

 Councilman Clay said so, one soft approach and one hard approach.  And Renee has 806 

 indicated that we have people that come in to some of the restaurants, and they take it as an 807 

 opportunity to clean out their car.  Those are the people that the second sign applies to.  If 808 

 you are littering, you are going to get fined.  The first one is more for the people that may 809 

 grab a candy bar and drop the wrapper.                  810 

 811 

 Councilman Clay said staff can just do it, but I wanted to bring it up to Council and see if 812 

 anybody had any objections to us posting those kinds of signs.  And I think Renee, we have 813 

 talked about putting a soft sign, a professional sign on the actual buckets themselves.  You 814 

 need help from Public Works with that.  And the other sign, the litter fine sign, put it maybe 815 

 one per block or something like that; is that correct? 816 

 817 

 Main Street Manager Renee Coakley said I think that is correct.  A staff person has been 818 

 interviewed, and I think has been hired for Main Street and Virginia Avenue cleanup.  So, 819 

 we will have a staff person specifically for those areas.  That will drastically improve the 820 

 area.  We will look at this with Aerotropolis.  I think we need more of a program to facilitate 821 

 that to get the mindset of people to change.   822 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 24



Regular Session 06/07/21 Page 19 of 21  

 Councilman Clay asked, who is going to run that?  You? 823 

 824 

 Main Street Manager Renee Coakley said I am on the committee.  The same one that did the 825 

 core values, he was heading that up. 826 

     827 

 Councilman Clay said so what we are looking for tonight is awareness so Council knows 828 

 what we are doing.  Main Street is in Ward 1, but Main Street is everybody as well.  If the 829 

 people have an objection to this, this is the time to hear them.  830 

 831 

 There was no objection.    832 

 833 

        Councilman Clay said one thing discussed in the Main Street meeting was some way of taking 834 

 a percentage of money that comes from the success of Main Street of the restaurants and 835 

 businesses on Main Street and piling that back into Main Street.  I have already explored the 836 

 legal possibilities.  But if we were to say that when we do the budget, if we were to take a 837 

 certain percentage of the Occupation Tax in the Main Street and Virginia Avenue, the 838 

 downtown area, and put that back into improving the area through, for example, Façade 839 

 Grants, that is something I would like the Council to think about.  And if you have any 840 

 strong reaction to it, bring it up now.  If the businesses aren’t successful, then the money goes 841 

 down.  If they are successful, then I would say with Renee and the Board, Main Street is doing 842 

 extremely well.  And it is almost becoming an embarrassment of riches because we have a 843 

 traffic situation on Main Street which hopefully the parklet will help with that.  I just wanted 844 

 to make Council aware of that.  And if anybody has a strong objection to that, this is a good 845 

 time to speak up.                    846 

 847 

 There were no comments.   848 

 849 

 Councilman Clay said and last, Main Street Association, not the businesses, but if the Main 850 

 Street Association provided a meeting, something like Rekindle and what have you, we’d 851 

 like to have a standing operational procedure that those things can be posted on the LED 852 

 board in front of City Hall.  We have always said that we are not going to hype individual 853 

 businesses on that particular billboard.  But it’s another thing to say, well, we have an art 854 

 festival, or maybe the Criterium would be something you put on there.  Does anybody have 855 

 a problem with that?        856 

  857 

 Mayor Motley Broom said I don’t know why we wouldn’t promote those kinds of things. 858 

 859 

 Councilman Clay said these are pretty much no brainers, and that’s all I had. 860 

 861 

 Mayor Motley Broom –said if you were listening in the beginning with the Fulton County 862 

 update, June 26, 2021 is your last day to get vaccinated at the GICC.  They are doing 863 

 walkups Tuesday through Saturday from 10:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m.  So, please make sure you 864 

 get out and get vaccinated to continue to move towards normalcy that we are moving 865 

 towards.  It is disheartening to see that map and see how much the southern half of our 866 

 county is lagging in vaccinations in comparison to the north side.  We can do this.  We can 867 

 make sure that our community is protected, and everybody has to do their part. 868 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 25



Regular Session 06/07/21 Page 20 of 21  

 Mayor Motley Broom said I send my thanks on behalf of a grateful city for everything the 869 

 College Park Police do on a daily basis.  They get up every day and go in the direction of 870 

 danger.  That was clear this weekend in regard to a call Officer Ivory Morris received, and 871 

 he is on  the road to recovery.  And we wish him nothing but the best.  And we are so 872 

 grateful for his service to the entire community.      873 

 874 

 Mayor Motley Broom said I want to thank Chick-fil-A for coming and doing Customer 875 

 Service training with the entire city staff.  We have the customer service leaders in our 876 

 backyard and within our city limits, and we are so grateful to them for coming out and 877 

 sharing a few tips.  878 

 879 

 Mayor Motley Broom said part of that conversation is Dr. Baker introduced the new ethics 880 

 hotline for our city employees.  So, I think everybody got information about that.  If you 881 

 “See Something/Say Something”.  We have not just put these core values up behind us so 882 

 we can have them behind us.  We want to live them each and every day.  And parts of this is 883 

 with every single individual that touches this city and the responsibilities that we all have to 884 

 uphold those high ethical standards.           885 

 886 

(Councilman Gay stepped away from the Zoom meeting) 887 

 888 
14. Executive Session. 889 

 890 

ACTION:  Councilman Taylor moved to approve Cybersecurity A, seconded by Councilman 891 

Clay and  motion carried.  (All Voted Yes).  Councilman Gay not present for the 892 

vote. 893 

 894 

 ACTION:  Councilman Clay moved to approve Cybersecurity B, seconded by Councilman 895 

Taylor and motion carried.  (All Voted Yes).  Councilman Gay not present for the 896 

vote. 897 

 898 

ACTION:  Councilman Clay moved to approve Cybersecurity D, seconded by Councilman 899 

Allen and motion carried.  (All Voted Yes).  Councilman Gay not present for the 900 

vote. 901 

 902 

15.   Approval of Executive Session Minutes. 903 

 904 

ACTION: Councilman Clay moved to approve Executive Session Minutes dated June 7, 2021, 905 

as presented, seconded by Councilman Taylor and motion carried.  (All Voted Yes). 906 

 907 

16. Adjournment. 908 

 909 

 Mayor Motley Broom declared the Regular Session adjourned at 9:19 p.m. 910 

 911 

 912 

 913 

 914 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 26



Regular Session 06/07/21 Page 21 of 21  

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 915 

                     916 

              917 

_________________________ 918 

             Bianca Motley Broom, Mayor 919 

 920 

 921 

ATTEST:   922 

 923 

 924 

________________________ 925 

Shavala Moore, City Clerk 926 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 27



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8926  

Updated: 6/14/2021 5:11 PM by Gabrielle Thornton  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: June 14, 2021 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Mercedes Miller, Interim City Manager 

 

FROM: Gabrielle Thornton, Deputy City Clerk 

 

RE:  Workshop Session Minutes dated June 7, 2021 

 

 

See attached Workshop Session Minutes dated June 7, 2021. 

 

Thank you. 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 WSS060721 (DOC) 

 

Review: 

 Gabrielle Thornton Completed 06/14/2021 5:11 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 06/15/2021 11:36 AM 

 Mercedes Miller Completed 06/15/2021 4:56 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 06/21/2021 7:30 PM 

3.B

Packet Pg. 28



Workshop Session 06/07/21 Page 1 of 6 

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 1 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 2 

WORKSHOP SESSION 3 

JUNE 7, 2021 4 

 5 

MINUTES 6 

  7 
Present: Mayor Bianca Motley Broom; Councilmen Ambrose Clay, Derrick 8 

Taylor, Ken Allen, and Roderick Gay; Interim City Manager Mercedes 9 

Miller; Deputy City Clerk Gabrielle Thornton; City Attorney Winston 10 

Denmark. 11 

 12 

Absent: City Clerk Shavala Moore.  13 

 14 

Mayor Motley Broom called the workshop session to order at 5:00 p.m. 15 

 16 

ACTION: Councilman Clay moved to take up executive session to discuss personnel, 17 

pending litigation, and the potential purchase of real estate, seconded by 18 

Councilman Taylor and motion carried.  (All Voted Yes).     19 

 20 

Mayor & Council entered into executive session at 5:02 p.m. 21 

 22 

The workshop session reconvened at 6:02 p.m.  23 

 24 

   1. Continued discussion on proposed amendments to the alcoholic beverages 25 

ordinance governing alcohol sales in the City of College Park at establishments 26 

that do not typically serve food. 27 

 28 
City Attorney Winston Denmark said this is a continuation of our conversation as it 29 

relates to potential amendments to the alcohol ordinance.  When we last met there was 30 

discussion about coming back with a draft.  A draft would have required a complete 31 

rewrite of the alcohol ordinance which may or may not be consistent with the desires of 32 

the Mayor & Council. 33 

 34 

City Attorney Winston Denmark said what we have done and presented to you this 35 

evening is 2 options: Option 1 and Option 2 for refining the alcohol ordinance.  In each of 36 

the options we have 3 tiers, Tiers 1, 2, and 3, and classifications within those tiers.  37 

Options 1 and 2 are identical, except for the on-premises consumption portion which is 38 

Tier 2 in blue.   39 

 40 

City Attorney Winston Denmark said you will notice that in Option 2 we do not even list 41 

categories of businesses.  It is just an A, B, and C based on the percentage of food sales 42 

required.  So, under this model, this is based flowing out of the discussion between the 43 

Mayor & Council at the last workshop session.  Under this model it doesn’t matter 44 

whether you call yourself a restaurant, bar, or whatever you call yourself.  It is not driven 45 

3.B.a

Packet Pg. 29



Workshop Session 06/07/21 Page 2 of 6 

by the classification of the business.  Rather, it is driven by the food sales and the nature 46 

of the alcohol consumed on premise.   47 

 48 

City Attorney Winston Denmark said for instance, under Tier 2, a maximum of 49 49 

percent under A of annual revenue derived from alcohol sales.  And then below that is B, 50 

30 percent; and C is 10 percent.  So, individual businesses would qualify based on where 51 

they fit there.  That is a system that we haven’t seen anywhere else, if Council decides 52 

that is the direction you want to go in.  This is one of the things that grew out of the 53 

discussion, and it would create certain challenges.    54 

 55 

City Attorney Winston Denmark said in Option 1 for the on-premises, we have the actual 56 

categories.  Under A, we have a restaurant which has to have at least 51 percent to 57 

receive certain food sales.  Hotels and motels, lounges, private clubs, and club caterer are 58 

listed, so on and so forth.    59 

 60 

City Attorney Winston Denmark said where the options are identical is in Tiers 1 and 3 61 

where we have classifications set forth as it relates to food sales, alcohol sales, food 62 

packages, and on-premises.  We have some categories or classifications there that we 63 

presently don’t have.  For instance, you will note that in Tier 3 we have brew pub listed, 64 

which we currently don’t have, and breweries, distilleries, and growler shops.  Both 65 

options would expand the class of businesses that would not qualify for on-premises 66 

consumption or for package sales and on-premises.  The chart breaks down where food 67 

sales would be required and what amount.                   68 

 69 

City Attorney Winston Denmark said in order to do a draft, we would love to get some 70 

direction from the Mayor & Council in terms of what you like and what you don’t like.  It 71 

could be a hodgepodge that we put together and get you to where you want to go.  And 72 

there is always the option to stand pat and do absolutely nothing.     73 

 74 

Mayor Motley Broom asked, any thoughts from the Body? 75 

 76 

Councilman Clay said I sent to Danielle a number of comments, and I don’t know 77 

whether she shared those with you or not Winston.  I like the format.  This is exactly 78 

what I was personally thinking would be a good way to portray the information, rather 79 

than rewriting the whole thing, until we got something we liked.  I might suggest that we 80 

add one column that would say what the percentage of alcohol or sales actually was.  And 81 

what you may find is there are some classes that come out of Option 2.  I agree with you.  82 

I don’t think Option 2 is going to mesh well with State Law or other regulations.  But 83 

there may be some way to come up with classes that could be and that may become 84 

derived, and that may come from when we start seeing what we are zeroing in on.   85 

 86 

Councilman Clay said the other thing I had said was, at the end that the groups could 87 

bury through as a distillery, flower shop, and farm winery.  They also should be 88 

considered in the package sale category so that those options would exist.  You could 89 

have a winery that just did package sales that was a winery but didn’t have on-site 90 

consumption.  So, you could add that.   91 

3.B.a

Packet Pg. 30



Workshop Session 06/07/21 Page 3 of 6 

Councilman Clay said I like the approach.  I think we can comment intelligently on it.  92 

I’d like to hear what other people have to say.   93 

 94 

Mayor Motley Broom said this is in relation to what we are already doing.  But when we 95 

say that 51 percent of your receipts have to come from food sales, what are we doing to 96 

enforce that?  Can anyone answer that question for me? 97 

 98 

Councilman Clay said my understanding, Mayor, is that we do an audit based on their 99 

sales.  And that at least for the people who retail it or sell it in a restaurant, we get records 100 

from the wholesaler as to what the wholesale sales were to the establishments.  I don’t 101 

know whether anyone else has anything else.  That’s my recollection of how we are able 102 

to enforce it.  When you generate your own, then it’s a different situation, right?  If we 103 

had Althea on, she could perhaps answer that question better. 104 

 105 

Mayor Motley Broom said as a matter of fact, I believe we do have Althea on.   106 

 107 

Councilman Allen asked, how long is that going to take for our people to audit the 108 

records? 109 

 110 

Mayor Motley Broom said I just want to talk about what we are doing now.  I get the 111 

sense that we probably got some clubs masquerading as restaurants in our city right now.  112 

I don’t think that that is anything that is a secret.   113 

 114 

Councilman Clay said absolutely.   115 

 116 

Mayor Motley Broom asked, so, how are we addressing this as of June 7, 2021?  Are we 117 

doing regular audits?  Are we looking to determine whether or not people are already in 118 

compliance with this?   And if we are going on the percentage, how do we employ this 119 

method and make it something that is actually going to be enforceable, if we are already 120 

having issues in that regard?       121 

 122 

Councilman Clay said that has been my big concern about changing the alcohol 123 

ordinance.  My anticipation is that we will have groups that will swoop in and say, hey, 124 

this is a great opportunity to game the system.  And I’m going to have an art gallery, and 125 

I will put 5 paintings on the wall, and I will sell them, and it’s really a bar, and that’s it.   126 

 127 

Mayor Motley Broom asked, can Ms. Philord-Bradley enlighten us on this? 128 

 129 

Director of Finance & Accounting Althea Philord-Bradley said I am here.  I didn’t hear 130 

the entire conversation.  Are we talking about alcohol license?    131 

  132 

Mayor Motley Broom asked, how are we determining whether or not restaurants are 133 

meeting the criteria serving 51 percent or more in food currently? 134 

 135 

Director of Finance & Accounting Althea Philord-Bradley said I’m not regulating the 136 

alcohol licenses.  I believe that is through the City Clerk’s department.   137 

3.B.a

Packet Pg. 31



Workshop Session 06/07/21 Page 4 of 6 

Mayor Motley Broom said Ms. Thornton, can you offer us any information on that, or 138 

would that be a question better left for Ms. Moore?    139 

 140 

Deputy City Clerk Gabrielle Thornton said that would be a question I would have to get 141 

with the City Clerk because there are certain criteria that they have to meet in order to be 142 

able to have that option.  143 

 144 

Interim City Manager Mercedes Miller said Mayor, I will address it at the next meeting.   145 

     146 

Mayor Motley Broom said thank you.  I appreciate it.  147 

 148 

Mayor Motley Broom asked, any other thoughts, questions? 149 

 150 

Councilman Clay said you’re absolutely right, Mayor.  We have businesses that are 151 

trying to get around the ordinance by masquerading as restaurants.  We have had serious 152 

problems with that.  Chief Kuzniacki I am sure can comment on that from his past 153 

experiences as Deputy Chief.  There are people waiting to take advantage of loosening, if 154 

we cannot enforce it.  That is a real concern.  155 

 156 

City Attorney Winston Denmark said Madam Mayor, it might make sense to explore 157 

what we are currently doing and make sure that we have a system that we can enforce 158 

presently, and then if we are going to do things differently and expand the classifications, 159 

we will have a better sense of what we are able to do for these new classes.       160 

 161 

Mayor Motley Broom said I think we can walk and chew gum at the same time.  I don’t 162 

necessarily think we have to set this aside, but we have to have them as parallel missions.  163 

We need to make sure that what’s on the books is enforceable and figure out exactly what 164 

we are doing to make it enforceable, while at the same time thinking about the future, and 165 

I think we are doing that here.  We can have conversations about both.  But I do want a 166 

better understanding of how we make that determination about the 51 percent.  It seems a 167 

little murky for me at this juncture.          168 

 169 

Councilman Clay said I think it is true for any percentage we set.  The different 170 

suggestions on here talk about a dog park, or one of the other businesses they refer to, 171 

what percentage are they selling?  If they are selling and not manufacturing, then we have 172 

to be able to audit, as I think we are now, the wholesale sales to that restaurant.  And as I 173 

recall, I remember a discussion several years ago of an analysis of how many ounces of 174 

alcohol go into this kind of a drink, and therefore, you can figure out how much roughly 175 

they are selling that drink for, and how much profit they are making, et cetera, et cetera. 176 

The difficulty arises when you start having smaller businesses like a dog park, for 177 

example, that they want to buy their liquor at a local package shop and sell it.   178 

 179 

Mayor Motley Broom said they can’t do that.  That’s illegal.   180 

               181 

Councilman Clay said but whatever they do, we have to make sure that we have access to 182 

those records, and they agree to it, and maybe that’s a condition of the license. 183 

3.B.a

Packet Pg. 32



Workshop Session 06/07/21 Page 5 of 6 

Mayor Motley Broom said if they are doing that, if a business was doing that, then they 184 

will get their alcohol license pulled.  You can’t do that.   185 

 186 

Councilman Clay said so, if they are getting it from a wholesaler, then when they get 187 

their license, if they don’t already, they sign an agreement that we can audit the 188 

wholesale records.  There are ways of doing it.  The problem is when you have a winery, 189 

like at the farm, and there are probably arrangements with the federal government.  This 190 

is not an area I’m familiar with.  Then they must certify to the federal government how 191 

much they manufacture.  There are ways of getting at it.  We just have to make sure that 192 

everybody understands it, and that we can enforce it.        193 

 194 

Mayor Motley Broom said I agree with you.  I think you and I are in agreement with this.  195 

We will get a little bit more information.  I think this is the longest workshop session 196 

discussion we have had and continuing, but I do think it is important to get this right and 197 

make sure that we are thinking about this from a lot of different angles.   198 

 199 

Mayor Motley Broom asked, anybody else have anything to add?  200 

 201 

There were no further comments made.  202 

 203 

   2. Consideration of proposed revisions to the City of College Park Purchasing 204 

Department Policies and Procedures.  205 

 206 
Interim City Manager Mercedes Miller said Mr. Moody is on the line.  We have already 207 

put this before you.  We just wanted to know if there were any changes, and then we will 208 

vote on it in the regular session. 209 

 210 

Mayor Motley Broom said Mr. Moody, good evening.  How are you? 211 

 212 

Purchasing/Fleet Administrator Willis Moody said good evening Council.   213 

 214 

Mayor Motley Broom asked, does anyone have any questions for Mr. Moody, or any 215 

changes, or any parts of this manual? 216 

 217 

Councilman Clay said I have asked the questions.  I have given him a lot of feedback, 218 

and he has incorporated it.  I’m a happy camper.  I think Mr. Moody has done a labor of 219 

love in putting this thing together. It’s a lot of work.     220 

 221 

Purchasing/Fleet Administrator Willis Moody said thank you.  222 

 223 

Councilman Allen said I will tag onto it as well.  He answered a few of my questions.  I 224 

think it’s a great document.  I think he has done a good job.  Everybody has been 225 

involved.  I think it’s a very good job and one he can be proud of.  I don’t have any 226 

problems with it at all. 227 

 228 

Mayor Motley Broom asked, did anyone have any edits or any questions? 229 

3.B.a

Packet Pg. 33



Workshop Session 06/07/21 Page 6 of 6 

There were no further comments made.  230 

 231 

Mayor Motley Broom said thank you again Mr. Moody.  We know that months have 232 

gone into this.  We will have it for consideration at the regular session. 233 

 234 

Purchasing/Fleet Administrator Willis Moody said thank you very much.   235 

 236 

Mayor Motley Broom said thank you.  237 

 238 

Mayor Motley Broom said I don’t think we have any additional workshop session 239 

business, but we do have some additional executive session business.  240 

 241 

Mayor Motley Broom called for a motion to enter into executive session.  242 

   243 

ACTION:  Councilman Clay moved to adjourn Workshop Session to enter into 244 

Executive Session to discuss personnel, litigation, the potential purchase 245 

of real estate, and cyber security, seconded by Councilman Gay and 246 

motion carried.  (All Voted Yes). 247 

 248 

Mayor Motley Broom declared the Workshop Session adjourned at 6:22 p.m.    249 

 250 

 251 

 252 

 253 

 254 

 255 

 256 

 257 

 258 

       CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 259 

 260 

 261 

       _________________________ 262 

       Bianca Motley Broom, Mayor 263 

 264 

 265 

 266 

 267 

ATTEST:   268 

 269 

 270 

________________________ 271 

Shavala Moore, City Clerk 272 

3.B.a

Packet Pg. 34



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8927  

Updated: 6/15/2021 4:20 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: June 15, 2021 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

FROM: Wanda Anderson, Executive Assistant 

 

RE:  Proclamations Presentation to Madison Gardner Favor House Track Team 

 

 

 

Proclamations, Plaques and Announcements 
 

 

Council Meeting Date:  June 21, 2021 

 

Presented by:  Mayor Bianca Motley Broom 

 

Summary:  Recognition of the athletic, academic and civic achievements of Ms. Madison 

Gardner. Among Ms. Gardner accomplishments, she is the highest ranked freshman on both state 

and national level in the 400-meter race and is the 2021 5-A Division 400-meter champion. 

 

Supporting Documents:  See attached Proclamation. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Madison Gardner Proclamation.Final 6.21.21 (DOCX) 

 

Review: 

 Wanda Anderson Completed 06/14/2021 2:17 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 06/14/2021 4:21 PM 

 Recreation Completed 06/14/2021 4:33 PM 

 Mercedes Miller Completed 06/15/2021 4:56 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 06/21/2021 7:30 PM 

4.A

Packet Pg. 35



 

            City of College Park 
             Proclamation 

 
WHEREAS:    Madison Gardner began her track career at the age of five with College 

Park Recreation Department's Favor Track Club. At age seven she began 
competing on a state level, and placed in the top eight (8) every year until 
age 12; and 

 
WHEREAS:     Madison Gardner was a member of the Favor Track Club (College Park 
   Recreation Department) 4x1 team which set a state record that still holds 
   today; and  
 
WHEREAS: Madison made her first appearance at the Junior Olympics in Virginia at age 
   nine and has competed and placed each year except 2020 due to the COVID 
   pandemic; and 
 
WHEREAS: Madison Gardner has remained an honor student in Fulton County Public 

Schools throughout her track career. She has also been an active member of 
the College Park Youth Coalition for the past seven years; and 

 
WHEREAS: She has completed over 100 hours of community service feeding the 

homeless and helping the College Park Housing Authority; with area 
beautification projects; and 

 
WHEREAS: Madison Gardner holds the Banneker High School record for the 400-meter 
   race with a clocked time of 54.59 seconds.  According to high school track & 
   field networks, Madison's 400m performance is better than 98% of Division 
   1 athletes when they were freshman in high school; and 
 
WHEREAS: Madison Gardner is currently the highest ranked freshman on the state and 
  national level in the 400-meter race and is the 2021 AAAAA Division 400 
   meter champion, member of the 4x4 relay champion team, and 4th place 

winner of the 200-meter dash for the state of Georgia. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT PROCLAIMED THAT THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF COLLEGE PARK RECOGNIZES  
 

Madison Gardner 
For Her Outstanding Athletic, Academic and Civic Achievements. 

 
PROCLAIMED THIS 21st DAY OF JUNE 2021. 
 
        CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
ATTEST: 
       _________________________________ 
_______________________________    Bianca Motley Broom, Mayor 
Shavala Moore, City Clerk 
       _________________________________ 
       Ambrose Clay, Councilman 

 
_________________________________ 
Derrick Taylor, Councilman 

        
       _________________________________ 

Ken Allen, Councilman 
 
 ________________________________ 
Roderick Gay, Councilman 

4.A.a

Packet Pg. 36



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8902  

Updated: 6/14/2021 4:18 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: June 14, 2021 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Mercedes Miller, Interim City Manager 

 

FROM: Michelle Johnson, Director of Recreation & Cultural Arts 

 

RE:  College Park Favor House Track Proclamation 

 

 

 

Proclamations, Plaques and Announcements 
 

 

Council Meeting Date: June 21, 2021 

 

 

Presented by: Michelle Johnson, Director of Recreation & Cultural Arts 

 

 

Summary: Recognition of the College Park Favor House Track Team for their 

participation in and acomplishments in the Georgia Recreation & Park Association 

(GRPA) Class "A" State Track Meet on May 7-8, 2021  

 

 

Supporting Documents: Please see attached documents.  

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 College Park Favor Track Team Official Proclamation (FINAL) (DOC) 

 GRPA 2021 Proclamation Supplementary Document (version 2) (DOCX) 

 

Review: 

 Michelle Johnson Completed 06/02/2021 11:50 AM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 06/11/2021 3:51 PM 

 Wanda Anderson Completed 06/14/2021 9:28 AM 

4.B

Packet Pg. 37



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8902)  Meeting of June 21, 2021 

Updated: 6/14/2021 4:18 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 2 

 Mercedes Miller Completed 06/14/2021 1:53 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 06/21/2021 7:30 PM 

4.B

Packet Pg. 38



   City of College Park 
Proclamation  

College Park Favor House Track Team 
 
WHEREAS: The City of College Park Recreation and Cultural Arts Department/College Park 

Favor House Track Team was able to have a successful track season in the midst 

of a worldwide pandemic due to COVID-19.  

WHEREAS: The Favor House Track Team season ran from February 2021 through May of 

2021, servicing over 60 youth.   

WHEREAS: On May 7-8, 2021, the City of College Recreation and Cultural Arts 

Department/College Park Favor House Track Team participated in the Georgia 

Recreation and Park Association (GRPA) Class “A” State Track Meet at Lucy C. 

Laney Memorial Stadium in Augusta, GA.  

WHEREAS: Favor House Track Team had a total of four (4) first place awardees, eleven 

(11) second place awardees, and five (5) third place awardees in the Georgia 
Recreation and Park Association (GRPA) Class “A” State Track Meet at Lucy 

C. Laney Memorial Stadium in Augusta, GA. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
College Park that  
  

College Park Favor House Track Team 
 
Is recognized for their hard work, dedication and their accomplishments at the Georgia 
Recreation and Park Association (GRPA) Class “A” State Track Meet.   
 
PROCLAIMED THIS 21st DATE OF JUNE 2021. 
        CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

___________________________________ 
        Bianca Motley Broom, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
        ___________________________________ 
__________________________________    Ambrose Clay, Councilman 
Shavala Moore, City Clerk 

___________________________________ 
Derrick Taylor, Councilman 
    

 ___________________________________ 
Ken Allen, Councilman 
 

 ___________________________________ 
 Roderick D. Gay, Councilman 

 

4.B.a

Packet Pg. 39



City of College Park Recreation & Cultural Arts 
College Park Favor Track Team 

2021 GRPA Class “A” State Track Meet 
Top 8 Finishers 

 

8U 
 

 Rayla Boone, Seven Price, Camille Smith, Kellia Smart: 2nd Place 4x100m Girls Relay Team 

 Seven Price: 2nd Place 50m Dash 

 Addisyn Willis: 5th Place 800m Run  

 Micah Pippins: 7th Place 50m Dash  

 Rayla Boone: 8th Place 800m Run  

 Camille Smith: 8th Place 400m Run 

 
10U 
 

 Tyree Hill: 2nd Place 400m Run, 800m Run, and Softball Throw 

 Twyla Hill: 3rd Place Shot Put, 6th Place Softball Throw 

 Troy Edwards: 4th Place 50m Dash  

 Preston Law: 5th Place Javelin 

 Tristan Little: 8th Place Javelin 
 

12U 
 

 Quinterrius Gipson: 1st Place 100m dash, 200m Dash, and Softball Throw 

 Quinterrius Gipson, Cornelius Jenkins, Joseph Pruitt, and Kamoni Adams: 2nd Place 4x100 Boys Relay 
Team 

 Dynasty Daniels, Ashley Jackson, Cyriya Riley, and Peyten Willis: 4th Place 4x100 Girls Relay Team 

 Cornelius Jenkins: 5th Place Softball Throw 

 Kamoni Adams: 7th Place 100m Dash 
 

14U 
 

 Noelle Boyd: 1st Place Shot Put 

 Noelle Boyd, Kiana Harvey, Genesis Price, and Patience Price: 3rd Place 4x100 Girls Relay Team 

 Kiana Harvey: 4th Place 400m Run 

 Fiero Simpson: 4th Place Running Long Jump  

 Genesis Price: 5th Place 400m Run 

 Christopher Clarke: 7th Place 400m Run 

4.B.b

Packet Pg. 40



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8932  

Updated: 6/15/2021 3:58 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: June 15, 2021 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Mercedes Miller, Interim City Manager 

 

FROM: Althea Philord-Bradley, Director of Finance & Accounting 

 

RE:  Delinquent Property Tax Payers Update 

 

 

REASON:  To provide Mayor and Council with the names, addresses, and outstanding balances 

of the top ten delinquent property tax payers as well as a brief update on collection efforts. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  To proceed with established policies and procedures to ensure 

collection of these accounts.  To escalate the collection process as appropriate to minimize the 

loss of revenue.  

 

BACKGROUND:  The City of College Park contracts with GTS (Government Tax Services) to 

facilitate the collection of delinquent accounts to the extent necessary.  Past collection efforts 

have included GTS providing assistance with filing liens and assisting with tax sales.     

 

COST TO CITY:  Varies with each situation.  

 

BUDGETED ITEM:  None.  

 

REVENUE TO CITY:  As of June 14, 2021, the City has collected 96% of 2020's Ad Valorem 

taxes due.  

 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING: June 21, 2021. 

 

OR RESOLUTION:  N/A 

 

REQUIRED CHANGES TO WORK PROGRAMS:  Aggressive collection efforts to full 

extent of the law. 

 

STAFF:  Philip Latona, Property Tax Accountant 

 

 

6.A

Packet Pg. 41



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8932)  Meeting of June 21, 2021 

Updated: 6/15/2021 3:58 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 2 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Top Ten Delinq Property Tax Accounts 06102021 (PDF) 

 Top Ten Delinq Property Tax Accounts 06102021 2018 (PDF) 

 

Review: 

 Althea Philord-Bradley Completed 06/15/2021 3:55 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 06/15/2021 3:58 PM 

 Mercedes Miller Completed 06/15/2021 4:57 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 06/21/2021 7:30 PM 

6.A

Packet Pg. 42



 

Lien Taxpayer Name Property Address Business Name If Known Amount District  - Tax Type Additional Comments Tax Years

Y YC Atlanta 1419 Virginia Ave Clarion Hotel  $     111,605.90 Fulton - Real & Personal
Official Bankruptcy claim.  5/20/21 Still reaching out to Debtor in 
Possession to get payment/release of payment status 2020

Y BK & J Hotel Group 1551 Phoenix Blvd Howard Johnson's  $       89,660.32 Clayton - Real & Personal
6/2/21 Emailed GM today.  Trying to get date of first of three 
installments at $30K 2020

ExpressJet 0 Candler Way  $       72,596.52 Fulton - Real

Uncollectible - County Assessor reclassified property to Exempt 
status. Owner seeking refund on paid taxes 2017-2019 ($225K).  
Statute 6.3.25 allows for the taxation on Improvements - pursuing 
Legal's opinion 2020

Y KSG Georgia LLC 4820 Massachussetts LaQuinta Inn & Suites  $       59,005.42 Clayton - Real & Personal

5/20/21 Spoke to Property Owner at length today - He refinanced 
and has a new lender. He's preparing to pay but it will be in a few 
months. I made him aware of upcoming charges for the past due 
balances 2020

Y Alterman Alan E ET AL 2250 Camp Creek Pkwy RaceTrac  $       23,678.69 Fulton - Real 

6/3/21 Left a voicemail again today.  Told previous contact, Director 
of Taxation, is not in directory of employees.  Message was with 
Accounts Payable. 2020

Y Logisticare Solutions 1640 Phoenix Blvd  $       11,948.41 Clayton - Personal 
Logisticare now known as Modivcare Solutions - found a telephone 
# - calling but no answers  2020

Y KKPD Properties LLC Global Gateway Connector  $         8,608.40 Fulton - Real & GICC Disttrict
5/27/21 Made contact with Owner- emailed tax statements - working 
on a payment schedule 2020

Y Woodward Estates 1791 Walker Ave  $         5,501.53 Fulton - Real 6/3/21 Emailed owners - payment wass promised last week. 2020

Y
No Limits Community 
Development Corp 3581 Main St  $         4,154.66 Fulton - Real 5/20/21 - I have reached out to owner for payment status 2020

Y
Metro Atlanta Airport 
Inc 1907 West Sloan Ave  $         3,680.34 Fulton - Real 6/14/21 - Emailed owner for payment status 2020

 $     390,440.19 

Represents Lien filed against account. 

Inactive Acount - off active list - candidates to write-off
Level Concrete Co. 2560 West Point Avenue Proximity of Metro Mustang  $       24,993.26 Fulton - Personal Property Corporation dissolved 5/16/2008 2000-2003
Western Pacific Airline 39,223.87 13K Base Ad Valorem Chapter 11 - February 1998
Vanguard Airlines Airline 9,237.01 Public Utility Digest - ClaytonCeased Operations July 29, 2002
PSINet Inc 11,982.94         Fulton - Personal Property
Larry Jones 0 Camp Creek Pkwy 10,983.38         Fulton - Real Parcel Mapping indicates plat is a public roadway/right of 1992-2014
F H Kilgore 0 Camp Creek Pkwy             6,171.57 Fulton - Real Parcel Mapping discrepancy 1992-2014

City of College Park
Department of Finance & Accounting 

Top Ten Delinquent Property Tax Accounts
As of June 10,  2021

6.A.a

Packet Pg. 43



 

Lien Taxpayer Name Property Address Business Name If Known Amount District  - Tax Type Additional Comments Tax Years

Y
Smart Moves Investments 
LLC 2879 Windsor Forrest Ct  $         2,076.52 Fulton - Real 

Identified Owner - he is a  First Transferee Foreclosure -
ownership confirmed /working account.  Can't seem to have 
any confirmed contact - numerous companies 2018-2020

City of College Park
Department of Finance & Accounting 

Top Ten Delinquent Property Tax Accounts
As of June 10,  2021

6.A.b

Packet Pg. 44



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8931  

Updated: 6/15/2021 4:24 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: June 15, 2021 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Mercedes Miller, Interim City Manager 

 

FROM: Althea Philord-Bradley, Director of Finance & Accounting 

 

RE:  Top 10 Delinquent Customers 

 

 

PURPOSE:  To update Mayor/Council regarding Top 10 delinquent customers, commercial and 

residential.  

 

REASON:  To keep updated on Top 10 commercial and residential accounts to ensure the 

accounts balances are current.  

 

RECOMMENDATION:  To deliver information to Mayor/Council by Customer Service team. 

 

BACKGROUND:  Each council meeting we deliver data that indicates who the Top 10 

customers are based on balances owed, length of time unpaid. 

 

COST TO CITY:  N/A. 

 

BUDGETED ITEM:  N/A. 

 

REVENUE TO CITY:  N/A. 

 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING DATE: June 21, 2021. 

 

CONSIDERATION BY OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES:  N/A. 

 

AFFECTED AGENCIES:  N/A. 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO EXISTING ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTION:  N/A. 

 

REQUIRED CHANGES TO WORK PROGRAMS: N/A. 

 

STAFF: Customer Service Manager  

6.B

Packet Pg. 45



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8931)  Meeting of June 21, 2021 

Updated: 6/15/2021 4:24 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 2 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 CF Aging 061421 redacted (DOCX) 

 CC Aging 061421 (DOCX) 

 RC Aging 061421 (DOCX) 

 RF Aging 061421 redacted (DOCX) 

 Top Ten 06-14-2021 - redacted (XLSX) 

 

Review: 

 Althea Philord-Bradley Completed 06/15/2021 4:05 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 06/15/2021 4:24 PM 

 Mercedes Miller Completed 06/15/2021 4:57 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 06/21/2021 7:30 PM 

6.B

Packet Pg. 46



City of College Park A / R A G I N G 06/14/2021 08:15:32 Page: 1 

--- Last Payment --- 
Cyc Rte Account Name Home Phone 0 to 30 31 to 60 61 to 90 Over 91 Total Date Amount 
====================================================================================================================================  

 

Cycle: 1  

    641.52 769.82 641.52 0.00 2052.86 03/08/2021 833.98  

    615.04 466.59 187.72 0.00 1269.35    

    393.79 593.34 684.20 0.00 1671.33 03/15/2021 4974.47 O 

 
                                                                                                    ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

 

 

3 Subtotals for Cycle 001 1650.35 1829.75 1513.44 0.00 4993.54 
 

 

Cycle 8  
 

 

  117911.78 0.00 0.00 0.00 117911.78 06/10/2021 70347.50 
 

                                                        ----------------------------------------------------- 

         1 Subtotals for Cycle 008                          117911.78       0.00       0.00      0.00   117911.78 

  
 

Cycle: 15           

    619.55 7934.60 0.00 0.00 8554.15 10/19/2020 1797.14 O 
    83.79 1876.02 0.00 0.00 1959.81 05/18/2021 500.00 T 
    19478.92 1094.40 0.00 0.00 20573.32 04/27/2021 18822.28 O 
    635.78 992.93 0.00 0.00 1628.71 04/02/2021 1055.08 O 
    773.52 1273.52 1273.52 5434.92 8755.48 04/29/2021 773.52 O 
    1670.10 2170.10 2170.10 8343.47 14353.77 05/28/2021 1670.10 O 
    867.28 500.00 0.00 0.00 1367.28 05/25/2021 12656.92 O 

 

7 Subtotals for Cycle 015 24128.94 15841.57 3443.62 13778.39 57192.52 

Cycle: 21 

 34.00 34.00 34.00 1028.10 1130.10 06/03/2021 50.00 O 

  372.66 372.66 372.66 372.66 1490.64 04/15/2021 372.66 T 

2 Subtotals for Cycle 021 406.66 406.66 406.66 1400.76 2620.74 

Cycle: 25 

  961.62 480.81 0.00 0.00 1442.43 03/15/2021 961.62 T 

 
                                             --------------------------------------------- 

1 Subtotals for Cycle 025 961.62 480.81 0.00 0.00 1442.43 

========================================================== 
14 Grand Totals 145059.35 5363.72 184161.01 

18558.79 15179.15 

 

6.B.a

Packet Pg. 47



City of College Park A / R A G I N G 06/14/2021 08:15:36 Page: 2 

--- Last Payment --- 
Cyc Rte Account Name Home Phone 0 to 30 31 to 60 61 to 90 Over 91 Total Date Amount 
==================================================================================================================================== 

 

 

SELECTION CRITERIA 
 
 
                                             Minimum Balance:1000.00 
                                             A/R Block 1:30 
                                             A/R Block 2:60 
                                             A/R Block 3:90 

Filter: 

(category = ’CF’ AND end_date IS NULL) 

6.B.a

Packet Pg. 48



City of College Park A / R A G I N G 06/14/2021 08:12:07 Page: 1 

--- Last Payment --- 
Cyc Rte Account Name Home Phone 0 to 30 31 to 60 61 to 90 Over 91 Total Date Amount 
==================================================================================================================================== 
Cycle: 15 

 

 

0 Subtotals for Cycle 015 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
========================================================== 

0 Grand Totals 0.00 0.00              0.00 
0.00 0.00 

 

 

SELECTION CRITERIA 
          
 
                                             Minimum Balance:1000.00 
                                             A/R Block 1:30 
                                             A/R Block 2:60 
                                             A/R Block 3:90 

Filter: 

(category = ’CC’ AND end_date IS NULL) 

6.B.b

Packet Pg. 49



City of College Park A / R A G I N G 06/14/2021 09:09:01 Page: 1 

--- Last Payment --- 
Cyc Rte Account Name Home Phone 0 to 30 31 to 60 61 to 90 Over 91 Total Date Amount 
==================================================================================================================================== 
Cycle: 15 

 

0 Subtotals for Cycle 015 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

 
========================================================== 

0 Grand Totals 0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 

 

 

SELECTION CRITERIA 
 
 
                                     Minimum Balance:1000.00 
                                     A/R Block 1:30 
                                     A/R Block 2:60 
                                     A/R Block 3:90 

Filter: 

(category = ’rc’ AND end_date IS NULL) 

6.B.c

Packet Pg. 50



 City of College Park A / R A G I N G 06/14/2021 08:22:29 Page: 1 

--- Last Payment --- 
Cyc Rte Account Name Home Phone 0 to 30 31 to 60 61 to 90 Over 91 Total Date Amount 
==================================================================================================================================== 
Cycle: 1 

 135.54 376.40 543.27 210.41 1265.62 03/24/2021 200.00 T 
  162.27 302.60 385.53 736.54 1586.94 05/24/2021 200.00 T 
 264.78 511.50 694.64 0.00 1470.92 02/23/2021 695.02 
  513.64 269.07 256.81 1020.77 2060.29 04/30/2021 500.00 
 45.37 72.72 137.89 1087.03 1343.01 02/23/2021 150.00 T 
  451.35 504.85 270.75 0.00 1226.95 04/21/2021 250.00 T 
  55.67 2075.30 794.80 176.94 3102.71 02/15/2021 100.00 

 

7 Subtotals for Cycle 001 1628.62 4112.44 3083.69 3231.69 12056.44 
 

Cycle: 8  

            

    1231.89 115.45 182.68 2207.51 3737.53 09/16/2020 100.00  

    325.41 491.18 1058.51 0.00 1875.10 05/28/2021 450.00 O 
    682.65 547.33 12.11 0.00 1242.09 06/02/2021 200.00 T 
    415.36 233.03 351.49 1605.77 2605.65 04/08/2021 400.00  

    206.93 149.13 239.02 627.60 1222.68 06/01/2021 200.00 T 
    316.24 153.34 180.01 691.91 1341.50 04/07/2021 250.00 T 
    861.26 771.47 321.30 48.94 2002.97 06/01/2021 403.74 T 

 

7 Subtotals for Cycle 008 4039.74 2460.93 2345.12 5181.73 14027.52 

Cycle: 15 
 
  13.94 22.34 172.01 801.97 1010.26 02/22/2021 95.00 T 
  118.09 118.71 351.42 688.94 1277.16 04/26/2021 60.00 T 
 89.08 278.04 268.39 450.00 1085.51 03/17/2021 220.00 T 

 

3 Subtotals for Cycle 015 221.11 419.09 791.82 1940.91 3372.93 

 

 

 
 
========================================================== 

13 Grand Totals 5889.47 6220.63 29456.89 
6992.46 10354.33 

 

                                                                                   

6.B.d

Packet Pg. 51



City of College Park A / R A G I N G 06/14/2021 08:23:18 Page: 2 

--- Last Payment --- 
Cyc Rte Account Name Home Phone 0 to 30 31 to 60 61 to 90 Over 91 Total Date Amount 
==================================================================================================================================== 

 

 

SELECTION CRITERIA 
                                        
                                                Minimum Balance:1000.00 
                                                A/R Block 1:30 
                                                A/R Block 2:60 
                                                A/R Block 3:90 

Filter: 

(category = ’RF’ AND end_date IS NULL) 

6.B.d

Packet Pg. 52



City of College Park

TOP TEN  UTILITY CUSTOMER OUTSTANDING  BALANCES

6/14/2021

Prepared By Kymberli Johnson 

Business

Prior 

Adjustments

Payment 

Plan Liens BUSINESS  NAME ADDRESS Power

Water & 

Sewer

Storm Water & 

Sanitation Total Unpaid

CUT OFF 

LETTER 

AGE OF 

DEBT Notes or Status

n/a No No $17,309.13 $34,618.25 $0.00 $51,927.38 Yes 90days

Account is Active customer is making 

payments towards outstanding 

balance. 

n/a No No $0.00 $20,573.32 $0.00 $20,573.32 No 30days

Account is Active customer made a 

pymt on 04-27-21.

n/a No No $0.00 $0.00 $14,853.77 $14,853.77 Yes 90days

Account is Active newly established 

Stormwater account. Last pymt was 

05-28-21.

n/a No No $0.00 $0.00 $9,255.48 $9,255.48 Yes 90days 

Account is Active newly established 

Stormwater account. Last pymt has 

been made as of 04/29/21.

o 

Apartments

Prior 

Adjustment

Payment 

Plan Liens APARTMENT NAME ADDRESS Power

Water & 

Sewer

Storm Water & 

Sanitation Total Unpaid

CUT OFF 

LETTER 

AGE OF 

DEBT Notes or Status

No No No $9,054.15 $0.00 $0.00 $9,054.15 Yes 90 days 

Account is Disconnecteed a 

reminder letter was sent on 06-14-

21. Last pymt rec. 

Prior 

Adjustment

Payment 

Plan Liens CUSTOMER NAME Account # Power

Water & 

Sewer

Storm Water & 

Sanitation Total Unpaid

CUT OFF 

LETTER 

AGE OF 

DEBT Notes or Status

No no No $2,069.15 $1,328.99 $220.60 $3,618.74 Yes 90 days 

Account is Disconnected  a 

reminder letter was sent on 05-24-

21. Customer made a pymt for 

100.00 on 09-16-2020 customer is 

a Senior. Customer was charged a 

$1000.00 tampering fee. 

No No No $674.68 $2,628.01 $110.30 $3,412.99 No 90 days 

Electric is disconnected  reminder 

letter has been sent 6-14-21.  Last 

pymt $100.00  02/15/2021. 

No No No $2,371.99 $0.00 $0.00 $2,371.99 Yes 90 days 

Accouont is Active a reminder 

letter was sent on 05-24-21.Last 

pymt of $400.00 was made on 04-

08-21. Senior customer.

No No No $246.53 $1,387.41 $426.35 $2,060.29 No 90 days 

Account is Active . Last pymt 04-

30-21 $1500.00 No reminder letter 

has been sent. 

No No No $788.99 $863.10 $37.00 $1,689.09 Yes 90 days 

Account is Active a reminder 

letter was sent on 04-19-21. 

Customer was recently recd. Cdbg 

grant for $2,000.00. Last pymt 

$1403.74 on 06-01-21.

TOTALS $32,514.62 #### $24,903.50 $118,817.20
NULL Signifies that Lien has not been  filed due to legal statue (not property owner)

* Represents Lien filed against account

N/A Signifies account Lien has not been  filed

yes Signifies account received prior billing adjustment

N/A Signifies account that has not received prior billing adjustment

6.B.e

Packet Pg. 53



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8933  

Updated: 6/16/2021 1:27 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: June 16, 2021 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Mercedes Miller, Interim City Manager 

 

FROM: Althea Philord-Bradley, Director of Finance & Accounting 

 

RE:  College Park Utility Assistant Grant Program Update 

 

 

 

As of June 15,2021, we conducted a complete audit of our files and the overall progress 
status of the College Park CARES Utility Assistance Grant is as follows:  
 
I. Overview of the College Park CARES Utility Assistance Grant  

(Includes Phase 1 & Phase 2) 
 

Total Amount of the Utility Assistance Grant Awarded To-Date:    $235,631.04 
 

 Total Number of  Overall ( Phase1 + Phase2) Approved to-date:  221 

 Total Number Overall Denied Applications to-date:   250 

 Total Number of Applications Received including Customer  
Service Referrals as of June 15,2021:       501 
 

II. Customer Service Referred Applicants  
Since January 14, 2021, 58 customer service referred applicants have to applied 
for the Utility Assistance Grant and received a 2-week temporary reconnection of 
services while their application was being processed. This program will continue 
through Phase two of the application process. 
   
Of the 58 participants assisted: 

22 customers were existing applicants 
36  were new applicants 
44 applicants have been approved to date; 2 are Pending; 8 did not 

meet eligibility requirements. 
 

III. College Park CARES Utility Assistance Grant- Phase II  
 

6.C

Packet Pg. 54



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8933)  Meeting of June 21, 2021 

Updated: 6/16/2021 1:27 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 2 

The application process was reopened for Phase II as of April 9 , 2021 and originally  
closed on May 21, 2021.  However, the deadline has been extended until the funds 
are exhausted.  
 

Total Number of  Phase II New Applications:   100  
Total Number of Phase II Approved:   41  
Total Number of Phase II Denied:    29 
Total Number of Phase II Pending:     30 
 

IV. Guidelines & Procedure to Apply for Phase II College Park CARES Utility 
Assistance Grant 

 

Please Note:  In an effort to stay in compliance and avoid duplicity infractions, utility 
customers who have already received the utility assistance grant or have already been 
denied cannot re-apply, as this is a one-time award for Fulton County residents .  
 

During this 2nd phase of the College Park CARES Utility Assistance Grant, eligible  
Fulton County customers who have incurred a job or income loss due to COVID-19, will 
complete application and verification document submission by in-person appointments 
only.  This will allow us to expedite the review process while providing on-site support to 
applicants as they fill out their documents. We do not anticipate any changes in the 
current 48-hour approval timeline, following the recent updates made to the signature 
process.      
    

Step one:  The customer must complete a Utility Assistance Grant Customer 

Contact Form ( available on the information table in Customer Service 

lobby) and submit it to the Receptionist desk. 
 

Step two:  Applicant will be contacted by grant coordinator or grant administrator via 

phone and email to be provided an appointment to come to City Hall to fill 

out an application and bring all required documents. 

Applicants are still required to submit the same verification documents as with 
the Phase one process. Recent Utility Bill  

- Recent Bank Statement 
- Income Verification Documents 
- State of Georgia Identification with an address that is identical to the billing 

address on the utility account . 
- Self-Certification of Income 
- Third Party Authorization and Waiver of Confidentiality 

 
V. Ineligibility 

6.C

Packet Pg. 55



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8933)  Meeting of June 21, 2021 

Updated: 6/16/2021 1:27 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 3 

Please remind customers of the grant guidelines which prohibit applicants who 
have previously applied for the College Park CARES Utility Assistance Grant, 
from re-applying regardless of their first application decision ( i.e., approval or 
denial)   Please help these previous applicants understand that this is not a new 
grant, but the same grant money for which their application has already been 
reviewed and determined ineligible.   
 
 Additionally, please note that all Clayton County residents are ineligible to apply. 
The following Clayton County addresses are the most common ineligible 
applicants:   
 

 Poplar Pointe Drive 

 1951 South Hampton Road  

 Hanover Street 

 Sheldon Court 
 
*Correction: Please remove 2301 Godby Road from the list of ineligible 
applicant addresses, as we have received verification from GIS and the 
Customer Service Accountant that this address is within Fulton County. 

             
VI. SSI Applicants  

 
As of May 5, 2021, we received confirmation from Karen Parish, legal counsel for 
Fulton County which, permits us to assist new applicants who receive SSI as 
their sole income.  
 
However, we have posed the question to Charles Arthur, Fulton County as to 
whether or not it is in compliance with the grant guidelines to reconsider the 
previous SSI applicants who were denied prior to May 5, 2021.     

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Grant Progress Memo June 15, 2021 (PDF) 

 

Review: 

 Althea Philord-Bradley Completed 06/16/2021 12:17 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 06/16/2021 1:27 PM 

 Jackson Myers Completed 06/15/2021 8:46 AM 

 Mercedes Miller Completed 06/16/2021 1:58 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 06/21/2021 7:30 PM 

6.C

Packet Pg. 56



 

June 15, 2021 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

To:    Althea P. Bradley, Director, Finance  

 

From: Donnea N. Anderson, Grant Administrator, College Park CARES Utility 

Assistance 

 

RE:    College Park CARES Utility Assistance Grant Progress Status as of 

06/15/2021 
 

As of June 15,2021, we conducted a complete audit of our files and the overall progress 

status of the College Park CARES Utility Assistance Grant is as follows:  

 

I. Overview of the College Park CARES Utility Assistance Grant  

(Includes Phase 1 & Phase 2) 

 

Total Amount of the Utility Assistance Grant Awarded To-Date:    $235,631.04 

 

• Total Number of  Overall ( Phase1 + Phase2) Approved to-date:  221 

• Total Number Overall Denied Applications to-date:   250 

• Total Number of Applications Received including Customer  

Service Referrals as of June 15,2021:       501 

 

II. Customer Service Referred Applicants  

Since January 14, 2021, 58 customer service referred applicants have to applied 

for the Utility Assistance Grant and received a 2-week temporary reconnection of 

services while their application was being processed. This program will continue 

through Phase two of the application process. 
   
Of the 58 participants assisted: 

▪ 22 customers were existing applicants 

▪ 36  were new applicants 

▪ 44 applicants have been approved to date; 2 are Pending; 8 did not 

meet eligibility requirements. 

 

 

 

6.C.a

Packet Pg. 57



 

College Park CARES Utility Assistance Grant Progress Memo         Page 2  

 

III. College Park CARES Utility Assistance Grant- Phase II  

 

The application process was reopened for Phase II as of April 9 , 2021 and originally  

closed on May 21, 2021.  However, the deadline has been extended until the funds 

are exhausted.  
 

Total Number of  Phase II New Applications:   100  

Total Number of Phase II Approved:   41  

Total Number of Phase II Denied:    29 

Total Number of Phase II Pending:     30 
 

IV. Guidelines & Procedure to Apply for Phase II College Park CARES Utility 

Assistance Grant 
 

Please Note:  In an effort to stay in compliance and avoid duplicity infractions, utility 

customers who have already received the utility assistance grant or have already been 

denied cannot re-apply, as this is a one-time award for Fulton County residents .  
 

During this 2nd phase of the College Park CARES Utility Assistance Grant, eligible  

Fulton County customers who have incurred a job or income loss due to COVID-19, will 

complete application and verification document submission by in-person appointments 

only.  This will allow us to expedite the review process while providing on-site support to 

applicants as they fill out their documents. We do not anticipate any changes in the 

current 48-hour approval timeline, following the recent updates made to the signature 

process.      
    

Step one:  The customer must complete a Utility Assistance Grant Customer 

Contact Form ( available on the information table in Customer Service 

lobby) and submit it to the Receptionist desk. 
 

Step two:  Applicant will be contacted by grant coordinator or grant administrator via 

phone and email to be provided an appointment to come to City Hall to fill 

out an application and bring all required documents. 

Applicants are still required to submit the same verification documents as with the 

Phase one process. Recent Utility Bill  

- Recent Bank Statement 

- Income Verification Documents 

- State of Georgia Identification with an address that is identical to the billing 

address on the utility account . 

- Self-Certification of Income 

- Third Party Authorization and Waiver of Confidentiality 

6.C.a

Packet Pg. 58



College Park CARES Utility Assistance Grant Progress Memo         Page 3  

 

 

 

V. Ineligibility 

Please remind customers of the grant guidelines which prohibit applicants who 

have previously applied for the College Park CARES Utility Assistance Grant, 

from re-applying regardless of their first application decision ( i.e., approval or 

denial)   Please help these previous applicants understand that this is not a new 

grant, but the same grant money for which their application has already been 

reviewed and determined ineligible.   

 

 Additionally, please note that all Clayton County residents are ineligible to apply. 

The following Clayton County addresses are the most common ineligible 

applicants:   

 

• Poplar Pointe Drive 

• 1951 South Hampton Road  

• Hanover Street 

• Sheldon Court 

 

*Correction: Please remove 2301 Godby Road from the list of ineligible applicant 

addresses, as we have received verification from GIS and the Customer Service 

Accountant that this address is within Fulton County. 

             

VI. SSI Applicants  

 

As of May 5, 2021, we received confirmation from Karen Parish, legal counsel for 

Fulton County which, permits us to assist new applicants who receive SSI as their 

sole income.  

 

However, we have posed the question to Charles Arthur, Fulton County as to 

whether or not it is in compliance with the grant guidelines to reconsider the 

previous SSI applicants who were denied prior to May 5, 2021.     

 

 

             

 

6.C.a

Packet Pg. 59



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8924  

Updated: 6/15/2021 11:29 AM by Shavala Moore  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: June 15, 2021 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Mercedes Miller, Interim City Manager 

 

FROM: Shavala Moore, City Clerk 

 

RE:  Laster Chapel Summer Youth Event 

 

 

PURPOSE:  Consideration of and action on a request from Laster Chapel Church for approval 

to host a Summer Youth Event on Saturday, July 10, 2021 at Charles E. Phillips Park from 12:00 

p.m. until 4:00 p.m. 

 

REASON:  Please see attached e-mail and Special Event Form detailing items requiring City 

Council approval in the following areas: 

 

1. Use of Charles E. Phillips Park for Youth Event. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Mayor and City Council consideration of this request. 

 

BACKGROUND:   
 

COST TO CITY:  None. 

 

BUDGETED ITEM:  N/A. 

 

REVENUE TO CITY:  None. 

 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING DATE:  June 21, 2021 

 

CONSIDERATION BY OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES:  None. 

 

AFFECTED AGENCIES:  Laster Chapel Church 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO EXISTING ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTION:  None. 

 

6.D

Packet Pg. 60



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8924)  Meeting of June 21, 2021 

Updated: 6/15/2021 11:29 AM by Shavala Moore  Page 2 

REQUIRED CHANGES TO WORK PROGRAMS:  None. 

 

STAFF: Department of Recreation and Cultural Arts 

  Office of the City Clerk 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Laster Chapel SEP-modified 6-15-2021 (PDF) 

 Laster Chapel Certifcate of Insurance 06152021 (PDF) 

 Laster Chapel Hold Harmless 06152021 (PDF) 

 

Review: 

 Shavala Moore Completed 06/15/2021 11:29 AM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 06/15/2021 2:49 PM 

 Recreation Completed 06/15/2021 2:51 PM 

 Mercedes Miller Completed 06/15/2021 4:56 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 06/21/2021 7:30 PM 

6.D

Packet Pg. 61



Upper field inside Phillips Park
(not the BIDA property soccer field)

6.D.a

Packet Pg. 62



6.D.b

Packet Pg. 63



6.D.c

Packet Pg. 64



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8892  

Updated: 6/16/2021 1:42 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: June 16, 2021 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Mercedes Miller, Interim City Manager 

 

FROM: Thomas Kuzniacki, Chief of Police 

 

RE:  City Judge - Annual Contract Renewal FY 2021-22 

 

 

PURPOSE:  To allow the Mayor and City Council an opportunity to renew the City’s annual 

contract with Monica E. Ewing as Chief Judge for the College Park Municipal Court. 

 

REASON:  The current contract expires June 30, 2021. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Council approval of renewal of the contract for FY 2021-22. 

 

BACKGROUND:  Judge Monice E. Ewing provides City Judge Services for the City of College 

Park Municipal Court. 

 

COST TO CITY:  $65,000 annually. This amount is the same as in the previous fiscal year. 

 

BUDGETED ITEM:  Yes. General Fund, Police/Municipal Court Services. 

 

REVENUE TO CITY:  N/A. 

 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING DATE:  June 21, 2021. 

 

CONSIDERATION BY OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES:  N/A. 

 

AFFECTED AGENCIES:  N/A. 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO EXISTING ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTION:  N/A. 

 

REQUIRED CHANGES TO WORK PROGRAMS:  N/A. 

 

STAFF:   College Park Police Department 

 

8.A

Packet Pg. 65



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8892)  Meeting of June 21, 2021 

Updated: 6/16/2021 1:42 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 2 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 City Contract Chief Judge 2021- City Atty Revised (DOCX) 

 

Review: 

 Sharis McCrary Completed 06/14/2021 5:17 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 06/15/2021 8:59 AM 

 City Attorney's Office Completed 06/15/2021 4:25 PM 

 Mercedes Miller Completed 06/15/2021 4:55 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 06/21/2021 7:30 PM 

8.A

Packet Pg. 66



Page | 1 
 

AGREEMENT  

Chief Judge 

 

This Agreement is made and entered into this ____day of ______________, 20__, by and 

between the CITY OF COLLEGE PARK, GEORGIA ("City"), and MONICA E. EWING 

(“Judge”). 

 

WITNESSETH 

 

WHEREAS, the City by and through its Mayor and Council, has appointed Monica E. 

Ewing as Chief Judge of the Municipal Court of College Park; and 

 

WHEREAS, it has been deemed in the best interest of all parties that the term of 

appointment, compensation, duties, and responsibilities of each, in order to reach a mutuality of 

agreement, should be reduced to writing. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual terms, conditions and covenants set 

forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

 

1. 

 

 Monica E. Ewing shall serve as chief judge of the Municipal Court of College Park. 

 

2. 

 

 To the extent not covered by this Agreement, and not in contravention of the City Charter 

and Code, the Judge shall have the exclusive authority to establish rules and regulations for the 

conduct of all matters before said Court. 

 

3. 

 

 The Judge shall be available to the Court on a regular basis and as frequently as necessary 

to efficiently and expeditiously handle cases pending before said Court.  At a minimum, the Judge 

shall be available to the Court on Mondays, Wednesdays and Fridays. In establishing the hours for 

holding sessions of Court, the Judge shall consider the needs, requirements and duties of both the 

accused and the law enforcement officers.  The Judge shall be authorized to issue warrants as 

requested by the Police Department. 

 

4. 

 

 The City shall provide in addition to the Court Room, adequate and appropriate office 

facilities to be utilized as the Judge deems necessary. 

 

 

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 67



Page | 2 
 

5. 

 

 The City shall provide all necessary documents, forms, supplies and clerical assistance 

necessary to conduct the business of the Court and for the submission of reports as required by 

law. 

6. 

 

 The Judge shall receive as compensation, the sum of $65,000 per annum, payable in equal 

monthly installments and prorated over the term of this agreement. 

 

7. 

 

 The Judge shall be granted paid release time for twelve (12) days during the term of this 

Agreement.  In the event the Judge is absent from Court more than twelve (12) days during the 

term of this Agreement, deductions from her compensation shall be made to cover the 

compensation of the Judge Pro Tem sitting in her absence.  The Judge shall also be granted paid 

release time to attend continuing judicial education seminars and when she recuses herself due to 

a conflict of interest. 

 

8. 

 

This Agreement shall become effective July 1, 2021, and shall remain in effect through 

June 30, 2022. Notwithstanding the term of this Agreement, this Agreement shall terminate 

automatically by operation of law if the Judge is removed from office pursuant to state law. 

 

9. 

 

 The Judge shall meet with the Mayor and Council of College Park not less than twice each 

calendar year.  In such meetings, the Judge shall provide a report to the Mayor and Council 

regarding all activities, trends and general issues regarding the operation of the Municipal Court. 

 

10. 

 

 The parties understand and agree that the Mayor and Council of College Park shall appoint 

the Judge Pro Tempore as well as any Pro Hac and associate Judges as the Mayor and Council 

shall deem necessary.  The Mayor and Council may solicit and consider the recommendation of 

the Judge in making such appointments. 

 

11. 

 

 The Judge shall not assign or subcontract the whole or any part of this Agreement without 

the City’s prior written consent. 

 

12. 

 

A. Judge warrants and represents that Judge is a licensed attorney in good standing with 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 68



Page | 3 
 

the State Bar of Georgia and possesses the special skill and professional competence, 

expertise, and experience to undertake the obligations imposed by this Agreement. 

  
B. Judge agrees to perform in a diligent, efficient, competent, and skillful manner 

commensurate with the highest standards of the profession, and to otherwise perform 

as is necessary to undertake the Services required by this Agreement.  

 

C. Judge warrants and represents that it will, at all times, observe and comply with all 

federal, state, local and municipal laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations, relating to 

the provision of the Services to be provided by Judge hereunder or which in any manner 

affect this Agreement. 

13. 

 

Miscellaneous:  

 

A. The failure by either party to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall not be 

construed as a waiver or limitation of that party’s right to subsequently enforce and compel 

strict performance with every provision of this Agreement. 

B. If any provision of this Agreement is held to be unenforceable for any reason, the 

unenforceability thereof shall not affect the remainder of the Agreement, which shall 

remain in full force and effect, and enforceable in accordance with its terms. 

C. The Parties acknowledge that this Agreement and all the terms and conditions herein have 

been fully reviewed and negotiated by the Parties. Having acknowledged the foregoing, 

the Parties agree that any principle of construction or rule of law that provides that, in the 

event of any inconsistency or ambiguity, an agreement shall be construed against the 

drafter of the agreement shall have no application to the terms and conditions of this 

Agreement.  

D. Any and all modifications or changes to this Agreement must be in writing and signed by 

the parties to this Agreement.  

E. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall constitute 

the original, but all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same Agreement. 

PDF signatures shall constitute original signatures. 

 

[Signatures on Following Page] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 69



Page | 4 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto executed this Agreement on the day and 

year first written above.  

 

 

 

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK:   JUDGE: 

 

 

______________________________  ______________________________ 

Bianca Motley Broom, Mayor   Monica E. Ewing, Chief Judge 

Municipal Court of College Park 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________    

Shavala Moore, City Clerk  

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 70



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8891  

Updated: 6/16/2021 1:43 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: June 16, 2021 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Mercedes Miller, Interim City Manager 

 

FROM: Thomas Kuzniacki, Chief of Police 

 

RE:  City Judge Pro Tempore (Morrow) Annual Contract Renewal FY 2021-22 

 

 

PURPOSE:  To allow the Mayor and City Council an opportunity to renew the City’s annual 

contract with Kenneth E. Morrow Judge Pro Tempore for the College Park Municipal Court. 

 

REASON:  The current contract expires June 30, 2021. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Council approval of renewal of the contract for FY 2021-22. 

 

BACKGROUND:  Kenneth E. Morrow provides City Judge Pro Tempore Services for the City 

of College Park Municipal Court in the absence of the Chief Judge. 

 

COST TO CITY:  $400.00 per court session. This amount is the same as in the previous fiscal 

year. 

 

BUDGETED ITEM:  Yes. General Fund, Police/Municipal Court Services. 

 

REVENUE TO CITY:  N/A. 

 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING DATE:  June 21, 2021. 

 

CONSIDERATION BY OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES:  N/A. 

 

AFFECTED AGENCIES:  N/A. 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO EXISTING ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTION:  N/A. 

 

REQUIRED CHANGES TO WORK PROGRAMS:  N/A. 

 

STAFF: College Park Police Department 

8.B

Packet Pg. 71



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8891)  Meeting of June 21, 2021 

Updated: 6/16/2021 1:43 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 2 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Judge pro tempore Morrow Contract 2021- City Attorney Revised (DOCX) 

 

Review: 

 Sharis McCrary Completed 06/14/2021 5:19 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 06/15/2021 8:58 AM 

 City Attorney's Office Completed 06/15/2021 3:32 PM 

 Mercedes Miller Completed 06/15/2021 4:55 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 06/21/2021 7:30 PM 

8.B

Packet Pg. 72



 1 
 

AGREEMENT  

Judge Pro Tempore-II 

 

This Agreement is made and entered into this ____day of ______________, 20__, by and 

between the CITY OF COLLEGE PARK, GEORGIA ("City"), and KENNETH E. MORROW 

(“Judge”). 

WITNESSETH 

 

WHEREAS, the City, by and through its Mayor and Council, has appointed Kenneth E. 

Morrow as Municipal Court Judge Pro Tempore- II of College Park; and 

 

WHEREAS, it has been deemed in the best interest of all parties that the term of 

appointment, compensation, duties, and responsibilities of each, in order to reach a mutuality of 

agreement, should be reduced to writing. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual terms, conditions and covenants set 

forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

 

1. 

 

 Kenneth E. Morrow shall serve as Municipal Court Judge Pro Tempore of College Park. 

 

2. 

 

 The Judge shall be acting Chief Judge in the absence, disability or disqualification of the 

Chief Judge.  The Judge shall have all the powers and perform all the duties of the Chief Judge in 

the absence of the Chief Judge. 

 

3. 

 

 To the extent not covered by this Agreement, and not in contravention of the City Charter 

and Code, the Judge shall have the exclusive authority to establish rules and regulations for the 

conduct of all matters before said Court. 

 

4. 

 

 The Judge shall be available to the Court on a regular basis and as frequently as necessary 

to efficiently and expeditiously handle cases pending before said Court.  In establishing the hours 

for holding sessions of Court, the Judge shall consider the needs, requirements and duties of both 

the accused and the law enforcement officers.  The Judge shall issue warrants as requested by the 

Police Department. 

 

5. 

 

 The City shall provide in addition to the Court Room, adequate and appropriate office 

facilities to be utilized as the Judge deems necessary. 

8.B.a

Packet Pg. 73



 2 
 

6. 

 

 The City shall provide all necessary documents, forms, supplies and clerical assistance 

necessary to conduct the business of the Court and for the submission of reports as required by 

law. 

7. 

 

 The Judge shall receive as compensation, the sum of $400.00 per court session, and 

compensation shall be paid on a monthly basis. 

 

8. 

 

 This Agreement shall become effective July 1, 2021, and shall remain in effect through 

June 30, 2022. Notwithstanding the term of this Agreement, this Agreement shall terminate 

automatically by operation of law if the Judge is removed from office pursuant to state law. 

 

9. 

 

 The Judge shall not assign or subcontract the whole or any part of this Agreement without 

the City’s prior written consent. 

 

10. 

 

A. Judge warrants and represents that Judge is a licensed attorney in good standing with 

the State Bar of Georgia and possesses the special skill and professional competence, 

expertise, and experience to undertake the obligations imposed by this Agreement. 

  
B. Judge agrees to perform in a diligent, efficient, competent, and skillful manner 

commensurate with the highest standards of the profession, and to otherwise perform 

as is necessary to undertake the Services required by this Agreement.  

 

C. Judge warrants and represents that it will, at all times, observe and comply with all 

federal, state, local and municipal laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations, relating to 

the provision of the Services to be provided by Judge hereunder or which in any manner 

affect this Agreement. 

11. 

 

Miscellaneous:  

 

A. The failure by either party to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall not be 

construed as a waiver or limitation of that party’s right to subsequently enforce and compel 

strict performance with every provision of this Agreement. 

B. If any provision of this Agreement is held to be unenforceable for any reason, the 

unenforceability thereof shall not affect the remainder of the Agreement, which shall 

remain in full force and effect, and enforceable in accordance with its terms. 

8.B.a

Packet Pg. 74



 3 
 

C. The Parties acknowledge that this Agreement and all the terms and conditions herein have 

been fully reviewed and negotiated by the Parties. Having acknowledged the foregoing, 

the Parties agree that any principle of construction or rule of law that provides that, in the 

event of any inconsistency or ambiguity, an agreement shall be construed against the 

drafter of the agreement shall have no application to the terms and conditions of this 

Agreement.  

D. Any and all modifications or changes to this Agreement must be in writing and signed by 

the parties to this Agreement.  

E. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall constitute 

the original, but all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same Agreement. 

PDF signatures shall constitute original signatures. 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto executed this Agreement on the day and 

year first written above.  

 

 

 

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK:   JUDGE: 

 

 

______________________________  ______________________________ 

Bianca Motley Broom, Mayor   Kenneth E. Morrow, Judge Pro Tem- II 

Municipal Court of College Park 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________    

Shavala Moore, City Clerk  

 

 

8.B.a

Packet Pg. 75



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8894  

Updated: 6/16/2021 1:43 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: June 16, 2021 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Mercedes Miller, Interim City Manager 

 

FROM: Thomas Kuzniacki, Chief of Police 

 

RE:  City Judge Pro Tempore (Lacour) - Annual Contract Renewal FY 2021-22 

 

 

PURPOSE:  To allow the Mayor and City Council an opportunity to renew the City’s annual 

contract with Stefani Lacour Judge Pro Tempore for the College Park Municipal Court. 

 

REASON:  The current contract expires June 30, 2021. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Council approval of renewal of the contract for FY 2021-22. 

 

BACKGROUND:  Stefani Locour provides backup City Judge Pro Tempore Services for the 

City of College Park Municipal Court in the absence of the Chief Judge and judge Pro Tempore 

Morrow. 

 

COST TO CITY:  $400.00 per court session. This amount is the same as in the previous fiscal 

year. 

 

BUDGETED ITEM:  Yes. General Fund, Police/Municipal Court Services. 

 

REVENUE TO CITY:  N/A. 

 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING DATE:  June 21, 2021. 

 

CONSIDERATION BY OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES:  N/A. 

 

AFFECTED AGENCIES:  N/A. 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO EXISTING ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTION:  N/A. 

 

REQUIRED CHANGES TO WORK PROGRAMS:  N/A. 

 

8.C

Packet Pg. 76



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8894)  Meeting of June 21, 2021 

Updated: 6/16/2021 1:43 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 2 

STAFF: College Park Police Department 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Judge pro tempore Lacour Contract 2021- City Atty Revised (DOCX) 

 

Review: 

 Sharis McCrary Completed 06/14/2021 5:19 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 06/15/2021 8:59 AM 

 City Attorney's Office Completed 06/16/2021 1:08 AM 

 Mercedes Miller Completed 06/16/2021 1:55 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 06/21/2021 7:30 PM 

8.C

Packet Pg. 77



 1 
 

AGREEMENT  

Judge Pro Tempore-I 

 

This Agreement is made and entered into this ____day of ______________, 20__, by and 

between the CITY OF COLLEGE PARK, GEORGIA ("City"), and STEFANI LACOUR 

(“Judge”). 

WITNESSETH 

 

WHEREAS, the City, by and through its Mayor and Council, has appointed Stefani Lacour 

as Municipal Court Judge Pro Tempore-I of College Park; and 

 

WHEREAS, it has been deemed in the best interest of all parties that the term of 

appointment, compensation, duties, and responsibilities of each, in order to reach a mutuality of 

agreement, should be reduced to writing. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual terms, conditions and covenants set 

forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

 

1. 

 

 Stefani Lacour shall serve as Municipal Court Judge Pro Tempore I of College Park. 

 

2. 

 

 The Judge shall be acting Chief Judge in the absence, disability or disqualification of the 

Chief Judge.  The Judge shall have all the powers and perform all the duties of the Chief Judge in 

the absence of the Chief Judge. 

 

3. 

 

 To the extent not covered by this Agreement, and not in contravention of the City Charter 

and Code, the Judge shall have the exclusive authority to establish rules and regulations for the 

conduct of all matters before said Court. 

 

4. 

 

 The Judge shall be available to the Court on a regular basis and as frequently as necessary 

to efficiently and expeditiously handle cases pending before said Court.  In establishing the hours 

for holding sessions of Court, the Judge shall consider the needs, requirements and duties of both 

the accused and the law enforcement officers.  The Judge shall issue warrants as requested by the 

Police Department. 

 

5. 

 

 The City shall provide in addition to the Court Room, adequate and appropriate office 

facilities to be utilized as the Judge deems necessary. 

8.C.a

Packet Pg. 78



 2 
 

6. 

 

 The City shall provide all necessary documents, forms, supplies and clerical assistance 

necessary to conduct the business of the Court and for the submission of reports as required by 

law. 

 

7. 

 

 The Judge shall receive as compensation, the sum of $400.00 per court session, and 

compensation shall be paid on a monthly basis. 

 

8. 

 

 This Agreement shall become effective July 1, 2021, and shall remain in effect through 

June 30, 2022. Notwithstanding the term of this Agreement, this Agreement shall terminate 

automatically by operation of law if the Judge is removed from office pursuant to state law. 

 

9. 

 The Judge shall not assign or subcontract the whole or any part of this Agreement without 

the City’s prior written consent. 

 

10. 

 

A. Judge warrants and represents that Judge is a licensed attorney in good standing with 

the State Bar of Georgia and possesses the special skill and professional competence, 

expertise, and experience to undertake the obligations imposed by this Agreement. 

  
B. Judge agrees to perform in a diligent, efficient, competent, and skillful manner 

commensurate with the highest standards of the profession, and to otherwise perform 

as is necessary to undertake the Services required by this Agreement.  

 

C. Judge warrants and represents that it will, at all times, observe and comply with all 

federal, state, local and municipal laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations, relating to 

the provision of the Services to be provided by Judge hereunder or which in any manner 

affect this Agreement. 

11. 

 

Miscellaneous:  

 

A. The failure by either party to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall not be 

construed as a waiver or limitation of that party’s right to subsequently enforce and compel 

strict performance with every provision of this Agreement. 

B. If any provision of this Agreement is held to be unenforceable for any reason, the 

unenforceability thereof shall not affect the remainder of the Agreement, which shall 

remain in full force and effect, and enforceable in accordance with its terms. 

8.C.a

Packet Pg. 79



 3 
 

C. The Parties acknowledge that this Agreement and all the terms and conditions herein have 

been fully reviewed and negotiated by the Parties. Having acknowledged the foregoing, 

the Parties agree that any principle of construction or rule of law that provides that, in the 

event of any inconsistency or ambiguity, an agreement shall be construed against the 

drafter of the agreement shall have no application to the terms and conditions of this 

Agreement.  

D. Any and all modifications or changes to this Agreement must be in writing and signed by 

the parties to this Agreement.  

E. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall constitute 

the original, but all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same Agreement. 

PDF signatures shall constitute original signatures. 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto executed this Agreement on the day and 

year first written above.  

 

 

 

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK:   JUDGE: 

 

 

______________________________  ______________________________ 

Bianca Motley Broom, Mayor   Stefani Lacour, Judge Pro Tem- I 

Municipal Court of College Park 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________    

Shavala Moore, City Clerk  

 

 

8.C.a

Packet Pg. 80



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8893  

Updated: 6/16/2021 1:44 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: June 16, 2021 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Mercedes Miller, Interim City Manager 

 

FROM: Thomas Kuzniacki, Chief of Police 

 

RE:  City Solicitor - Annual Contract Renewal FY 2021-22 

 

 

PURPOSE:  To allow the Mayor and City Council an opportunity to renew the City’s annual 

contract with Kimberly Cornwell as City Solicitor for the College Park Municipal Court. 

 

REASON:  The current contract expires June 30, 2021. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Council approval of renewal of the contract for FY 2021-22. 

 

BACKGROUND:  Attorney Kimberly Cornwell provides City Solicitor Services for the City of 

College Park Municipal Court. 

 

COST TO CITY:  $50,000 annually. This amount is the same as in the previous fiscal year. 

 

BUDGETED ITEM:  Yes. General Fund, Police/Municipal Court Services. 

 

REVENUE TO CITY:  N/A. 

 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING DATE:  June 21, 2021. 

 

CONSIDERATION BY OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES:  N/A. 

 

AFFECTED AGENCIES:  N/A. 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO EXISTING ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTION:  N/A. 

 

REQUIRED CHANGES TO WORK PROGRAMS:  N/A. 

 

STAFF: College Park Police Department 

 

8.D

Packet Pg. 81



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8893)  Meeting of June 21, 2021 

Updated: 6/16/2021 1:44 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 2 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 City Solicitor Contract 2021- City Atty Revised (DOC) 

 

Review: 

 Sharis McCrary Completed 06/14/2021 5:20 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 06/15/2021 8:58 AM 

 City Attorney's Office Completed 06/15/2021 3:29 PM 

 Mercedes Miller Completed 06/15/2021 4:56 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 06/21/2021 7:30 PM 

8.D

Packet Pg. 82



AGREEMENT  

City Solicitor  

 

This Agreement is made and entered into this ____day of ______________, 20__, by and 

between the CITY OF COLLEGE PARK, GEORGIA ("City"), and KIMBERLY CORNWELL 

(“Solicitor”). 

 

WITNESSETH 

 

WHEREAS, the City of College Park, by and through its Mayor and Council, has 

appointed Kimberly Cornwell as Solicitor of the City Court of College Park; and 

 

WHEREAS, it has been deemed in the best interest of all parties that the term of 

appointment, compensation, duties, and responsibilities of said Solicitor, in order to reach a 

mutuality of agreement, should be reduced to writing. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual terms, conditions and covenants 

set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

 

 

1. 

 Kimberly Cornwell shall serve as Solicitor of the City Court of College Park. 

 

2. 

 In coordination with the appropriate City staff, the Solicitor shall be responsible for:  

A. Providing representation for the City within the City’s municipal court by attending all 

regular sessions established by the Municipal Judge; 

B. Prosecuting all cases before the municipal court (including code enforcement, traffic, 

penal code, and comparable cases in municipal court).  The Solicitor shall manage cases 

until dismissed, settled or decided in trial by the judge; 

C. Preparing municipal court cases for trial; preparing complaints and pleadings, 

interviewing and preparing witnesses and reviewing cases set for pretrial; 

D. Counseling and advising code enforcement employees, police officers and citizen 

complainants on effective testimony and courtroom skills and procedures; and 

E. Responding to inquiries related to municipal court procedures and violations of City 

Ordinances, traffic laws and criminal statutes prosecuted in Municipal Court. 

 

3. 

Reporting: 

 

  Solicitor shall file quarterly reports with the City delineating each case handled by the 

Solicitor, including the name(s), charge(s), case number(s), disposition, bench or jury trial, and 

8.D.a

Packet Pg. 83



whether an appeal was filed.  The report is due on or before the tenth (10th) day of the following 

month for services of the prior quarter. 

 

4. 

Attorney Conflict: 

 

In the event Solicitor must withdraw from a case because of a conflict of interest, 

Solicitor shall be responsible for immediately notifying the City Manager in order to provide for 

the naming of an attorney to handle any such case. 

 

5. 

Twenty-Four Hour Telephone Access: 

 

The Solicitor shall provide the City Police Department the telephone number or numbers 

at which the Solicitor can be reached for advice twenty-four (24) hours each day. 

 

6. 

Assignment or Subcontractors: 

 

No assignment or transfer of the Contract or of any interest in the Contract shall be made 

by the Solicitor without the prior written consent of the City. 

 

7. 

Facilities: 

 

 The City shall provide in addition to the Court Room, adequate and appropriate office 

facilities, including a City phone number and e-mail address to be utilized as Solicitor deems 

necessary. 

8. 

Compensation 

 

 The Solicitor shall receive as compensation, the sum of $50,000.00 per annum, payable 

in equal monthly installments and prorated over the term of this Agreement. The Solicitor shall 

be granted paid release time for twelve (12) court sessions during term of this Agreement.  In the 

event the Solicitor is absent from Court more than twelve (12) sessions during the term of this 

Agreement, pro-rated deductions from his compensation shall be made. The Solicitor shall also 

be granted paid release time to attend continuing legal education seminars and when he recuses 

himself due to a conflict of interest. 

 

9. 

Term  

 

 The Agreement shall become effective July 1, 2021, and shall terminate absolutely 

without further obligation on the part of the City on June 30, 2022, unless otherwise extended by 

both parties in writing.  

 

8.D.a

Packet Pg. 84



10. 

Termination: 

 

The City reserves the right to terminate this Agreement at any time in its sole discretion 

upon 30 days’ written notice to Solicitor. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, this 

Agreement shall automatically terminate upon the suspension or disbarment of Solicitor.  

 

11. 

 

Standard of Performance and Compliance with Applicable Laws: 

 

A. Solicitor warrants and represents that Solicitor is a licensed attorney in good standing 

with the State Bar of Georgia and possesses the special skill and professional 

competence, expertise, and experience to undertake the obligations imposed by this 

Agreement. 

  
B. Solicitor agrees to perform in a diligent, efficient, competent, and skillful manner 

commensurate with the highest standards of the profession, and to otherwise perform 

as is necessary to undertake the Services required by this Agreement.  

 

C. Solicitor warrants and represents that it will, at all times, observe and comply with all 

federal, state, local and municipal laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations, relating to 

the provision of the Services to be provided by Solicitor hereunder or which in any 

manner affect this Agreement. 

 

12. 

 

Miscellaneous:  

 

A. The failure by either party to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall not be 

construed as a waiver or limitation of that party’s right to subsequently enforce and 

compel strict performance with every provision of this Agreement. 

B. If any provision of this Agreement is held to be unenforceable for any reason, the 

unenforceability thereof shall not affect the remainder of the Agreement, which shall 

remain in full force and effect, and enforceable in accordance with its terms. 

C. The Parties acknowledge that this Agreement and all the terms and conditions herein 

have been fully reviewed and negotiated by the Parties. Having acknowledged the 

foregoing, the Parties agree that any principle of construction or rule of law that provides 

that, in the event of any inconsistency or ambiguity, an agreement shall be construed 

against the drafter of the agreement shall have no application to the terms and conditions 

of this Agreement.  

D. Any and all modifications or changes to this Agreement must be in writing and signed by 

the parties to this Agreement.  

8.D.a

Packet Pg. 85



E. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall constitute 

the original, but all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same Agreement. 

PDF signatures shall constitute original signatures. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto executed this Agreement on the day and 

year first written above.  

 

 

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK:   CITY SOLICITOR:  

 

 

______________________________  ______________________________ 

Bianca Motley Broom, Mayor   Kimberly Cornwell, Esq. 

       City Solicitor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________    

Shavala Moore, City Clerk    

 

 

8.D.a

Packet Pg. 86



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8895  

Updated: 6/16/2021 1:44 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: June 16, 2021 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Mercedes Miller, Interim City Manager 

 

FROM: Thomas Kuzniacki, Chief of Police 

 

RE:  City Solicitor (Part-Time) - Annual Contract Renewal FY 2021-22 

 

 

PURPOSE:  To allow the Mayor and City Council an opportunity to renew the City’s annual 

contract with Clarence D. Mitchell as part-time Solicitor for the College Park Municipal Court. 

 

REASON:  The current contract expires June 30, 2021. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Council approval of renewal of the contract for FY 2021-22. 

 

BACKGROUND:  Clarence D. Mitchell Provides part-time City Solicitor Services for the City 

of College Park Municipal Court in the absence of the City Solicitor. 

 

COST TO CITY:  $400.00 per court session. This amount is the same as in the previous fiscal 

year. 

 

BUDGETED ITEM:  Yes.  General Fund, Police/Municipal Court Services. 

 

REVENUE TO CITY:  N/A. 

 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING DATE:  June 21, 2021. 

 

CONSIDERATION BY OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES:  N/A. 

 

AFFECTED AGENCIES:  N/A. 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO EXISTING ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTION:  N/A. 

 

REQUIRED CHANGES TO WORK PROGRAMS:  N/A. 

 

STAFF: College Park Police Department 

8.E

Packet Pg. 87



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8895)  Meeting of June 21, 2021 

Updated: 6/16/2021 1:44 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 2 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Part time solicitor Contract 2021- City Atty Revised (DOC) 

 

Review: 

 Sharis McCrary Completed 06/14/2021 5:20 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 06/15/2021 9:00 AM 

 City Attorney's Office Completed 06/16/2021 12:52 PM 

 Mercedes Miller Completed 06/16/2021 1:55 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 06/21/2021 7:30 PM 

8.E

Packet Pg. 88



Page | 1 

 

AGREEMENT  

Part-time Deputy Solicitor  

 

This Agreement is made and entered into this ____day of ______________, 20__, by and 

between the CITY OF COLLEGE PARK, GEORGIA ("City"), and CLARENCE D. 

MITCHELL (“Deputy Solicitor”). 

 

WITNESSETH 

 

WHEREAS, the City of College Park, by and through its Mayor and Council, has 

appointed Clarence D. Mitchell as the part-time/Deputy Solicitor of the City Court of College 

Park; and 

 

WHEREAS, it has been deemed in the best interest of all parties that the term of 

appointment, compensation, duties, and responsibilities of said Solicitor, in order to reach a 

mutuality of agreement, should be reduced to writing. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual terms, conditions and covenants 

set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

 

1. 

 

 Clarence D. Mitchell shall serve as part-time Deputy Solicitor of the City Court of 

College Park. 

 

2. 

 

 In coordination with the appropriate City staff, Deputy Solicitor shall perform all duties 

of City Solicitor Kimberly Cornwell whenever the City Solicitor is unable to act due to absence, 

illness, or other cause, including but not limited to: 

 

A. Providing representation for the City within the City’s municipal court by attending all 

regular sessions established by the Municipal Judge; 

B. Prosecuting all cases before the municipal court (including code enforcement, traffic, 

penal code, and comparable cases in municipal court).  The part-time Solicitor shall 

manage cases until dismissed, settled or decided in trial by the judge; 

C. Preparing municipal court cases for trial; preparing complaints and pleadings, 

interviewing and preparing witnesses and reviewing cases set for pretrial; 

D. Counseling and advising code enforcement employees, police officers and citizen 

complainants on effective testimony and courtroom skills and procedures; and 

E. Responding to inquiries related to municipal court procedures and violations of City 

Ordinances, traffic laws and criminal statutes prosecuted in Municipal Court. 

 

 

8.E.a

Packet Pg. 89



Page | 2 

 

 

3. 

Reporting: 

 

  Deputy Solicitor shall file quarterly reports with the City delineating each case handled 

by the Deputy Solicitor, including the name(s), charge(s), case number(s), disposition, bench or 

jury trial, and whether an appeal was filed.  The report is due on or before the tenth (10th) day of 

the following month for services of the prior quarter. 

 

4. 

Attorney Conflict: 

 

In the event Deputy Solicitor must withdraw from a case because of a conflict of interest, 

Deputy Solicitor shall be responsible for immediately notifying the City Solicitor in order to 

provide for the naming of an attorney to handle any such case. 

 

5. 

Twenty-Four Hour Telephone Access: 

 

Deputy Solicitor shall provide the City Police Department the telephone number or 

numbers at which the part-time Solicitor can be reached for advice twenty-four (24) hours each 

day on any of the cases Solicitor is responsible for or if City Solicitor cannot otherwise be 

reached. 

 

6. 

Assignment or Subcontractors: 

 

No assignment or transfer of the Contract nor of any interest in the Contract shall be 

made by Deputy Solicitor without the prior written consent of the City. 

 

7. 

Facilities: 

 

 The City shall provide in addition to the Court Room, adequate and appropriate office 

facilities, including a City phone number and e-mail address to be utilized as Deputy Solicitor 

deems necessary. 

8. 

Compensation 

 

 Deputy Solicitor shall receive compensation in the sum of a $400.00 flat fee per each day 

of services provided to the City hereunder. 

 

 

 

 

 

8.E.a

Packet Pg. 90



Page | 3 

 

9. 

Term  

 

 The Agreement shall become effective July 1, 2021, and shall terminate absolutely 

without further obligation on the part of the City on June 30, 2022, unless otherwise extended by 

both parties in writing.  

 

10. 

Termination: 

 

The City reserves the right to terminate this Agreement at any time in its sole discretion 

upon 30 days’ written notice to Deputy Solicitor. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary 

herein, this Agreement shall automatically terminate upon the suspension or disbarment of 

Deputy Solicitor.  

 

11. 

 

Standard of Performance and Compliance with Applicable Laws: 

 

(a) Deputy Solicitor warrants and represents that Deputy Solicitor is a licensed attorney 

in good standing with the State Bar of Georgia and possesses the special skill and 

professional competence, expertise, and experience to undertake the obligations 

imposed by this Agreement. 

  
(b) Deputy Solicitor agrees to perform in a diligent, efficient, competent, and skillful 

manner commensurate with the highest standards of the profession, and to otherwise 

perform as is necessary to undertake the Services required by this Agreement.  

 

(c) Deputy Solicitor warrants and represents that it will, at all times, observe and comply 

with all federal, state, local and municipal laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations, 

relating to the provision of the Services to be provided by Deputy Solicitor hereunder 

or which in any manner affect this Agreement. 

 

12. 

Miscellaneous:  

 

A. The failure by either party to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall not be 

construed as a waiver or limitation of that party’s right to subsequently enforce and 

compel strict performance with every provision of this Agreement. 

B. If any provision of this Agreement is held to be unenforceable for any reason, the 

unenforceability thereof shall not affect the remainder of the Agreement, which shall 

remain in full force and effect, and enforceable in accordance with its terms. 

C. The Parties acknowledge that this Agreement and all the terms and conditions herein 

have been fully reviewed and negotiated by the Parties. Having acknowledged the 

foregoing, the Parties agree that any principle of construction or rule of law that provides 

that, in the event of any inconsistency or ambiguity, an agreement shall be construed 

8.E.a

Packet Pg. 91



Page | 4 

 

against the drafter of the agreement shall have no application to the terms and conditions 

of this Agreement.  

D. Any and all modifications or changes to this Agreement must be in writing and signed by 

the parties to this Agreement.  

E. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall constitute 

the original, but all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same Agreement. 

PDF signatures shall constitute original signatures. 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto executed this Agreement on the day and 

year first written above.  

 

 

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK   DEPUTY SOLICITOR  

 

 

______________________________  ______________________________ 

Bianca Motley Broom, Mayor   Clarence D. Mitchell, Esq. 

       Part-Time Deputy City Solicitor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________    

Shavala Moore, City Clerk    

 

8.E.a

Packet Pg. 92



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8896  

Updated: 6/15/2021 5:00 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: June 15, 2021 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Mercedes Miller, Interim City Manager 

 

FROM: Thomas Kuzniacki, Chief of Police 

 

RE:  Public Defender - Annual Contract Renewal FY 2021-22 

 

 

PURPOSE:  To allow the Mayor and City Council an opportunity to renew the City’s annual 

professional services agreement with The Firm for Justice & Liberty for public defender 

services.  The annual amount of $50,000 for public defender services for Fiscal Year 2021-22 

will remain the same as the previous fiscal year. 

 

REASON:  The current contract expires June 30, 2021. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Council approval of renewal of the agreement. 

 

BACKGROUND:  The City provides public defender services for those defendants in the 

municipal court who need the advice and representation of an attorney. 

 

COST TO CITY:  $50,000 annually. 

 

BUDGETED ITEM:  Yes. General Fund, Police/Municipal Court Services. 

 

REVENUE TO CITY:  N/A. 

 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING DATE:  June 21, 2021. 

 

CONSIDERATION BY OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES:  N/A. 

 

AFFECTED AGENCIES:  Police, Municipal Court. 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO EXISTING ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTION:  N/A. 

 

REQUIRED CHANGES TO WORK PROGRAMS:  N/A. 

 

8.F

Packet Pg. 93



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8896)  Meeting of June 21, 2021 

Updated: 6/15/2021 5:00 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 2 

STAFF: Police - Municipal Court 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Public Defender (PDF) 

 

Review: 

 Sharis McCrary Completed 06/14/2021 5:21 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 06/15/2021 9:01 AM 

 City Attorney's Office Completed 06/16/2021 1:42 AM 

 Mercedes Miller Completed 06/16/2021 11:59 AM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 06/21/2021 7:30 PM 

8.F

Packet Pg. 94



Page 1 of 8  

 

 

PUBLIC DEFENDER SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 

 This Public Defender Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is made this ____ day of 

__________, 2020, between the City of College Park, Georgia (the “City”) and THE FIRM FOR 

JUSTICE & LIBERTY, LLC (“Public Defender”), collectively referred to as the “Parties”, 

individually may be referred to as “Party”. 

 

 In consideration of the mutual promises and conditions contained in this Agreement, the 

Parties agree as follows: 

 

1. Services and Obligations of Public Defender 

 

1.1 Scope of Services 

During the term of this Agreement, Public Defender shall provide the services described 

in the Public Defender Service Addendum attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, which shall 

describe in detail the services to be provided and the compensation for performance and 

completion of such services. 

 

1.2 Method of Performing Services 

Consistent with the rules and regulations pertaining to attorneys established by the State 

of Georgia and the State Bar of Georgia, Public Defender shall determine the method, 

details and means of performing the services described in Exhibit “A”. 

 

1.3 Office Space and Support Staff 

Public Defender shall be responsible for supplying its own office space but may perform 

services under this Agreement at or on premises supplied by the City at the City’s 

request.  Public Defender will be responsible for its own office support staff, if any.  Any 

and all personnel hired by Public Defender, as employees, consultants, agents or 

otherwise (collectively, “Staff”) shall be the responsibility of Public Defender. 

 

2. Non-Employment Relationship between City and Public Defender 

 

2.1 Independent Contractor Relationship 

Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create an employer-employee 

relationship between the Parties.  This Agreement shall not render the City an employer, 

partner, agent of or joint venturer with Public Defender for any purpose.  Public Defender 

shall have no claim against City for vacation pay, sick leave, retirement, social security, 

workers’ compensation, health or disability benefits, unemployment insurance benefits, 

or employee benefits of any kind whatsoever.  The consideration set forth in the Public 

Defender Service Addendum shall be the sole payment for services rendered. 

 

2.2 Withholding Taxes and Benefits 

Public Defender will be responsible for withholding, accruing and paying all income, 

social security and other taxes and amounts required by law for all fees arising under this 

8.F.a

Packet Pg. 95



Page 2 of 8  

agreement and all payments to Staff, if any.  Public Defender shall also be responsible for 

all statutory insurance and other benefits required by law for Public Defender and its staff 

and all other benefits promised to its staff by Public Defender, if any.  Public Defender 

shall provide City with a completed W-9 form. 

 

3. Warranties 

 

3.1 Public Defender Warranties 

Public Defender warrants that it has the right and authority to enter into this Agreement 

and that this Agreement does not violate the terms of any agreement between Public 

Defender and any third party.  Further, Public Defender warrants that it possesses the 

required expertise to render the services required by this Agreement. 

 

3.2 Competent Work 

Public Defender shall perform all services in a competent fashion in accordance with the 

applicable standards of the profession. 

 

3.3 Representations and Warranties 

Except as provided in this Agreement, Public Defender will make no representations, 

warranties, or commitments binding the City without the City’s prior written consent. 

 

Except as provided in this Agreement, the City will make no representations, warranties, 

or commitments binding the Public Defender without the Public Defender’s prior written 

consent. 

 

4. City Prohibitions to Create a Safe Work Environment 

 

4.1 Drug Free Workplace 

Public Defender and its staff, if any, shall not be in possession of or use of a controlled 

substance or marijuana during the performance of this Agreement, except for those 

controlled substances prescribed by a licensed medical provider.  City has a no tolerance 

policy for violation of this rule. 

 

4.2 Prohibition on Unlawful Discrimination and Harassment 

The City does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, age, 

religion or disability in any employment policies and practices.  The City prohibits 

unlawful discrimination or harassment, including sexual harassment.  Public Defender 

and its staff, if any, shall not engage in unlawful harassment or discrimination while on 

the premises of the City.  City has a no tolerance policy for violation of this rule. 

 

5. Termination 

 

Either Party may terminate this Agreement with thirty (30) days written notice to the 

other Party.  Upon termination, Public Defender shall return all data and property of the 

City to the City.  The City shall pay Public Defender all earned fees, if any.  If the City 

desires to hire the Public Defender as a permanent employee, this Agreement will be 

8.F.a

Packet Pg. 96



Page 3 of 8  

terminated and replaced by a new agreement.  Until such time that a new agreement is 

fully executed, the City and Public Defender will be bound by the terms of this 

Agreement. 

 

6. Notices 

 

All notices required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing 

(the “Notice”) and deemed given when (a) hand delivered by the sender and properly 

receipted for by a responsible person of the receiving party, (b) deposited in the United 

States Mail, properly addressed, with sufficient postage affixed, via first class mail, return 

receipt requested, (c) via Federal Express, UPS or similar national overnight courier 

service with delivery charges prepaid, or (d) via facsimile with a copy sent that same day 

via (a), (b) or (c).  All Notices shall be addressed as follows: 

 

 

For City: 

 

City of College Park, Georgia 

Attention:  Mercedes Miller, Interim City Manager 

3667 Main Street 

College Park, Georgia 30337 

Telephone No. 404-669-3756 

Fax No. 404-762-4607 

 

 

For Public Defender: 

 

  The Firm for Justice & Liberty, LLC 

  Ethenia F. King, Owner/Managing Partner 

  1882 Princeton Avenue, Suite 8 

  College Park, Georgia 30337 

  Telephone No. 770-268-8515 

  Fax No. 1-866-380-3453 

 

7. Indemnification 

 

Public Defender hereby waives, releases, relinquishes, discharges and agrees to 

indemnify, protect and save harmless the City, its officers and employees, (collectively, 

“Releases”), from any and all claims, demands, liabilities, losses, costs or expenses, 

including attorneys’ fees, for any loss or damage for bodily injury, property damages and 

attorneys’ fees related thereto caused by, growing out of, or otherwise happening in 

connection with this Agreement, due to any act or omission on the part of Public 

Defender, its agents, employees, subcontractors, or others working at the direction or on 

behalf of Public Defender.  Public Defender’s obligation to indemnify any Releases shall 

survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement by either Party for any reason. 

 

8.F.a

Packet Pg. 97



Page 4 of 8  

8. Non-Exclusivity 

 

This Agreement is a non-exclusive agreement.  Both parties may enter into similar 

agreement with third parties. 

 

9. Waiver 

 

City’s waiver of Public Defender’s breach of any provision, term or condition contained 

in this Agreement, shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such provision, term or 

condition or any subsequent breach of the same or any other provision contained in this 

Agreement unless it is in writing.  No waiver or waivers shall serve to establish a course 

of performance between the Parties contradictory to the terms of this agreement. 

 

10. Assignment 

 

Public Defender shall not assign or subcontract the whole or any part of this Agreement 

without City’s prior written consent. 

 

11. Force Majeure 

 

Neither Party shall be liable for any loss or damage suffered by the other Party, directly 

or indirectly, as a result of the first Party’s failure to perform, or delay in performing, any 

of its obligations contained in this Agreement (except any obligations to make payments 

hereunder), where such failure or delay is caused by circumstances beyond the first 

Party’s control or which make performance commercially impracticable, including but 

not limited to fire, flood, storm or other natural disaster, explosion, accident, war, riot, 

civil disorder, government regulations or restrictions of any kind or any acts of any 

government, judicial action, power failure, acts of God or other natural circumstances. 

 

12. Applicable Law 

 

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Georgia. 

 

13. Publicity 

 

Public Defender shall not release without prior written approval from City, any publicity 

regarding the program or services provided by the City, including but not limited to 

notices, information pamphlets, press releases, research, reports, signs and similar public 

notices prepared by or for Public Defender, identifying City receiving goods or services 

under this Agreement, so long as it is not unlawful and/or unethical not to do so and/or it 

does not violate any of the rules of the State Bar of Georgia. 

 

14. Time is of the Essence 

 

Time is of the essence with regard to performance of any services under this Agreement, 

unless the Parties agree otherwise in writing. 

8.F.a

Packet Pg. 98



Page 5 of 8  

 

15. Ownership 

 

All records, ideas, plans, improvements, or inventions developed by Public Defender 

during the term of this Agreement shall belong to the Public Defender. 

 

16. Certain Rules of Interpretation 

 

Except where the context or use otherwise requires, words importing the singular number 

shall include the plural number and vice versa, and the masculine, the feminine and the 

neuter shall include all genders.  Reference to a Section number shall be construed to be a 

reference to the designated Section number of this Agreement unless the context or use 

clearly indicates another or different meaning or intent. 

 

17. Titles, Captions and Headings 

 

The titles, captions and paragraph headings are inserted for convenience only and are in 

no way intended to interpret, define, or limit the scope or content of this Agreement or 

any provision hereof. 

 

18. Counterparts 

 

This Agreement may be executed in separate counterparts.  This Agreement shall be fully 

executed when each Party whose signature is required has signed at least one counterpart, 

even though no one counterpart contains all of the signatures of all the Parties to this 

Agreement. 

 

19. Amendment 

 

This Agreement may not be modified or amended except by agreement in writing signed 

by the Parties hereto. 

 

20. Exhibits 

 

All exhibits attached to this Agreement are incorporated by reference into and made a 

part of this Agreement. 

 

21. Severability 

 

If any provision of this Agreement is held as a matter of law to be unenforceable or 

illegal, the remainder of the agreement shall be enforceable without such provision. 

 

22. Entire Agreement 

 

The parties acknowledge that this Agreement sets forth the entire agreement and 

understanding between the City and Public Defender and fully supersedes any and all 

8.F.a

Packet Pg. 99



Page 6 of 8  

prior agreements or understanding among the Parties pertaining to the same subject 

matter.  City and Public Defender affirm that the only consideration for their agreement 

to execute, and their execution of the Agreement, are the terms as stated herein, and that 

there are no other promises or agreement of any kind which have caused them to execute 

this Agreement.  This Agreement and the covenants and conditions contained herein shall 

be binding upon and in use to the benefit of each of the Parties hereto and their respective 

successors, assigns and successors in title.  The Parties further acknowledge that they 

fully understand the meaning and intent of this Agreement, including but not limited to 

its binding effect.  The Parties acknowledge that they have had the benefit of consulting 

an attorney before executing this Agreement. 

 

 WHEREFORE, the Parties, having read and understood the terms of this agreement, do 

hereby agree to such terms by execution of their signatures below. 

 

 

      CITY OF COLLEGE PARK, GEORGIA 

 

 

      ________________________________ 

      Bianca Motley Broom, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________ 

Shavala Moore, City Clerk 

 

 

      THE FIRM FOR JUSTICE & LIBERTY, LLC 

 

 

      __________________________________ 

      Ethenia F. King, Managing Partner 

       

 

8.F.a

Packet Pg. 100



Page 7 of 8  

EXHIBIT “A” 

 

Public Defender Service Addendum 

 

DUTIES: The Public Defender will: 

 

1. For all indigent persons requesting public defender services within the 

Municipal Court of College Park, provide representational services, including 

lawyer services and appropriate support staff services, investigation and 

appropriate sentencing advocacy and legal services including but not limited 

to interviews of clients and potential witnesses, legal research, preparation and 

filing of pleadings, negotiations with the appropriate prosecutor and court 

regarding possible dispositions, and preparation for an appearance at all court 

proceedings; 

 

2. On a quarterly basis the Public Defender will provide the City with a report 

identifying the number of cases handled, the type of cases handled and the 

case disposition and/or status; 

 

3. Immediately notify the City in writing when it becomes aware that a 

complaint lodged with the State Bar of Georgia has resulted in reprimand, 

suspension, or disbarment of Public Defender; 

 

4. Maintain accounts and records, including personnel, property, financial, and 

programmatic records, which sufficiently and properly reflect all services 

provided to all indigent persons pursuant to this Agreement.  Records shall be 

maintained for a period of 5 (five) years after termination of this Agreement 

unless permission to destroy them is granted by the City; and 

 

5. Public Defender shall maintain or ensure that its professional employees 

maintain professional liability insurance for any and all acts which occur 

during the course of their employment with Public Defender which constitute 

professional services in the performance of this Contract.  Such professional 

liability insurance shall be maintained in an amount not less than $1,000,000 

combined single limit per claim/aggregate.  Public Defender further agrees 

that it shall have sole and full responsibility for the payment of any funds 

where such payments are occasioned solely by the professional negligence of 

its professional employees and where such payments are not covered by any 

professional liability insurance, including but limited to the amount of the 

deductible under the insurance policy.  Public Defender shall not be required 

to make any payments for professional liability, if such liability is occasioned 

by the sole negligence of the City.  Such insurance shall not be reduced or 

canceled without 30 days’ prior written notice to the City.  Public Defender 

shall provide certificates of insurance or, upon written request of the 

Contracting Authority, duplicates of the policies as evidence of insurance 

protection. 

8.F.a

Packet Pg. 101



Page 8 of 8  

 

TERM: 

 

This agreement shall commence on the 1st day of July, 2021 and shall continue in full 

force and effect through the 30th day of June, 2022.  The Agreement may only be 

extended thereafter by written mutual agreement, unless terminated earlier by operation 

of and in accordance with this Agreement. 

 

COMPENSATION: 

 

As full compensation for the legal services rendered on routine and non-routine criminal 

cases pursuant to this Agreement, the City shall pay the Public Defender the sum of 

$50,000.00 (fifty thousand dollars) annually to be paid in monthly Installments of 

$4,166.67 (four thousand one hundred sixty six dollars and sixty seven cents).  After 

receipt of the invoice the monthly installment payment shall be paid on or before the 

fourteenth (14th) day of each month.  In the event that the installment is not paid and/or 

received by the fourteenth (14th) day of the month it will be considered late/delinquent 

and there shall be late fee charged of 5% (five percent) daily.  This compensation does 

not include night court. In the event a night court is established there shall be an 

addendum to the contract and an increase in the compensation. 

 

EXPENSES: 

 

All expenses incurred by the Public Defender in order to provide legal representation in a 

routine or non-routine case that requires investigative services, expert witnesses, 

specialized testing, if advance written approval by the City is granted, shall be 

reimbursed.  All expenses incurred by the Public Defender at the City’s written request 

may be reimbursed. 

8.F.a

Packet Pg. 102



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8930  

Updated: 6/16/2021 1:30 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: June 16, 2021 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

FROM: Mercedes Miller, Interim City Manager 

 

RE:  City Photographer - Annual Contract Renewal FY2021-22 

 

 

PURPOSE:  To receive approval from the Mayor and City Council on the renewal of City 

photographer services provided by Warren Bond Photography. 

 

REASON:  The current contract expires on June 30, 2021. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Council approval of renewal of the contract. 

 

BACKGROUND: Warren Bond has served in the position of City Photographer for the City of 

College Park for over 30 years.  Under the annual contract Warren Bond Photography’s staff 

photographers are available 24 hours a day, seven days a week to provide photography services 

for all city departments.  They also provide emergency response for the Police and Fire 

Departments with an average response time of 20 minutes or less. 

 

COST TO CITY:  $52,500.00 annually in addition to $400.00 per month allotment for 

equipment, software and supplies for digital image storage. 

 

The contract amount of $52,500.00 is a decrease in the contract amount from Fiscal Year 

2020-2021 due to budget constraints.  However, the amount will be re-evaluated during the 

next fiscal year. 

 

BUDGETED ITEM:  Yes.  Account #: 100-1100-52-6170 (Legislative-Contractual Services) 

and Account #: 100 3200 52 6170 (General Fund, Police Administration, Contractual Services). 

 

REVENUE TO CITY:  N/A. 

 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING DATE:  June 21, 2021. 

 

CONSIDERATION BY OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES:  N/A. 

 

AFFECTED AGENCIES:  N/A. 

8.G

Packet Pg. 103



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8930)  Meeting of June 21, 2021 

Updated: 6/16/2021 1:30 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 2 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO EXISTING ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTION:  N/A. 

 

REQUIRED CHANGES TO WORK PROGRAMS:  N/A. 

 

STAFF:  City wide. 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Warren Bond Photography Services Agreement_FY2021-22 (DOCX) 

 

Review: 

 Mercedes Miller Completed 06/14/2021 3:47 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 06/14/2021 4:32 PM 

 City Clerk Completed 06/16/2021 11:56 AM 

 Police Completed 06/15/2021 8:49 AM 

 City Attorney's Office Completed 06/16/2021 1:03 PM 

 Mercedes Miller Completed 06/16/2021 1:57 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 06/21/2021 7:30 PM 

8.G

Packet Pg. 104



1 

 

Photography Services Agreement 

 

This Photography Services Agreement ("Agreement") is made this ____ day of _______ 2021, 

between the City of College Park, Georgia ("City") and Warren L. Bond Photography, Inc. ("City Photographer"), 

collectively  referred  to  as  the "Parties", individually may  be  referred  to  as "Party". 

 

WITNESSETH 

 

WHEREAS, the City Photographer has provided photography services to the City in the past; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the City desires to continue its relationship with the City Photographer for 

photography services. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and conditions contained in this 

Agreement, the Parties agree as follows: 

 

1. The City Photographer will provide a black and white processing darkroom as well as pickup 

and delivery of color processed film. 

2. The City Photographer will provide a replacement when it is not available to provide normal 

photography services. Such replacement shall be subject to the terms and conditions of this 

Agreement. 

3. The City Photographer will provide 24-hour photography services for all City 

Departments. 

4. The City Photographer will provide all equipment necessary for the provision of photography 

services under this Agreement. 

5. The City of College Park will continue to provide six Police radios to the City 

Photographer. 

6. The City shall compensate the City Photographer for the cost of equipment, software and 

supplies for digital image storage in the amount of $400.00 per month. 

7. The City Photographer shall be available for any court case as needed. 

8. The City shall compensate the City Photographer an annual amount of $52,500.00 in monthly 

installments of $4,375.00. 

9. This Agreement shall be in effect for a term beginning on July 1, 2021 and ending on 

June 30, 2022. 

10. The City Photographer's engagement with the City under this Agreement shall be at-will. 

The City shall have the unilateral right to terminate this Agreement for any reason at any 

8.G.a

Packet Pg. 105



2 

 

time. The City Photographer shall have the unilateral right to terminate this Agreement by 

giving thirty (30) days advance written notice of such termination to the City. The City 

shall not be obligated to make any further compensation to the City Photographer 

subsequent to termination. Upon termination, the City Photographer shall return all city 

property to the City. 

11. City Photographer shall not assign or subcontract the whole or any part of this Agreement 

without the City's prior written consent. 

12. City Photographer shall be required to, at the time of this Agreement, provide a signed, 

notarized affidavit, attesting that it has registered with, is authorized to use, and uses the federal 

work authorization program. City Photographer will continue to use the federal work 

authorization program throughout the contract period.  City Photographer will contract for the 

physical performance of services in satisfaction of such contract only with subcontractors who 

present an affidavit containing the above information. Further, to the extent that a subcontractor 

is utilized, the subcontractor's federal work authorization program user identification number 

and the date of authorization shall be included with the affidavit. 

13. (a)  Independent Contractors.  Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to create any 

relationship other than that of independent contractor between College Park and City 

Photographer.  This Agreement shall not constitute, create, or otherwise imply an employment, 

joint venture, partnership, agency or similar arrangement between College Park and City 

Photographer.  It is expressly agreed that City Photographer is acting as an independent 

contractor and not as an employee in providing the Services under this Agreement.  

(b)  Employee Benefits.  City Photographer shall not be eligible for any benefit available to 

employees of College Park including, but not limited to, workers’ compensation insurance, state 

disability insurance, unemployment insurance, group health and life insurance, vacation pay, sick 

pay, severance pay, bonus plans, pension plans, or savings plans. 

(c)  Payroll Taxes.  No income, social security, state disability or other federal or state payroll 

tax will be deducted from payments made to City Photographer under this Agreement.  City 

Photographer shall be responsible for all FICA, federal and state withholding taxes and workers’ 

compensation coverage for any individuals assigned to perform the Services for College Park. 

14. City Photographer warrants and represents that: 

(a)  the Services to be performed hereunder will not create an actual or apparent conflict of 

interest with any other work it is currently performing; and 

8.G.a

Packet Pg. 106



3 

 

(b)  City Photographer is not presently subject to any agreement with a competitor or with any 

other party that will prevent City Photographer from performing in full accord with this 

Agreement; and 

(c) City Photographer is not subject to any statute, regulation, ordinance or rule that will limit its 

ability to perform its obligations under this Agreement.  The parties agree that City Photographer 

shall be free to accept other work during the term hereof; provided, however, that such other 

work shall not interfere with the provision of Services hereunder. 

15. City Photographer acknowledges that it may have access to and become acquainted with 

confidential and other information proprietary to College Park including, but not limited to, 

information concerning College Park, its operations, customers, citizens, business and financial 

condition, as well as information with respect to which College Park has an obligation to maintain 

confidentiality (collectively referred to herein as “Proprietary Information”).  City Photographer 

agrees not to disclose, directly or indirectly, to anyone or to use or to allow others to use, for any 

purpose whatsoever, any Proprietary Information of any type, whether or not designated 

confidential or proprietary, acquired in the course of performing under this Agreement.  The 

obligations of City Photographer under this section shall survive the termination of this 

Agreement. 

16. This Agreement is made and entered into in the State of Georgia and this Agreement and the 

rights and obligations of the parties hereto shall be governed by and construed according to the 

laws of the State of Georgia without giving effect to the principles of conflicts of laws.  The 

jurisdiction for resolution of any disputes arising from this Agreement shall be in the State Courts 

of Fulton County, Georgia. 

17. The waiver by either party of a breach or violation of any provision of this Agreement shall not 

operate or be construed to constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach or violation of the same 

or other provision thereof. 

18. If any provision of this Agreement is held to be unenforceable for any reason, the 

unenforceability thereof shall not affect the remainder of the Agreement, which shall remain in 

full force and effect, and enforceable in accordance with its terms. 

19. This Agreement which includes the exhibits hereto contains the entire agreement and 

understanding of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes and replaces 

any and all prior discussions, representations and understandings, whether oral or written.   

 

WHEREFORE, the Parties, having read and understood the terms of this Agreement, do 

8.G.a

Packet Pg. 107



4 

 

hereby agree to such terms by execution of their signatures below on the day and year first referenced 

above. 

 

      CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 

 

 

 

ATTEST:      _____________________________  

       Bianca Motley Broom, Mayor 

____________________________ 

Shavala Moore, City Clerk 

      WARREN L. BOND PHOTOGRAPHY, INC. 

 

       By: _______________________________ 

       Name: _____________________________ 

       Title: _______________________________ 

 

 

 

 

8.G.a

Packet Pg. 108



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8889  

Updated: 6/15/2021 2:41 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: June 15, 2021 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Mercedes Miller, Interim City Manager 

 

FROM: Shavala Moore, City Clerk 

 

RE:  Stenography Services Annual Contract Renewal (FY 2019-20) 

 

 

PURPOSE:  To allow the Mayor and City Council an opportunity to renew the City’s annual 

agreement for stenography services with Linda McDaniel. 

 

REASON:  The current agreement expires June 30, 2021. Ms. McDaniel is requesting a 

$4,000.00 annual increase for a total of $21,318.08 for FY 2021-22. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Council approval of renewal of the Professional Services Agreement 

with Linda McDaniel for FY 2021-22. 

 

BACKGROUND:  Linda McDaniel prepares minutes of all Mayor and City Council regular 

sessions, workshop sessions, budget sessions and special called meetings.  Additionally, when 

requested, Mayor and City Council Joint Business and Industrial Development Authority (BIDA) 

Meetings and Mayor and City Council Joint ATL Airport District Destination Marketing 

Organization (DMO) Meetings. 

 

COST TO CITY:  The sum of $17,318.08 payable in equal bi-weekly installments.  This annual 

contract amount is not an increase over the previous fiscal year. If increases approved, sum will 

be $21,318.08. 

 

BUDGETED ITEM:  Yes. Acct. # 100-1100-52-6170 (Contractual). 

 

REVENUE TO CITY:  N/A. 

 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING DATE:  June 21, 2021. 

 

CONSIDERATION BY OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES:  N/A. 

 

AFFECTED AGENCIES:  N/A. 

8.H

Packet Pg. 109



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8889)  Meeting of June 21, 2021 

Updated: 6/15/2021 2:41 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 2 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO EXISTING ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTION:  N/A. 

 

REQUIRED CHANGES TO WORK PROGRAMS:  N/A. 

 

STAFF:  City Clerk’s Office. 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Stenographer Contract FY21-22 (DOCX) 

 CP Contract Ltr for FY2021 2022 (003) (PDF) 

 

Review: 

 Shavala Moore Completed 06/15/2021 11:45 AM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 06/15/2021 2:41 PM 

 City Attorney's Office Completed 06/15/2021 3:58 PM 

 Mercedes Miller Completed 06/15/2021 4:55 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 06/21/2021 7:30 PM 

8.H

Packet Pg. 110



1 
 

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 

 

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this ____ day of __________, 2021 by and between 

the City of College Park, Georgia (the “City”) and Linda McDaniel (“McDaniel”) for stenography 

services. 

 

The following terms and conditions shall apply to this Agreement: 

 

1. 

 

McDaniel will provide stenography service for the following City Meetings:  Mayor and Council 

regular sessions, workshop sessions, budget sessions and special called sessions.  And when 

requested by the City Clerk, Mayor and Council Joint Business and Industrial Development 

Authority (BIDA) meetings and Mayor and Council Joint ATL Airport District Destination 

Marketing Organization (DMO) meetings. 

 

2. 

 

All minutes shall be forwarded to the City Clerk’s office no later than the Monday prior to the next 

City Council meeting. 

 

3. 

 

It shall be the responsibility of McDaniel to ensure that minutes are accurate. 

 

4. 

 

McDaniel will provide all necessary equipment related to provide this service. 

 

5. 

 

McDaniel shall receive as compensation, the annual sum of $17,318.08, payable in equal bi-

weekly installments. 

 

6. 

 

This agreement shall become effective July 1, 2021, and remain in full force through June 30, 

2022.  This agreement is terminable by either party without cause.  Notice of extension or 

termination shall be in writing and not less than thirty (30) days prior to the effective date for such 

extension or termination. 

  

8.H.a

Packet Pg. 111



2 
 

7. 

 

McDaniel shall not assign or subcontract the whole or any part of this agreement without the 

City’s prior written consent. 

 

8. 

 

Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to create any relationship other than that of independent 

contractor between the City and McDaniel. This Agreement shall not constitute, create, or 

otherwise imply an employment, joint venture, partnership, agency or similar arrangement 

between the City and McDaniel. It is expressly agreed that McDaniel is acting as an independent 

contractor and not as an employee in providing the Services under this Agreement.  

9. 

McDaniel shall not be eligible for any benefit available to employees of the City including, but not 

limited to, workers’ compensation insurance, state disability insurance, unemployment insurance, 

group health and life insurance, vacation pay, sick pay, severance pay, bonus plans, pension plans, 

or savings plans. 

10. 

No income, social security, state disability or other federal or state payroll tax will be deducted 

from payments made to McDaniel under this Agreement. McDaniel shall be responsible for all 

FICA, federal and state withholding taxes and workers’ compensation coverage for any individuals 

assigned to perform the Services for the City.  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF said City acting by and through its duly authorized Mayor and 

McDaniel, have thereunto set their hands and delivered these presents in duplicate the day and 

year first above written. 

 

 

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK: 

 

 

____________________________    _________________________ 

Bianca Motley Broom, Mayor    Linda McDaniel 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________ 

Shavala Moore, City Clerk 

 

 

8.H.a

Packet Pg. 112



8.H.b

Packet Pg. 113



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8934  

Updated: 6/16/2021 1:58 PM by Mercedes Miller  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: June 16, 2021 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Mercedes Miller, Interim City Manager 

 

FROM: Althea Philord-Bradley, Director of Finance & Accounting 

 

RE:  U.S. Department of Treasury Terms & Conditions Agreement for the ARPA 

 

 

PURPOSE:  Ratification of an agreement between the United States Department of Treasury 

and the City of College Park. The American Rescue Plan Act, Pub. L. No. 117-2 (March 11, 

2021) authorize the Department of the Treasury to make payments to certain recipients from the 

Coronavirus State Fiscal Recovery Fund and the Coronavirus Local Fiscal Recovery Fund  

 

The City of College Park hereby agrees, as a condition to receiving such payment from Treasury, 

to the terms attached. 
 

REASON:  The U.S. Department of the Treasury announced the launch of the Coronavirus State 

and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, established by the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021, to 

provide $350 billion in emergency funding for state, local, territorial, and Tribal governments. 

Treasury also released details on the ways funds can be used to respond to acute pandemic-

response needs, fill revenue shortfalls among state and local governments, and support the 

communities and populations hardest-hit by the COVID-19 crisis  

 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING DATE:  June 21, 2021. 

 

CONSIDERATION BY OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES: United States Department of 

Treasury  

 

AFFECTED AGENCIES:   
 

STAFF:   
 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 US Dept of Treasury-ARPA Agreement Local Fiscal Recovery (PDF) 

9.A

Packet Pg. 114



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8934)  Meeting of June 21, 2021 

Updated: 6/16/2021 1:58 PM by Mercedes Miller  Page 2 

 

Review: 

 Althea Philord-Bradley Completed 06/14/2021 10:58 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 06/15/2021 8:57 AM 

 City Attorney's Office Completed 06/16/2021 1:28 PM 

 Mercedes Miller Completed 06/16/2021 1:58 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 06/21/2021 7:30 PM 

9.A

Packet Pg. 115



9.A.a

Packet Pg. 116



9.A.a

Packet Pg. 117



9.A.a

Packet Pg. 118



9.A.a

Packet Pg. 119



9.A.a

Packet Pg. 120



9.A.a

Packet Pg. 121



9.A.a

Packet Pg. 122



9.A.a

Packet Pg. 123



9.A.a

Packet Pg. 124



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8917  

Updated: 6/15/2021 3:17 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: June 15, 2021 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

FROM: Mercedes Miller, Interim City Manager 

 

RE:  The Ferguson Group - Federal Lobbying Services 

 

 

PURPOSE:  Federal Advocacy Update 2020-2021 by The Ferguson Group (TFG) and 

consideration of the renewal of a federal lobbying services agreement between the City of 

College Park and TFG. 

 

REASON:  The current contract expired June 30, 2021. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Council approval of renewal of the contract with The Ferguson 

Group for FY 2021-22. 

 

BACKGROUND:  The Ferguson Group (TFG) acts as the Washington representative for the 

City of College Park.  TFG provides review and development of legislation having bearing on 

the City’s policies and programs.  Additionally, TFG performs other related tasks as outlined by 

the City and within the scope of the attached Professional Services Agreement. 

 

COST TO CITY:  $6,833.00/month plus expenses.  

 

BUDGETED ITEM:  Yes. Acct. # 100-1300-52-5510 (Consulting). 

 

REVENUE TO CITY:  N/A. 

 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING DATE:  June 21, 2021. 

 

CONSIDERATION BY OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES:  N/A. 

 

AFFECTED AGENCIES:  N/A. 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO EXISTING ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTION:  N/A. 

 

REQUIRED CHANGES TO WORK PROGRAMS:  N/A. 

 

9.B

Packet Pg. 125



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8917)  Meeting of June 21, 2021 

Updated: 6/15/2021 3:17 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 2 

STAFF:  City Manager’s Office. 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Federal Advocacy Update 2020-2021 (PDF) 

 The Ferguson Group Contract-Standard Agreement_FY2021-22 (DOC) 

 

Review: 

 Mercedes Miller Completed 06/14/2021 1:52 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 06/14/2021 4:31 PM 

 Jackson Myers Completed 06/15/2021 8:47 AM 

 City Attorney's Office Completed 06/15/2021 3:24 PM 

 Mercedes Miller Completed 06/15/2021 4:56 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 06/21/2021 7:30 PM 

9.B

Packet Pg. 126



 

Memo 
 

 

TO: City of College Park, Georgia – Mayor and City Council 

DATE: June 21, 2021 

Federal Advocacy and Grants Update 
 

The Ferguson Group (TFG) works aggressively to assist the City of College Park in achieving its Federal goals 
and objectives and appreciates the opportunity to continue our work on the City’s behalf. Over the past year, 
we provided information and strategic counsel on various legislative and regulatory initiatives, assisted the 
City in applying for competitive grant opportunities, and helped navigate the renewed effort in Congress to 
earmark local projects through the annual spending bills and the transportation authorization bill. 

Transportation and Infrastructure 

TFG works with local staff to ensure that the City’s transportation priorities are both funded and on track for 
successful completion.  

The transportation reauthorization bill, or the FAST Act, expires September 30, 2021. The House 
Transportation and Infrastructure Committee accepted “Member Designated Projects” for inclusion in the 
transportation authorization bill. TFG staff worked with local staff to submit a project funding request for the 
Global Gateway Connector bridge project, and $3,542,355 was included in the bill that passed in committee 
on June 9, 2021. The Senate committee with jurisdiction over the authorization did not included local projects. 
However, there are many programs included in the bill that will benefit communities like College Park. TFG 
outlined those programs in a Special Report for the City. We will continue to advocate for that project to be 
included in the final version of the bill.  

Law Enforcement and Public Safety 

TFG continues to seek Federal resources to support the City’s police and fire departments, including the Local 
Law Enforcement Block Grant, the Community Oriented Policing Services (COPS) program, the Byrne/Justice 
Assistance Grants (JAG) program, and FEMA programs to support personnel, fire prevention activities, and 
pre-disaster mitigation. We also continue to advocate for the Urban Area Security Initiative (UASI) and the 
flexible use of funds to assist areas of need in the metro Atlanta region and the City.  

The FY2020 spending bill finalized by Congress in December 2020, included funds for local law enforcement 
assistance grant programs, including: 

• $484 million for Byrne Justice Assistance Grants;  
• $386 million for grants within the COPS Office; and 
• $346 million for juvenile justice grants and related programs. 

9.B.a

Packet Pg. 127



    
 

Federal Advocacy and Grants Update 2 

Over the last year, we have kept the City abreast of available resources to support public safety efforts in 
response to the COVID-19 pandemic, including the Bureau of Justice Assistance (BJA) “Coronavirus Emergency 
Supplemental Funding Program.” We also continue to monitor actions in Congress on police reform. Together 
with the City, TFG will work to increase Federal investment in the City to maintain a safe environment and 
quality of life for the City’s residents and visitors, and we will engage in advocacy efforts that support policies 
that enhance practices of law enforcement and emergency services through community policing, building 
sustainable infrastructure, and use of technology, staffing, and training. 

Energy and Environment 

TFG monitors and reports on funding opportunities for the City’s energy and environment projects through 
the Georgia Environmental Finance Authority (GEFA) and the Federal government. However, over the past 
year there have not been relevant opportunities to address local project needs.  

TFG also reports on Federal legislative and regulatory action that could impact local energy and environment 
projects and policies.  

Community and Economic Development 

To support the City’s community and economic development efforts, TFG continues to advocate for Federal 
resources and policies that support programs at the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
(HUD), Economic Development Administration (EDA), Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), Institute of 
Museums and Library Services (IMLS), National Endowment for the Arts (NEA), and the U.S. Department of 
Agriculture. We also inform the City of opportunities in the State of Georgia and with private foundations. 

To support the City’s economic response to the COVID-19 pandemic, we actively advocated for programs 
supported in the $900 billion COVID relief package and the $1.4 trillion FY2021 Appropriations package 
finalized by Congress in December 2020. Key development programs funded, include: 

• $3.5 million for HUD’s Community Development Block Grants 
• $3 billion for Homeless Assistance Grants 
• $119.5 million for EDA’s Public Works program 
• $91 million for Brownfields cleanups 

Further, TFG provided support to the City and engaged the Congressional delegation on brownfields grant 
submissions. The City was awarded grants to support revitalization and economic transformation, including: 

• $395,000 for Cleanup (Main Street Assemblage)  
• $300,000 for Assessment (Community-wide)  
• $800,000 for Business and Industrial Development Authority – Multipurpose (Community-wide)  

Additionally, TFG understands the importance to the City of small business, tourism, and hospitality in the 
Atlanta region. Our efforts include working to identify flexible funding and specific set-asides to support small 
businesses impacted by the COVD-19 pandemic and engage with the U.S. Conference of Mayors and other 
stakeholders in the tourism industry to stay abreast of key Federal issues that may affect the City’s ability to 
do business both internationally and domestically.  

TFG continues to monitor and report on the Emergency Rental Assistance Program, which has received 
Federal funding in two relief bills (ERA1 and ERA2). ERA1 provides up to $25 billion under the Consolidated 

9.B.a

Packet Pg. 128



    
 

Federal Advocacy and Grants Update 3 

Appropriations Act, 2021, which was enacted on December 27, 2020, and ERA2 provides up to $21.55 billion 
under the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021, which was enacted on March 11, 2021. The funds are provided 
directly to States and local governments with a population of 200,000 or more. Grantees use the funds to 
provide assistance to eligible households through existing or newly created rental assistance programs. 
College Park is not eligible for a direct allocation but can work through the State of Georgia to access these 
funds for City residents. The Department of Treasury issued guidance on the use of funds and updates 
Frequently Asked Questions, which we shared with the City. 

Other Priorities 

TFG has been actively engaged in the Federal response to the COVID-19 pandemic. In addition to detailed 
summaries of coronavirus relief bills, College Park leaders and staff receive a weekly TFG Coronavirus Update 
that provide details on Federal funding opportunities and policies stemming from Federal action related to the 
coronavirus.  

TFG worked closely with national organizations like the National League of Cities and U.S. Conference of 
Mayors to ensure direct funding to all units of local government in the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021. 
College Park is considered a non-entitlement unit of local government (NEU) and will therefore receive its 
allocation through the State. We have worked with local staff to ensure the City is prepared to receive its 
allocation and have discussed the various options for spending those funds on local priorities. Based on 
Treasury guidance released March 8th, the City will receive $4.78M in relief funds. College Park should receive 
its first tranche of $2.39 million from the State of Georgia no later than Saturday, July 3 (based on the State of 
Georgia’s “Invoice Date” of May 28). 

TFG provides the City with weekly updates on Congressional and Federal action that may be of local interest. 
We also provide a weekly update of relevant grant solicitations. City officials get real-time updates on relevant 
issues, and we stand ready to assist you with any issues or opportunities that may arise.  

Thank you for the opportunity to continue this partnership between TFG and College Park.  

 

 

9.B.a

Packet Pg. 129



 

 1 of 11 

STATE OF GEORGIA 

COUNTY OF FULTON 
 

 AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL LOBBYING SERVICES WITH THE FERGUSON 

GROUP. 
 

This Agreement made and entered into this ____ day of _______2021, between the 

City of College Park, Georgia (hereinafter "the City") and The Ferguson Group, LLC, 

(hereinafter “The Washington Representative” or “the Contractor”), witnesseth: 

WHEREAS, the City desires to retain Contractor to provide lobbying services on 

behalf of the City described below for the term specified herein; 

NOW THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES:  The Contractor shall provide the services as 

detailed in the Scope of Services attached hereto and incorporated herein as 

Exhibit A. 

2. COSTS:  The City shall pay the Contractor $82,000.00 lump sum for the 

provision of said services, paid in advance monthly installments of $6,833.00.  

In addition to the cost of services, the City shall reimburse the Contractor for 

travel expenses pursuant to Paragraph B of the Cost of Services, travel and 

incidental expenses for attendance of conferences outside of Washington D.C. 

as requested or approved by the City Manager, all incidental expenses by 

Contractor in performances of services under this Agreement, cost of long-

distance telephone calls and costs of document production.  The City shall be 

responsible for said reimbursements not to exceed $8,000.00 for the term of 

this Agreement.   

3.    TERM: This Agreement shall be for a term of 12 months commencing on July 

1, 2021 and expiring on June 30, 2022. 

4. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTING: The Contractor shall not assign 

this Agreement or any portion of this Agreement, nor shall the Contractor 

subcontract for completed or substantially completed services purchased 

hereunder without the prior express written consent of the City.  No 

assignment or subcontract by the Contractor, including any assignment or 

subcontract to which the City consents, shall in any way relieve the Contractor 

from complete and punctual performance of this Agreement, including without 

limitation all of the Contractor’s obligations under any provisions of this 

Agreement.  

5. CONTRACTOR’S AFFIDAVITS: The Contractor shall issue a “Standard 

Contractor’s Affidavit Interim Waiver and Release Upon Payment” and a 

9.B.b

Packet Pg. 130



 

 2 of 11 

“Standard Contractor’s Affidavit Unconditional Waiver and Release upon Final 

Payment” provided by the City before receiving any interim or final payment for 

any services performed. 

6. THE CITY’S RESPONSIBILITIES: 

(a) The City, through the City Manager, will advise the Contractor of the 

name or names of persons other than the City Manager authorized to 

request service by the Contractor and the person or persons to be 

kept advised by the Contractor.  

(b) The City will supply the Contractor with a summary of all federal 

issues in which the City has interests and advise the Contractor of any 

new developments, together with the pertinent details as to the 

substance of such developments. 

(c) The City will supply the Contractor with copies of budgets, planning 

documents, and regular reports of the City Manager, the City's 

agenda and proceedings, newspapers and other materials to assist 

the Contractor in keeping current on the City's policies and programs. 

7. INDEMNIFICATION:  The Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold the 

City harmless from all claims, actions, demands, loss, and causes of action, 

arising from injury, including death, to any person, or damage to any property, 

when such injury or damage results in whole or in part from the acts or 

omissions of the Contractor, the Contractor's employees or agents or the 

Contractor’s subcontractors, save and except damage caused by the sole 

negligence of the City. The Contractor, and any subcontractor used by the 

Contractor in connection with this Agreement, shall carry Workers’ 

Compensation and Employees' Liability Insurance to cover the Contractor's 

and any subcontractor's legal liability on account of accidents to their 

employees. The Contractor and any subcontractor shall carry adequate 

Comprehensive General Liability and adequate Comprehensive Automobile 

Liability Insurance covering accidents to their employees.  The Contractor and 

any subcontractor shall carry adequate Comprehensive General Liability and 

adequate Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance covering legal liability 

of the Contractor and any subcontractor on account of accidents arising out of 

the operations of the Contractor or any subcontractor and resulting in bodily 

injury, including death, being sustained by any person or persons, or in any 

damage to property.  At the City's request, the Contractor shall furnish to the 

City certificates from the Contractor's insurers showing such coverage in effect 

and agreeing to give the City ten (10) days' prior written notice of cancellation 

of the coverage.  

9.B.b

Packet Pg. 131



 

  

 3-1.3 

 

8. RISK MANAGEMENT REQUIREMENTS: The Contractor shall abide by the 

City’s applicable Risk Management Requirements attached to this Agreement 

as Exhibit B and hereby incorporated into this Agreement.   

 

9. TERMINATION: Either Party may at any time by thirty (30) days’ written notice 

terminate all or any part of this Agreement.  If this Agreement is terminated, in 

whole or in part pursuant to this provision, the Contractor shall be paid an 

amount, to be mutually agreed upon, which shall be adequate to cover the 

actual reasonable cost paid by the Contractor for the actual labor reasonably 

used by the Contractor to perform the work under this Agreement to the 

effective date of termination.  In no event shall the total amount paid under the 

provisions of this paragraph exceed the prices set forth in this Agreement for 

the work terminated. 

10. DISPUTES:  Pending resolution of any dispute hereunder, the Contractor shall 

proceed diligently with the performance of work in accordance with the City's 

direction.  

11. NOTICES:  All notices required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be 

deemed to be properly given if delivered in writing personally or sent by United 

States certified or registered mail addressed to the Contractor or the City, as 

the case may be, with postage thereon fully prepaid. The effective time of 

notice shall be at the time of mailing.  

If to the City:     With copies to: 
 
City Manager      City Clerk 
College Park City Hall    College Park City Hall 
3667 Main Street     3667 Main Street  
College Park, Georgia 30337   College Park, Georgia 30337 
 

If to the Contractor: 

 
The Ferguson Group, LLC 
Attn: __________________ 
______________________ 
______________________ 
______________________ 

 

 12. RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES 

 (a) Independent Contractors. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed 

to create any relationship other than that of independent contractor 

between College Park and Contractor. This Agreement shall not 

9.B.b

Packet Pg. 132



 

  

 3-1.4 

 

constitute, create, or otherwise imply an employment, joint venture, 

partnership, agency or similar arrangement between College Park and 

Contractor. It is expressly agreed that Contractor is acting as an 

independent contractor and not as an employee in providing the 

Services under this Agreement.  

 

 (b) Employee Benefits. Contractor shall not be eligible for any benefit 

available to employees of College Park including, but not limited to, 

workers’ compensation insurance, state disability insurance, 

unemployment insurance, group health and life insurance, vacation 

pay, sick pay, severance pay, bonus plans, pension plans, or savings 

plans. 

  

            (c)      Payroll Taxes. No income, social security, state disability or other 

federal or state payroll tax will be deducted from payments made to 

Contractor under this Agreement. Contractor shall be responsible for 

all FICA, federal and state withholding taxes and workers’ 

compensation coverage for any individuals assigned to perform the 

Services for College Park. 

     13.      STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE AND COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE    

                LAWS 

 

Contractor warrants and represents that it possesses the special skill and 

professional competence, expertise and experience to undertake the obligations 

imposed by this Agreement. Contractor agrees to perform in a diligent, efficient, 

competent and skillful manner commensurate with the highest standards of the 

profession, and to otherwise perform as is necessary to undertake the Services 

required by this Agreement. 

 

Contractor warrants and represents that it will, at all times, observe and comply 

with all federal, state, local and municipal ordinances, rules, regulations, relating 

to the provision of the Services to be provided by Contractor hereunder or which 

in any manner affect this Agreement. 

 

     14.      CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

 Contractor warrants and represents that: 

 

(a) the Services to be performed hereunder will not create an actual or apparent 

conflict of interest with any other work it is currently performing; and 

 

9.B.b

Packet Pg. 133



 

  

 3-1.5 

 

(b) Contractor is not presently subject to any agreement with a competitor or 

with any other party that will prevent Contractor from performing in full accord 

with this Agreement; and 

 

            (c)      Contractor is not subject to any statute, regulation, ordinance or rule that will 

limit its ability to perform its obligations under this Agreement. The parties 

agree that Contractor shall be free to accept other work during the term 

hereof; provided, however, that such other work shall not interfere with the 

provision of Services hereunder. 

          14.         GOVERNING LAW AND CONSENT TO JURISDICTION 

             This Agreement is made and entered into in the State of Georgia and this 

Agreement and the rights and obligations of the parties hereto shall be 

governed by and construed according to the laws of the State of Georgia 

without giving effect to the principles of conflicts of laws. The jurisdiction for 

resolution of any disputes arising from this Agreement shall be in the State 

Courts of Fulton County, Georgia. 

 15.      WAIVER OF BREACH 

             The waiver by either party of a breach or violation of any provision of this 

Agreement shall not operate or be construed to constitute a waiver of any 

subsequent breach or violation of the same or other provision thereof. 

 16.      SEVERABILITY 

             If any provision of this Agreement is held to be unenforceable for any 

reason, the unenforceability thereof shall not affect the remainder of the 

Agreement, which shall remain in full force and effect, and enforceable in 

accordance with its terms. 

 17.      ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

             This Agreement which includes the exhibits hereto contains the entire 

agreement and understanding of the parties with respect to the subject 

matter hereof, and supersedes and replaces any and all prior discussions, 

representations and understandings, whether oral or written.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF this          day of                                  , 20__, said parties 

have hereunto set their seals the day and year above first written. 

  

 

 

 

9.B.b

Packet Pg. 134



 

  

 3-1.6 

 

Executed on behalf of: 

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK, GEORGIA 

BY:  

 
Bianca Motley Broom, Mayor 

  

                            

                                                                                                       [Corporate Seal] 

ATTEST:  

DATE:  

 

THE FERGUSON GROUP, LLC 

 

BY:  

 W. Roger Gwinn 

TITLE: Chief Executive Officer 
 

        [Corporate Seal] 

ATTEST:  

 
Corporate Secretary 

DATE:  

 

9.B.b

Packet Pg. 135



 

 

 3-1.7 

 

EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 

    A. The Ferguson Group will act as the Washington Representative to College Park, 
Georgia in Washington, DC. 

 
    B. The Washington Representative will confer with the City Manager, and such other 

personnel as the City Manager may designate, at the times and places mutually 
agreed to by the City Manager and the Washington Representative.  This will be 
done on all organizational planning and program activity that has a bearing on the 
ability of the City to make the best use of federal programs and develop strategies 
consistent with federal agendas for accomplishing the City’s goals and objectives. 

 
    C. The Washington Representative will review federal executive proposals, legislation 

under consideration, proposed and adopted administrative rules and regulation and 
other Washington developments for the purpose of advising the City, on the 
representative's own initiative, of those items that may have a bearing on the City’s 
policies or programs. And, the Washington Representative will notify the City in 
advance of opportunities for federal funding prior to formal publication and obtain 
applications upon request. 

 
    D. The Washington Representative will secure and furnish such detailed information as 

may be available on federal issues in which the City indicates an interest. 
 
    E. The Washington Representative will review and comment on proposals of the City, 

which are being prepared for submission to federal agencies, when requested to do 
so by the City Manager. 

 
    F. The Washington Representative will maintain liaison with the City's congressional 

delegation and assist the delegation in any matter that is in the best interest of the 
City and in the same manner as any other member of the City's staff might render 
assistance. 

 
G. The Washington Representative will counsel with the City and prepare briefing 

materials and/or conduct briefings for City representatives who are preparing to 
meet with Members of Congress, testify before congressional committees and 
administrative agencies, and conduct other City business, or attend national 
conferences. 
 

H.    The Washington Representative will arrange appointments (and accommodations 
when requested) for City officials to facilitate the efficient and effective performance 
of City business while in Washington, DC.  

 
    I. The Washington Representative will contact federal agencies on the City's behalf 

when applications are under consideration by such agencies and otherwise take 
whatever steps necessary to obtain the most favorable consideration of such 
applications. 

9.B.b

Packet Pg. 136



 

 

 3-1.8 

 

 
    J. The Washington Representative will submit monthly reports providing the latest 

information on issues of interest to the City; and provide an annual report giving an 
overview of The Ferguson Group's work over the past year and a forecast of issues 
to be faced in the upcoming year. 

 
    K. In fulfilling the responsibilities under this Agreement, the Washington 

Representative will act in the name of the City and with the title Washington 
Representative to the City of College Park, Georgia. 

 
    L. The Washington Representative shall not perform those tasks assigned by the City 

to Lockridge Grindal Nauen P.L.L.P, but may assist in those tasks as directed to by 
the City Manager.   

 
M.  It is understood and agreed to by The Ferguson Group and the City that the non-

public information that the City furnishes to The Ferguson Group is confidential in 
nature.  The Ferguson Group shall not divulge any confidential information obtained 
from the City to outside parties during or after the life of this agreement, without first 
obtaining the express written consent of the City.  Additionally, The Ferguson Group 
shall maintain reasonable safeguards to protect the confidentiality of such 
information. 

 

EXCLUSIONS 

 

The Washington Representative assigned to the City: 
 
    A. will not represent the City before formal congressional committee hearings or in any 

judicial or quasi-judicial hearing conducted by boards or examiners of federal 
agencies or commissions; 

 
B. will not perform any legal, engineering, accounting or other similar professional 

services. 

 

9.B.b

Packet Pg. 137



 

 

 3-1.9 

 

EXHIBIT B 

RISK MANAGEMENT REQUIREMENTS 

 

The Contractor will provide minimum insurance coverage and limits as per the following: The 

Contractor will file with the City Certificates of Insurance, certifying the required insurance 

coverage and stating that each policy has been endorsed to provide thirty (30) day notice to the 

City in the event that coverage is cancelled, non-renewed, or the types of coverage or limits of 

liability are reduced below those required.  All bonds and insurance coverage must be placed 

with an insurance company approved by the City’s Management, admitted to do business in the 

State of Georgia, and rated Secure (“B+” or better) by A.M. Best Company in the latest edition 

of Property and Casualty Ratings, or rated by Standard & Poors Insurance Ratings, latest 

edition as Secure (“BBB” or better).  Worker’s Compensation self-insurance for individual 

Contractors must be approved by the Worker’s Compensation Board, State of Georgia and/or 

Self-Insurance pools approved by the Insurance Commissioner, State of Georgia. 

CONTRACTS FOR UP TO $50,000  CONTRACTS FOR MORE THAN $50,000 

Worker’s Compensation – Worker’s 

Compensation coverage on a statutory 

basis for the State of Georgia with an 

Employer’s Liability limit of $100,000 each 

Accident, Disease $100,000 each 

employee, $500,000 Disease policy limit. 

 
Worker’s Compensation – Worker’s 

Compensation coverage on a statutory basis 

for the State of Georgia with an Employer’s 

Liability limit of $1,000,000.  The increased 

Employer’s Liability limit may be provided by 

an Umbrella or Excess Liability policy. 

Automobile Liability – Automobile liability 

coverage for owned, hired and non-owned 

vehicles in the amount of $500,000 

combined single limit. 

 
Automobile Liability - Automobile liability 

coverage for owned, hired and non-owned 

vehicles in the amount of $1,000,000 

combined single limit. 

Commercial General Liability – Coverage 

to be provided on “occurrence” not “claims 

made” basis.  The coverage is to include 

Contractual liability, Per Project Limit of 

Liability, losses caused by Explosion, 

Collapse and Underground (“xcu”) perils, the 

“City of College Park, Georgia” is to be 

added as an Additional Insured and 

Products and Completed Operations 

coverage is to be maintained for three (3) 

years following completion of work. 

 
Commercial General Liability – Coverage 

to be provided on “occurrence” not “claims 

made” basis.  The coverage is to include 

Contractual liability, Per Project Limit of 

Liability, losses caused by Explosion,  

Collapse and Underground (“xcu”) perils, the 

 “City of College Park, Georgia” is to be 

added as an Additional Insured and Products 

and Completed Operations coverage is to be 

maintained for three (3) years following 

completion of work. 

 

 

 

9.B.b

Packet Pg. 138



 

 

 3-1.10 

 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT REQUIREMENTS (Cont’d) 

 

CONTRACTS FOR UP TO $50,000  CONTRACTS FOR MORE THAN $50,000 

   

LIMITS OF LIABILITY: 

   

$1,000,000  Per Occurrence 

   

$1,000,000  Personal and Advertising 

   

$50,000  Fire Damage* 

   

$5,000  Medical Payments* 

   

$1,000,000  General Aggregate 

   

$1,000,000  Products/Completed Operations per  

Occurrence and Aggregate 

*These are automatic minimums 

   

Owner’s Protective Liability – The City’s 

Management may, in its discretion, require 

Owner’s Protective Liability in some 

situations. 

 Umbrella and/or Excess Liability – The 

umbrella or Excess Liability Policy may be 

used to combine with underlying policies to 

obtain the limits required. The Management 

of the City may elect to require higher limits. 

   

  Owner’s Protective Liability – The City’s 

Management may, in its discretion, require 

Owner’s Protective Liability in some 

situations. 

 

 

 

END OF SECTION 

9.B.b

Packet Pg. 139



 

 

 3-1.11 

 

Affidavit Verifying Status 
 For City Public Benefit Application 

 
By executing this affidavit under oath, as an applicant for a(n) ____________________ 
[type of public benefit], as referenced in O.C.G.A. § 50-36-1, from 
_________________________ [name of government entity], the undersigned applicant 
verifies one of the following with respect to my application for a public benefit: 
 
1) _________ I am a United States citizen. 
 
2) _________ I am a legal permanent resident of the United States. 
 
3) _________ I am a qualified alien or non-immigrant under the Federal Immigration and 

Nationality Act with an alien number issued by the Department of Homeland 
Security or other federal immigration agency.  

 My alien number issued by the Department of Homeland Security or other federal 
immigration agency is:____________________.  

 
The undersigned applicant also hereby verifies that he or she is 18 years of age or older 
and has provided at least one secure and verifiable document, as required by O.C.G.A.  
§ 50-36-1(e)(1), with this affidavit.  
 
The secure and verifiable document provided with this affidavit can best be classified as: 
_____________________________________________________________________. 
 
In making the above representation under oath, I understand that any person who 
knowingly and willfully makes a false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement or representation in 
an affidavit shall be guilty of a violation of O.C.G.A. § 16-10-20, and face criminal penalties 
as allowed by such criminal statute.  
 
Executed in ___________________ (city), __________________(state). 

 
____________________________________ 
Signature of Applicant  

 
____________________________________ 
Printed Name of Applicant  

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN 
BEFORE ME ON THIS THE 
___ DAY OF ___________, 20____ 
 
_________________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC  
My Commission Expires: 

 

9.B.b

Packet Pg. 140



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8913  

Updated: 6/11/2021 3:28 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: June 11, 2021 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Mercedes Miller, Interim City Manager 

 

FROM: Hugh Richardson, Power Director 

 

RE:  Service Agreement  with Interactive Utility Communications (IUC) for Call 

Center Services 

 

 

PURPOSE:  To enter into an agreement with IUC to provide on-call assistance for power 

outages. 

 

REASON:  During power outages, with many customers reporting,  some do not have their calls 

answered.  A call center can provide on-call assistance for the power department's after hours 

incoming calls, removing the responsibility from the Police Department. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Review and approve the IUC service agreement. 

 

BACKGROUND: Currently, the Police Department receives calls to the Power Department 

from 5:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. weekdays, weekends, and holidays.  The PD dispatcher will then 

contact the standby person to respond. 

 

YEARS OF SERVICE:  N/A. 

 

COST TO CITY:  $19,600 for the 1st year for 400 minutes per month.  Over 400 minutes will 

be $1.50 per minute.   

 

Budget = $31,300.00, which will cover an additional 650 minutes per month average. 

 

BUDGETED ITEM:   Yes, Contractual Services 510-4600-52-6170 

 

REVENUE TO CITY:  N/A 

 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING DATE:  June 21, 2021 

 

CONSIDERATION BY OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES:  N/A 

9.C

Packet Pg. 141



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8913)  Meeting of June 21, 2021 

Updated: 6/11/2021 3:28 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 2 

 

AFFECTED AGENCIES:  N/A 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO EXISTING ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTION:  N/A 

 

REQUIRED CHANGES TO WORK PROGRAMS:  N/A 

 

STAFF:  Power Department 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 IUC Service Agreement (PDF) 

 

Review: 

 Hugh Richardson Completed 06/09/2021 3:32 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 06/11/2021 3:51 PM 

 City Attorney's Office Completed 06/14/2021 3:47 PM 

 Mercedes Miller Completed 06/15/2021 4:56 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 06/21/2021 7:30 PM 

9.C

Packet Pg. 142



Confidential Page 1 5/20/2021 

 

 

 

STANDARD SERVICE AGREEMENT 
 
General Agreement for Service:  Once the project has begun, should the City of College 
Park require any changes in the services provided, we ask for no less than ten (10) working 
days with prior written notification.  All changes, which and if applicable, are subject to pricing 
revisions. 
 
In no event shall IUC, be liable for any special, indirect, or consequential damages including 
specifically, but without limitation, loss of anticipated profits, loss of use, loss of revenue, cost 
of replacement services, claims of customers or any third party, or other damages resulting 
from the services provided by IUC. 
 
Services:  IUC agrees to provide call handling services and City of College Park agrees to pay 
the rates as listed on the attached Exhibit A, which is part of this agreement.  Services will 
include handling calls, dispatching appropriate crews for appropriate services, generating 
service requests from customers, and providing daily and monthly call statistic reports 
 
Payment:  Invoices are produced on the first day of each month of service.  Payment is due 
within thirty (30) days from date of invoice.  Unpaid invoices accrue a finance charge of one- 
and one-half percent (1 ½%) per month, after due date, unless IUC receives in writing, prior to 
due date, acknowledgement of disputed items from an invoice. 
 
Billing Discrepancies:  Should any part of the invoice be disputed; the balance of the invoice 
is due on time. 
 
Deposits:  In addition to the initial (non-refundable) set-up fee, IUC may require a deposit.  
Upon termination of this agreement of services provided, IUC shall apply al or any portion of 
the deposit to unpaid balances, and promptly forward the remaining portion of the deposit to 
customer. 
 
Jurisdiction:  City of College Park hereby acknowledges that this agreement is entered into 
upon acceptance by IUC in College Park, Georgia. City of College Park hereby consents to 
jurisdiction in Georgia and agrees that Georgia shall govern the interpretation of this 
agreement, due to corporate location in Marietta, Georgia. 

  

9.C.a

Packet Pg. 143



Confidential Page 2 5/20/2021 

 

STANDARD SERVICE AGREEMENT 
 
Cancellation Policy:  In the event that either City of College Park or IUC requests to cancel 
this agreement, we require a ninety (90) day written notification of cancellation after the initial 
term of 12 months. City of College Park may terminate this Agreement prior to the expiration of 
its original term.  In the event that it shall be reasonably dissatisfied with the performance of 
Services by IUC, City of College Park shall notify IUC of its dissatisfaction and shall have 
afforded IUC ninety (90) days to remedy City of College Park' complaint.  If City of College 
Park terminates the Program within the initial twelve (12) months a ninety (90) day notice must 
be given to IUC.  Services and payment will cease at that time. 
 
 
Notice:   All notice required shall be effective if delivered to the parties at the respective 
addresses or phone numbers shown below.  The parties agree to promptly notify each other of 
any changes in their business address or phone number. 
 
Confidentiality:  IUC agrees that all information or data acquired in the performance of this 
agreement will be kept confidential and such information will not be disclosed to any third party 
except as required by law. 
 
Pricing:  Prices quoted on this agreement have been determined according to the needs of 
the specific program and will be honored for 90 days.  Thereafter, a new evaluation will be 
prepared. 
 
RE: Proposal Date: 05/20/2021 
 
Accepted By:      Accepted By: 
 
_____________________________        
Signature/Title          Signature/Title 
 
       Greg L. Steele 
City of College Park     Interactive Utility Communications 
1886 W. Harvard AVE.    531 Roselane St NW 
College Park, GA 330337    Suite 700 
(404)669-3772                                          Marietta, Georgia 30060   
       (844)679-3714 
       (770)639-3359      
        
____________________    ____________________ 
Date       Date 
 
 

9.C.a

Packet Pg. 144



Confidential Page 3 5/20/2021 

 

Exhibit A 
Scope of Work 

 
College Park, in its ordinary course of business, provides call handling support functions for 
customers of City of College Park.  IUC shall answer telephone calls placed to City of College 
Park during the service coverage times noted below or as directed by City of College Park. Calls 
will be routed to IUC, via a local number, provided by IUC. Upon answering a call, a qualified IUC 
employee shall gather information from the caller and answer questions and direct the customer 
as outlined in the College Park Customer Support manual. The IUC employee will complete all 
relevant fields for the appropriate utility service request using the information supplied by the 
caller. Upon completing the service request, IUC Dispatch will follow the dispatch rules 
established and either process as a non-emergency to be inspected during business hours, or 
process as an emergency and call the crew member and assign the request to him or her.  
  
IUC will provide a daily and monthly service history reports.  Custom reports may be developed 
for an additional fee. 
 
IUC service coverage:  Monday through Friday (5 pm to 8 am) and Weekends (Friday 5 pm to 
Monday 8 am) plus 10 Holidays observed by the City of College Park. 
  

Exhibit B 
Monthly Fee Structure 

 
Our costs include a monthly fixed base fee determined by the utility’s primary active meter count 
and the hours subscribed to within this contract. In addition inbound and outbound call handling 
time is paid in advance through purchasing a block of time determined by the average call 
volume based on historical data. The City of College Park may increase their rate plan at any 
time during this agreement. The monthly rate will be invoiced at the beginning of each month of 
service. Call volumes that exceed the monthly plan (overage) are billed $1.50 per minute in the 
next monthly invoice. 
 
Call Definitions  

 Live Calls – Inbound/Outbound calls answered by customer service representatives 

 Data Calls – Inbound/Outbound calls/texts, emails answered by automation 
 

A call is equal to a minute when the length of that call is less than a minute.  The amount of the 
billable services per month is determined using the Monthly Contact Report. IUC will bill any 
monthly live call minutes and data calls that exceeds your monthly plan a fee of $1.50 per minute 
or per data transaction. 
   

Monthly Service Charges 

 Base Rate  Monthly Plan 
Rate for 

Plan 
Monthly 

5,001 – 
10,000 
meters 

$750 

Level 1 – 400 live call 
minutes and/or data 

calls. Over-rate=$1.50 
each minute over 400 

$500 $1,250 

  VPN to HiperWeb  $50 

 

9.C.a

Packet Pg. 145



Confidential Page 4 5/20/2021 

 

 
 

 
 

Exhibit C 
Administration/Implementation 

 
 
 

Programming Set-Up Fee/Training                 $4,000 
 

 Establishing connectivity to server and communication lines 

 Electric, Water & Sewer, and Public Works service set-up 

 Developing tasks for each service department 

 Development of call flows for each service and related task 

 Creating IUC Customer Self Help aids and College Park Task Alerts  

 Emergency and non-emergency Task prioritization 

 Service supervisor and on-call crew set-up and administration 
 
The City of College Park will provide IUC a flat file of customer addresses as needed to be loaded 
in IUC’s database for address search and confirmation of service.  
 
Hours and Types Services Selected 
Contracted Call Center Service Hours will be Monday through Thursday 5pm – 8:00am; Friday 5 
pm – Monday 8:00am 
Holidays – 10 recognized federal Holidays daytime service are included. 
Emergency daytime services are available with 4 hours advance notice - $25 per hour, per 
dispatchers + minutes 
   
 
AFTER-HOURS Base Program Set – Up      $4,000   
        

 

9.C.a

Packet Pg. 146



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8879  

Updated: 6/16/2021 1:54 PM by Mercedes Miller  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: June 16, 2021 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Mercedes Miller, Interim City Manager 

 

FROM: Dwight L. Baker, Director of Human Resources & Risk Management 

 

RE:  Forensic Audit Proposal 

 

 

PURPOSE:  Request for Mayor and Council to approve the proposed agreement 

between the City of College Park and BDO USA for a forensic audit of the City’s Payroll 
Processes. 
 

REASON:  A Forensic Audit of the City’s payroll processes was requested for review 
beginning in the fiscal year ending September 30, 2017 through the fiscal year ending 
March 31, 2021.  Beyond this period, the City is also requesting a review of existing 
controls and compliance with these controls, identifying areas of risk of fraud and 
misconduct, and recommending improvements and best practices.  The engagement 
should be planned and carried out with sensitivity towards not overburdening City staff. 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that Council approve of the proposed 
agreement with BDO USA. 
 

BACKGROUND:  The City of College Park Office of Human Resources currently 

provides payroll services to the City.   The City’s Purchasing Department received four 
bid packets in response to the RFP.  The firms were BDO USA, Jaramillo Accounting 
Group, Mauldin and Jenkins, and Cohn Reznick.  Virtual product demonstrations were 
conducted via Zoom by BDO USA and Jaramillo Accounting Group on Thursday, May 27, 
2021 with Dr. Dwight Baker, Althea Bradley, and Willis Moody. 
 
After both presentations, the committee discussed both products and compatibility and 
decided which firm to use for the forensic audit services.  The committee agreed to 
move forward with BDO USA due to qualifications and experience, methodology & 
approach (Work Management Plan), proposed price, and local Metro Atlanta presence.  
Jaramillo Accounting Group is based in New Mexico. 
 

9.D

Packet Pg. 147



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8879)  Meeting of June 21, 2021 

Updated: 6/16/2021 1:54 PM by Mercedes Miller  Page 2 

YEARS OF SERVICE:  Not Applicable 

 

COST TO CITY:  The total not-to-exceed cost to the City for the proposed services will 
not exceed $ 45,000.00. 
 

BUDGETED ITEM:  This is not a budgeted item.  The cost to the City will be taken 

from the General Funds Reserve account. 
 

REVENUE TO CITY:  Not Applicable 
 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING DATE:  June 21, 2021 
 

CONSIDERATION BY OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES:  Not Applicable 

 

AFFECTED AGENCIES:  Not Applicable 
 

RELATIONSHIP TO EXISTING ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTION:  Not Applicable 
 

REQUIRED CHANGES TO WORK PROGRAMS:  Not Applicable 
 

STAFF:  Office of Human Resources 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Tabulation Sheet - RFP - FORENSIC AUDIT SERVICES - 051121 (PDF) 

 6.16.21 FD Sub. City of College Park - Forensic Audit Agreement - (PDF) 

 

Review: 

 Dwight L. Baker Completed 06/15/2021 4:08 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 06/15/2021 4:11 PM 

 Finance Pending  

 City Attorney's Office Completed 06/16/2021 2:48 PM 

 Mercedes Miller Completed 06/16/2021 3:04 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 06/21/2021 7:30 PM 

9.D

Packet Pg. 148



City of College Park 
PO Box 87137 – College Park, GA  30337 

(404)-767-1537 

Tabulation Matrix 

RFP - FORENSIC AUDIT SERVICES - 051121 

See the Bid Tabulation Sheet for results of opening. The original proposals are available for review 
in the Purchasing Department, schedule a time in advance. 

Minority Status Legend: 

(1) African American Business Enterprise (AABE) (2) Hispanic Business Enterprise (HBE)
(3) Female Business Enterprise (FBE) (4) Asian Business Enterprise (ABE)
(5) Native American Business Enterprise (NABE)

City of College Park 
Willis Moody 
Purchasing/Fleet Administrator 
College Park, GA  30337 

Company Name Bid Amount 
Minority 

Y/N 
Class 

Is company 
located 

within the 
City Limits 

Previous 
Work 
w/CP? 

1 BDO USA $45,000.00 N N N 

2 Jaramillo Accounting Group $75,000.00 Y 
(FBE) N N 

3 Mauldin and Jenkins $89,740.00 N N Y 

4 CohnReznick $120,5000.00 N N N 

5 

9.D.a

Packet Pg. 149



STATE OF GEORGIA 
COUNTY OF FULTON 
 

AGREEMENT FOR PURCHASE OF SERVICES 
 
 This Agreement made and entered into this ____ day of ___________, 20____, for 
forensic audit services (“Agreement”), between the CITY OF COLLEGE PARK, GEORGIA, a 
municipal corporation duly incorporated and existing under the laws of the State of Georgia 
(hereinafter "the City") and BDO USA, LLP, a limited liability partnership registered and existing 
under the laws of the State of Delaware, and its wholly-owned subsidiaries (hereinafter “the 
Contractor” or “BDO”), collectively the City and BDO may be referred to as the “Parties” or each 
individually as  a “Party”.   
 

WITNESSETH: 
 
 WHEREAS, the City is contracting with the Contractor for the purchase services as 
described below for the term specified herein; 

  NOW THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 
 

1. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES: The Contractor shall provide the good and services to 
the City, as described in the Description of Services attached hereto as Exhibit A, (the 
“Services”), and the total estimated costs are to be between $31,000 and $45,000, but 
no more than $45,000.  

2. COSTS: The City shall pay and the Contractor shall receive the prices stipulated in the 
order form(s), hereto attached as full compensation for all items furnished by the 
Contractor relative to the Services. The City shall pay the Contractor net 30 days after 
receipt of an invoice. 

3. TERM OF AGREEMENT: The term of this Agreement shall commence on the effective 
date of this Agreement as signed by the parties and the Agreement shall remain in effect 
for 12 months. In accordance with O.C.G.A. § 36-60-13, this Agreement shall terminate 
absolutely and without further obligation on the part of the City at the end of the 12 
months and thereafter each succeeding, if any, 12-month period. However, absent a 
termination or notice as set forth below, this Agreement shall be automatically renewed 
on an annual basis for a twelve-month term, upon the same terms and conditions as 
provided for in this Agreement, but only up to three renewal 12-month periods (“Renewal 
Term”). After three 12-month renewal terms, should there be renewal terms, this 
Agreement will terminate completely without any action by either party. The City may 
opt to renew this Agreement for any succeeding twelve (12) calendar month term if City 
notifies Contractor in writing no less than thirty (30) days prior to the end of the Initial 
Term.  

 

9.D.b

Packet Pg. 150



4. RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES 
 
(a) Independent Contractors. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to create 

any relationship other than that of independent contractor between College Park 
and Contractor. This Agreement shall not constitute, create, or otherwise imply 
an employment, joint venture, partnership, agency or similar arrangement 
between College Park and Contractor. It is expressly agreed that Contractor is 
acting as an independent contractor and not as an employee in providing the 
Services under this Agreement.  

 
(b) Employee Benefits. Contractor shall not be eligible for any benefit available to 

employees of College Park including, but not limited to, workers’ compensation 
insurance, state disability insurance, unemployment insurance, group health and 
life insurance, vacation pay, sick pay, severance pay, bonus plans, pension 
plans, or savings plans. 

(c)      Payroll Taxes. No income, social security, state disability or other federal or state 
payroll tax will be deducted from payments made to Company under this 
Agreement. Contractor shall be responsible for all FICA, federal and state 
withholding taxes and workers’ compensation coverage for any individuals 
assigned to perform the Services for College Park. 

5. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTING:  Neither party shall assign this Agreement 
or any portion of this Agreement, without the prior express written consent of the other 
respective party.  No assignment or subcontract by either party shall in any way relieve 
the party from complete and punctual performance of this Agreement, including without 
limitation all obligations under the WARRANTY provisions of this Agreement.  

 
6. THE CITY’S COOPERATION AND RESPONSIBILITIES: For BDO to remain 

independent, professional standards require BDO to maintain certain respective roles 
and relationships with City regarding the Services. City understands and agrees that 
BDO will not perform management functions or make management decisions on behalf 
of City. However, BDO will provide advice and recommendations to assist management 
of City in performing its functions and fulfilling its responsibilities.  In connection with 
BDO’s provision of Services, City agrees that City shall perform the following functions: 
(a) make all management decisions and perform all management functions with respect 
to the Services performed by BDO; and (b) assign an individual who possesses suitable 
skill, knowledge and experience to oversee such Services and to evaluate the adequacy 
and results of such Services. 

 
Because professional and certain regulatory standards require BDO to be independent, 
in both fact and appearance, with respect to the City in the performance of BDO’s 
Services, any discussions that the City has with personnel of BDO regarding 
employment could pose a threat to BDO’s independence. Therefore, BDO requests the 
City inform BDO prior to any such discussions so that BDO can implement appropriate 
safeguards to maintain BDO’s independence. Such assistance or cooperation by the 
City shall not be construed, and BDO agrees that it will not claim that any such 

9.D.b

Packet Pg. 151



assistance or cooperation operates to relieve the BDO from complete, proper and 
punctual performance of all the BDO’s obligations under this Agreement. 

7. WORK ON THE CITY’S DESIGNATED PREMISES:  In the event that the Contractor, 
the Contractor’s employees or agents or the Contractor’s subcontractors enter the City’s 
designated premises for any reason in connection with this Agreement, the Contractor 
and such other parties shall observe all security requirements and traffic regulations.   

8. RISK MANAGEMENT REQUIREMENTS: The Contractor shall abide by the City’s 
applicable Risk Management Requirements, attached to this Agreement as Exhibit B 
and hereby incorporated into this Agreement. The Contractor shall carry Workers’ 
Compensation and Employees’ Liability Insurance to cover the Contractor’s legal liability 
on account of accidents to their employees. The Contractor shall carry adequate 
Comprehensive General Liability covering accidents to their employees. The Contractor 
shall carry adequate Comprehensive General Liability covering legal liability of the 
Contractor and any subcontractor on account of accidents arising out of the operations 
of the Contractor and resulting in bodily injury, including death, being sustained by any 
person or persons, or in any damage to property.  At the City’s request, the Contractor 
shall furnish to the City certificates from the Contractor’s insurers showing such 
coverage in effect and agreeing to give the City thirty (30) days prior written notice of 
cancellation of the coverage.  

9. TERMINATION FOR DEFAULT: 

(a) The City may, subject to the provisions of subparagraph (c) below, by written notice 
of default to the Contractor, terminate the whole or any part of this Agreement in 
any one of the following circumstances; (i) if the Contractor fails to perform this 
Agreement within the time specified herein or any extension thereof; or (ii) if the 
Contractor fails to perform any of the other provisions of this Agreement, and does 
not cure such failure within a period of ten (10) days after receipt of notice from the 
City specifying such failure. 

(b) Except with regard to defaults of subcontractors, the Contractor shall not be liable 
for any excess costs if the failure to perform this Agreement arises out of causes 
beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the Contractor. Such 
causes may include, but are not limited to, acts of God, or of the public enemy, acts 
of the Government in either its sovereign or contractual capacity, fires, flood, 
epidemics, pandemics, quarantine restrictions, strikes, freight embargoes, and 
unusually severe weather, but in every case the failure to perform must be beyond 
the control and without the fault or negligence of the Contractor. If the failure to 
perform is caused by the default of a subcontractor, and if such default arises out 
of causes beyond the control of both the Contractor and the subcontractor, and 
without the fault or negligence of either of them, the Contractor shall not be liable 
for any excess costs for failure to perform, unless the services to be furnished by 
the subcontractor were obtainable from other sources in sufficient time to permit 
the Contractor to meet the required delivery schedule.  The term “subcontractor” 

9.D.b

Packet Pg. 152



shall mean subcontractor at any tier. 
(c) If, after notice of termination of this Agreement under the provisions of this 

paragraph, it is determined for any reason that the Contractor was not in default 
under the provisions above or that the default was excusable under the provisions 
of this paragraph, the rights and obligations of the parties shall be the same as if 
the notice of termination has been issued pursuant to Section 10 (“Termination for 
Convenience”) of this Agreement. 

(d) The rights and remedies of the City provided in this paragraph shall not be 
exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or 
under this Agreement. 

 
10. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE:  Either Party may terminate this Agreement for 

convenience at any time upon thirty (30) days prior written notice to the other Party. If 
this Agreement terminates or is terminated while one or more Services set forth in Exhibit 
A (or services not covered by Exhibit A) remain outstanding, the terms of this Agreement 
shall continue to apply to the Services and any other outstanding services, and the 
Agreement shall be deemed finally terminated only upon termination of completion of 
the Services thereunder.  Those provisions in this Services Agreement hereunder that, 
by their very nature, are intended to survive termination shall survive after the 
termination of the Services Agreement, including, but not limited to, the parties’ 
obligations related to any of the following provisions: indemnification, limitations on 
liability, confidentiality, dispute resolution, payment and reimbursement obligations, 
limitations on use or reliance, and non-solicitation.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, BDO 
may terminate this Agreement and any outstanding Services immediately if BDO 
reasonably determines that it must do so to comply with applicable professional 
standards, applicable laws or regulations (e.g., a conflict of interest arises). 

 

11. DISPUTES:  Pending resolution of any dispute hereunder, the BDO shall proceed 
diligently with the performance of work in accordance with Exhibit A, and the City shall 
continue to honor its payment obligations hereunder. 

12. NOTICES:  All notices required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be deemed to 
be properly given if delivered in writing personally or sent by United States certified or 
registered mail addressed to the Contractor or the City, as the case may be, with postage 
thereon fully prepaid.  The effective time shall be at the time of mailing. 

9.D.b

Packet Pg. 153



  
 If to the City:     With copies to: 
 
 Purchasing Manager    Fincher Denmark LLC 
 College Park City Hall    Attn: Winston Denmark, Esq. 
 3667 Main Street     100 Hartsfield Centre Pkwy. 
 College Park, Georgia 30338   Suite 400 
        Atlanta, Georgia 30354 
 
  
 If to the Contractor: 
 
 BDO USA, LLP 
 Attn: Steven Kuzma 
 1100 Peachtree Street NE, Suite 700 
 Atlanta, GA 30309-4516 
  
 Email: skuzma@bdo.com  
 
 With copies to: 
 
 BDO USA, LLP 
 Attn:  Christian Cooper 
 1100 Peachtree Street NE, Suite 700 
 Atlanta, GA 30309-4516 
 
 Email: christian.cooper@bdo.com  
 
 And: 
 
 BDO USA, LLP 
 Attn:  Office of the General Counsel 
 330 N. Wabash, Suite 3200 
 Chicago, IL 60611 
 

13. ATTORNEYS’ FEES:  Each Party shall pay and be responsible for its own attorney fees, 
collection fees and other such costs incident to any action brought to enforce this 
Agreement. 

14. STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE AND COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS 
Contractor warrants and represents that it possesses the special skill and professional 
competence, expertise and experience to undertake the obligations imposed by this 
Agreement. Contractor agrees to perform in a diligent, efficient, competent and skillful 
manner commensurate with commercially reasonable professional standards applicable 
to the Services, and to otherwise perform as is necessary to undertake the Services 
required by this Agreement. 

 Contractor warrants and represents that it will, at all times, observe and comply with all 

9.D.b

Packet Pg. 154

mailto:skuzma@bdo.com
mailto:christian.cooper@bdo.com


federal, state, and local laws, rules, and regulations, applicable to the provision of the 
Services to be provided by Contractor hereunder. Subject to the fullest extent by law, 
the Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the City from all claims, actions, 
demands, loss, and causes of action, to the extent arising from failure by Contractor or 
its employees, agents, and representatives to comply with all pertinent federal, state or 
local, rule or regulation, and laws in connection with this Agreement.  

15. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
  
 BDO warrants and represents that: 

 
(a) The Services to be performed hereunder will not create an actual or apparent 

conflict of interest with any other work it is currently performing; and 
 

(b) Contractor is not presently subject to any agreement with a competitor or with 
any other party that will prevent Contractor from performing in full accord with this 
Agreement; and 

 
           (c) Contractor is not subject to any statute, regulation, ordinance or rule that will   
limit its ability to perform its obligations under this Agreement. The parties agree that 
Contractor shall be free to accept other work during the term hereof; provided, however, that 
such other work shall not interfere with the provision of Services hereunder. 

16. GOVERNING LAW AND CONSENT TO JURISDICTION 
This Agreement is made and entered into in the State of Georgia and this Agreement 
and the rights and obligations of the parties hereto shall be governed by and construed 
according to the laws of the State of Georgia without giving effect to the principles of 
conflicts of laws. The jurisdiction for resolution of any disputes arising from this 
Agreement shall be in the State Courts of Fulton County, Georgia. 

17. WAIVER OF BREACH 
The waiver by either party of a breach or violation of any provision of this Agreement 
shall not operate or be construed to constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach or 
violation of the same or other provision thereof. 

18. SEVERABILITY 
If any provision of this Agreement is held to be unenforceable for any reason, the 
unenforceability thereof shall not affect the remainder of the Agreement, which shall 
remain in full force and effect, and enforceable in accordance with its terms. 
 

19. WARRANTIES:  BDO warrants during the term of the Agreement that all BDO Services 
will be performed in a professional and workmanlike manner, consistent with the quality 
of performance of services for similarly situated clients. BDO acknowledges its breach 
of these Warranties could result in claims by third parties. BDO agrees to indemnify, 
defend, and hold City harmless from all claims, actions, demands, loss, causes of action, 
damages, settlement amounts, liabilities, and costs, including reasonable attorney fees 
and litigation costs, arising from BDO’s breach of said Warranties. 

9.D.b

Packet Pg. 155



 
20. INDEMNIFICATION. BDO shall at all times, indemnify, defend and save harmless the 

City from and against all claims or actions, and all expenses incidental to the defense of 
any such claims, litigation, and actions (including attorneys’ fees not to exceed 
commercial general liability limit), based upon or arising out of damage or injury 
(including death) to persons or property (i) to the extent caused by BDO, or (ii) to the 
extent caused by negligent act or omission of BDO or anyone directly or indirectly 
employed by or under the supervision of any of them or in any way arising out of the 
Scope of Services, and BDO shall assume and pay for, without cost to City, the defense 
of any and all claims, litigation and actions. 

 
21.  GEORGIA SECURITY AND IMMIGRATION COMPLIANCE ACT: Pursuant to O.C.G.A. 

Section 13-10-91, for as long as this Agreement remains in effect, BDO will be registered 
with and participate in the federal work authorization program to verify the immigration 
status of newly hired employees (“e-Verify”). BDO will execute the O.C.G.A. Section 13-
10-91 compliance affidavit on Exhibit D, attached hereto and incorporated herein. 

 
22.     SECTION AND PARAGRAPH HEADINGS: Section and paragraph headings are  

for convenience only and shall not be a part of the Terms and Conditions of this 
Agreement. 

 
23.     AMENDMENT OF AGREEMENT: Modification or changes in this Agreement  

must be in writing and signed by the parties to this Agreement.  
 
24.      COUNTERPARTS: This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts,  

each of which shall constitute the original, but all of which taken together shall constitute 
one and the same Agreement. PDF signatures shall constitute original signatures.  

25. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
This Agreement which includes the exhibits hereto contains the entire agreement and 
understanding of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes 
and replaces any and all prior discussions, representations and understandings, 
whether oral or written. This Agreement incorporates the Company’s Scope of Services 
and is referenced in Exhibit “A”. In case of conflict between any term of the Company’s 
Proposal and this Agreement, the terms of this Agreement shall control unless otherwise 
stated herein. 

 

SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE 

9.D.b

Packet Pg. 156



IN WITNESS WHEREOF this __________day of _____________________, 20______, 
said parties have hereunto set their seals the day and year above first written. 

  
Executed on behalf of: 

COLLEGE PARK, GEORGIA 
 
BY:  
  
TITLE:  

 
          [Seal] 

ATTEST (sign here):  
Name (print):  
DATE:  
 

BDO USA, LLP 
 

BY (sign here):  
Name (print):  
Title:  

 

          [Corporate Seal] 

ATTEST (sign here):  

Name (print):  
Title: Corporate Secretary 

DATE:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 

9.D.b

Packet Pg. 157



 
DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES 

 
UNDERSTANDING OF MATTER 

 
The Company is requesting BDO to provide services that include conducting a forensic audit of 
their payroll processes for the period dated from September 30, 2017 to March 31, 2021. 

 
DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES 

 
We anticipate that our professional consulting services might include, but not 

be limited to, the following: 
 

 
  FEE ARRANGEMENT 

 

9.D.b

Packet Pg. 158



 
 

10 
 

1. Third-Parties and Use.  All Services and deliverables hereunder shall be solely for the 
City’s use and benefit pursuant to the client relationship.  This engagement does not create privity 
between BDO and any person or party other than the City, and is not intended for the express or 
implied benefit of any third party.  No third party is entitled to rely, in any manner or for any 
purpose, on the Services or deliverables of BDO hereunder. 
 
2. City Materials.  BDO shall be entitled to rely on and assume, without independent 
verification, that all representations, assumptions, information and data supplied by or on behalf 
of the City, its personnel, representatives, and agents (the “City Materials”) are complete and 
accurate. The City is responsible for ensuring that all City Materials provided to BDO may be 
transferred to BDO and processed in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and applicable 
laws, and that to the extent required thereunder the City has obtained all consents required for 
BDO’s receipt and use of the City Materials. The City agrees that it will not transmit or make 
accessible to BDO in any manner personally identifiable information unless reasonably required 
for BDO’s performance of the Services. BDO will not audit or otherwise verify the accuracy or 
completeness of the data submitted by the City, although BDO may need to ask the City for 
clarification of some of the information.  The City shall be responsible for maintenance and 
retention of its records.  Unless otherwise agreed to by the parties, BDO shall not assume any 
responsibility for any financial reporting with respect to the Services. 
 
3. Ownership of Working Papers.  In connection with the performance of the Services, 
BDO will prepare records and deliverables as set forth in Attachment A. BDO will also prepare 
documents that support BDO’s work and include items such as work programs and analyses that 
do not constitute part of the City’s records (“Working Papers”).  The Working Papers prepared 
pursuant to this Agreement are the property of BDO.  The Working Papers constitute confidential, 
proprietary, and trade secret information, and will be retained by BDO in accordance with BDO’s 
policies and procedures and all applicable laws. 
 
4. Consent for Disclosure.  If BDO is engaged in the preparation of tax returns, Internal 
Revenue Code Sections 6713 and 7216 require BDO to obtain the City’s consent in order to 
disclose or use information that the City furnishes to BDO in connection with the preparation of 
the City’s return(s) (including the City’s name and contact information) and for the purpose of 
providing the City with materials and information, including newsletters or other business-related 
items of interest, news about BDO, and invitations to BDO-sponsored events.  The City hereby 
consents to BDO’s use of the City’s information as set forth above.  The consent of the City is also 
required where, e.g., BDO may seek to disclose the City’s tax return information to other parties 
who are involved in providing the Services hereunder.  By signing this agreement, the City 
consents to BDO’s disclosure and use of any information provided by the City in connection with 
the preparation of the City’s current and prior-year tax return(s) pursuant to this Agreement and 
for the purposes set forth above.   
 
5. Power and Authority.  Each of the parties hereto has all requisite power and authority to 
execute and deliver this Agreement and to carry out and perform its respective obligations 
hereunder.  This Agreement constitutes the legal, valid and binding obligations of each party, 
enforceable against such party in accordance with its terms. 
 

9.D.b

Packet Pg. 159



 
 

11 
 

6. Electronic Transmissions.  This Agreement may be transmitted in electronic format and 
shall not be denied legal effect solely because it was formed or transmitted, in whole or in part, by 
electronic record; however, this Agreement must then remain capable of being retained and 
accurately reproduced, from time to time, by electronic record by the parties to this Agreement 
and all other persons or entities required by law.  An electronically transmitted signature to this 
Agreement will be deemed an acceptable original for purposes of consummating this Agreement 
and binding the party providing such electronic signature. 
 
7. Confidentiality.  Each of the parties hereto shall treat and keep all the “Confidential 
Information” as confidential, with at least the same degree of care as it accords to its own 
confidential information, but in no event less than a reasonable degree of care.  Each party shall 
disclose the Confidential Information only to its employees, partners, contractors, agents or its 
legal or other advisors, provided that they have: (i) each been informed of the confidential, 
proprietary and secret nature of the Confidential Information, or are subject to a binding, 
preexisting obligation of confidentiality no less stringent than the requirements of this Agreement 
and (ii) a demonstrable need to review such Confidential Information.  “Confidential Information" 
means all non-public information that is marked as “confidential” or “proprietary” or has 
commercial value in the party’s business and is obtained by one party (the “Receiving Party”) from 
the other party (the “Disclosing Party”).  All terms of this Agreement are considered Confidential 
Information.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Confidential Information shall not include any 
information that was or is: (a) known to the Receiving Party prior to disclosure by the Disclosing 
Party; (b) as of the time of its disclosure, or thereafter becomes, part of the public domain through 
a source other than the Receiving Party; (c) made known to the Receiving Party by a third person 
who is not subject to any confidentiality obligation known to Receiving Party and such third party 
does not impose any confidentiality obligation on the Receiving Party with respect to such 
information; (d) required to be disclosed pursuant to governmental authority, professional 
obligation, law, decree regulation, subpoena or court order; or (e) independently developed by the 
Receiving Party.  If BDO is providing tax services for the City, in no case shall the tax treatment 
or the tax structure of any transaction be treated as confidential as provided in Treas. Reg. sec. 
1.6011-4(b)(3).   If BDO is providing services for a client that involves government contracting, 
BDO shall be permitted to disclose to any government or regulatory agency requesting such 
information the name of the BDO client and any related information requested by such government 
or regulatory agency. If disclosure is required pursuant to subsection (d) above, the Receiving 
Party shall (other than in connection with routine supervisory examinations by regulatory 
authorities with jurisdiction and without breaching any legal or regulatory requirement), to the 
extent legally permissible, provide prior written notice thereof to allow the Disclosing Party to 
seek a protective order or other appropriate relief.  Upon the request of the Disclosing Party, the 
Receiving Party shall return or destroy all of the Confidential Information except for: (y) copies 
retained in work paper files retained to comply with a party’s professional or legal obligations; and 
(z) such Confidential Information retained in accordance with the Receiving Party’s normal data 
back-up procedures. 
 
8. Intellectual Property.  BDO shall retain the right to reuse the ideas, concepts, know-how, 
and techniques derived from the rendering of the Services so long as it does not require the 
disclosure of any of the City’s Confidential Information (as defined above).  BDO shall be entitled 
to all protections afforded under State and Federal statutory or common law with respect to any 

9.D.b

Packet Pg. 160



 
 

12 
 

report, computer program (source code and object code) or programming and/or material 
documentation, manual, chart, specification, formula, database architecture, template, system 
model, copyright, diagram, description, screen display, schematic, blueprint drawing, tape, license, 
listing, invention, record, development frameworks, code libraries, best practices, general 
knowledge, skills and experience, or other materials preexisting the execution of this Agreement 
(“BDO Intellectual Property”).  Unless otherwise specifically stated in this Agreement, the 
reproduction, distribution or transfer, by any means or methods, whether direct or indirect, of any 
of BDO’s or its agents’ Intellectual Property or proprietary information by the City is strictly 
prohibited. 
 
9. Non-CPA Owner Notice Requirement.  BDO is owned by professionals who hold CPA 
licenses as well as by professionals who are not licensed CPAs. Therefore, depending on the nature 
of the Services being provided, non-CPA owners may be involved in providing certain Services 
hereunder. 
 
10. BDO Responsibilities.  BDO’s Services will not constitute an audit, review, compilation, 
examination or other form of attest engagement.  BDO shall have no responsibility to address any 
legal matters or questions of law.  After completion of the Services, BDO will have no 
responsibility to update its advice, recommendations or work product for changes or modifications 
to the law and regulations or for subsequent events or transactions, unless the City separately 
engages BDO in writing to do so. 
 
11. External Computing Options.  If, at the City’s request, any member of the BDO Group 
agrees to use certain external commercial services, including but not limited to services for cloud 
storage, remote access, third party software and/or file sharing options (collectively “External 
Computing Options”), that are outside of BDO’s standard security protocol, the City acknowledges 
that such External Computing Options may be associated with heightened security and privacy 
risks.  Accordingly, BDO Group disclaims, and the City agrees to release BDO Group from, and 
indemnify BDO for, all liability arising out of or related to the use of such External Computing 
Options. 
 
12. Licensing Representation.  To the extent necessary for BDO to perform its obligations 
described in an applicable SOW, the City represents and warrants that it will obtain, maintain and 
comply with all of the licenses, consents, permits, approvals and authorizations that are necessary 
to allow BDO and its employees, contractors and subcontractors to access and use the services or 
software provided for the benefit of the City under the City’s third-party services contracts, 
licenses or other contracts granting the City the right to access, use or receive services or software 
(each a “Licensing Representation”). Upon BDO’s request, the City will provide BDO any 
references available evidencing the Licensing Representation (e.g., order number, customer 
support identifier). Tools subject to this Licensing Representation are hereby deemed External 
Computing Options (as defined in this Agreement). The City hereby releases BDO Group from all 
claims and liabilities resulting from (i) BDO’s reliance on a Licensing Representation and (ii) the 
functionality of any third-party software or services used or accessed by BDO. 
 
13. Effect of Termination.  If this Agreement and/or any Services is terminated (or any other 
Services not covered by a SOW are terminated), the City agrees to compensate BDO for the 

9.D.b

Packet Pg. 161



 
 

13 
 

Services performed and expenses incurred through the effective date of termination.  To the extent 
the City terminates any SOW that includes any licensing arrangements under which the City 
receives from BDO a license to use, or obtain access to, External Computing Options (as defined 
below), the City agrees that it will be responsible for all fees and expenses associated with such 
licenses for External Computing Options through and including the date that is thirty days after 
date the City provides such termination notice to BDO.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9.D.b

Packet Pg. 162



 
 

14 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 

RISK MANAGEMENT REQUIREMENTS 
 

The Contractor will provide minimum insurance coverage and limits as per the following: The 
Contractor will file with the City Certificates of Insurance, certifying the required insurance 
coverage and stating that each policy has been endorsed to provide thirty (30) days’ notice 
to the City in the event that coverage is cancelled, non-renewed or the types of coverage or 
limits of liability are reduced below those required.  All bonds and insurance coverage must 
be placed with an insurance company approved by City Management, admitted to do 
business in the State of Georgia, and rated Secure (“B+” or better) by A.M. Best Company 
in the latest edition of Property and Casualty Ratings, or rated by Standard & Poors Insurance 
Ratings, latest edition as Secure (“BBB” or better).  Worker’s Compensation self-insurance 
for individual Contractors must be approved by the Worker’s Compensation Board, State of 
Georgia and/or Self-Insurance pools approved by the Insurance Commissioner, State of 
Georgia. 
 

CONTRACTS FOR UP TO $50,000  CONTRACTS FOR MORE THAN $50,000 
   

Worker’s Compensation – Worker’s 
Compensation coverage on a statutory basis 
for the State of Georgia with an Employer’s 
Liability limit of $100,000 each Accident, 
Disease $100,000 each employee, $500,000 
Disease policy limit. 

 Worker’s Compensation – Worker’s 
Compensation coverage on a statutory 
basis for the State of Georgia with an 
Employer’s Liability limit of $1,000,000.  The 
increased Employer’s Liability limit may be 
provided by an Umbrella or Excess Liability 
policy. 

Automobile Liability – Automobile liability 
coverage for owned, hired and non-owned 
vehicles in the amount of $500,000 combined 
single limit. 

 Automobile Liability - Automobile liability 
coverage for owned, hired and non-owned 
vehicles in the amount of $1,000,000 
combined single limit. 

Commercial General Liability – Coverage 
to be provided on “occurrence” not “claims 
made” basis.  The coverage is to include 
Contractual liability, Per Project Limit of 
Liability, losses caused by Explosion, 
Collapse and Underground (“xcu”) perils, the 
“College Park, Georgia” is to be added as an 
Additional Insured and Products and 
Completed Operations coverage is to be 
maintained for one (1) year following 
completion of work. 

 Commercial General Liability – Coverage 
to be provided on “occurrence” not “claims 
made” basis.  The coverage is to include 
Contractual liability, Per Project Limit of 
Liability, losses caused by Explosion,  
Collapse and Underground (“xcu”) perils, the  
“College Park, Georgia” is to be added as an 
Additional Insured and Products and 
Completed Operations coverage is to be 
maintained for three (3) years following 
completion of work. 

9.D.b

Packet Pg. 163



 
 

15 
 

RISK MANAGEMENT REQUIREMENTS (Cont’d) 
 

CONTRACTS FOR UP TO $50,000  CONTRACTS FOR MORE THAN $50,000 
   

LIMITS OF LIABILITY: 
   

$1,000,000  Per Occurrence 
   

$1,000,000  Personal and Advertising 
   

$50,000  Fire Damage* 
   

$5,000  Medical Payments* 
   

$1,000,000  General Aggregate 
   

$1,000,000  Products/Completed Operations per  
Occurrence and Aggregate 

*These are automatic minimums 
   
Owner’s Protective Liability – The City’s 
Management may, in its discretion, require 
Owner’s Protective Liability in some 
situations. City must provide written notice 
to BDO and provide limited reasoning for 
such requirement. After such notice is 
provided to BDO, any such requirement 
shall be in effect. 

 Umbrella and/or Excess Liability – The 
umbrella or Excess Liability Policy may be 
used to combine with underlying policies to 
obtain the limits required. The Management 
of the City may elect to require higher limits. 
City must provide written notice to BDO and 
provide limited reasoning for higher limits. 
After such notice is provided to BDO, any 
such requirement for higher limits shall be 
in effect.  

   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT C 

9.D.b

Packet Pg. 164



 
 

16 
 

 
GEORGIA SECURITY AND IMMIGRATION COMPLIANCE ACT 

AFFIDAVIT 
 

By executing this affidavit, BDO USA, LLP (“BDO”) verifies its compliance with O.C.G.A. §13-10-91, 
stating affirmatively that BDO, which is engaged in the physical performance of Services in Georgia under 
a contract with City of College Park, GA, has registered with, is authorized to use and uses the federal 
work authorization program commonly known as E-verify, or any subsequent replacement program, in 
accordance with the applicable provisions and deadlines established in O.C.G.A. §13-10-91. Further, 
BDO will continue to use the federal work authorization program throughout the contract period and 
will verify the immigration status of newly hired employees. Furthermore, the undersigned agrees that, 
should it employ or contract with any subContractor(s) in connection with the physical performance of 
Services pursuant to this contract with the City of College Park, Georgia, BDO will secure from such 
subContractor(s) similar verification of compliance with O.C.G.A. 13-10-91 on the SubContractor 
Affidavit provided in Rule 300-10-01-.08 or a substantially similar form. BDO hereby attests that its 
federal work authorization user identification number and date of authorization are as follows: 

 

User Identification Number 
 

 
BY: Authorized Officer or Agent of BDO Date 
 

Title of Authorized Officer or Agent of BDO 
 

Printed Name of Authorized Officer or Agent 
 
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN 
BEFORE ME ON THIS _DAY 
OF , 20   
 

Notary Public 
My Commission Expires:    

9.D.b

Packet Pg. 165



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8907  

Updated: 6/16/2021 1:56 PM by Mercedes Miller  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: June 16, 2021 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Mercedes Miller, Interim City Manager 

 

FROM: Michelle Johnson, Director of Recreation & Cultural Arts 

 

RE:  Splash Pad Bid Approval for CDBG Grant 

 

 

PURPOSE:  To review and approve bids for the Task 1, utilities and site improvement, and for 

Task 2, construction of a water feature, splash pad, build along with administrative cost for a 

total cost of $ 584,000.00. The City of College Park has been awarded the Community Block 

Development Grant (CDBG) in the amount of $584,000.00 for a Splash Pad at Charles E. 

Phillips Park.  

 

REASON:  The City of College Park received a Fulton County CDBG award for $584,000.00 

for a Splash Pad at Charles E. Phillips Park.  The Request for Proposal (RFP) was put out as two 

task bids.  The bids request for Task 1 includes a request for utilities and site improvements 

projects, and the bids request for Task 2 includes a request for construction of a water feature 

splash pad.  There are also additional costs for administrative and design costs outside of the bid 

quotes for Task 1 and Task 2.   

 

The City of College Park received only one sealed bid for Task 1 from Randolph & Company for 

building, utilities and site improvements at a cost of $850,740.00.  For Task 2 the City of College 

Park received two bids in the amount of $339,951.24 from Great Southern Recreation, the most 

responsible bid.   

 

Due to only receiving one sealed bid on Task 1 from Randolph & Company for $850,740.00, in 

which is the higher than the total grant award of $584,000.00. The City of College Park 

Purchasing Department re-advertised Task 1, excluding the building structure, as part of the 

Request for Proposal (RFP).  The City of College Park received only one bid for the second bid, 

again from Randolph & Company at a higher bid price of $898,892.00.   

 

Due to only receiving one bid from Randolph & Company for the two advertised bids for Task 1, 

the City of College Park Purchasing Department requested a proposal from Construction 57 Inc., 

who is the City of College Park on demand services vendor.  The City of College Park received a 

quote from Construction 57 Incorporated and other on demand services for a total of 

9.E

Packet Pg. 166



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8907)  Meeting of June 21, 2021 

Updated: 6/16/2021 1:56 PM by Mercedes Miller  Page 2 

$210,508.76 for Task 1. In addition to Task 1 and Task 2, there are additional services needed 

from the city that will be necessary to complete the project to include design and administrative 

services for the grant.   

 

RECOMMENDATION: To approve bid award for Task 1 for Construction 57 Incorporated 

and other on demand services for $210, 508.76 and for Task 2 to Great Southern Recreation for 

$339,951.24 along with $33,540.00 for design and administrative costs to bring the total project 

costs at $584,000.00. The Splash Pad Project includes the construction of utilities, site 

improvements along with a water feature that are funded by the Fulton County CDBG Grant 

award of $ 584,000 to the City of College Park. 

 

BACKGROUND:   The City of College Park accepted sealed proposals from qualified vendors 

for the Task 1 and Task 2 for Charles E. Phillips SPLASH PAD. Sealed proposals were opened 

on April 6, 2021, at 10:00 am at the City of College Park Purchasing Department, 3667 Main 

Street, College Park Georgia, 30337. The results were as follows: 

 

NO. COMPANY BID AMOUNT 

1 Randolph & Co 850,740.00-Task 1 

   

3 Great Southern Recreation  339,951.24-Task 2 

4 KorKat 549,489.84-Task 2 

 

 

Due to only one bid received for Task 1 a re-bid for Task 1 was issued and sealed proposals were 

opened on May 12, 2021, at 10:00 at the City of College Park Purchasing Department at 3667 

Main Street, College Park, Georgia 30337.  The results were as follows:   

NO.  COMPANY BID AMOUNT 

1 Randolph & Co 887,892.00-Task 1 

   

 

The re-bid for Task 1 was higher than the first bid and the City of College Park.  Purchasing 

Department had the cities on-demand contractual services company from Construction 57 

Incorporated and other on demand services provided a quote to include the need price for power, 

fencing and connection fees for bid for Task 1.  The results were as follows: 

NO.  COMPANY BID AMOUNT 

1 Construction 57 Inc. and other on demand cost $ 210,508.76-Task 1 

   

9.E

Packet Pg. 167



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8907)  Meeting of June 21, 2021 

Updated: 6/16/2021 1:56 PM by Mercedes Miller  Page 3 

 

There are other outside costs for design and administrative services needed from Metrocorp 

Development Enterprise, city’s approved contractual grant administrator.  The Following 

includes additional project expenses from Metrocorp Development Enterprise.  

NO.  COMPANY BID AMOUNT 

1 Metrocorp Development Enterprise (on contract grant 

administrator) 

$ 33,540.00 

   

 

*Please see the attached spread sheet for the cost break down.  

YEARS OF SERVICE: 25-30 years 

COST TO CITY:  No required matching funds for this project for the Splash Pad.   

BUDGETED ITEM: The City funding is as follows: 

REVENUE TO CITY:  $584,000 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING DATE:  June 21, 2021 

CONSIDERATION BY OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES: N/A  

AFFECTED AGENCIES:  N/A 

RELATIONSHIP TO EXISTING ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTION:  N/A 

REQUIRED CHANGES TO WORK PROGRAMS:  The City of College Park Recreation & 

Cultural Arts Department will need seasonal staffing to cover hours of operation.   

STAFF:  Will need to hire part-time seasonal lifeguards for operations of the splash pad.   

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Notice to Proceed for Splash Pad 03022021 signed and executed (PDF) 

 College Park -CDBG Award Notification-Charles E Phillips Splash Pad 9.10.20 (PDF) 

 Regular Session Minute 011921 approval of CDBG Splash Pad Grant (PDF) 

 Agenda Memo ID #2021-8907 - RFP – CDBG PHILLIPS PARK SPLASH PAD (PDF) 

 RFP – CDBG PHILLIPS PARK SPLASH PAD -Specs (PDF) 

 RFP – CDBG UTILITY BUILDING & SITE IMPROVEMENTS - Specs (PDF) 

 Great Southern Recreation (Task 2) (PDF) 

 

9.E

Packet Pg. 168



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8907)  Meeting of June 21, 2021 

Updated: 6/16/2021 1:56 PM by Mercedes Miller  Page 4 

Review: 

 Michelle Johnson Completed 06/14/2021 8:20 AM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 06/14/2021 4:36 PM 

 Jackson Myers Completed 06/15/2021 8:47 AM 

 Purchasing Completed 06/15/2021 8:59 AM 

 Power Completed 06/15/2021 9:39 AM 

 Althea Philord-Bradley Completed 06/16/2021 12:21 PM 

 Mercedes Miller Completed 06/16/2021 1:55 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 06/21/2021 7:30 PM 

9.E

Packet Pg. 169



9.E.a

Packet Pg. 170



Fulton County  

Department of Community Development 
 

 
 

                                      
  

 
137 PEACHTREE STREET, S.W., Suite 300 ♦ Atlanta, Georgia 30303  

Office (404) 613--7944 ♦ Web: www.fultonHOUSINGhumanservices.org 

GEORGIA RELAY NUMBER: 711  

 

 

September 10, 2020 

 

The Honorable Mayor Bianca Motley Broom 
College Park- City Hall 
3667 Main Street  
College Park, Georgia 30337 
 

RE:   City of College Park- CDBG Award Notification $584,000.00 
  Project:  Charles E. Phillips, Sr. Esquire Park- Splash Pad 
 

Dear Mayor Motley Broom:  
 
On September 2, 2020, the Fulton County Board of Commissioners, by and through its Department of 
Community Development, has approved an award to the City of College Park for Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds in the amount of $584,000.00 for the construction, 
rehabilitation and installation of the Charles E. Phillips, Sr. Esquire Park Splash Pad; and rescinds its 
previous CDBG award for the Kathleen Mitchell School demolition project as requested by the City of 
College Park.    
 
In addition, the County will begin the environmental review process in accordance with requirements 
from the U.S Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).  
 
Please respond to accept this award notification in writing by Wednesday, September 18, 2020 to 
include a project timeline for project implementation.    
 
Should you have any CDBG program and or project timeline related questions in this regard, please do not 
hesitate to contact Kim Benjamin at (404) 612-8077 or via email at kim.benjamin@fultoncountyga.gov.  
 
Sincerely, 

 
Pamela Roshell 
Deputy Chief Operating Officer 
 
cc:  Robb L. Pitts, Chairman, Fulton County Board of Commissioners  
 Richard Dick Anderson, County Manager  
 Anna Roach, Chief Operating Officer 
 Mia Redd, Deputy Director  
  

9.E.b

Packet Pg. 171

http://www.fultonhousinghumanservices.org/
mailto:kim.benjamin@fultoncountyga.gov


9.E.c

Packet Pg. 172



9.E.c

Packet Pg. 173



9.E.c

Packet Pg. 174



9.E.c

Packet Pg. 175



 

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
PO BOX 87137 • COLLEGE PARK, GA  30337 • (404) 767-1537 

 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM  
NO. 2021-8907 

DATE: JUNE 15, 2021 

TO: OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER 

FROM: WILLIS MOODY, PURCHASING & FLEEET ADMINISTRATOR 

SUBJECT: RFP – CDBG PHILLIPS PARK SPLASH PAD - 040621 
SEALED BID OPENING 

The purpose of this communication is to secure the approval to purchase the following item(s). 
Please include the following item(s) on the upcoming Mayor/Council agenda. 

Item Description: CDBG Phillips Park Splash Pad 

Budgeted item(s): This project is CDBG Grant funded 

Recommendations: Great Southern Recreation (Task 2) is recommended at $339,951.24 as 
most responsive. 

Explanation of recommendation in full: 

The bid was published on the City of College Park website under the Bids/RFPs location, Vendor 
Registry.com, DOAS GPR (Georgia Procurement Registry) and the National Association of 
Minority Contractors - Georgia Chapter. The advertisement was published from March 4, 2021 
thru April 6, 2020 at 9:30 am. 

A (mandatory) pre-proposal meeting was held via Zoom, Wednesday, March 17, 2021 at 10:00 
am. Join Zoom Meeting 

https://zoom.us/j/96564677328?pwd=dUpNaDJtN09aak9QREJ1TVVGYVRyZz09 

Meeting ID: 965 6467 7328 - Passcode: 395262 

The official Zoom (virtual) bid opening was scheduled for Tuesday, April 6, 2021 at 10:00 am, 
with four vendors (Aqua Dynamics, Korkat, SESCO Lighting, and Great Southern Recreation) 
logged into the meeting.  

One (1) proposal for $850,000.00, was received and rejected under Purchasing Policy, Section IX 
Formal Solicitations (Only One Bid Received) for Task 1 (infrastructure).  

 

9.E.d

Packet Pg. 176

https://zoom.us/j/96564677328?pwd=dUpNaDJtN09aak9QREJ1TVVGYVRyZz09


 

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
PO BOX 87137 • COLLEGE PARK, GA  30337 • (404) 767-1537 

 
 

RFP – CDBG Utility Building & Site Improvements will be advertised as the new project to 
complete Task 1 (infrastructure). The solicitation will be scheduled to open Wednesday, May 12, 
2021 at 10:00 am. 

Tabulation Matrix 

RFP – CDBG PHILLIPS PARK SPLASH PAD – 040621 

See the Bid Tabulation Sheet for results of opening. The original proposals are available for review 
in the Purchasing Department, schedule a time in advance. 

Minority Status Legend: 

(1) African American Business Enterprise (AABE) (2) Hispanic Business Enterprise (HBE)  
(3) Female Business Enterprise (FBE) (4) Asian Business Enterprise (ABE)  
(5) Native American Business Enterprise (NABE) 
 
City of College Park 
Willis Moody 
Purchasing & Fleet Administrator 
College Park, GA  30337 

 

 Company Name Bid Amount 
Minority 

Y/N 
Class 

Is your 
compan

y 
located 

in CP 

Previous 
Work 
w/CP? 

1 Randolph & Co $850,740.00 – Task 1 Y 
(AABE) N N 

2      

3 Great Southern Recreation $339,951.24 – Task 2 Y 
(FBE) N N 

4 KorKat $549,489.84 – Task 2 N N Y 

5      

9.E.d

Packet Pg. 177



 

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
PO BOX 87137 • COLLEGE PARK, GA  30337 • (404) 767-1537 

 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM  
NO. 2021-8907 

DATE: JUNE 15, 2021 

TO: OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER 

FROM: WILLIS MOODY, PURCHASING & FLEEET ADMINISTRATOR 

SUBJECT: RFP – CDBG UTILITY BUILDINDS & SITE IMPROVEMENTS - 051221 
SEALED BID OPENING 

The purpose of this communication is to secure the approval to purchase the following item(s). 
Please include the following item(s) on the upcoming Mayor/Council agenda. 

Item Description: CDBG Utility Buildings & Site Improvements 

Budgeted item(s): This project is CDBG Grant funded 

Recommendations: Construction 57 is recommended at $117,389.80 as most responsive to for 
this project 

Explanation of recommendation in full: 

The bid was published on the City of College Park website under the Bids/RFPs location, Vendor 
Registry.com, DOAS GPR (Georgia Procurement Registry) and the National Association of 
Minority Contractors - Georgia Chapter. The advertisement was published from April 20, 2021 
thru May 12, 2020 at 9:30 am. 

No (mandatory) pre-proposal meeting was held. 

The official Zoom (virtual) bid opening was scheduled for Tuesday, May 12, 2021 at 10:00 am, 
with logged into the meeting. 

Michelle Johnson and Lance Terry represented the City and Herbert Humphry, Metrcorp 
Development Enterprises, Inc (Project Manager) for the bid open. 

https://us04web.zoom.us/j/74076000134 

Meeting ID: 740 7600 0134 - Passcode: rm3Djh 

One (1) proposal for $898,892.00, was received and rejected under Purchasing Policy, Section IX 
Formal Solicitations (Only One Bid Received) was utilized for Task 1 (infrastructure).  

9.E.d

Packet Pg. 178



 

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
PO BOX 87137 • COLLEGE PARK, GA  30337 • (404) 767-1537 

 
Tabulation Matrix 

RFP – CDBG UTILITY BUILDING & SITE IMPROVEMENTS - 051221 

 

After discussions with Mercedes Miller, Interim City Manager, the City will utilized the On-
Demand Water & Sewer contract awardees (Construction 57 and Kemi Construction Co.) to 
complete Task 1 (infrastructure). A Work Order was issued to both Construction 57 and Kemi 
Construction Co. for unit cost to complete Task 1 (infrastructure). 

Tabulation Matrix 

RFP – PHILLIPS PARK SPLASH PAD – 040621  
(On-Demand Water & Sewer Awardees) 

See the Bid Tabulation Sheet for results of opening. The original proposals are available for review 
in the Purchasing Department, schedule a time in advance. 

Minority Status Legend: 

(1) African American Business Enterprise (AABE) (2) Hispanic Business Enterprise (HBE)  
(3) Female Business Enterprise (FBE) (4) Asian Business Enterprise (ABE)  
(5) Native American Business Enterprise (NABE) 
 
City of College Park 
Willis Moody 
Purchasing & Fleet Administrator 
College Park, GA  30337 

 Company Name Bid Amount 
Minority 

Y/N 
Class 

Is your 
compan

y 
located 

in CP 

Previous 
Work 
w/CP? 

1 Randolph & Company $898,892.00 Y 
(AABE) N N 

 Company Name Bid Amount 
Minority 

Y/N 
Class 

Is your 
company 
located in 

CP 

Previous 
Work 
w/CP? 

1 Construction 57 $117,389.80 – Task 1 Y 
(AABE) N N 

2 Kemi Construction Co $125,928.00 - Task 1 Y 
(AABE) Y N 

9.E.d

Packet Pg. 179



 

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
PO BOX 87137 • COLLEGE PARK, GA  30337 • (404) 767-1537 

 
Note: ProSource Utility Contractors (Electric Line Distribution Service awardee) will supply 
power expenses for the Splash Pad Task 1: $10K for the transformer, $10K for lighting (5 x $2K 
each), $10K for labor (4 to 5 days at $2K each), and $5K for conductor (primary & secondary), 
conduit, terminators, & metering equipment. It was suggested that we include an additional $3,750 
to cover camera installation and incidentals, bringing our total expense to $35,000. A preliminary 
estimate of $30,000 to provide and install breakers, connect metering equipment, and install wiring 
for motors, etc. 

 

 

 

9.E.d

Packet Pg. 180



RFP – CDBG UTILITY BUILDING & SITE IMPROVEMENTS (Work Order) - 060321 Page 1 
 

 
 
 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSAL 

ADVERTISEMENT for CONSTRUCTION SERVICES 

CDBG UTILITY BUILDING & SITE IMPROVEMENTS 

WORK ORDER 

OWNER’S BID PROPOSAL FORM 
 
OWNER: City of College Park 
  3667 Main Street  
  College Park, GA 30337 

PROJECT: CDBG Utility Building & Site Improvements 

DATE:  May 25, 2021 

As an effort to utilize the On-Demand Contractual Services contract, to complete Task 1 for the 
CDBG Utility Building & Site Improvements, project. The City of College Park is requesting you 
complete the following Work Order estimate page and return no later than 12:00 pm on Thursday, 
June 2, 2021 for review.  

The location for this project is Phillips Park 4400 Herschel Rd, College Park, GA  30337. 

If you have any questions contact the Project Manager Herbert Humphrey at 
herbert.humphrey@metrocorpde.com and copy wmoody@collegeparkga.com on your email(s). 

 

  

9.E.d

Packet Pg. 181

mailto:herbert.humphrey@metrocorpde.com
mailto:wmoody@collegeparkga.com


ON-DEMAND WATER SEWER SERVICES

WORKORDER REQUEST NO. 1

LOCATION

SCOPE OF WORK:

SPLASHPAD TASK SYSTEM ITEM ITEM DESCRIPTION QTY U/M UNIT PRICE
1 COST

SITE UTILITIES WATER POTABLE WATER SYSTEM BENDS and TEES 2” Bends (22.5O, 45 O, 90 O) 1 EA

SITE UTILITIES SEWER POTABLE WATER SYSTEM BENDS and TEES 6” Bends (22.5O, 45 O, 90 O) (SEWER) 2 EA

SITE UTILITIES SEWER POTABLE WATER SYSTEM BENDS and TEES 6" x 6" Tee (SEWER OUTSIDE DROP) 1 EA

SITE UTILITIES WATER POTABLE WATER SYSTEM TAPPING SLEEVE and VALVES 6" x 2" Tapping Sleeve and Valve 1 EA

SITE UTILITIES WATER POTABLE WATER SYSTEM WATER MAIN 2” Ductile Iron Pipe, Class 50(0 to 5 ft depth) 276 LF

SITE UTILITIES WATER POTABLE WATER SYSTEM WATER METERS Reconnect Water Meters 1 EA

SITE UTILITIES SEWER SEWER SYSTEM PRECAST MANHOLES 4ft Diameter MH Base and Inverts 1 EA

SITE UTILITIES SEWER SEWER SYSTEM PRECAST MANHOLES 4ft Diameter Manholes 3 VF

SITE UTILITIES SEWER SEWER SYSTEM PRECAST MANHOLES 4ft Diameter MH Ring and Lid 1 EA

SITE UTILITIES SEWER SEWER SYSTEM PAVEMENT AND MISC Asphalt Pavement Replacement, Type C(Include Concrete) 59 SY

SITE UTILITIES SEWER SEWER SYSTEM PAVEMENT AND MISC Concrete Sidewalk, 4 in 195 SY

SITE UTILITIES SEWER SEWER SYSTEM SANITARY SEWER MAIN 6” DUCTILE IRON PIPE, CLASS 50 (0 TO 8 FT DEPTH) 237 LF

SITE UTILITIES SEWER SEWER SYSTEM SANITARY SEWER MAIN 6” Ductile Iron Pipe, Class 50(0 to 8 ft depth) ( OUTSIDE DROP ) 5 LF

SITE GRADING, PAVEMENT & DRAINAGE SEWER SYSTEM SANITARY SEWER MAIN 8” Ductile Iron Pipe, Class 50(0 to 8 ft depth) ( FLUME ALTERNATE ) 27 LF

SITE GRADING, PAVEMENT & DRAINAGE STORM SEWER SYSTEM MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS Grading Complete 1760 SY

SITE GRADING, PAVEMENT & DRAINAGE STORM SEWER SYSTEM MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS Temporary Silt Fence, Type C 200 LF

SITE GRADING, PAVEMENT & DRAINAGE STORM SEWER SYSTEM MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS Fertilized Mixed Grade(Permanent Grassing) 2555 SY

SITE GRADING, PAVEMENT & DRAINAGE STORM SEWER SYSTEM MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS Bermuda Sod 0 Sq Ft

SITE GRADING, PAVEMENT & DRAINAGE STORM SEWER SYSTEM MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS Tree Removal (all tree categories) 1 EA

SUBMITTED BY:           REMARKS:

COMPANY NAME:

SIGNATURE:

TITLE:

DATE:

ATTACHMENT

APPROVED BY:

PHILLIPS PARK SPLASHPAD - 4400 HERSCHEL ROAD 

See estimated quantities to be verified below and attached drawings.

See drawings prepared by Metrocorp Development Enterprises, Inc.

JACKSON MYERS, DIRECTOR

SUB-TOTAL

CONTINGENCY 10%

TOTAL WORKORDER COST

NOTE1: Unit price based on ON-Demand Water & Sewer Services Services-050521

SPLASH PAD WORKORDER 1 OF 1

9.E.d

Packet Pg. 182



CDBG Funding Award: $584,000.00

Item No. Work Item Item Cost
1 Ticket Booth $0.00

Task 1 - Splash Pad Infrastructure

2
Infastructure (site grading, payment, sewer, water & drainage)  
Contingency included $117,389.80

Site Utilities
3A Cameras $0.00
3B Power $65,000.00
4 Site Security: Perimeter Fence $25,000.00
5 Sum of City Connection Fees $3,118.96

Item No. 2-5 Total Cost: $210,508.76

6 Task 2 - Splash Pad equipment $339,951.24
7 Task 3 - Site Furnishing $0.00
8 Design and Contract Administration Services $33,540.00

Item No. 6-8 Total Cost: $373,491.24

ENTIRE PROJECT $584,000.00

Overage/Shortage: $0.00

Item No. 2 Note : Construction 57 (On-Demand Water and Sewer 
contract awardee) to complete Task 1 (infastructure) for the 
project

Item No. 3B Note : ProSource Utility Contractors (Electric Line
Distribution Service awardee) will supply power expenses for
Task 1: $10K for the transformer, $10K for lighting (5 x $2K
each), $10K for labor (4 to 5 days at $2K each), and $5K for
conductor (primary & secondary), conduit, terminators, &
metering equipment. It was suggested that we include an
additional $3,750 to cover camera installation and incidentals,
bringing our total expense to $35,000. A preliminary estimate of
$30,000 to provide and install breakers, connect metering
equipment, and install wiring for motors, etc.

Splash Pad Cost Summary

9.E.d

Packet Pg. 183



RFP – CBDG PHILLLPS PARK SPLASH PAD - 040621  Page 1 

 
 

PURPOSE  

SPECIFICATION(s)/S.O.W. 

GENERAL PURPOSE 

The City of College Park is soliciting for qualified general contracting company(s) to provide 
construction service(s) for the complete a two-part construction project. This is a Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) project. The company(s) will complete site work, installation 
of a utility building and installation of a Splash Pad.  

A selection committee will evaluate the proposal responses and awarded based upon the 
respondent’s qualifications, experience and understanding of the scope of work to be performed. 
The firm selected will use construction documents prepared by Metrocorp Development 
Enterprises, Inc. 

OVERVIEW/SPECIFICATIONS 

The City of College Park is searching for a qualified company(s) to complete: 

Task 1: A General Contractor construction of site work including lighting and ancillary structures 
that include a foundation for Prefabricated 8’ x 6” Ticket Booth and Utility building (240 sq. ft.) 
for equipment and chemical storage. 

Task 2: A qualified contractor for the proposed Design/build Splash Pad  

The improvements are proposed at Charles Phillips Park, 4400 Herschel Road, College Park, 
Georgia 30337. The Splash Pad structures and site work will be installed in the areas shown on 
the plan documents prepared by Metrocorp Development Enterprises, Inc. dated March 5, 2021. 

The City of College Park will be accepting separate Bids Proposals for Task 1 and Task 2.  

PROJECT SCOPE STATEMENT  

This Request for Proposal consists of: 

1. In conjunction with the Splash Pad, site work (rough prep for Splash Pad) and walkway, 
utility building and ticket booth to augment the Splash Park. The site work will include the 
provision of utilities to within ten (10) feet of the designated connection points for the 
Splash Pad. (Task 1) 

2. The design, supply, and installation of splash pad. (Task 2) 

GENERAL  

A. Scope of Work 
 
Proposers will be expected to provide conceptual and detailed design, supply, and 
installation of splash pad equipment as necessary for the complete functioning of the splash 
pad system. In addition, it is required that incidental and minor items, specified or implied 
by the nature of this type of work, be completed within the Proposer’s scope of work.  

9.E.e

Packet Pg. 184



RFP – CBDG PHILLLPS PARK SPLASH PAD - 040621  Page 2 

A HIGH DEGREE OF COORDINATION BETWEEN THE SUCCESSFUL PROPOSER 
FOR EACH TASK 1 AND TASK 2 AND CITY OF COLLEGE PARK WILL BE REQUIRED. 
 

B. Insurance Requirements – See City of College Park Bid Documents 
C. Bond Requirements – See City of College Park Bid Documents 
D. Community Development Block Grant Requirements – See City of College Park Bid 

Documents 

PROPOSAL FORMAT  

Technical Proposal Format: 

Provide four (4) sections under separate tabs as follows: 

Section 1 
Executive Summary 

The executive summary shall include a brief statement of approach to the work, understanding of 
the project’s goals and objectives and demonstrated understanding of the potential problems and 
concerns. 

Section 2 
Company’s Qualifications and Relevant Project Experience 

1. Firm or Firms’ Information: 
a. Firm local name, address, and telephone number 
b. Primary local contact person(s) and telephone number(s) 
c. Total number of firm's local full-time employees 
d. Year firm established. 
e. Listing, description and outcome of all litigation involving the proposer in the last 

five (5) years. 
2. Experience: 

a. List of comparable full-service Design Layout /Build Playground Construction 
projects completed in the last 5 years. Include: size, cost, total fee, time to complete 
design services, scope of design services, time to construct facility, description and 
cost of contractor change orders, special features (energy conservation, etc.), 
awards received, and type of project (be sure to specify which projects were similar 
to facilities of this size and type).  

b. Provide no more than 3-5 examples of your experience as prime contractor in 
constructing facilities like this project (OR other public and private projects that 
indicate similar experience). For each of these projects: 

i. Provide photographs. 
ii. Provide a reference familiar with your performance on the project. It is the 

proposer’s responsibility to ensure that the listed contact and phone number 
are current.  

iii. Provide a Splash Pad Design/Build reference (with current phone number) 
familiar with your performance on each project. 

3. References  
 
Include references for related work over the past three (3) years, including client name, 
mailing address, contact name and phone number, email address, and a description of the 
services provided, including project dates and special features. 
 

9.E.e

Packet Pg. 185



RFP – CBDG PHILLLPS PARK SPLASH PAD - 040621  Page 3 

Note: The above information shall be provided for the General Contractor and/or the Splash Pad 
Design/Build Contractor. 
 

Section 3 
Design and Construction of Splash Pad (Task 2) 

The City of College Park would like to see a focus on water and energy conservation noted 
within the proposal. 

1. Location and Design 
 
The CHARLES Phillips Park is centrally located and can be easily accessed by both 
residents and visitors. The existing services and amenities in the park include a Tennis 
Courts, Soccer Fields, and pavilions. Proposers are encouraged to familiarize themselves 
with proposed location and the surrounding neighborhood context.  
 
Designs should note the aesthetic environment of the park and reference in the overall 
design approach as submitted in their proposal. The splash pad must be designed with the 
following operational system:  Re-circulating splash pad systems with a filtration system 
with chlorination and UV units. Water to be discharged to the into municipal sewer 
system. (refer to Splash Pad Schematic Drawing drawings).  
 

2. Play Zone – General  
 
This area shall be designed for the demographics as determined by the Proposer. At a 
minimum, 2–5-year-old and all family ages should be considered. 
  
The splash pad must be operable “on-demand” during established operating times by 
means of accessible above-grade push buttons on a weather and vandal-resistant 
activator. At-grade activators are not acceptable.  
 
The controller shall be programmed with an automated sequencing of water features that 
is initiated by the activator. Each sequence shall include a minimum of two (2) minutes of 
features control and shall involve multiple water elements. Programming shall be 
completed by the Proposer. 
 

3. Project Budget: 
  
TOTAL PRICE: Proposals for the splash pad are to be tailored to City’s estimated budget 
for the Splash Pad Equipment Package. The unit cost of water features will be requested 
in the Unit Cost Pricing in the Bid Documents. The pricing shall include all design 
support costs, material, labor, equipment, freight costs and are subject to budget approval. 

PROJECT REQUIREMENTS and SPECIFICATIONS 

Proposer scope of services shall include, and be in accordance with:  

1. Meeting with Owner to discuss design details and secure final design approval within the 
submitted budget; 

2. Pre-award Presentation of plan to the Owner;  
3. Supply a list of component parts and replacement costs; and 

9.E.e

Packet Pg. 186



RFP – CBDG PHILLLPS PARK SPLASH PAD - 040621  Page 4 

4. Provide complete set of “As-Built” drawings (CAD file and PDF version), an Operation 
and Maintenance manual - for approval by the Owner, prior to release of final payment.  

5. Provide estimated annual operational costs of proposed designs. 
 

1.1 PRODUCT CONSTRUCTION  
 
Part 1: General Clauses  
 
The aquatic play products shall be suitable for installation in municipal and commercial 
aquatic facilities and public play areas. Products shall be specifically designed for the use by 
children and adults and follow the ASTM F2461-09 norm. In addition, products shall be 
manufactured by a company that has at least five (5) years of experience in the design and 
engineering of children’s aquatic play areas. Any aquatic play product belonging to a new 
product line or series should demonstrate meeting the effective norm or show the conformity 
and resistance of the prescribed materials if it is proposed equivalency. The contractor or 
manufacturer must demonstrate meeting specifications by providing technical documents and 
drawings to be included in their bid proposal.  
 

A. Play Products: All aquatic play products installed above and below grade shall be 
manufactured from 304/304L stainless steel. The anchoring system shall be 
manufactured from 304/304L stainless steel. Rigid centricast fiber reinforced (FRP) 
and/or molded fiberglass, PVC, filament wound tubing, Galvanized Steel, or 
Aluminum shall not be utilized for any above or below grade play product structures.  

B. Mounting and Assembly Hardware: All hardware and anchoring systems shall be 
304/304L or 316 stainless steel. All Play Products and Ground Spay systems shall 
include an integrated anchoring and leveling system facilitating installation and a 
flush surface finish. Exposed and accessible hardware shall be tamper resistant, 
requiring a special tool for removal to deter vandalism and theft.  

C. Spray nozzles, caps and heads: Shall be manufactured from lead free brass, 
UHMWPE or Polyurethane and shall use tamper resistant tools for installation and 
removal. PVC, Nylon, and Delrin™, shall not be utilized. All grade level play 
products are to be furnished with appropriate winterization caps.  

D. Painted Finish: Shall be a polyester smooth glossy heat-cured powder coat that is UV 
and chemical resistant and suitable for public spaces. Material for Paneling, Signage, 
Water Deflection, and Toe Guards: All Polyethylene, Polyurethane, Elastomers and 
Seeflow Polymers used for paneling, signage or water deflection shall be resistant to 
chlorinated water and be ultraviolet stabilized to inhibit sunlight fading.  

E. Safety & Craftsmanship: All accessible edges shall be machined to a rounded finish. 
All welds shall be watertight, buffed smooth or polished to a non-visible finish and 
factory pressure tested. Accessible nozzles and spray heads shall be recessed to 
ensure a completely safe play environment with no pinch points, head entrapments or 
protrusion hazards. All products shall be designed in accordance with ASTM F1487, 
ASTM F-2461 and CSA Z614-98 regulations for public playgrounds.  

F. Lexan Polymer: The Lexan Polymer shall be specially selected for aquatic play 
products and shall have the following characteristics: translucent, highly resistant to 
shock and impact vandalism and must be non-flammable. The polymer shall present 
dimensional stability a high resistance towards chemical products, ultra-violets rays 
and be transparent presenting crystal-clear surface throughout.  

G. Seeflow Polymer: The Seeflow Polymer shall be specially selected for aquatic play 
products and shall have the following characteristics: translucent, highly resistant to 
shock and impact vandalism and must be non-flammable. The polymer shall present 

9.E.e

Packet Pg. 187



RFP – CBDG PHILLLPS PARK SPLASH PAD - 040621  Page 5 

dimensional stability a high resistance towards chemical products, ultra-violets rays 
and be transparent presenting crystal clear surface throughout. 
 

1.2 PLAY 
 
Product Installation  
 

A. Safeswap Anchoring and leveling Systems: The Stainless Steel Safeswap Anchoring 
System shall provide the ability to add/remove/interchange select play products 
without having to incur any additional infrastructure costs. The anchoring system 
shall have an integrated leveling system facilitating installation and a flush finished to 
the activity deck surface without any protruding bolts or hardware. The Play Product 
shall be fastened directly to the Safeswap Anchoring system. The dead and live loads 
shall be distributed onto the Safeswap Anchoring system flange plate. A neoprene 
sealing gasket shall provide a watertight seal between the play product flange and 
Safeswap flange. Mechanical fastening of the Play Products to the activity deck slab 
shall be prohibited unless used on elevation with Toe Guards.  

B. Embedded Anchoring and leveling Systems: The anchoring system shall have an 
integrated leveling system facilitating installation, ensuring product is plumb and 
installed at the desired height. 

C. When applicable, templates shall be supplied to facilitate the installation of embedded 
anchoring equipment.  

D. All play products shall have electrical grounding studs incorporated into their 
associated anchoring equipment. All play products shall be grounded by the installer 
per local codes.  

E. All installation conduit wiring including electrical supply panel, PVC connections, 
piping, elbows, tees, play product assembly if required and other items relating to the 
installation shall be supplied by the general contractor.  

F. Drawings and Instructions: Product drawings and installation manuals shall be 
supplied by the manufacturer for ease of installation. 
 

1.3 PRODUCT DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING  
 

A. All aquatic play products and associated equipment must be properly wrapped and 
secured in place while in transport to the project site. Care shall be observed during 
offloading and handling to prevent excessive stress and abrasions.  

B. At the site, the play products and associated equipment are to be stored in safe areas, 
out of the way of traffic and other construction activities, until the actual time of 
installation. If required, safety barricades or other like precautions must be taken for 
the protection of public and adjacent property. 

C. Protective wrapping on the aquatic play features must be left in place until 
construction work for the Splashpad is complete. 

1.4 COMMISSIONING OF THE SPLASHPAD  
  

Upon completion of construction, the general contractor shall provide the owner/operator 
adequate training on facility operations and maintenance. The contractor may request that the 
equipment manufacturer and/or manufacturer’s representative provide on-site start-up and 
training for the owner/operator.  Provide evidence of commitment of quality craftsmanship as 
demonstrated by the following:  
 

9.E.e

Packet Pg. 188



RFP – CBDG PHILLLPS PARK SPLASH PAD - 040621  Page 6 

1.5 SPLASHPAD QUALITY ASSURANCE  
 

A. The products shall be designed and produced at a facility owned and directly supervised 
by the supplier. 

B. All products shall be shipped from a single source.  
C. A full-time licensed engineer must be on-staff.  
D. A full-time quality control manager must be on-staff.  
 

1.6 TESTING AND ADJUSTMENTS  
 

A. This Contractor shall test all equipment as necessary to show that it complies with all 
requirements specified. Testing shall be done in a manner approved by the Owner's 
representative.  

B. All water piping systems shall be flushed free of debris and pressure tested at 150% of 
operating pressure or 75psi minimum for discharge lines, 30p.s.i. minimum for suction 
lines, and 15p.s.i. minimum for drain lines, for a period of not less than four (4) hours, 
and proven free of leaks or other defects, prior to and after backfilling and concrete 
pours. Repair leaks and repeat test as necessary until satisfactory results are obtained.  

C. Splash Pad flow manifold assemblies shall be pressure tested to150 PSI for 30 minutes 
with zero leakage. Repair any leaks and retest until acceptable results are obtained.  

D. All electrical circuits, feeders, and equipment shall be tested and proven free of improper 
grounds, open circuits or shorts, as required by the authorities having jurisdiction, to 
demonstrate compliance with codes and laws.  

E. The Contractor shall place the installation in operation and make tests, adjustments, and 
corrections, until it is shown to be in proper operating condition.  

1.7 EQUIVALENCIES CLAUSES  

To enable all tenders to be judged equitably, they shall be based on the specified products in this 
document and shown on the drawings. 

A. The proposal for any substitute products must be attached to the bid or tender separately, 
identifying the substitute product by its trade name along with any savings it may 
represent for the client. 

B. Following the opening of the bid or tender, only those substitutes proposed by the lowest 
bidder of the specified products, will be considered.  

C. All substitute approval requests shall be accompanied by manufacturing drawings, 
including spray zones, sequencing, plumbing and electrical schematics and complete salt 
spray resisting testing data produced by an independent laboratory for coatings and a 
written warranty from the manufacturer. No substitution or equivalency submitted will be 
considered if products to be considered are not part of manufacturer standard 
 existing product line or a written proof that product has manufactured previously 
by the substitute manufacturer. Please refer to General Clauses 1.1  

D. Each substitute sample must be presented to the owner/consultant within seven days 
following the opening of tenders. The sample must be completely operational. After this 
time period, the bidder will be required to supply the original specified product.  

E. The owner/consultant reserves the right to grant or deny approval for proposed 
substitutions without prejudice to his rights and his decision shall be final. The above 
conditions apply to this section independently of any other clauses on the subject found in 
this document.  

9.E.e

Packet Pg. 189



RFP – CBDG PHILLLPS PARK SPLASH PAD - 040621  Page 7 

F. If applicable, the products must be interchangeable and of equivalent quality to the 
materials already installed. 

1.8 SPLASHPAD EQUIPMENT WARRANTIES  

A. Minimum Warranty periods  
 
Splashpad Play Events/Products & Skid Mounted Water Quality Management System 
Equipment  

1. A 25 Year Warranty on stainless steel Play Events/Products, stainless steel 
anchoring systems and aluminum spheres.   

2. A 10 Year Warranty on the reinforced fiberglass skid, sand filter fiberglass tank 
and cartridge filter fiberglass tank.  

3. A 5 Year Warranty on brass components including spray nozzles, spray caps and 
spray heads. High-density polyethylene components, polyurethane  components, 
and ultra-high molecular weight polyethylene components. The Subterranean 
vault (enclosure and access hatches), stainless steel automated water distribution 
manifold, drain boxes, strainers, electrical enclosures, and chemical controllers.  

4. A 2 Year Warranty on color coatings, stainless steel hardware & moving parts, 
fiberglass products, Seeflow Polymers, Soft Touch Elastomers (Toe Guards), 
subterranean water containments system, circulation pumps, chemical injection 
pumps, chlorinator systems, acid feed systems, polyvinyl chloride (PVC); piping, 
fittings, ball valves, check valves, cartridge elements, pressure gauges, chemical 
sensing probes, motor starters, electrical relays, terminal blocks, actuate valves, 
programmable logic controller (PLC controller), time switches, manual switches, 
transformers, breakers, electrical wiring and connections.  

5. All warranties are to be managed by the equipment supplier.  
 

B. Splashpad Design  
 
The details of the Splashpad design include, but are not limited to:  
 

1. Pad shall be sized with consideration to overall dedicated area indicated on the 
site drawing;  

2. Designed for a variety of ages, that includes a distinct separation of toddler splash 
features with school age splash features;  

3. Provide an interesting variety of spray and water features while being conscious 
of water conservation measures;  

4. Design includes nozzles, spray/ mist heads, spray caps and winter caps that are 
fastened with the ability to be removed from the play features using tamper 
resistant tools specifically designed for use with proprietary fixtures. The nozzle, 
spray heads, spray caps and winter caps are to be recessed into the spray amenity.  

5. Design includes consideration to the shape, configuration, and layout in order to 
minimize water spray drift onto adjacent areas or overspill onto the grass to 
minimize slippery or muddy areas.  

6. Designed and constructed to provide future ability for interchangeable above-
ground water features.  

7. Pad to provide a non-slip concrete surface.  
8. All electrical connections, grounding, connections for splash pad and features 

apparatus.  

9.E.e

Packet Pg. 190



RFP – CBDG PHILLLPS PARK SPLASH PAD - 040621  Page 8 

9. Multi-program sequencing and flow control on each splash pad apparatus (or 
equivalent);  

10. User-control features (e.g., push button start) and the ability to program the start 
and finish times of the water on and off demand basis.  

11. Control system flexibility to provide control of volume, length of time, and 
sequencing for all splash pad apparatus.  

12. Specify water consumption/unit time at given pressure for each spray feature; 
13. Provide all drainage piping and dichlorination unit. 
14. Flow-through system;  
15. Supply and install a double check backflow preventer;  
16. Undertake a final inspection;  
17. An orientation session on the electrical, mechanical and control systems prior to 

opening;  
18. A demonstration of the seasonal closing procedures for the splash pad;  
19. Return visit to start up the splash pad with County staff. 

Section 4 
Project Schedule Task 1 and Task 2 

The City of College Park is desirous of having the Splash Pad project complete on Labor Day 
Weekend 2021. Proposers are to provide a detailed project schedule outlining all sequencing and 
time.  
Work on this Project can be performed 24/7, unless otherwise specified.  

Cost Proposal Format Task 1 and Task 2 

Must provide a detailed price structure for the requested services, which will include unit prices 
as listed in specifications.  The Cost Proposal is to be submitted in a separate sealed envelope 
and marked “Cost Proposal.”  A detailed line-item price structure that equals the lump sum total 
is to be attached to the cost proposal form.  Any unused funds shall be refunded back to the 
Owner.  

EVALUATION AND SELECTION CRITERIA  

College Park’s selection of a firm shall be based upon the demonstrated competence and 
qualifications of the firms to provide the type of service required.  Each proposal will be 
evaluated and scored through a process by the City’s staff.  

The Proposer’s submittal must fully address the requirements listed in this solicitation and the 
Firm’s degree of experience, knowledge, and ability to provide experienced and qualified 
support staff.  The proposal is not to have any exclusions, conditions or provisions applied to the 
request.  

It is the City’s intention to select a firm which is the most qualified to meet the City’s needs. The 
award shall be based on but not limited to the following factors:  
  

9.E.e

Packet Pg. 191



RFP – CBDG PHILLLPS PARK SPLASH PAD - 040621  Page 9 

Proposal Evaluation Task 1 and Task 2 

RFP EVALUATION CRITERIA Scoring Value 
Maximum Points 

Relevant Experience and References  
• Description of comparable projects. 
• References for related work over the past three (3) years, 

including client name, mailing address, contact name and phone 
number, email address, and a description of the services provided, 
including project dates and special features. 

20 

Experience and Availability of Key/Assigned Staff 
• List of proposed personnel to be specifically assigned to this 

project, including their qualifications, overall experience on 
projects of similar scope, and résumé. 

• List of commitments of key team members and estimated 
completion dates by projects. 

10 

Project Schedule Detailed timeline for: 
• Task 1 Ticket Booth, Utility Building and Site Work 
• Task 2 Splash Pad construction and commissioning 

10 

Methodology and Technical Approach to the Project, Quality and 
Completeness of the Response of the Proposal.  

• Clear indication that all minimum requirements are met. 
• Quality of proposal that indicates clear understanding of scope of 

work. 
• Submission of concept drawings that provide a clear design 

solution. 
• Warranty: Warranty or guarantee will be offered on the product 

or service meets or exceeds requirements.  

30 

Cost Proposal 30 
MAXIMUM SCORING POINTS TOTAL 100 
Oral Presentation/Interview: 
At its sole discretion, the Evaluation Committee made up of city and 
community representatives may require an interview/presentation before 
the final selection and award to a Firm. Submittal of material and 
information during an interview/presentation could add up to 15 
additional points to the total score of the Firm. 

15 
(possible additional 

points if an oral 
presentation is requested) 

 
SPECIAL NOTE - the Proposal Cost will be evaluated as follows: 
 

1. Low Conforming Proposal   30 points  
2. Proposals within 5% of Low Proposal   25 points  
3. Proposals within 7% of Low Proposal   20 points  
4. All Other points 

Best and Final Offer Process represents an optional step in the selection process and may be used 
when: 

A. No single response addresses all the specifications. 
B. The cost submitted by all proposers is too high. 
C. The scores of two (2) or more proposers are very close after the evaluation process. 
D. All proposers submitted responses that are deficient in one or more area.  

9.E.e

Packet Pg. 192



RFP – CBDG PHILLLPS PARK SPLASH PAD - 040621  Page 10 

College Park reserves the right to remove the high score and the low score for each offer if 
deemed necessary. 

The City reserves the right to negotiate the fee and/or Scope of Services with the highest ranked 
Proposer.  If negotiations cannot be completed successfully, then the City reserves the right to 
negotiate with the second highest ranked Contractor.   Recommendations for an award will be 
the Proposer with whom potential contract negotiations were successful. 
 

9.E.e

Packet Pg. 193



RFP – CBDG PHILLLPS PARK SPLASH PAD - 040621  Page 11 

 

9.E.e

Packet Pg. 194



RFP – CDBG UTILITY BUILDING & SITE IMPROVEMENTS - 051221  Page 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSAL 

ADVERTISEMENT for CONSTRUCTION SERVICES 

RFP – CDBG UTILITY BUILDING & SITE IMPROVEMENTS - 051221 

The City of College Park is accepting sealed proposals from qualified vendors for CDBG 
UTILITY BUILDING & SITE IMPROVEMENTS.  Proposals will be received no later than 
WEDNESDAY, MAY 12, 2021 at 9:30 am (EST) at the City of College Park Purchasing 
Department, 3667 Main Street, College Park Georgia, 30337. Proposals received after the above 
date and time, or in any other location other than the Purchasing Department will not be considered.  

A bid packet may be obtained by clicking related solicitation link on the City of College Park 
website www.collegeparkga.com under the Bids / RFPs section. 

Timeline 

Q&A and Clarifications  
(email wmoody@collegeparkga.com) 
Ref: Utility Building & Site Improvements 

May 4, 2021 12:00 pm (EST) 
deadline 

Addendum(s) published May 7, 2021 4:00 pm (EST) 

Open Sealed Bids May 12, 2021 10:00 am (EST) 

Any/all addenda must be signed and dated and made a part of bid packet.  It is always the vendor’s 
responsibility to check the City of College Park’s website for any/all addenda. 

The City of College Park reserves the right to reject any or all bids based on past performance and 
to waive technicalities and informalities and re-advertise. All Minority, Woman and Small 
Businesses are strongly encouraged to apply. Only responsive bids that are determined to meet the 
requirements and criteria set forth by the City of College Park will be considered.  

9.E.f

Packet Pg. 195

http://www.collegeparkga.com/
mailto:wmoody@collegeparkga.com


RFP – CDBG UTILITY BUILDING & SITE IMPROVEMENTS - 051221  Page 2 

 
 

PURPOSE  

SPECIFICATION(s)/S.O.W. 

GENERAL PURPOSE 

The City of College Park is soliciting for qualified general contracting company(s) to provide 
construction service(s) for the complete a two-part construction project. This is for a Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) funded project. The company(s) will complete installation of 
a utility building and site improvements.  

A selection committee will evaluate the proposal responses and awarded based upon the 
respondent’s qualifications, experience and understanding of the scope of work to be performed. 
The firm selected will use construction documents prepared by Metrocorp Development 
Enterprises, Inc. 

SECTION I 
OVERVIEW/SPECIFICATIONS 

The City of College Park is searching for a qualified company(s) to complete the improvements 
proposed at Charles Phillips Park, 4400 Herschel Road, College Park, Georgia 30337.  

Base Proposal 

1. Utility Building:  
a. The work shall consist of the construction of 240 s.f. Utility building to house 

pumps and provide chemical storage including lighting, electrical outlets, power 
panel to serve Splash pad, Site Lighting and Ticket Both pursuant to construction 
documents.  

b. The contractor shall provide as the pump room flooring is being poured, a 36" x 
18" rectangle opening in the flooring for a "block out". This will ensure the lines 
will be underground go from the pump room flooring and under the sidewalks, to 
the pad. Coordination with Splashpad contractor will be required to locate the ideal 
block out. 

c. Required concrete testing shall be included as required. 
2. Site Grading, Pavement & Drainage: 

a. The work shall consist of Walkaway (est. area 2000 s.f.) and Stamped concrete (est. 
area 500 S.F.) Construction installation of pavement flume including associated 
demolition, clearing, and grading, earthwork, erosion and sediment control, sod 
installation disturbed areas and restoration of existing structures impacted pursuant 
to construction documents. 

b. The rough grading elevation for this shall be established at this adjusted elevation 
(finished grade – depth of splash pad concrete). The splash pad concrete depth is 
six inches and compacted to meet 98% standard proctor. 

3. Site Utilities: 
a. Water Service line: The work shall consist of the installation of 1- inch water 

service line connection to existing water line approximately 276 linear feet of 
Schedule 80 PVC pipe including 1-inch meter and backflow preventer and tapping 
fees ($1,700) within ten feet of splash pad connection pursuant to construction 
documents. Required test and disinfection of lines shall be included as required. 

9.E.f

Packet Pg. 196



RFP – CDBG UTILITY BUILDING & SITE IMPROVEMENTS - 051221  Page 3 

b. Sewer Service line: The work shall consist of the installation of 6-inch sewer 
service line connection to existing sewer approximately 242 linear feet of Schedule 
PVC pipe including manhole and pavement cut and restoration and connection fees 
($1,500) within ten feet of splash pad connection pursuant to construction 
documents. Required testing shall be included as required. 

c. Power: The electrician shall install meter equipment and install the Utility 
secondary service entrance feeder installation to include conduit and conductors 
from transformer to the building not to exceed 25 feet. The City of College Park 
Power utility shall be responsible for the underground primary and transformer. 
The City of College Park Power will determine the location for the underground 
primary and transformer and an allowance amount of ($642.00) will be established 
and paid to the City. We have established the “Utility secondary service entrance 
feeder installation to include conduit and conductors” as a unit price item to be pay 
for actual linear feet quantity installed if the distance required beyond the 
established 25 feet maximum limit.  

Unit Price Bid Items 

The following items shall not be included in the base bid and will be considered accordingly based 
on the unit bid price amount: 

1. Ticket Booth 48 s.f. Prefabricated Metal Model PC* building Allowance ($29,000.00) 
pursuant to construction documents (Lump Sum).  

2. Ticket Booth 48 s.f. CMU Building Alternate Bid (Lump Sum): 
a. The work shall consist of the construction of 48 s.f. Ticket Booth with CMU 

material instead of prefabricated metal. 
b. The same floor plan, elevations, electrical, HVAC, counters, doors, windows and 

flooring and building specifications pursuant to construction documents.  
c. Stamped Shop drawings, electrical and HVAC and permits included as required. 
d. Exterior/Interior Painting shall be included as required. 

3. Ticket Booth Installation 48 s.f. Prefabricated Metal Model PC* building (Lump Sum). 
The contractor shall be responsible for the following: 

a. Pour a concrete island (ticket booth foundation slab) minimum 4” deep. The island 
should be a minimum of 12” wider than the roofline dimensions to allow a 6” 
concrete border on each side of the building roofline. Level the pad and install a 
bollard at each corner of the building to further protect the building from damage 
caused by traffic.  

b. Provide three-wire 240v/110v single-phase service to the concrete island. Refer to 
PKBS detail drawings, which illustrate the proper “stub-up” location.  

c. Buildings arrive via flatbed truck. The trucker must contact you 24-hours prior to 
deliver to arrange for off-loading. Use either a forklift truck (with fork-extensions 
when required) or overhead crane to off-load the building from the flatbed. If an 
overhead crane is used, be sure to use “spreader bars” to prevent the building 
fascia/roof from being damaged by the sling/straps. Square the building on the pad 
and anchor. 

d. Recommended concrete anchor is ½” x 4” galvanized or stainless steel or comply 
with local codes – whichever is most stringent.  

e. Make final electrical connections and clean the work area. 
f. Install downspouts as shown on building on site as required.  

4. Security Fencing (Lump Sum): 

9.E.f

Packet Pg. 197



RFP – CDBG UTILITY BUILDING & SITE IMPROVEMENTS - 051221  Page 4 

5. The work shall consist of est. 330 lin. feet 4 feet high decorative fence including the 
entrance/exit gate with signage (Entrance/Exit fencing is 5 feet high and 5 feet high 
transitional fencing between the two gates) and two additional 4 feet high access gates and 
a security and general hardware allowance of ($1,500) to be constructed pursuant to 
construction documents.  

6. Site Security Lighting (Lump Sum): 
a. Security Fencing with Entrance/Exit Gate two access gates and signage 
b. The work shall consist of est. 330 lin. feet 4 feet high decorative fence including 

the entrance/exit gate with signage (Entrance/Exit fencing is 5 feet high and 5 feet 
high transitional fencing between the two gates) and two additional 4 feet high 
access gates with security and general hardware to be constructed pursuant to 
construction documents. Electrical grounding shall be included. Note: The security 
and general hardware allowance ($1,500) is for owner requested upgrades. 

SECTION II 
PROJECT SCOPE STATEMENT 

Scope of Work  

Proposers will be expected to provide, a high degree of coordination between the splash pad 
contractor and City of College Park. 

1. Insurance Requirements – See City of College Park Bid Documents 
2. Bond Requirements – See City of College Park Bid Documents 
3. Community Development Block Grant Requirements – See City of College Park Bid 

Documents 

This Request for Proposal consists of: 

1. General construction of CDBG College Park splash pad project in accordance with 
drawings and specifications prepared by Metrocorp Development Enterprises Inc. 

2. In conjunction with the general construction to augment the Splash Pad construction to be 
performed under separate contract. The site work will include the provision of utilities to 
within ten (10) feet of the designated connection points for the Splash Pad.  

SECTION III 
TECHNICAL PROPOSAL FORMAT 

Provide four (4) sections under separate tabs as follows: 

Section 1 – Executive Summary 

The executive summary shall include a brief statement of approach to the work, understanding of 
the project’s goals and objectives and demonstrated understanding of the potential problems and 
concerns. 

Section 2 – Company’s Qualifications and Relevant Project Experience  

A. Firm or Firms’ Information  
1. Firm local name, address, and telephone number 
2. Primary local contact person(s) and telephone number(s) 
3. Total number of firm's local full-time employees 
4. Year firm established. 

9.E.f

Packet Pg. 198



RFP – CDBG UTILITY BUILDING & SITE IMPROVEMENTS - 051221  Page 5 

5. Listing, description and outcome of all litigation involving the proposer in the last 
five (5) years. 

B. Experience:  
Provide no more than 3-5 examples of your experience as prime contractor in constructing 
facilities like this project (OR other public and private projects that indicate similar 
experience). 

C. References:  
Include references for related work over the past three (3) years, including client name, 
mailing address, contact name and phone number, email address, and a description of the 
services provided, including project dates and special features. 

Section 3 – Project Schedule  

The City of College Park is desirous of having the Splash Pad project complete on Labor Day 
Weekend 2021. Proposers are to provide a detailed project schedule outlining all sequencing and 
time. Work on this Project can be performed 24/7, unless otherwise specified.  

Section 4 – Cost Proposal Format  

Must provide a detailed price structure for the requested services, which will include unit prices as 
listed in specifications.  The Cost Proposal is to be submitted in a separate sealed envelope and 
marked “Cost Proposal.”  A detailed line-item price structure that equals the lump sum total is to 
be attached to the cost proposal form.  Any unused funds shall be refunded back to the Owner.  

 
  

9.E.f

Packet Pg. 199



RFP – CDBG UTILITY BUILDING & SITE IMPROVEMENTS - 051221  Page 6 

SECTION IV 
EVALUATION AND SELECTION CRITERIA 

College Park’s selection of a firm shall be based upon the demonstrated competence and 
qualifications of the firms to provide the type of service required.  Each proposal will be 
evaluated and scored through a process by the City’s staff.  

The Proposer’s submittal must fully address the requirements listed in this solicitation and the 
Firm’s degree of experience, knowledge, and ability to provide experienced and qualified 
support staff.  The proposal is not to have any exclusions, conditions or provisions applied to the 
request.  

It is the City’s intention to select a firm which is the most qualified to meet the City’s needs. The 
award shall be based on but not limited to the following factors:  

Proposal Evaluation  

Evaluation Criteria Scoring Value 
Max Point 

Relevant Experience and References 
� Description of comparable projects. 
� References for related work over the past three (3) years, 

including client name, mailing address, contact name and phone 
number, email address, and a description of the services 
provided, including project dates and special features. 

20 

Experience and Availability of Key/Assigned Staff 
� List of proposed personnel to be specifically assigned to this 

project, including their qualifications, overall experience on 
projects of similar scope, and résumé. 

� List of commitments of key team members and estimated 
completion dates by projects. 

10 

Project Schedule Detailed timeline for: 
� General construction 10 

Methodology and Technical Approach to the Project, Quality and 
Completeness of the Response of the Proposal.  

� Clear indication that all minimum requirements are met. 
� Quality of proposal that indicates clear understanding of scope of 

work. 
30 

Cost Proposal 30 
Maximum Points Allowed 100 

SPECIAL NOTE - the Proposal Cost will be evaluated as follows: 

� Low Conforming Proposal      30 points  
� Proposals within 5% of Low Proposal 25 points  
� Proposals within 7% of Low Proposal    20 points  
� All Other points  

9.E.f

Packet Pg. 200



RFP – CDBG UTILITY BUILDING & SITE IMPROVEMENTS - 051221  Page 7 

Best and Final Offer Process represents an optional step in the selection process and may be used 
when: 

A. No single response addresses all the specifications. 
B. The cost submitted by all proposers is too high. 
C. The scores of two (2) or more proposers are very close after the evaluation process. 
D. All proposers submitted responses that are deficient in one or more area.  

College Park reserves the right to remove the high score and the low score for each offer if 
deemed necessary.   

The City reserves the right to negotiate the fee and/or Scope of Services with the highest ranked 
Proposer.  If negotiations cannot be completed successfully, then the City reserves the right to 
negotiate with the second highest ranked Contractor. Recommendations for an award will be the 
Proposer with whom potential contract negotiations were successful. 
 

9.E.f

Packet Pg. 201



An offi cial proposal from Great Southern isn’t limited to parts from a catalog. 
We’ve made a plan for the long-term performance and legacy of the space 
you’re building. You’ll want to make sure your playground is Southern-built ™  .

Exclusive GSR Labor-backed Warranty: Your warranty doesn’t stop with the 
manufacturer. We match their warranty with one of our own. While a warranty 
scenario is rare, you won’t be stuck installing parts yourself and left to hope the 
repair is compliant with federal guidelines. GSR will ship your warrantied parts 
and perform the replacement... for the entire life of the warranty.

The Team Approach: We don’t dump your project on an installer you’ve never 
met. In all phases of your project you’ll have full access to your personal Territory 
Manager, GSR Safety and Operations Manager, Lead Installers, President and 
Company Owner.

Personal Investment: Everyone connected to your project is personally invested 
and follows the GSR mantra of being proud of the work they leave behind.

Compliance: Your installation will be completed by certifi ed professionals 
holding an up-to-date CPSI certifi cate. Whether our in-house crews or a certifi ed 
subcontractor we’ve worked with for years, you’re in good hands. Your playground 
will be in compliance with all ASTM, CPSC and ADA guidelines.

Truly turn-key: Your installation includes shipping, unloading, staging, assembly 
and fi nishing. When we say “turn-key”, we won’t send you a list of exclusions and 
things you’re responsible for.

Certified Southern-built™ Installation

GreatSouthernRec.com 1.800.390.8438       Info@GreatSouthernRec.com

You’re in the right place. Your better world, starts right here.

9.E.g

Packet Pg. 202



9.E.g

Packet Pg. 203



RFP – CBDG PHILLIPS PARK SPLASH PAD (Task 2) - 040621  Page 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSAL 

ADVERTISEMENT for CONSTRUCTION SERVICES 

RFP – CBDG PHILLIPS PARK SPLASH PAD - 040621 

OWNER’S PROPOSAL FORM (Revised March 31, 2021) 
 

OWNER: City of College Park 

3667 Main Street 

College Park, GA 30337 

  

PROJECT: CDBG Charles Phillips Park Splash Pad Facility (Task 2) 

4400 Herschel Road 

College Park, Georgia 30337 

DATE: _________________________________________________________ 

1. The Undersigned, as Respondent, declares the only person interested in the Proposal as 

Principal is as named below, and no other person has any interest in this Proposal or in 

the Contract to be entered into; and this Proposal is in all respects fair and in good faith. 

 

Respondent further declares he has examined the site of Work and informed himself fully 

in regard to all conditions pertaining to the place where the work is to be done, and he has 

examined the Drawings and Specifications, including Addenda Nos. ________________ 

for the work and the other Contract Documents, and has satisfied himself relative to the 

Work to be performed. 

 

In compliance with your Request for Proposal (RFP) and subject to all the conditions of 

thereof: 

 

The undersigned, ____________________, Georgia License No. ____________, 

Classification ___________________, a Corporation organized and existing under the 

laws of the State of ___________________, or a Partnership consisting of 

____________________________, or an Individual trading as 

_________________________________________, of the City of 

________________________, hereby proposes to furnish all labor and materials and 

perform all work required for the General Construction of the College Park Police 

Precinct No. 01 in accordance with Drawings and Specifications dated 

________________ prepared by METROCORP DEVELOPMENT ENTERPRISES INC.  

 

BASE PROPOSAL AMOUNT: (For construction complete as shown and specified, the 

sum of (in words) 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

Dollars ($ ______________________________________________________________). 

April 5th, 2021

1 and 2

Kyle Peggram GCQA007121
General Contractor

Georgia

Murfreesboro

3-31-21

Three Hundred and thirty nine thousand, nine hundred and fifty one, and twenty four cents.
$339,951.24

9.E.g

Packet Pg. 204



RFP – CBDG PHILLIPS PARK SPLASH PAD (Task 2) - 040621  Page 2 

 

The Base Proposal Amount includes the cost of all bonds required under the proposed 

Contract Documents, and the cost of all provisions of the General Requirements, 

including the General Conditions and the Supplementary Conditions, and the 10% 

Contingency). 
 

UNIT PRICE SCHEDULE 

Base Proposal Amount shall include all work described in the project construction documents 

and items described below. The Total unit price above shall consist of Unit Price items : 

No Item U/M 
Est. 

Qty. 
Unit Price Total Price 

1 

COMMERCIAL FEATURES / STAINLESS 

STEEL (NAME, GPM, MFR, CATALOG NO.) 
EA    

2 

GROUND SPRAYS (NAME, GPM, MFR, 

CATALOG NO.) 
EA    

3 

FORMED GROUND SPRAYS (NAME, GPM, 

MFR, CATALOG NO.) 
EA    

Note: Please provide unit price for each item proposed above.  

 

  

WaterPlay

WaterPlay -(Full details included in Mechanical
workbook)

WaterPlay -(Full details included in Mechanical workbook)

WaterPlay -(Full details included in Mechanical workbook

13

5

11 $6,886

$4,475

$626 average

7,774 average $101,062

$895 average

9.E.g

Packet Pg. 205



RFP – CBDG PHILLIPS PARK SPLASH PAD (Task 2) - 040621  Page 3 

 

2. TIME OF COMPLETION  

 

Time is of the essence of this contract.  Contractor shall commence work immediately after 

Notice to Proceed (NTP) and shall Substantially Complete the Construction within [insert 

#________] consecutive days as requested by the Owner as illustrated by the Architects 

and Consulting Engineers in their Plans and Technical Specifications. 

 

In submitting this proposal, I further agree: 

a. That this proposal will not be modified, withdrawn or canceled during the 90-day 

period following the time and date designated for the receipt of proposals. 

b. The Owner reserves the right to waive any information in any proposal, or to reject 

any or all proposals, in whole or in part, and to accept the proposal most 

advantageous to the Owner, should it be deemed in his best interest to do so. 

c. To execute and deliver the formal contract to the Owner with bonds and proof of 

insurance coverages.  Delivery will be made within ten (10) days of receipt of 

written notice or acceptance of this proposal, with or without Alternates or other 

agreed-upon modifications. 

d. Proposal Security, payable to the Owner in the amount of five percent (5%) of the 

Base Proposal, is enclosed and is the measure of liquidated damages, which the 

Owner will sustain in the event the Contract and Bonds are not executed within the 

time set forth above. 

e. The undersigned further agrees that in case of failure on his part to execute the 

Contract Agreement and required Contract Bonds within ten (10) consecutive 

calendar days after being given written notice of the Award of the Contract, the 

Respondent’s Bond accompanying this Proposal is callable and the surety will be 

called upon by the Owner for the liquidation; otherwise, the Bond accompanying 

this Proposal shall be returned to the undersigned. 

  

120 days 

9.E.g

Packet Pg. 206



RFP – CBDG PHILLIPS PARK SPLASH PAD (Task 2) - 040621  Page 4 

 

Signed and sealed this ________ day of __________________________ 2021 

Name of Respondent: 

By: 

 

Title: 

 

Business Address: 

 

 

 

 

 

Telephone: 

 

 

(CORPORATE SEAL) 

 

STATE OF (___________________) 

COUNTY OF (___________________) 

 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this ________ day of __________________________ 2021 

Notary Public ____________________________________________ 

My Commission Expires:  ____________________ 

 

Attachment: Proposal (Bid) Bond 

  

9.E.g

Packet Pg. 207



RFP – CBDG PHILLIPS PARK SPLASH PAD (Task 2) - 040621  Page 5 

BASE PROPOSAL BREAKDOWN 

TASK 2 

 

Division Name Price $ 

Division 01 - Contract Requirements/General Requirements  

Division 13 - Special Construction – Splash Pad per Design/Build 

Requirements 
 

  

TOTAL (Divisions 0-33) 

Contingency At 10% for Items in Divisions 01 and 13 above 
 

  

TOTAL BASE PROPOSAL  

 

  

$339,951.24

none taken

$339,951.24

9.E.g

Packet Pg. 208



RFP – CBDG PHILLIPS PARK SPLASH PAD (Task 2) - 040621  Page 6 

 

 

 

 

Form of Proposal  

(Task 2) 

 

To:  The City of College Park 

 College Park, GA  30337 

 

I/We the undersigned hereby offer and agree to supply and deliver the service(s) as outlined in the 

Request for Proposal documents. The signatures(s) below dignify the I/We have read and agree with 

the procedures outlined in the Request for Proposal documents. 

 

Proposal Submitted By: 

Company Name  

Address  

City, State, Zip  

Phone  

Email  

Website  

  

Print/Type Name  

Signature  

Title  

Date  

 

Great Southern Recreation

2441-Q Old Fort Parkway #462

Murfreesboro, TN 37128
470-298-2428

Kyle@greatsouthernrec.com
greatsouthernrec.com

Kyle Peggram

Territory Manager

April 5th, 2021

9.E.g

Packet Pg. 209



9.E.g

Packet Pg. 210



9.E.g

Packet Pg. 211



9.E.g

Packet Pg. 212



RFP – CBDG PHILLIPS PARK SPLASH PAD (Task 2) - 040621  Page 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSAL 

ADVERTISEMENT for CONSTRUCTION SERVICES 

RFP – CBDG PHILLIPS PARK SPLASH PAD - 040621 

OWNER’S PROPOSAL FORM 
 

OWNER: City of College Park 

3667 Main Street 

College Park, GA 30337 

  

PROJECT: CDBG Charles Phillips Park Splash Pad Facility (Task 2) 

4400 Herschel Road 

College Park, Georgia 30337 

DATE: _________________________________________________________ 

1. The Undersigned, as Respondent, declares the only person interested in the Proposal as 

Principal is as named below, and no other person has any interest in this Proposal or in 

the Contract to be entered into; and this Proposal is in all respects fair and in good faith. 

 

Respondent further declares he has examined the site of Work and informed himself fully 

in regard to all conditions pertaining to the place where the work is to be done, and he has 

examined the Drawings and Specifications, including Addenda Nos. ________________ 

for the work and the other Contract Documents, and has satisfied himself relative to the 

Work to be performed. 

 

In compliance with your Request for Proposal (RFP) and subject to all the conditions of 

thereof: 

 

The undersigned, ____________________, Georgia License No. ____________, 

Classification ___________________, a Corporation organized and existing under the 

laws of the State of ___________________, or a Partnership consisting of 

____________________________, or an Individual trading as 

_________________________________________, of the City of 

________________________, hereby proposes to furnish all labor and materials and 

perform all work required for the General Construction of the College Park Police 

Precinct No. 01 in accordance with Drawings and Specifications dated 

________________ prepared by METROCORP DEVELOPMENT ENTERPRISES INC.  

 

BASE PROPOSAL AMOUNT: (For construction complete as shown and specified, the 

sum of (in words) 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

Dollars ($ ______________________________________________________________). 

1 and 2

GCQA007121
LLC

Tennessee

Kyle Peggram of Great Southern Recreation

Murfreesboro

April 5th, 2021

9.E.g

Packet Pg. 213



RFP – CBDG PHILLIPS PARK SPLASH PAD (Task 2) - 040621  Page 2 

 

The Base Proposal Amount includes the cost of all bonds required under the proposed 

Contract Documents, and the cost of all provisions of the General Requirements, 

including the General Conditions and the Supplementary Conditions, and the 10% 

Contingency). 
 

UNIT PRICE SCHEDULE 

Base Proposal Amount shall include all work described in the project construction documents 

and items described below. The Total unit price above shall consist of Unit Price items : 

No Item U/M 
Est. 

Qty. 
Unit Price Total Price 

1 

COMMERCIAL FEATURES / STAINLESS 

STEEL (NAME, GPM, MFR, CATALOG NO.) 
EA    

2 

GROUND SPRAYS (NAME, GPM, MFR, 

CATALOG NO.) 
EA    

3 

FORMED GROUND SPRAYS (NAME, GPM, 

MFR, CATALOG NO.) 
EA    

Note: Please provide unit price for each item proposed above.  

 

  

9.E.g

Packet Pg. 214



RFP – CBDG PHILLIPS PARK SPLASH PAD (Task 2) - 040621  Page 3 

 

2. TIME OF COMPLETION  

 

Time is of the essence of this contract.  Contractor shall commence work immediately after 

Notice to Proceed (NTP) and shall Substantially Complete the Construction within [insert 

#________] consecutive days as requested by the Owner as illustrated by the Architects 

and Consulting Engineers in their Plans and Technical Specifications. 

 

In submitting this proposal, I further agree: 

a. That this proposal will not be modified, withdrawn or canceled during the 90-day 

period following the time and date designated for the receipt of proposals. 

b. The Owner reserves the right to waive any information in any proposal, or to reject 

any or all proposals, in whole or in part, and to accept the proposal most 

advantageous to the Owner, should it be deemed in his best interest to do so. 

c. To execute and deliver the formal contract to the Owner with bonds and proof of 

insurance coverages.  Delivery will be made within ten (10) days of receipt of 

written notice or acceptance of this proposal, with or without Alternates or other 

agreed-upon modifications. 

d. Proposal Security, payable to the Owner in the amount of five percent (5%) of the 

Base Proposal, is enclosed and is the measure of liquidated damages, which the 

Owner will sustain in the event the Contract and Bonds are not executed within the 

time set forth above. 

e. The undersigned further agrees that in case of failure on his part to execute the 

Contract Agreement and required Contract Bonds within ten (10) consecutive 

calendar days after being given written notice of the Award of the Contract, the 

Respondent’s Bond accompanying this Proposal is callable and the surety will be 

called upon by the Owner for the liquidation; otherwise, the Bond accompanying 

this Proposal shall be returned to the undersigned. 

  

120
120 Days

9.E.g

Packet Pg. 215



RFP – CBDG PHILLIPS PARK SPLASH PAD (Task 2) - 040621  Page 4 

 

Signed and sealed this ________ day of __________________________ 2021 

Name of Respondent: 

By: 

 

Title: 

 

Business Address: 

 

 

 

 

 

Telephone: 

 

 

(CORPORATE SEAL) 

 

STATE OF (___________________) 

COUNTY OF (___________________) 

 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this ________ day of __________________________ 2021 

Notary Public ____________________________________________ 

My Commission Expires:  ____________________ 

 

Attachment: Proposal (Bid) Bond 

  

Kyle Peggram

Territory Manager

2441-Q Old Fort Road #462

Murfreesboro, TN 37128

470-298-2428

5th April

5th April

Tennessee

Rutherford

9.E.g

Packet Pg. 216



RFP – CBDG PHILLIPS PARK SPLASH PAD (Task 2) - 040621  Page 5 

BASE PROPOSAL BREAKDOWN 

TASK 2 

 

Division Name Price $ 

Division 01 - Contract Requirements/General Requirements  

Division 13 - Special Construction – Splash Pad per Design/Build 

Requirements 
 

  

TOTAL (Divisions 0-33) 

Contingency At 10% for Items in Divisions 01 and 13 above 
 

  

TOTAL BASE PROPOSAL  

 

  

9.E.g

Packet Pg. 217



RFP – CBDG PHILLIPS PARK SPLASH PAD (Task 2) - 040621  Page 6 

 

 

 

 

Form of Proposal  

(Task 2) 

 

To:  The City of College Park 

 College Park, GA  30337 

 

I/We the undersigned hereby offer and agree to supply and deliver the service(s) as outlined in the 

Request for Proposal documents. The signatures(s) below dignify the I/We have read and agree with 

the procedures outlined in the Request for Proposal documents. 

 

Proposal Submitted By: 

Company Name  

Address  

City, State, Zip  

Phone  

Email  

Website  

  

Print/Type Name  

Signature  

Title  

Date  

 

Great Southern Recreation

2441-Q Old Fort Parkway #462

Murfreesboro, TN, 37128

470-298-2428

Kyle@greatsouthernrec.com

Greatsouthernrec.com

Territory Manager

4-5-2021

9.E.g

Packet Pg. 218



9.E.g

Packet Pg. 219



9.E.g

Packet Pg. 220



9.E.g

Packet Pg. 221



 
 

 

WWWWATERPLAYATERPLAYATERPLAYATERPLAY®®®®    PPPPRODUCT RODUCT RODUCT RODUCT WWWWARRANTYARRANTYARRANTYARRANTY    

Waterplay Solutions Corp.® (Waterplay) is committed to delivering the highest quality products on the 

market.  Waterplay features are built with the best materials, to the most stringent manufacturing standards. 

Our personal pride and construction confidence are backed by the following warranties: 

Material Warranty        

� Stainless Steel Piping & Weldments             25 years    

� Aluminum Materials      10 years    

� Acetyl Nozzles, Urethane/HDPE    5 years        

� Fiberglass, Acrylic & Polycarbonate Materials    2 years    

� Stainless Steel Hardware     2 years      

� Concrete (play features only)     1 year    

� Decals (out of reach of patrons )    1 year    

 

Water Distribution Warranty       

� Water Distribution Skid      10 years 

� Water Distribution & Recirculation Equipment   2 years    

� Electrical Controllers & Activator Switches   2 years     

� Kiosk Contents & Hardware     2 years       

 

Play Feature Warranty            

� Sound Components      2 years    

� Moving Parts       2 years 

� LED Components      1 year    

 

Play Feature Finish Warranty     

� Powder Coated       2 years     

� Painted (Airbrushed Graphics)     2 years    

 

This warranty does not cover any damage caused by accident, improper care, negligence, normal wear and 

tear, surface corrosion on metal parts, discolored surfaces and other cosmetic issues or failures due to 

misuse or vandalism. Natural fading in feature finish over time are considered cosmetic issues and not 

covered. Features installed in indoor aquatic facilities, coastal areas and areas with high heat and humidity 

will encounter more discoloring and cosmetic issues. 

 

Waterplay staff and/or appointed service agents are prepared with guidelines for maintenance and rapid 

response assistance should anything go awry.  With our reliable support and quality products, Waterplay 

takes pride in knowing that our customers have a quality system that runs without interruption.  Waterplay 

offers an option to extend your standard warranty on the control panel to 3, 4 or 5 years.  Extended warranty 

9.E.g

Packet Pg. 222



May 2, 2016 
 

2 

 

commences at expiration of the standard 2 year warranty period and must be purchased by the time the 

park is commissioned or within 12 months of goods received on site, whichever comes first.   

SSSSAFETYAFETYAFETYAFETY    

In situations where Waterplay products are utilized for any purpose other than those approved by Waterplay, 

the customer will be held fully responsible.  In addition, Waterplay will not be held responsible for the 

operation, function, performance, misuse, injuries, or claims resulting from any other products installed 

within proximity to water structures manufactured by Waterplay. 

CCCCONDITIONSONDITIONSONDITIONSONDITIONS    

1. Park registration process must be complete prior to a warranty claim being processed 

http://www.waterplay.com/en/park-registration/ 

2. All warranties commence upon receipt of goods on site and are only valid if Waterplay equipment is 

installed in accordance with Waterplay specifications and installation instructions. Waterplay will not 

cover warranty issues resulting from installation errors. 

3. Modifications to Waterplay equipment without prior written approval will void all warranties covered by 

this document.  

4. Warranties are limited to the value of parts and components sold. The client is responsible for the cost of 

removing and replacing warranted parts/features, the cost for shipping of warranty items to the client 

site and the return of defect items to Waterplay (if required). 

5. All warranty claims against shipping damages or missing parts will be in accordance with the Terms & 

Conditions of the Purchase Agreement. 

6. It is the responsibility of the owner to inspect all aspects of their facility at regular intervals.  All 

maintenance shall be performed in accordance with the Waterplay Owner’s Manual and documented in 

an approved log book. 

7. Waterplay does not assume responsibility for damage resulting from extreme weather conditions such as 

flooding, fires, lightning or any act of force majeure. Waterplay does not warrant defects or damage 

caused by water supply or quality of utilities nor does it warrant landscaping, site amenities or surfacing 

in areas where Waterplay products are installed. 

8. Any warranty issues are governed by the laws of the province of British Columbia, Canada. 

9. Warranty claims will only be processed for accounts considered to be in good standing at the time the 

claim is made. 

10. The foregoing warranties are exclusive and in lieu of all other warranties. There shall be no liability for 

incidental or consequential damages.  

11. Waterplay reserves the right to develop, improve, change or discontinue any product and/or specification 

without notice and is has no obligation to retrofit these changes into existing parks. 

9.E.g

Packet Pg. 223



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8923  

Updated: 6/15/2021 4:05 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: June 15, 2021 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Mercedes Miller, Interim City Manager 

 

FROM: Denise Cole, Interim GICC Executive Director 

 

RE:  On Event Services, LLC Approval of Service Agreement 

 

 

PURPOSE:  To continue the superior level of service with a proven vendor for our clients. On 

Event Services (OnSite) has delivered consistent turn-key services for our clients for more than a 

decade. A RFQ was issued and out of three applicants, only one, On Event Services responded. 

See attached supporting documents.  

 

REASON: To maintain the high quality of audio visual services that are associated with GICC. 

OnSite Audio Visual is best choice to deliver the consistent services our clients are accustomed 

to receiving that is built on confidence and delivery. This company is revenue generating based.  

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approval by the Honorable Mayor and Council of the one-year 

contract. 

 

BACKGROUND:   
 

YEARS OF SERVICE:   N/A 

 

COST TO CITY:  No cost to the City of College Park. This is a revenue item. 

 

BUDGETED ITEM:   Yes. Acct#555-0000-34-5180 - Audio Visual Commissions 

 

REVENUE TO CITY:  Prior to the pandemic revenues 2018 & 2019 $300,000+ per year 

 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING DATE:  June 21, 2021 

 

CONSIDERATION BY OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES:   

 

AFFECTED AGENCIES:   
 

9.F

Packet Pg. 224



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8923)  Meeting of June 21, 2021 

Updated: 6/15/2021 4:05 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 2 

RELATIONSHIP TO EXISTING ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTION:   
 

REQUIRED CHANGES TO WORK PROGRAMS:   
 

 

STAFF:   
 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 ON Event Services (OnSite) 2021 Contract Renew Request (DOCX) 

 Agenda Memo ID #2021-8923 - RFQ - GICC AUDIO VISUAL SERVICE - 060821 (PDF) 

 RFQ - GICC AUDIO VISUAL SERVICE - Specs (PDF) 

 GICC AUDIO VISUAL SERVICES 060821 RFQ Digital Copy 06022021RAC - Copy (ON 

Site) (PDF) 

 

Review: 

 Denise Cole Completed 06/15/2021 9:15 AM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 06/15/2021 9:17 AM 

 Willis Moody Completed 06/15/2021 10:15 AM 

 City Attorney's Office Completed 06/16/2021 1:42 PM 

 Mercedes Miller Completed 06/16/2021 1:57 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 06/21/2021 7:30 PM 

9.F

Packet Pg. 225



 
 

     CONVENTION CENTER MEMORANDUM NO. 2021-10  
        

 
DATE:     June 11, 2021 

    

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Council 

     

FROM:  Denise Cole, Interim Executive Director 

   

THROUGH:   Mercedes Miller, Interim City Manager 

  

SUBJECT:      Request Approval to Renew On Event Services (OnSite) Audio Visual Contract 

 
The Georgia International Convention Center is seeking approval of Mayor and Council to 

renew the one-year contract with On Event Services (OnSite) beginning July 1, 2021, with an 

expiration date of June 30, 2022.  Our relationship with OnSite has been effective as they are 

familiar with our client’s needs and continue to consistently deliver superior service. 

Comparatively speaking, they out deliver their competition.  

 

An RFQ was issued and out of three applicants only On Event Services submitted a bid. On Site 

is a turnkey operation that has experienced staffing, in-house inventory & staging capabilities 

that delivers reliable professional services to the GICC and our clients year after year.  

 

As the workplace returns to our “new normal”, OnSite will continue to be a valuable asset for us. 

There is no learning curve or acclimation period, and we can move forward with OnSite as a key 

business partner. I therefore ask that Mayor and Council approve the renewal contract with On 

Event Services (OnSite).  

 

 
 

 

  

 

9.F.a

Packet Pg. 226



 

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
PO BOX 87137 • COLLEGE PARK, GA  30337 • (404) 767-1537 

 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM  
NO. 2021-8923 

DATE: JUNE 15, 2021 

TO: OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER 

FROM: WILLIS MOODY, PURCHASING & FLEEET ADMINISTRATOR 

SUBJECT: RFQ – GICC AUDIO VISUSAL SERVICE – 060821 
SEALED BID OPENING 

The purpose of this communication is to secure the approval to purchase the following item(s). 
Please include the following item(s) on the upcoming Mayor/Council agenda. 

Item Description: GICC Audio Visual Service 

Budgeted item(s): Yes 

Recommendations: ON Service is recommended as most responsive to the City this service 

Explanation of recommendation in full: 

The bid was published on the City of College Park website under the Bids/RFPs location, Vendor 
Registry.com, DOAS GPR (Georgia Procurement Registry) and the National Association of 
Minority Contractors - Georgia Chapter. The advertisement was published from May 4, 2021 thru 
June 8, 2020 at 9:30 am.  

There were 976 vendors contacted, through Vendor Registry and the GPR, in regards to this 
service. No (mandatory) pre-proposal meeting was required for this service. Questions were 
submitted by three (3) potential vendors and responded provided, however; one (1) proposal was 
received prior to the bid close at 9:30 am. The official Zoom (virtual) bid opening was held for 
Tuesday, June 8, 2021 at 10:00 am, with no vendors logged into the meeting. 

Denise Cole, Jane Cox and Andrea Smalls represented the GICC for the bid open. 

Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us04web.zoom.us/j/71691645272  

Meeting ID: 716 9164 5272 - Passcode: qC6cw4  

 

9.F.b

Packet Pg. 227

https://us04web.zoom.us/j/71691645272


 

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
PO BOX 87137 • COLLEGE PARK, GA  30337 • (404) 767-1537 

 
Tabulation Matrix 

RFQ - GICC AUDIO VISUAL SERVICE - 060821 

 
See the Bid Tabulation Sheet for results of opening. The original proposals are available for review 
in the Purchasing Department, schedule a time in advance. 

Minority Status Legend: 

(1) African American Business Enterprise (AABE) (2) Hispanic Business Enterprise (HBE)  
(3) Female Business Enterprise (FBE) (4) Asian Business Enterprise (ABE)  
(5) Native American Business Enterprise (NABE) 
 
City of College Park 
Willis Moody, Purchasing/Fleet Administrator 
College Park, GA  30337 

 

 Company Name Lump Sum 
Bid Amount 

Minority 
Y/N 

Class 

Is company 
located 

within the 
City Limits 

Previous 
Work 
w/CP? 

1 ON Service TBD N N Y 

2      

3      

9.F.b

Packet Pg. 228



RFQ – GICC AUDIO-VISUAL SERVICES - 060821 Page 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATION(S) - SEALED PROPOSAL 
ADVERTISEMENT for CONTRACTUAL SERVICE 
RFQ – GICC AUDIO-VISUAL SERVICES - 060821 

The City of College Park is accepting sealed proposals from qualified vendors for GICC AUDIO-
VISUAL SERVICES.  Proposals will be received no later than TUESDAY, JUNE 8, 2021 at 
9:30 am (EST) at the City of College Park Purchasing Department, 3667 Main Street, College 
Park Georgia, 30337. Proposals received after the above date and time, or in any other location 
other than the Purchasing Department will not be considered.  

No pre-bid meeting is required for this project. 

A bid packet may be obtained by clicking related solicitation link on the City of College Park 
website www.collegeparkga.com under the Bids / RFPs section. 

Timeline 

Q&A and Clarifications 
(email only to wmoody@collegeparkga.com) 
Ref: GICC Audio-Visual Services 

May 25, 2021 12:00 pm (EST) 
deadline 

Addendum(s) published May 28, 2021 4:00 pm (EST) 

Open Sealed Bids (via Zoom) June 8, 2021 10:00 am (EST) 

Any/all addenda must be signed and dated and made a part of bid packet.  It is always the vendor’s 
responsibility to check the City of College Park’s website for any/all addenda. 

The City of College Park reserves the right to reject any or all bids based on past performance and 
to waive technicalities and informalities and re-advertise. All Minority, Woman and Small 
Businesses are strongly encouraged to apply. Only responsive bids that are determined to meet the 
requirements and criteria set forth by the City of College Park will be considered.  

9.F.c

Packet Pg. 229

http://www.collegeparkga.com/
mailto:wmoody@collegeparkga.com


RFQ – GICC AUDIO-VISUAL SERVICES - 060821 Page 2 

 
 

 

 

 

PURPOSE  

SPECIFICATION(s)/S.O.W. 

GENERAL PURPOSE 

The City of College Park (City) is soliciting proposals from qualified contractors to provide audio-
visual services for the Georgia International Convention Center (GICC).  

The responsibility is on the bidder to show their knowledge, understanding and capacity to 
conduct the services outlined in the RFQ. The responses will be assessed according to how 
well they meet the City's needs and assure the City's success in relation to the submission 
requirements. The detail and clarity of the written submission will be considered indicative 
of the bidder's expertise and competence. 

All information provided in response to this RFQ must contain sufficient detail to support the 
services being proposed. Incomplete submissions will not be considered. All bidders must be 
provide documentation that the company has been actively performing in the business for a 
minimum of the most recent sixty (60) months from date of this advertisement. 

The City of College Park is not liable for any costs incurred by interested parties in the 
preparation of their response to this request or interviews. Furthermore, the City shall not be 
responsible for any liabilities, cost, expenses, loss or damage incurred, sustained or suffered by 
any interested party, prior to, subsequent to, or by reason of the acceptance, or non-acceptance 
by the City of any response, or by reason of any delay in the acceptance of the response. 

CLARIFICATION of PROPOSAL DOCUMENTS 

The City of College Park is not responsible for any misunderstanding of the proposal on the 
part of the bidder. It is the responsibility of the bidder to seek clarification of any matter that 
they consider unclear before submitting a proposal. No allowances will be made for the bidder 
failing to do so. Any item not specifically mentioned in the specifications but implied or 
required to complete the project will be considered to be included in the total price.  

Proposals submitted shall be final and may not be altered by subsequent offerings, discussions 
or commitments unless the bidder is requested to do so by the City of College Park. 

In order to manage this process, bidders are requested to submit all questions by email only, 
no later than the Q&A deadline. Any/all addendum will be posted with the other bid 
document(s) to the City website on or before the publish date outlined above. 

9.F.c

Packet Pg. 230



RFQ – GICC AUDIO-VISUAL SERVICES - 060821 Page 3 

 

INFORMAL or UNBALANCED PROPOSALS 

Proposals that are incomplete, unconditional, illegible or obscure, or contain reservations, 
erasures, alterations or irregularities of any kind, may be rejected as informal. 

NON-PERFORMANCE 

The City reserves the right to determine nonperformance or poor quality of goods and/or 
services, and further reserves the right to cancel the contract. The opinion of the City of 
College Park in this regard shall be final in all instances.  

In the event that the bidder shall be discharged before all the services contemplated hereunder 
have been completed, or the services are for any reason terminated, stopped or discontinued 
because of the inability of the bidder to serve under this agreement, they shall be paid only 
for the portion of the work which shall be satisfactorily completed at the time of termination. 

AUDIO-VISUAL, COMPUTER SERVICES and EQUIPMENT 

We provide a full complement of audio-visual computer equipment and services for meetings and 
events requiring the most sophisticated technology support.  

The GICC require on-site audio-visual production support, including but not limited to audio, 
video, lighting and production and data operators.  

The equipment for daily rental includes, but not limited to; data display and accessories • 
projectors and accessories • screens • audio and accessories • video equipment and accessories • 
lighting packages • computer and accessories • miscellaneous accessories and other packages. 

INSURANCE 

Contractor shall maintain at its own cost, adequate insurance to protect itself and the City for 
claims under the applicable Workers Compensation Law and other public liability insurance 
with coverage in amounts of no less than the following: 

Commercial Umbrella $2,000,000.00 
Auto Liability $500,000.00 
General Liability $500,000.00 
Worker’s Compensation $250,000.00 

Prior to commencing any work under this agreement, bidder shall have its insurance company 
or companies, which are acceptable to the City, execute a certificate of insurance, and deliver 
a copy of said certificate of insurance to the Purchasing Department of the City. Until said 
certificate of insurance is executed and delivered to the City; the bidder shall not move its 
equipment or laborers onto the premises or begin performance of the work specified under this 
agreement. If bidder fails to provide the required insurance, the City shall have the duty to 
prove insurance and deduct all premiums paid by the City for and because of said insurance. 

9.F.c

Packet Pg. 231



RFQ – GICC AUDIO-VISUAL SERVICES - 060821 Page 4 

The successful bidder is required to maintain insurance at these levels at least one (1) year 
after completion of the project. Depending on the complexity of the project, successful bidder 
may be required to prove valid coverage for a longer period as may be deemed necessary to 
allow the City to become aware of any negligence on the part of the bidder. 

Proof of Insurance should be included in submitted bid documents. 

QUALIFICATIONS, SPECIFICATIONS AND REQUIREMENTS 

A list of qualifications of which the responder should address on the Form of Qualifications: 

1. Where is your company base?  
a. If outside of metro Atlanta, do you have a local office? 
b. If within the City of College Park limits, provide a copy of prior year (2020) 

and current College Park Occupation Tax Certificate. 
2. Do you have affiliations in the Atlanta hospitality market? 
3. What association(s) does your company have in the hospitality industry? 
4. How many years of experience does your company have providing audio-visual 

services in the hospitality industry? 
5. How many in-house convention center and/or hotel audio-visual contracts does you 

company hold in the southeastern United States?  
6. What is the square footage incorporated in these contracts? 
7. Does your company brand extend national presence beyond the southeast market? 
8. What does your fleet of vehicles include? 
9. Does your company have a local warehouse?  

a. If so, what is the square footage? 
10. What type of services beyond meeting solutions does your company offer? 
11. Does your company offer 24-hour and seven (7) days a week, on-call service(s)? 
12. Does your company have the ability to provide audio-visual and staging equipment?  

a. If yes, please explain. 
13. What type vertical markets does your company offer beyond audio visual? 
14. Does your company have locations in any airport area properties?  

a. If yes, please provide property name and location. 
15. Please provide a company listing of upper and middle management to include but not 

limited to years of experience in audio-visual and the hospitality industry, affiliations 
in the industry and airport area. 

16. The GICC requires a Director of Audio Visual Services to work out of an office on the 
GICC premise. Additional personnel will supplement the Director of Audio Visual 
Services as determined by the requirements of guests or GICC, whenever audio-visual 
functions are in progress.  

a. In addition, provide a listing of employee positions and qualifications for each 
position. 

17. Provide a complete detailed listing of permanent audio-visual inventory that will be 
housed at the GICC. 

18. Provide a complete detailed listing of audio-visual inventory to be available for use at 
the GICC to include but not limited to specialty equipment. 

9.F.c

Packet Pg. 232



RFQ – GICC AUDIO-VISUAL SERVICES - 060821 Page 5 

a. How often would this inventory be refreshed? 

FORM of QUALIFICATIONS 

The RFQ shall be submitted in the following manner: 

1. The submission must include one (1) marked “Original”, two (2) marked “Copy” and one 
(1) flash drive. 

2. The proposal submission must be legible, written in ink, or typewritten. 
3. Proposals containing changes, erasures, overwriting, whiteouts, cross-outs, or 

strikeouts not initialed by the bidder (blue ink), may not be accepted. 
4. Eighteen (18) Form of Qualifications responses on a separate sheets of paper. 
5. Any/all cost associated with this service. 
6. The Form of Qualifications must contain an original manual signature in ink in the 

specified place by an authorized signing officer. Any digital, mechanical or electronic 
signatures will be rejected. 

7. NO portion of the Form of Qualification included in this package shall be altered or 
deleted. 

8. The completed proposal shall be dated and properly signed in the space(s) by a duly 
authorized official(s) of the entity submitting a proposal. Signatures on behalf of a non-
incorporated entity or by individuals shall be witnessed. 

9.F.c

Packet Pg. 233



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 234



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 235



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 236



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 237



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 238



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 239



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 240



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 241



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 242



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 243



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 244



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 245



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 246



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 247



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 248



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 249



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 250



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 251



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 252



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 253



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 254



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 255



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 256



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 257



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 258



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 259



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 260



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 261



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 262



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 263



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 264



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 265



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 266



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 267



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 268



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 269



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 270



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 271



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 272



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 273



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 274



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 275



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 276



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 277



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 278



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 279



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 280



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 281



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 282



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 283



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 284



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 285



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 286



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 287



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 288



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 289



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 290



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 291



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 292



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 293



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 294



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 295



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 296



9.F.d

Packet Pg. 297



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8858  

Updated: 6/15/2021 3:51 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: June 15, 2021 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Mercedes Miller, Interim City Manager 

 

FROM: Nikki Washington, Planner 

 

RE:  Consideration of a Conditional Height Permit 

 

 

PURPOSE:  To review and consider a request for a conditional height permit for a proposed 

hotel.  

 

REASON:  Applicant seeks to increase maximum height from 35 feet to 85 feet above ground 

level for the construction of a hotel in the HC - Hospitality Campus District.  

 

RECOMMENDATION:  City Planner recommends approval of the requested conditional 

height permit, as the proposed development has received all required FAA approvals and will not 

unduly restrict light and air to surrounding properties. In addition, the HC district and 

Comprehensive Plan indicate hotels are a desired use for this area.  

 

BACKGROUND:  The applicant is seeking a conditional height permit to increase the 

maximum building height for a proposed hotel. This development has also applied for two 

variances that were heard by the BZA on June 14th. The attached application includes the FAA 

approval, a site plan for the overall development, and renderings of the subject property for 

review.  

 

COST TO CITY:  N/A 

 

BUDGETED ITEM:   N/A 

 

REVENUE TO CITY:  $500 Application Fee 

 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING DATE:  June 21st, 2021 

 

CONSIDERATION BY OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES:  N/A 

 

AFFECTED AGENCIES:  N/A 

11.A

Packet Pg. 298



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8858)  Meeting of June 21, 2021 

Updated: 6/15/2021 3:51 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 2 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO EXISTING ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTION:  Approval of the 

requested conditional height permit would allow for building permits to be issued for this 

project.  

 

REQUIRED CHANGES TO WORK PROGRAMS:  N/A 

 

STAFF:   
Oscar Hudson, Chief Building Inspector 

Michelle Alexander, City Planner 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Conditional Height Permit Application 0 Rooselvelt Highway (PDF) 

 

Review: 

 Nikki Washington Completed 06/15/2021 1:31 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 06/15/2021 3:51 PM 

 Gary Young Completed 06/15/2021 4:55 PM 

 Oscar Hudson Completed 06/16/2021 8:22 AM 

 City Attorney's Office Pending  

 Mercedes Miller Completed 06/16/2021 3:04 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 06/21/2021 7:30 PM 

11.A

Packet Pg. 299



Conditional Height Permit Application 1 of 5 

 

CONDITIONAL 
HEIGHT PERMIT  
 
 
 
Date Received __________________ 
 
 
APPLICANT INFORMATION 
 
APPLICANT NAME (PLEASE PRINT)           
 
 
ADDRESS               
 
 
PHONE_____________________ CELL ________________________ FAX      
 
 
E-MAIL ADDRESS              
 
 
OWNER INFORMATION (If different from Applicant) 
 
PROPERTY OWNER (PLEASE PRINT) __________________________________________________ 
 
 
ADDRESS _________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
PHONE   FAX __________________ 
 
 
E-MAIL  
 
 
PROPERTY INFORMATION 
 

ADDRESS __________________________________________________________________________ 

 

CURRENT USE _________________________   CURRENT ZONING       

 

PROPOSED USE              

 

PROPOSED HEIGHT, IN FEET AND NUMBER OF STORIES         

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 
www.collegeparkga.com 

11.A.a

Packet Pg. 300

mike
Text Box
Michael Clifford

mike
Text Box
470.480.5566

mike
Text Box
770.905.4937

mike
Text Box
Alex Panjwani

mike
Text Box
85'/7 Stories - 1137AMSL

mike
Text Box
Vacant

mike
Text Box
Hotel, Restaurant, Retail

mike
Text Box
1 West Court Square, Suite 540, Decatur, GA 30030

mike
Text Box
mike@bcamail.com

mike
Text Box
HC

mike
Text Box
"0" Roosevelt Highway, Atlanta, GA - Parcel ID 13006C C027

mike
Text Box
3405 Piedmont Road, Suite 500, Atlanta, GA 30305



Conditional Height Permit Application 2 of 5 

 
REQUEST FOR CONDITIONAL HEIGHT PERMIT 

 
REQUIREMENTS 
Please complete all attached forms, which must be typed or legibly printed; signatures must be in BLUE INK.  The 
applicant or his agent must submit the ORIGINAL, SIGNED form to the Inspections Department located on the first 
floor of City Hall, 3667 Main Street, College Park. 
 
PRE-APPLICATION MEETING 
A pre-application meeting with the City Planner is required prior to submission of any application.  Please contact 
the City Planner’s office at 404-767-1537 or nwashington@tcfatl.com to schedule a pre-application meeting. 
 
FEE AND APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS 
The application fee for a conditional height permit for an existing building is $300. The fee for a conditional height 
permit for new construction is as follows:  

• $300, when the proposed construction cost is an amount up to $25,000;  
• $500, when the proposed construction cost is greater than $25,000 and up to $100,000; and  
• $500, PLUS $5.00 per $1,000 of proposed construction, when the proposed construction cost is greater 

than $100,000.   
Applications will not be accepted until they are deemed complete and the application fee is paid.  Incomplete 
applications will be returned to the applicant; payment of fee will not be accepted until the application is complete.  
Fee shall be paid to the City of College Park in the form of check or money order only. 
 
FILING DEADLINE 
Applications must be received, and the appropriate fee must be paid, no later than thirty (30) calendar days prior to 
the next available Planning Commission meeting, or Mayor and Council meeting.  The Planning Commission meets 
on the last Monday of the month, with the exception of December, when they do not meet.  Mayor and Council 
meet on the first and third Monday of the month, with the exception of July, when they only meet on the THIRD 
Monday; and December, when they only meet on the FIRST Monday. 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
Conditional height permit applications go to the Planning Commission when they are requested along with another 
zoning action (rezoning, Conditional Use Permit, etc.).  Otherwise, CHP applications can be heard by Mayor and 
Council.  If a Planning Commission meeting is necessary, the applicant or his agent must attend the meeting to 
present the application and respond to questions from the Commission.  The Planning Commission will make a 
recommendation of approval or denial of the request to the Mayor and Council. 

MAYOR AND COUNCIL HEARING 
Conditional height permit requests must be decided at a hearing before Mayor and Council.  The applicant must 
attend the hearing to present the application and respond to questions from Mayor and Council.  Mayor and Council 
meet the first and third Monday of each month (see exceptions listed in the “Filing Deadline” section).  Applicants 
will be notified by email and/or phone call of the date of the hearing. 
 
QUESTIONS 
For assistance, please contact Ms. Sabrina Walters, at swalters@collegeparkga.com or 404-669-3762, or the City 
Planner’s office at nwashington@tcfatl.com or 404-767-1537. 
   
 
 

 
 
 

(For Office Use Only) 
 
Total Amount Paid $___________ Check# ________ Money Order #_______ Received by: ______________________ 
 
Application checked by: ___________________________________________ Date: ___________________________ 
 
Pre-application meeting: ___________________________________________ Date: ___________________________ 

11.A.a

Packet Pg. 301

mailto:swalters@collegeparkga.com
mailto:nwashington@tcfatl.com


Conditional Height Permit Application 3 of 5 

 
CITY OF COLLEGE PARK  

CONDITIONAL HEIGHT PERMIT  
APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS 

 
This form must be completed for all conditional height permit applications and  

should be attached to the application. 
 

All documents are required prior to acceptance of the application. 
 

Required Items Copies Requirements Check/Initial 

Pre-Application 
Meeting N/A 

You must schedule a pre-application meeting with 
the City Planner prior to submitting your 
application. 

 

Application Form 12 

Must provide contact information for applicant and 
property owner, property address, current use of 
property and zoning district, proposed use of 
property, and proposed height of building. 

 

Applicant/Owner’s 
Affidavit 12 Must be completed by applicant and property 

owner. Must be notarized.  

Letter of Ownership 12 

Letter from the property owner stating that the 
applicant is the owner of property subject to 
conditional height permit, or that owner is aware of 
and consents to the conditional height permit 
request.   

 

Letter of Intent 12 Must clearly state the proposed use, development 
intent, and height of proposed building(s).  

Site Plans 

24x36 - 1 
 
11x17 - 12 
 

Must meet requirements specified on Site Plan 
Checklist.    

Site Plan Checklist 1 Completed copy of site plan checklist.  

Survey Plat  12 (11x17 
or 8.5x11) 

Survey plat shall be prepared and sealed within 
the last five years by a professional engineer, 
landscape architect or land surveyor registered in 
the State of Georgia.  Survey plat shall indicate 
complete boundaries of the subject property and 
all buildings and structures existing therein; 
include a notation as to whether or not any portion 
of the subject property is within the boundaries of 
the 100 year floodplain; and include a notation as 
to the total acreage or square footage of the 
property. 

 

Architectural 
Drawings  Renderings or photographs of the proposed 

building elevations are required.   

 

11.A.a

Packet Pg. 302

mike
Text Box
X

mike
Text Box
X

mike
Text Box
X

mike
Text Box
X

mike
Text Box
X

mike
Text Box
X

mike
Text Box
Alex Panjwani

mike
Text Box
X

mike
Text Box
X



Conditional Height Permit Application 5 of 5 

 
 

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK SITE PLAN CHECKLIST 
 

Checklist should be attached to the application. 
 

All applicable information below must be included for site plan and application  
to be considered complete. 

 
Item # Requirements Check/Initial 

1 North arrow  

2 Acreage of subject property  

3 Current zoning and requested zoning classifications  

4 All property lines  

5 Adjacent streets with posted speed limits  

6 Current use and zoning of adjacent properties  

7 Required and/or proposed building setback lines     

8 Proposed structure locations, heights and square footages  

9 Existing structure locations and approximate heights for adjacent properties  

10 Layout, minimum lot size and proposed density (residential properties only)  

11 Topographic information to show elevation and drainage  

12 Required and/or proposed landscaped areas and buffers  

13 Required and proposed parking spaces and loading/unloading facilities  

14 Lakes, streams and other waters on the site and associated buffers (if 
applicable) 

 

15 Proposed stormwater management facilities (if applicable)  

 
 

11.A.a

Packet Pg. 303

mike
Text Box
X

mike
Text Box
X

mike
Text Box
X

mike
Text Box
X

mike
Text Box
X

mike
Text Box
X

mike
Text Box
X

mike
Text Box
X

mike
Text Box
X

mike
Text Box
X

mike
Text Box
X

mike
Text Box
X

mike
Text Box
X

mike
Text Box
X

mike
Text Box
NA



11.A.a

Packet Pg. 304



11.A.a

Packet Pg. 305



11.A.a

Packet Pg. 306



Mail Processing Center
Federal Aviation Administration
Southwest Regional Office
Obstruction Evaluation Group
10101 Hillwood Parkway
Fort Worth, TX 76177

Aeronautical Study No.
2020-ASO-5653-OE

Page 1 of 7

Issued Date: 08/24/2020

Alex Panjwani
North Point Hotel Group
3405 Piedmont Road
Suite 500
Atlanta, GA 30305

** DETERMINATION OF NO HAZARD TO AIR NAVIGATION **

The Federal Aviation Administration has conducted an aeronautical study under the provisions of 49 U.S.C.,
Section 44718 and if applicable Title 14 of the Code of Federal Regulations, part 77, concerning:

Structure: Building West Corner
Location: Atlanta, GA
Latitude: 33-38-37.04N NAD 83
Longitude: 84-27-16.02W
Heights: 1052 feet site elevation (SE)

85 feet above ground level (AGL)
1137 feet above mean sea level (AMSL)

This aeronautical study revealed that the structure would have no substantial adverse effect on the safe
and efficient utilization of the navigable airspace by aircraft or on the operation of air navigation facilities.
Therefore, pursuant to the authority delegated to me, it is hereby determined that the structure would not be a
hazard to air navigation provided the following condition(s) is(are) met:

As a condition to this Determination, the structure is to be marked/lighted in accordance with FAA Advisory
circular 70/7460-1 L Change 2, Obstruction Marking and Lighting, red lights - Chapters 4,5(Red),&12.

Any failure or malfunction that lasts more than thirty (30) minutes and affects a top light or flashing obstruction
light, regardless of its position, should be reported immediately to (877) 487-6867 so a Notice to Airmen
(NOTAM) can be issued. As soon as the normal operation is restored, notify the same number.

It is required that FAA Form 7460-2, Notice of Actual Construction or Alteration, be e-filed any time the
project is abandoned or:

_____ At least 10 days prior to start of construction (7460-2, Part 1)
__X__ Within 5 days after the construction reaches its greatest height (7460-2, Part 2)

See attachment for additional condition(s) or information.

This determination expires on 02/24/2022 unless:

11.A.a

Packet Pg. 307



Page 2 of 7

(a) the construction is started (not necessarily completed) and FAA Form 7460-2, Notice of Actual
Construction or Alteration, is received by this office.

(b) extended, revised, or terminated by the issuing office.
(c) the construction is subject to the licensing authority of the Federal Communications Commission

(FCC) and an application for a construction permit has been filed, as required by the FCC, within
6 months of the date of this determination. In such case, the determination expires on the date
prescribed by the FCC for completion of construction, or the date the FCC denies the application.

NOTE: REQUEST FOR EXTENSION OF THE EFFECTIVE PERIOD OF THIS DETERMINATION MUST
BE E-FILED AT LEAST 15 DAYS PRIOR TO THE EXPIRATION DATE. AFTER RE-EVALUATION
OF CURRENT OPERATIONS IN THE AREA OF THE STRUCTURE TO DETERMINE THAT NO
SIGNIFICANT AERONAUTICAL CHANGES HAVE OCCURRED, YOUR DETERMINATION MAY BE
ELIGIBLE FOR ONE EXTENSION OF THE EFFECTIVE PERIOD.

This determination is subject to review if an interested party files a petition that is received by the FAA on or
before September 23, 2020. In the event a petition for review is filed, it must contain a full statement of the
basis upon which it is made and be submitted to the Manager of the Rules and Regulations Group. Petitions can
be submitted via mail to Federal Aviation Administration, 800 Independence Ave, SW, Washington, DC 20591,
via email at OEPetitions@faa.gov, or via facsimile (202) 267-9328.

This determination becomes final on October 03, 2020 unless a petition is timely filed. In which case, this
determination will not become final pending disposition of the petition. Interested parties will be notified of the
grant of any review. For any questions regarding your petition, please contact Rules and Regulations Group via
telephone – 202-267-8783.

This determination is based, in part, on the foregoing description which includes specific coordinates, heights,
frequency(ies) and power. Any changes in coordinates, heights and frequencies or use of greater power, except
those frequencies specified in the Colo Void Clause Coalition; Antenna System Co-Location; Voluntary Best
Practices, effective 21 Nov 2007, will void this determination. Any future construction or alteration, including
increase to heights, power or the addition of other transmitters, requires separate notice to the FAA. This
determination includes all previously filed frequencies and power for this structure.

If construction or alteration is dismantled or destroyed, you must submit notice to the FAA within 5 days after
the construction or alteration is dismantled or destroyed.

This determination does include temporary construction equipment such as cranes, derricks, etc., which may be
used during actual construction of the structure. However, this equipment shall not exceed the overall heights as
indicated above. Equipment which has a height greater than the studied structure requires separate notice to the
FAA.

This determination concerns the effect of this structure on the safe and efficient use of navigable airspace
by aircraft and does not relieve the sponsor of compliance responsibilities relating to any law, ordinance, or
regulation of any Federal, State, or local government body.

This aeronautical study considered and analyzed the impact on existing and proposed arrival, departure, and
en route procedures for aircraft operating under both visual flight rules and instrument flight rules; the impact
on all existing and planned public-use airports, military airports and aeronautical facilities; and the cumulative
impact resulting from the studied structure when combined with the impact of other existing or proposed

11.A.a

Packet Pg. 308



Page 3 of 7

structures. The study disclosed that the described structure would have no substantial adverse effect on air
navigation.

An account of the study findings, aeronautical objections received by the FAA during the study (if any), and the
basis for the FAA's decision in this matter can be found on the following page(s).

If we can be of further assistance, please contact Ken Patterson, at (817) 222-5935, or
kenneth.patterson@faa.gov. On any future correspondence concerning this matter, please refer to Aeronautical
Study Number 2020-ASO-5653-OE.

Signature Control No: 431013212-449075293 ( DNH )
Mike Helvey
Manager, Obstruction Evaluation Group

Attachment(s)
Additional Information
Map(s)

11.A.a

Packet Pg. 309



Mail Processing Center
Federal Aviation Administration
Southwest Regional Office
Obstruction Evaluation Group
10101 Hillwood Parkway
Fort Worth, TX 76177

Aeronautical Study No.
2020-ASO-5655-OE

Page 1 of 7

Issued Date: 08/24/2020

Alex Panjwani
North Point Hotel Group
3405 Piedmont Road
Suite 500
Atlanta, GA 30305

** DETERMINATION OF NO HAZARD TO AIR NAVIGATION **

The Federal Aviation Administration has conducted an aeronautical study under the provisions of 49 U.S.C.,
Section 44718 and if applicable Title 14 of the Code of Federal Regulations, part 77, concerning:

Structure: Building East Corner
Location: Atlanta, GA
Latitude: 33-38-37.14N NAD 83
Longitude: 84-27-13.80W
Heights: 1052 feet site elevation (SE)

85 feet above ground level (AGL)
1137 feet above mean sea level (AMSL)

This aeronautical study revealed that the structure would have no substantial adverse effect on the safe
and efficient utilization of the navigable airspace by aircraft or on the operation of air navigation facilities.
Therefore, pursuant to the authority delegated to me, it is hereby determined that the structure would not be a
hazard to air navigation provided the following condition(s) is(are) met:

As a condition to this Determination, the structure is to be marked/lighted in accordance with FAA Advisory
circular 70/7460-1 L Change 2, Obstruction Marking and Lighting, red lights - Chapters 4,5(Red),&12.

Any failure or malfunction that lasts more than thirty (30) minutes and affects a top light or flashing obstruction
light, regardless of its position, should be reported immediately to (877) 487-6867 so a Notice to Airmen
(NOTAM) can be issued. As soon as the normal operation is restored, notify the same number.

It is required that FAA Form 7460-2, Notice of Actual Construction or Alteration, be e-filed any time the
project is abandoned or:

_____ At least 10 days prior to start of construction (7460-2, Part 1)
__X__ Within 5 days after the construction reaches its greatest height (7460-2, Part 2)

See attachment for additional condition(s) or information.

This determination expires on 02/24/2022 unless:

11.A.a

Packet Pg. 310



Page 2 of 7

(a) the construction is started (not necessarily completed) and FAA Form 7460-2, Notice of Actual
Construction or Alteration, is received by this office.

(b) extended, revised, or terminated by the issuing office.
(c) the construction is subject to the licensing authority of the Federal Communications Commission

(FCC) and an application for a construction permit has been filed, as required by the FCC, within
6 months of the date of this determination. In such case, the determination expires on the date
prescribed by the FCC for completion of construction, or the date the FCC denies the application.

NOTE: REQUEST FOR EXTENSION OF THE EFFECTIVE PERIOD OF THIS DETERMINATION MUST
BE E-FILED AT LEAST 15 DAYS PRIOR TO THE EXPIRATION DATE. AFTER RE-EVALUATION
OF CURRENT OPERATIONS IN THE AREA OF THE STRUCTURE TO DETERMINE THAT NO
SIGNIFICANT AERONAUTICAL CHANGES HAVE OCCURRED, YOUR DETERMINATION MAY BE
ELIGIBLE FOR ONE EXTENSION OF THE EFFECTIVE PERIOD.

This determination is subject to review if an interested party files a petition that is received by the FAA on or
before September 23, 2020. In the event a petition for review is filed, it must contain a full statement of the
basis upon which it is made and be submitted to the Manager of the Rules and Regulations Group. Petitions can
be submitted via mail to Federal Aviation Administration, 800 Independence Ave, SW, Washington, DC 20591,
via email at OEPetitions@faa.gov, or via facsimile (202) 267-9328.

This determination becomes final on October 03, 2020 unless a petition is timely filed. In which case, this
determination will not become final pending disposition of the petition. Interested parties will be notified of the
grant of any review. For any questions regarding your petition, please contact Rules and Regulations Group via
telephone – 202-267-8783.

This determination is based, in part, on the foregoing description which includes specific coordinates, heights,
frequency(ies) and power. Any changes in coordinates, heights and frequencies or use of greater power, except
those frequencies specified in the Colo Void Clause Coalition; Antenna System Co-Location; Voluntary Best
Practices, effective 21 Nov 2007, will void this determination. Any future construction or alteration, including
increase to heights, power or the addition of other transmitters, requires separate notice to the FAA. This
determination includes all previously filed frequencies and power for this structure.

If construction or alteration is dismantled or destroyed, you must submit notice to the FAA within 5 days after
the construction or alteration is dismantled or destroyed.

This determination does include temporary construction equipment such as cranes, derricks, etc., which may be
used during actual construction of the structure. However, this equipment shall not exceed the overall heights as
indicated above. Equipment which has a height greater than the studied structure requires separate notice to the
FAA.

This determination concerns the effect of this structure on the safe and efficient use of navigable airspace
by aircraft and does not relieve the sponsor of compliance responsibilities relating to any law, ordinance, or
regulation of any Federal, State, or local government body.

This aeronautical study considered and analyzed the impact on existing and proposed arrival, departure, and
en route procedures for aircraft operating under both visual flight rules and instrument flight rules; the impact
on all existing and planned public-use airports, military airports and aeronautical facilities; and the cumulative
impact resulting from the studied structure when combined with the impact of other existing or proposed

11.A.a

Packet Pg. 311



Page 3 of 7

structures. The study disclosed that the described structure would have no substantial adverse effect on air
navigation.

An account of the study findings, aeronautical objections received by the FAA during the study (if any), and the
basis for the FAA's decision in this matter can be found on the following page(s).

If we can be of further assistance, please contact Ken Patterson, at (817) 222-5935, or
kenneth.patterson@faa.gov. On any future correspondence concerning this matter, please refer to Aeronautical
Study Number 2020-ASO-5655-OE.

Signature Control No: 431013214-449075294 ( DNH )
Mike Helvey
Manager, Obstruction Evaluation Group

Attachment(s)
Additional Information
Map(s)

11.A.a

Packet Pg. 312



Mail Processing Center
Federal Aviation Administration
Southwest Regional Office
Obstruction Evaluation Group
10101 Hillwood Parkway
Fort Worth, TX 76177

Aeronautical Study No.
2020-ASO-5654-OE

Page 1 of 7

Issued Date: 08/24/2020

Alex Panjwani
North Point Hotel Group
3405 Piedmont Road
Suite 500
Atlanta, GA 30305

** DETERMINATION OF NO HAZARD TO AIR NAVIGATION **

The Federal Aviation Administration has conducted an aeronautical study under the provisions of 49 U.S.C.,
Section 44718 and if applicable Title 14 of the Code of Federal Regulations, part 77, concerning:

Structure: Building South Corner
Location: Atlanta, GA
Latitude: 33-38-36.26N NAD 83
Longitude: 84-27-15.24W
Heights: 1052 feet site elevation (SE)

85 feet above ground level (AGL)
1137 feet above mean sea level (AMSL)

This aeronautical study revealed that the structure would have no substantial adverse effect on the safe
and efficient utilization of the navigable airspace by aircraft or on the operation of air navigation facilities.
Therefore, pursuant to the authority delegated to me, it is hereby determined that the structure would not be a
hazard to air navigation provided the following condition(s) is(are) met:

As a condition to this Determination, the structure is to be marked/lighted in accordance with FAA Advisory
circular 70/7460-1 L Change 2, Obstruction Marking and Lighting, red lights - Chapters 4,5(Red),&12.

Any failure or malfunction that lasts more than thirty (30) minutes and affects a top light or flashing obstruction
light, regardless of its position, should be reported immediately to (877) 487-6867 so a Notice to Airmen
(NOTAM) can be issued. As soon as the normal operation is restored, notify the same number.

It is required that FAA Form 7460-2, Notice of Actual Construction or Alteration, be e-filed any time the
project is abandoned or:

_____ At least 10 days prior to start of construction (7460-2, Part 1)
__X__ Within 5 days after the construction reaches its greatest height (7460-2, Part 2)

See attachment for additional condition(s) or information.

This determination expires on 02/24/2022 unless:

11.A.a

Packet Pg. 313



Page 2 of 7

(a) the construction is started (not necessarily completed) and FAA Form 7460-2, Notice of Actual
Construction or Alteration, is received by this office.

(b) extended, revised, or terminated by the issuing office.
(c) the construction is subject to the licensing authority of the Federal Communications Commission

(FCC) and an application for a construction permit has been filed, as required by the FCC, within
6 months of the date of this determination. In such case, the determination expires on the date
prescribed by the FCC for completion of construction, or the date the FCC denies the application.

NOTE: REQUEST FOR EXTENSION OF THE EFFECTIVE PERIOD OF THIS DETERMINATION MUST
BE E-FILED AT LEAST 15 DAYS PRIOR TO THE EXPIRATION DATE. AFTER RE-EVALUATION
OF CURRENT OPERATIONS IN THE AREA OF THE STRUCTURE TO DETERMINE THAT NO
SIGNIFICANT AERONAUTICAL CHANGES HAVE OCCURRED, YOUR DETERMINATION MAY BE
ELIGIBLE FOR ONE EXTENSION OF THE EFFECTIVE PERIOD.

This determination is subject to review if an interested party files a petition that is received by the FAA on or
before September 23, 2020. In the event a petition for review is filed, it must contain a full statement of the
basis upon which it is made and be submitted to the Manager of the Rules and Regulations Group. Petitions can
be submitted via mail to Federal Aviation Administration, 800 Independence Ave, SW, Washington, DC 20591,
via email at OEPetitions@faa.gov, or via facsimile (202) 267-9328.

This determination becomes final on October 03, 2020 unless a petition is timely filed. In which case, this
determination will not become final pending disposition of the petition. Interested parties will be notified of the
grant of any review. For any questions regarding your petition, please contact Rules and Regulations Group via
telephone – 202-267-8783.

This determination is based, in part, on the foregoing description which includes specific coordinates, heights,
frequency(ies) and power. Any changes in coordinates, heights and frequencies or use of greater power, except
those frequencies specified in the Colo Void Clause Coalition; Antenna System Co-Location; Voluntary Best
Practices, effective 21 Nov 2007, will void this determination. Any future construction or alteration, including
increase to heights, power or the addition of other transmitters, requires separate notice to the FAA. This
determination includes all previously filed frequencies and power for this structure.

If construction or alteration is dismantled or destroyed, you must submit notice to the FAA within 5 days after
the construction or alteration is dismantled or destroyed.

This determination does include temporary construction equipment such as cranes, derricks, etc., which may be
used during actual construction of the structure. However, this equipment shall not exceed the overall heights as
indicated above. Equipment which has a height greater than the studied structure requires separate notice to the
FAA.

This determination concerns the effect of this structure on the safe and efficient use of navigable airspace
by aircraft and does not relieve the sponsor of compliance responsibilities relating to any law, ordinance, or
regulation of any Federal, State, or local government body.

This aeronautical study considered and analyzed the impact on existing and proposed arrival, departure, and
en route procedures for aircraft operating under both visual flight rules and instrument flight rules; the impact
on all existing and planned public-use airports, military airports and aeronautical facilities; and the cumulative
impact resulting from the studied structure when combined with the impact of other existing or proposed

11.A.a

Packet Pg. 314



Page 3 of 7

structures. The study disclosed that the described structure would have no substantial adverse effect on air
navigation.

An account of the study findings, aeronautical objections received by the FAA during the study (if any), and the
basis for the FAA's decision in this matter can be found on the following page(s).

If we can be of further assistance, please contact Ken Patterson, at (817) 222-5935, or
kenneth.patterson@faa.gov. On any future correspondence concerning this matter, please refer to Aeronautical
Study Number 2020-ASO-5654-OE.

Signature Control No: 431013213-449075295 ( DNH )
Mike Helvey
Manager, Obstruction Evaluation Group

Attachment(s)
Additional Information
Map(s)

11.A.a

Packet Pg. 315



Mail Processing Center
Federal Aviation Administration
Southwest Regional Office
Obstruction Evaluation Group
10101 Hillwood Parkway
Fort Worth, TX 76177

Aeronautical Study No.
2020-ASO-5652-OE

Page 1 of 7

Issued Date: 08/24/2020

Alex Panjwani
North Point Hotel Group
3405 Piedmont Road
Suite 500
Atlanta, GA 30305

** DETERMINATION OF NO HAZARD TO AIR NAVIGATION **

The Federal Aviation Administration has conducted an aeronautical study under the provisions of 49 U.S.C.,
Section 44718 and if applicable Title 14 of the Code of Federal Regulations, part 77, concerning:

Structure: Building North Corner
Location: Atlanta, GA
Latitude: 33-38-39.21N NAD 83
Longitude: 84-27-14.68W
Heights: 1052 feet site elevation (SE)

85 feet above ground level (AGL)
1137 feet above mean sea level (AMSL)

This aeronautical study revealed that the structure would have no substantial adverse effect on the safe
and efficient utilization of the navigable airspace by aircraft or on the operation of air navigation facilities.
Therefore, pursuant to the authority delegated to me, it is hereby determined that the structure would not be a
hazard to air navigation provided the following condition(s) is(are) met:

As a condition to this Determination, the structure is to be marked/lighted in accordance with FAA Advisory
circular 70/7460-1 L Change 2, Obstruction Marking and Lighting, red lights - Chapters 4,5(Red),&12.

Any failure or malfunction that lasts more than thirty (30) minutes and affects a top light or flashing obstruction
light, regardless of its position, should be reported immediately to (877) 487-6867 so a Notice to Airmen
(NOTAM) can be issued. As soon as the normal operation is restored, notify the same number.

It is required that FAA Form 7460-2, Notice of Actual Construction or Alteration, be e-filed any time the
project is abandoned or:

_____ At least 10 days prior to start of construction (7460-2, Part 1)
__X__ Within 5 days after the construction reaches its greatest height (7460-2, Part 2)

See attachment for additional condition(s) or information.

This determination expires on 02/24/2022 unless:

11.A.a

Packet Pg. 316



Page 2 of 7

(a) the construction is started (not necessarily completed) and FAA Form 7460-2, Notice of Actual
Construction or Alteration, is received by this office.

(b) extended, revised, or terminated by the issuing office.
(c) the construction is subject to the licensing authority of the Federal Communications Commission

(FCC) and an application for a construction permit has been filed, as required by the FCC, within
6 months of the date of this determination. In such case, the determination expires on the date
prescribed by the FCC for completion of construction, or the date the FCC denies the application.

NOTE: REQUEST FOR EXTENSION OF THE EFFECTIVE PERIOD OF THIS DETERMINATION MUST
BE E-FILED AT LEAST 15 DAYS PRIOR TO THE EXPIRATION DATE. AFTER RE-EVALUATION
OF CURRENT OPERATIONS IN THE AREA OF THE STRUCTURE TO DETERMINE THAT NO
SIGNIFICANT AERONAUTICAL CHANGES HAVE OCCURRED, YOUR DETERMINATION MAY BE
ELIGIBLE FOR ONE EXTENSION OF THE EFFECTIVE PERIOD.

This determination is subject to review if an interested party files a petition that is received by the FAA on or
before September 23, 2020. In the event a petition for review is filed, it must contain a full statement of the
basis upon which it is made and be submitted to the Manager of the Rules and Regulations Group. Petitions can
be submitted via mail to Federal Aviation Administration, 800 Independence Ave, SW, Washington, DC 20591,
via email at OEPetitions@faa.gov, or via facsimile (202) 267-9328.

This determination becomes final on October 03, 2020 unless a petition is timely filed. In which case, this
determination will not become final pending disposition of the petition. Interested parties will be notified of the
grant of any review. For any questions regarding your petition, please contact Rules and Regulations Group via
telephone – 202-267-8783.

This determination is based, in part, on the foregoing description which includes specific coordinates, heights,
frequency(ies) and power. Any changes in coordinates, heights and frequencies or use of greater power, except
those frequencies specified in the Colo Void Clause Coalition; Antenna System Co-Location; Voluntary Best
Practices, effective 21 Nov 2007, will void this determination. Any future construction or alteration, including
increase to heights, power or the addition of other transmitters, requires separate notice to the FAA. This
determination includes all previously filed frequencies and power for this structure.

If construction or alteration is dismantled or destroyed, you must submit notice to the FAA within 5 days after
the construction or alteration is dismantled or destroyed.

This determination does include temporary construction equipment such as cranes, derricks, etc., which may be
used during actual construction of the structure. However, this equipment shall not exceed the overall heights as
indicated above. Equipment which has a height greater than the studied structure requires separate notice to the
FAA.

This determination concerns the effect of this structure on the safe and efficient use of navigable airspace
by aircraft and does not relieve the sponsor of compliance responsibilities relating to any law, ordinance, or
regulation of any Federal, State, or local government body.

This aeronautical study considered and analyzed the impact on existing and proposed arrival, departure, and
en route procedures for aircraft operating under both visual flight rules and instrument flight rules; the impact
on all existing and planned public-use airports, military airports and aeronautical facilities; and the cumulative
impact resulting from the studied structure when combined with the impact of other existing or proposed

11.A.a

Packet Pg. 317



Page 3 of 7

structures. The study disclosed that the described structure would have no substantial adverse effect on air
navigation.

An account of the study findings, aeronautical objections received by the FAA during the study (if any), and the
basis for the FAA's decision in this matter can be found on the following page(s).

If we can be of further assistance, please contact Ken Patterson, at (817) 222-5935, or
kenneth.patterson@faa.gov. On any future correspondence concerning this matter, please refer to Aeronautical
Study Number 2020-ASO-5652-OE.

Signature Control No: 431013211-449075296 ( DNH )
Mike Helvey
Manager, Obstruction Evaluation Group

Attachment(s)
Additional Information
Map(s)

11.A.a

Packet Pg. 318



11.A.a

Packet Pg. 319



SHEET NO.

JOB NO.

DATE

SHEET TITLE

PHASE

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

PRINTING & REVISIONS

STAMP

ARCHITECTURE
PLANNING
PROGRAMMING
INTERIORS

AIA                      NCARB

B
C
A
-
S
T
U
D
IO
S

G
 a

 i
 n

 e
 s

 v
 i
 l
 l
 e

  
-
  

A
 t

 l
 a

 n
 t

 a

A
 R

 C
 H

 I
 T

 E
 C

 T
 S

4
1
0
 B

R
A

D
F
O

R
D

 S
T
R

E
E
T
 N

W

G
A

IN
E
S
V

IL
L
E
, 
G

E
O

R
G

IA
 3

0
5
0
1

- COPYRIGHT -2021C

A

14

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

1513121110987654321

14 1513121110987654321

1
 W

E
S
T
 C

O
U

R
T
 S

Q
U

A
R

E

S
U

IT
E
 5

4
0

D
E
C

A
T
U

R
, 
G

A
 3

0
0
3
0

4
  
7
  
0
  
- 

 4
  
8
  
0
  
- 

 5
  
5
  
6
  
0
 

4
/2

8
/2

0
2
1

 3
:0

8
:4

0
 P

M
C

:\
R

e
v
it
 L

o
c
a

l 
F

ile
s
\R

e
v
it
 2

0
2

0
\2

0
1

9
0
0

3
8
-R

I-
A

lo
ft
 G

IC
C

_
d
a

n
D

7
H

J
Q

.r
v
t

EXTERIOR BUILDING
VIEWS

A200

P
re

lim
in

a
ry

 D
e

s
ig

n

R
I+

A
lo

ft
 b

y
 M

a
rr

io
tt

2
0

5
1

 C
o
n

v
e
n

ti
o
n

 C
e
n

te
r 

C
o
n

c
o

u
rs

e
, 
A

tl
a

n
ta

, 
G

A
 3

0
3
3

7

20190038

04/28/2021

Schematic Design

D
U

A
L

 B
R

A
N

D
 H

O
T

E
L

 @
G

e
o
rg

ia
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a
l 
C

o
n
v
e

n
ti
o

n
 C

e
n
te

r

11.A.a

Packet Pg. 320



Level 1
0"

Level 1
0"

Roof
76' - 0"

Roof
76' - 0"

Level 2
18' - 0"

Level 2
18' - 0"

Level 3
27' - 8"

Level 3
27' - 8"

Level 4
37' - 4"

Level 4
37' - 4"

Level 5
47' - 0"

Level 5
47' - 0"

Level 6
56' - 8"

Level 6
56' - 8"

Level 7
66' - 4"

Level 7
66' - 4"

Lease 2
-2' - 0"Lease 1
-4' - 0"

FAA MAX HT
85' - 0"

FAA MAX HT
85' - 0"

9
' 
- 

0
"

9
' 
- 

8
"

9
' 
- 

8
"

9
' 
- 

8
"

9
' 
- 

8
"

9
' 
- 

8
"

9
' 
- 

8
"

1
8
' 
- 

0
"

Level 1
0"

Level 1
0"

Roof
76' - 0"

Roof
76' - 0"

Level 2
18' - 0"

Level 2
18' - 0"

Level 3
27' - 8"

Level 3
27' - 8"

Level 4
37' - 4"

Level 4
37' - 4"

Level 5
47' - 0"

Level 5
47' - 0"

Level 6
56' - 8"

Level 6
56' - 8"

Level 7
66' - 4"

Level 7
66' - 4"

Lease 2
-2' - 0"

Lease 2
-2' - 0"Lease 1

-4' - 0"
Lease 1

-4' - 0"

FAA MAX HT
85' - 0"

FAA MAX HT
85' - 0"

Level 1
0"

Level 1
0"

Level 2
18' - 0"

Level 2
18' - 0"

Level 3
27' - 8"

Level 3
27' - 8"

Level 4
37' - 4"

Level 4
37' - 4"

SHEET NO.

JOB NO.

DATE

SHEET TITLE

PHASE

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

PRINTING & REVISIONS

STAMP

ARCHITECTURE
PLANNING
PROGRAMMING
INTERIORS

AIA                      NCARB

B
C
A
-
S
T
U
D
IO
S

G
 a

 i
 n

 e
 s

 v
 i
 l
 l
 e

  
-
  

A
 t

 l
 a

 n
 t

 a

A
 R

 C
 H

 I
 T

 E
 C

 T
 S

4
1
0
 B

R
A

D
F
O

R
D

 S
T
R

E
E
T
 N

W

G
A

IN
E
S
V

IL
L
E
, 
G

E
O

R
G

IA
 3

0
5
0
1

- COPYRIGHT -2021C

A

14

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

1513121110987654321

14 1513121110987654321

1
 W

E
S
T
 C

O
U

R
T
 S

Q
U

A
R

E

S
U

IT
E
 5

4
0

D
E
C

A
T
U

R
, 
G

A
 3

0
0
3
0

4
  
7
  
0
  
- 

 4
  
8
  
0
  
- 

 5
  
5
  
6
  
0
 

4
/2

8
/2

0
2
1

 3
:1

1
:1

1
 P

M
C

:\
R

e
v
it
 L

o
c
a

l 
F

ile
s
\R

e
v
it
 2

0
2

0
\2

0
1

9
0
0

3
8
-R

I-
A

lo
ft
 G

IC
C

_
d
a

n
D

7
H

J
Q

.r
v
t

EXTERIOR BUILDING
ELEVATIONS

A201

P
re

lim
in

a
ry

 D
e

s
ig

n

R
I+

A
lo

ft
 b

y
 M

a
rr

io
tt

2
0

5
1

 C
o
n

v
e
n

ti
o
n

 C
e
n

te
r 

C
o
n

c
o

u
rs

e
, 
A

tl
a

n
ta

, 
G

A
 3

0
3
3

7

20190038

04/28/2021

Schematic Design

D
U

A
L

 B
R

A
N

D
 H

O
T

E
L

 @
G

e
o
rg

ia
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a
l 
C

o
n
v
e

n
ti
o

n
 C

e
n
te

r

3/32" = 1'-0"A201

1 SOUTH ELEVATION - ROOSEVELT HIGHWAY

3/32" = 1'-0"A201

2 WEST ELEVATION - GATEWAY BOULEVARD
3/32" = 1'-0"A201

3 INSET WEST TERRACE ELEVATION

11.A.a

Packet Pg. 321



Level 1
0"

Level 1
0"

Roof
76' - 0"

Roof
76' - 0"

Level 2
18' - 0"

Level 2
18' - 0"

Level 3
27' - 8"

Level 3
27' - 8"

Level 4
37' - 4"

Level 4
37' - 4"

Level 5
47' - 0"

Level 5
47' - 0"

Level 6
56' - 8"

Level 6
56' - 8"

Level 7
66' - 4"

Level 7
66' - 4"

Lease 2
-2' - 0"

Lease 2
-2' - 0"Lease 1

-4' - 0"
Lease 1

-4' - 0"

FAA MAX HT
85' - 0"

FAA MAX HT
85' - 0"

Level 1
0"

Level 1
0"

Roof
76' - 0"

Roof
76' - 0"

Level 2
18' - 0"

Level 2
18' - 0"

Level 3
27' - 8"

Level 3
27' - 8"

Level 4
37' - 4"

Level 4
37' - 4"

Level 5
47' - 0"

Level 5
47' - 0"

Level 6
56' - 8"

Level 6
56' - 8"

Level 7
66' - 4"

Level 7
66' - 4"

Lease 2
-2' - 0"Lease 1
-4' - 0"

FAA MAX HT
85' - 0"

FAA MAX HT
85' - 0"

Level 1
0"

Level 1
0"

Roof
76' - 0"

Roof
76' - 0"

Level 2
18' - 0"

Level 2
18' - 0"

Level 3
27' - 8"

Level 3
27' - 8"

Level 4
37' - 4"

Level 4
37' - 4"

Level 5
47' - 0"

Level 5
47' - 0"

Level 6
56' - 8"

Level 6
56' - 8"

Level 7
66' - 4"

Level 7
66' - 4"

Lease 2
-2' - 0"

Lease 2
-2' - 0"Lease 1

-4' - 0"
Lease 1

-4' - 0"

FAA MAX HT
85' - 0"

FAA MAX HT
85' - 0"

SHEET NO.

JOB NO.

DATE

SHEET TITLE

PHASE

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

PRINTING & REVISIONS

STAMP

ARCHITECTURE
PLANNING
PROGRAMMING
INTERIORS

AIA                      NCARB

B
C
A
-
S
T
U
D
IO
S

G
 a

 i
 n

 e
 s

 v
 i
 l
 l
 e

  
-
  

A
 t

 l
 a

 n
 t

 a

A
 R

 C
 H

 I
 T

 E
 C

 T
 S

4
1
0
 B

R
A

D
F
O

R
D

 S
T
R

E
E
T
 N

W

G
A

IN
E
S
V

IL
L
E
, 
G

E
O

R
G

IA
 3

0
5
0
1

- COPYRIGHT -2021C

A

14

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

1513121110987654321

14 1513121110987654321

1
 W

E
S
T
 C

O
U

R
T
 S

Q
U

A
R

E

S
U

IT
E
 5

4
0

D
E
C

A
T
U

R
, 
G

A
 3

0
0
3
0

4
  
7
  
0
  
- 

 4
  
8
  
0
  
- 

 5
  
5
  
6
  
0
 

4
/2

8
/2

0
2
1

 3
:1

3
:3

4
 P

M
C

:\
R

e
v
it
 L

o
c
a

l 
F

ile
s
\R

e
v
it
 2

0
2

0
\2

0
1

9
0
0

3
8
-R

I-
A

lo
ft
 G

IC
C

_
d
a

n
D

7
H

J
Q

.r
v
t

EXTERIOR BUILDING
ELEVATIONS

A202

P
re

lim
in

a
ry

 D
e

s
ig

n

R
I+

A
lo

ft
 b

y
 M

a
rr

io
tt

2
0

5
1

 C
o
n

v
e
n

ti
o
n

 C
e
n

te
r 

C
o
n

c
o

u
rs

e
, 
A

tl
a

n
ta

, 
G

A
 3

0
3
3

7

20190038

04/28/2021

Schematic Design

D
U

A
L

 B
R

A
N

D
 H

O
T

E
L

 @
G

e
o
rg

ia
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a
l 
C

o
n
v
e

n
ti
o

n
 C

e
n
te

r

3/32" = 1'-0"A202

1 NORTH ELEVATION - CONVENTION CENTER CONCOURSE

3/32" = 1'-0"A202

2 EAST ELEVATION
3/32" = 1'-0"A202

3 RESIDENCE INN - EAST ELEVATION

11.A.a

Packet Pg. 322



Level 1
0"

Level 1
0"

Roof
76' - 0"

Roof
76' - 0"

Level 2
18' - 0"

Level 2
18' - 0"

Level 3
27' - 8"

Level 3
27' - 8"

Level 4
37' - 4"

Level 4
37' - 4"

Level 5
47' - 0"

Level 5
47' - 0"

Level 6
56' - 8"

Level 6
56' - 8"

Level 7
66' - 4"

Level 7
66' - 4"

FAA MAX HT
85' - 0"

FAA MAX HT
85' - 0"

Level 1
0"

Level 1
0"

Roof
76' - 0"

Roof
76' - 0"

Level 2
18' - 0"

Level 2
18' - 0"

Level 3
27' - 8"

Level 3
27' - 8"

Level 4
37' - 4"

Level 4
37' - 4"

Level 5
47' - 0"

Level 5
47' - 0"

Level 6
56' - 8"

Level 6
56' - 8"

Level 7
66' - 4"

Level 7
66' - 4"

Lease 2
-2' - 0"Lease 1
-4' - 0"

FAA MAX HT
85' - 0"

FAA MAX HT
85' - 0"

SHEET NO.

JOB NO.

DATE

SHEET TITLE

PHASE

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

PRINTING & REVISIONS

STAMP

ARCHITECTURE
PLANNING
PROGRAMMING
INTERIORS

AIA                      NCARB

B
C
A
-
S
T
U
D
IO
S

G
 a

 i
 n

 e
 s

 v
 i
 l
 l
 e

  
-
  

A
 t

 l
 a

 n
 t

 a

A
 R

 C
 H

 I
 T

 E
 C

 T
 S

4
1
0
 B

R
A

D
F
O

R
D

 S
T
R

E
E
T
 N

W

G
A

IN
E
S
V

IL
L
E
, 
G

E
O

R
G

IA
 3

0
5
0
1

- COPYRIGHT -2021C

A

14

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

1513121110987654321

14 1513121110987654321

1
 W

E
S
T
 C

O
U

R
T
 S

Q
U

A
R

E

S
U

IT
E
 5

4
0

D
E
C

A
T
U

R
, 
G

A
 3

0
0
3
0

4
  
7
  
0
  
- 

 4
  
8
  
0
  
- 

 5
  
5
  
6
  
0
 

4
/2

8
/2

0
2
1

 3
:1

5
:0

3
 P

M
C

:\
R

e
v
it
 L

o
c
a

l 
F

ile
s
\R

e
v
it
 2

0
2

0
\2

0
1

9
0
0

3
8
-R

I-
A

lo
ft
 G

IC
C

_
d
a

n
D

7
H

J
Q

.r
v
t

EXTERIOR BUILDING
ELEVATIONS

A203

P
re

lim
in

a
ry

 D
e

s
ig

n

R
I+

A
lo

ft
 b

y
 M

a
rr

io
tt

2
0

5
1

 C
o
n

v
e
n

ti
o
n

 C
e
n

te
r 

C
o
n

c
o

u
rs

e
, 
A

tl
a

n
ta

, 
G

A
 3

0
3
3

7

20190038

04/28/2021

Schematic Design

D
U

A
L

 B
R

A
N

D
 H

O
T

E
L

 @
G

e
o
rg

ia
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a
l 
C

o
n
v
e

n
ti
o

n
 C

e
n
te

r

3/32" = 1'-0"A203

1 ALOFT - NORTH ELEVATION

3/32" = 1'-0"A203

2 RESIDENCE INN 0 SOUTH ELEVATION

11.A.a

Packet Pg. 323



Level 1
0"

Level 1
0"

Roof
76' - 0"

Roof
76' - 0"

Level 2
18' - 0"

Level 2
18' - 0"

Level 3
27' - 8"

Level 3
27' - 8"

Level 4
37' - 4"

Level 4
37' - 4"

Level 5
47' - 0"

Level 5
47' - 0"

Level 6
56' - 8"

Level 6
56' - 8"

Level 7
66' - 4"

Level 7
66' - 4"

Lease 2
-2' - 0"Lease 1
-4' - 0"

FAA MAX HT
85' - 0"

FAA MAX HT
85' - 0"

Level 1
0"

Level 1
0"

Roof
76' - 0"

Roof
76' - 0"

Level 2
18' - 0"

Level 2
18' - 0"

Level 3
27' - 8"

Level 3
27' - 8"

Level 4
37' - 4"

Level 4
37' - 4"

Level 5
47' - 0"

Level 5
47' - 0"

Level 6
56' - 8"

Level 6
56' - 8"

Level 7
66' - 4"

Level 7
66' - 4"

Lease 2
-2' - 0"

Lease 2
-2' - 0"Lease 1

-4' - 0"
Lease 1

-4' - 0"

FAA MAX HT
85' - 0"

FAA MAX HT
85' - 0"

SHEET NO.

JOB NO.

DATE

SHEET TITLE

PHASE

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

PRINTING & REVISIONS

STAMP

ARCHITECTURE
PLANNING
PROGRAMMING
INTERIORS

AIA                      NCARB

B
C
A
-
S
T
U
D
IO
S

G
 a

 i
 n

 e
 s

 v
 i
 l
 l
 e

  
-
  

A
 t

 l
 a

 n
 t

 a

A
 R

 C
 H

 I
 T

 E
 C

 T
 S

4
1
0
 B

R
A

D
F
O

R
D

 S
T
R

E
E
T
 N

W

G
A

IN
E
S
V

IL
L
E
, 
G

E
O

R
G

IA
 3

0
5
0
1

- COPYRIGHT -2021C

A

14

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

1513121110987654321

14 1513121110987654321

1
 W

E
S
T
 C

O
U

R
T
 S

Q
U

A
R

E

S
U

IT
E
 5

4
0

D
E
C

A
T
U

R
, 
G

A
 3

0
0
3
0

4
  
7
  
0
  
- 

 4
  
8
  
0
  
- 

 5
  
5
  
6
  
0
 

4
/2

8
/2

0
2
1

 3
:1

6
:1

1
 P

M
C

:\
R

e
v
it
 L

o
c
a

l 
F

ile
s
\R

e
v
it
 2

0
2

0
\2

0
1

9
0
0

3
8
-R

I-
A

lo
ft
 G

IC
C

_
d
a

n
D

7
H

J
Q

.r
v
t

EXTERIOR BUILDING
ELEVATIONS

A204

P
re

lim
in

a
ry

 D
e

s
ig

n

R
I+

A
lo

ft
 b

y
 M

a
rr

io
tt

2
0

5
1

 C
o
n

v
e
n

ti
o
n

 C
e
n

te
r 

C
o
n

c
o

u
rs

e
, 
A

tl
a

n
ta

, 
G

A
 3

0
3
3

7

20190038

04/28/2021

Schematic Design

D
U

A
L

 B
R

A
N

D
 H

O
T

E
L

 @
G

e
o
rg

ia
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a
l 
C

o
n
v
e

n
ti
o

n
 C

e
n
te

r

3/32" = 1'-0"A204

1 INSET EAST ELEVATION

3/32" = 1'-0"A204

2 INSET WEST ELEVATION

11.A.a

Packet Pg. 324



11.A.a

Packet Pg. 325



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8918  

Updated: 6/16/2021 12:46 PM by Danielle Matricardi  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: June 16, 2021 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Mercedes Miller, Interim City Manager 

 

FROM: Nikki Washington, Planner 

 

RE:  Appointment for Ward 1 BZA Member 

 

 

PURPOSE:   To make an appointment for a Ward 1 BZA Member.  

 

REASON:  The current board member for Ward 1 is moving out of the City and will no longer 

be permitted to serve on the BZA.  

 

RECOMMENDATION: City Planner recommends that Ward 1 Councilman make an 

appointment for the position.  

 

BACKGROUND:  BZA Members are appointed by the Mayor and Council to conduct meetings 

in which they hear applications for variances from the code. The following appointment 

procedures are outlined in City Ordinance Section 15-8(a)(1): 

 

 The board of zoning appeals shall consist of five (5) members appointed by the mayor 

and  council. Four (4) members shall be appointed for each respective ward and one (1) 

member  will be an at large appointment. Each council member shall nominate one (1) 

person to serve on  the board of zoning appeals as the representative from his or her ward. The 

mayor shall  nominate one (1) person for at large appointment. Such nominations shall be 

made in February,  following installation of new members of the city governing body. Each 

nomination shall be  voted on by the entire governing body. No appointed member shall be an 

employee or official  of the city. 

 

Subsection (a)(4) of the ordinance further provides: "A member appointed to fill a vacancy 

created by removal, death or resignation, shall serve for the unexpired term." As such the 

appointee shall serve the unexpired term of the Ward 1 BZA member.  

 

COST TO CITY:  N/A 

 

BUDGETED ITEM:  N/A 

11.B

Packet Pg. 326



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8918)  Meeting of June 21, 2021 

Updated: 6/16/2021 12:46 PM by Danielle Matricardi  Page 2 

 

REVENUE TO CITY:  N/A 

 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING DATE:  June 21st, 2021 

 

STAFF:  Planning  

 

 

Review: 

 Nikki Washington Completed 06/15/2021 1:29 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 06/15/2021 3:56 PM 

 City Attorney's Office Completed 06/16/2021 12:46 PM 

 Mercedes Miller Completed 06/16/2021 1:56 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 06/21/2021 7:30 PM 

11.B

Packet Pg. 327



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8914  

Updated: 6/15/2021 3:10 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: June 15, 2021 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

FROM: Mercedes Miller, Interim City Manager 

 

RE:  Consideration of Utility Credit Resolution - Fiscal Year 2021-2022 

 

 

Attached please find proposed City of College Park Utility Credit Resolution No. 2021-13.  The 

resolution provides for a utility credit to (1) regular full-time City employees, (2) regular part-

time City employees, (3) retired City employees, (4) elected officials, (5) retired elected officials, 

(6) survivor spouses of retired employees and (7) survivor spouses of retired elected officials, 

who were continuously living in the City at the time of retirement, and who continuously live 

within the City, without a break in residency, to be applied toward the monthly City generated 

utility bills.  Regular part-time City employees will receive a credit not-to-exceed twelve 

hundred dollars and no cents ($1,200) annually.  All regular full-time employees, elected 

officials, retirees and survivor spouses will receive a credit not-to-exceed twenty-four hundred 

dollars and no cents ($2,400) annually.  Such credit is subject to restrictions and limitations:  

 

Funding for this program has been allocated in the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Budget. 

 

Thank you. 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 City Employee Utility Credit Resolution No. 2020-11 (PDF) 

 City Employee Utility Credit Resolution No. 2021-13 (DOCX) 

 

Review: 

 Mercedes Miller Completed 06/14/2021 1:52 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 06/14/2021 4:35 PM 

 Finance Completed 06/15/2021 3:58 PM 

 City Attorney's Office Completed 06/16/2021 1:09 PM 

 Mercedes Miller Completed 06/16/2021 1:56 PM 

11.C

Packet Pg. 328



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8914)  Meeting of June 21, 2021 

Updated: 6/15/2021 3:10 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 2 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 06/21/2021 7:30 PM 

11.C

Packet Pg. 329



11.C.a

Packet Pg. 330



11.C.a

Packet Pg. 331



11.C.a

Packet Pg. 332



11.C.a

Packet Pg. 333



STATE OF GEORGIA  1 

 2 

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK  3 

 4 

RESOLUTION 2021-13 5 

 6 

A RESOLUTION TO CLARIFY AND FURTHER DEFINE CERTAIN CLASSIFICATIONS OF 7 

CITY EMPLOYEES, RETIRED ELECTED OFFICIALS AND EMPLOYEES, AND 8 

SURVIVING SPOUSES WHO LIVE WITHIN THE MUNICIPAL LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 9 

COLLEGE PARK, AND WHO ARE ELIGIBLE TO RECEIVE CITY UTILITY CREDITS; TO 10 

REPEAL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE AND 11 

TERM; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.  12 

WHEREAS, The Mayor and Council of College Park finds the neighborhoods in the City 13 

of College Park are under significant pressures as a result of airport noise, crime and increasingly 14 

transient population; and  15 

WHEREAS, The Mayor and Council of College Park finds the reduction in the City’s 16 

population as a result of the expansion of the Hartsfield-Jackson Atlanta International Airport to 17 

be an ongoing and increasing concern; and  18 

WHEREAS, The Mayor and Council of College Park finds that encouraging families to 19 

live in and return to the City of College Park is a factor in creating safe, stable, and desirable 20 

neighborhoods in the City of College Park; and  21 

WHEREAS, The Mayor and Council of College Park finds that employment stability is 22 

a positive factor in creating safe, stable and desirable neighborhoods in the City of College Park; 23 

and  24 

WHEREAS, The Mayor and Council of College Park finds that increased civic pride and 25 

interest in the City of College Park is a positive factor in creating safe, stable and desirable 26 

neighborhoods in the City of College Park, and that City employees who live within the City of 27 

College Park contribute to such neighborhoods through their employment stability, increased civic 28 

pride, and interest in the City of College Park; and  29 

11.C.b

Packet Pg. 334



WHEREAS, The Mayor and Council of College Park finds that the City’s interests in 30 

improving employee performance and reducing absenteeism are served by encouraging City 31 

employees to live in the City; and  32 

WHEREAS, The Mayor and Council of College Park finds that public safety and public 33 

works employees who live within the City of College Park are able to respond to call back in 34 

emergency situations more quickly than City employees who live outside the City of College 35 

Park; and  36 

WHEREAS, The Mayor and Council of College Park finds that the City’s interests are 37 

served by encouraging City employees to live within the City of College Park;   38 

WHEREAS, The Mayor and Council of College Park desires to show consideration to 39 

the retired City employees and the retired elected City officials who live within the City of 40 

College Park;   41 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City will apply a utility credit to (1) regular full-42 

time City employees, (2) regular part-time City employees, (3) retired City employees, (4) elected 43 

officials, (5) retired elected officials, (6) survivor spouses of retired employees and (7) survivor 44 

spouses of retired elected officials, who were continuously living in the City at the time of 45 

retirement, and who continuously live within the City, without a break in residency, to be applied 46 

toward the monthly City generated utility bills.  Regular part-time City employees will receive a 47 

credit not-to-exceed twelve hundred dollars and no cents ($1,200) annually.  All regular full-time 48 

employees, elected officials, retirees and survivor spouses will receive a credit not-to-exceed 49 

twenty-four hundred dollars and no cents ($2,400) annually.  Such credit shall be subject to the 50 

following restrictions and limitations:  51 

  52 

1. Such credit shall be granted monthly during each regular calendar year, so long as the 53 

subject receiving such credit continues to qualify for such credit.  54 

  55 

2. To qualify for such credit, the employee/retiree/survivor spouse shall be required to prove 56 

residency within the City through a validly signed lease or proof of ownership of the 57 

employee’s/retiree’s residence; such proof must be in the name of the employee/retiree 58 

and/or the employee’s/retiree’s spouse only.  59 

  60 

3. The employee/retiree/survivor spouse shall be required to have lived within the City of 61 

College Park for at least one full month before qualifying for such credit.  62 

  63 

4. Such credit shall be applied against City-provided utility usage only; such credit shall not 64 

be used to establish deposits or clear arrearages incurred by the employee/retiree/survivor 65 

11.C.b

Packet Pg. 335



spouse notwithstanding the credit. The employee/retiree/survivor spouse is subject to 66 

disconnection of utility services on city generated utility bills in the event of non-payment 67 

of remaining balances, if any. Employees/retirees/survivor spouses who are delinquent on 68 

utility payments from the previous fiscal year have until July 31st of the current benefit year 69 

to satisfy outstanding balances.  Otherwise, they are subject to loss of eligibility for the 70 

utility credit benefit for a twelve-month period.  71 

  72 

5. Employees/retiree/survivor spouse must keep their account current in order to continue to 73 

be eligible for the utility credit.  Any employee/retiree/survivor spouse whose account is 74 

more than 30 days past due is subject to disconnection of services, forfeiture of utility credit 75 

or payroll deduction as deemed appropriate by city administration.  By accepting the credit, 76 

all beneficiaries consent to the City withholding from any salary due unpaid utility balance.  77 

  78 

6. Such credit has no cash value and is not convertible to cash or equivalent.  79 

  80 

7. Elected officials/employees/retirees/survivor spouses may accumulate unused credits on 81 

their monthly utility bills that are less than $200 per month within the twelve-month period 82 

beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022.  Any unused accumulated credit may be 83 

applied to subsequent monthly utility bills.  Carry-over into the next fiscal year of any 84 

unused accumulated utility credit is not allowed.  Unused credit can also be reimbursed to 85 

the employee/retiree/survivor spouse for third party billing for water, sewer and trash 86 

services provided by the City.  All accumulated utility credit amounts terminate at the end 87 

of the current fiscal year and are non-refundable upon separation of employment with the 88 

City or a loss of eligibility for the utility credit benefit occurs.  89 

 90 

8. An “elected official” shall be defined as any resident of the City of College Park elected to 91 

the position(s) of mayor or member of the City Council, or who is currently serving as 92 

mayor or councilperson as of the date of this resolution, or who is appointed to fill an 93 

unexpired term of those offices. 94 

 95 

9. A “regular full-time employee” shall be defined as an employee who has been employed 96 

by the City for an indefinite period of time to work forty (40) hours per week or eighty (80) 97 

hours per bi-weekly pay period and all full-time contract employees (e.g., City Manager, 98 

department heads), and who currently resides within the City limits.   99 

  100 

10. A “regular part-time employee” shall be defined as an employee who has been employed 101 

by the City for an indefinite period of time to work less than forty (40) hours per week and 102 

greater than twenty (20) hours per work week, and who currently resides within the City 103 

limits.  104 

  105 

11. A “retired City employee” shall be defined as a former City employee, who is no longer 106 

employed with the City; who is currently vested in the City’s retirement program, who are 107 

receiving benefits from the City’s retirement program, and who currently reside within the 108 

City limits.   109 

  110 

11.C.b

Packet Pg. 336



12. A “retired elected official” shall be defined as a former elected official of the City who no 111 

longer holds any City elected office, who held any City elected office for a time period of 112 

no less than five continuous (5) years, and who currently resides within the City limits.   113 

  114 

13. A “survivor spouse of a retired employee” shall be defined as the spouse of a retired 115 

employee as defined in paragraph 11 above, who is surviving after the death of the retired 116 

employee, who was legally married under the laws of the State of Georgia, or other state, 117 

to the retired employee at the time of the retired employee’s death, and who currently 118 

resides within in the City limits.    119 

  120 

14. A “survivor spouse of a retired elected official” shall be defined as the spouse of a retired 121 

elected official as defined in paragraph 12 above, who is surviving after the death of the 122 

retired elected official, who was legally married under the laws of the State of Georgia, or 123 

other state, to the retired elected official at the time of the retired elected official’s death, 124 

and who currently resides within in the City limits.    125 

  126 

15. All regular full-time employees, retirees, and survivor spouses shall be responsible for 127 

paying any portion of the utility bill that exceeds $2,400 annually on City generated utility 128 

bills.  129 

  130 

16. All regular part-time employees shall be responsible for paying any portion of the utility 131 

bill that exceeds $1,200 annually on City generated utility bills.  132 

  133 

SO RESOLVED THIS _____ DAY OF JUNE, 2021.  134 

  135 

              MAYOR AND COUNCIL  136 

              CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 137 

  138 

              ____________________________  139 

              Bianca Motley Broom, Mayor 140 

 141 

ATTEST: 142 

 143 

 144 

____________________________ 145 

Shavala Moore, City Clerk 146 

11.C.b

Packet Pg. 337



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8919  

Updated: 6/16/2021 9:38 AM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: June 16, 2021 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Mercedes Miller, Interim City Manager 

 

FROM: Michelle Johnson, Director of Recreation & Cultural Arts 

 

RE:  Hawks Basketball Court Rules & Operational Policies 

 

 

PURPOSE:  To provide an overview of rules and operations for the Hawks Basketball Court 

and recommend new policies to accommodate the citizens request for usage for all ages of the 

basketball court.  

 

REASON:  To provide an update on the Hawks Basketball Court and recommend rules and 

operational changes to meet the request and needs of the community.  

  

RECOMMENDATION: To approve recommended changes for the court.  

 

BACKGROUND:  The Hawks Basketball Court was built in June of 2018.  The current rules 

were established based on the concerns and input of the community for the court current rules. 

Due to interest of citizens outside the age limits of the current rules with several discussion and 

meetings a recommendation has been made to make changes to the rules and operational policies 

for the Hawks Court.     

 

YEARS OF SERVICE: N/A 

 

BUDGETED ITEMS: N/A 

  

REVENUE TO CITY: N/A 

 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING DATE: June 21, 2021 

 

CONSIDERATION BY OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES: N/A 

 

AFFECTED AGENCIES:  Police Department to help with oversight and monitoring of the 

court. 

 

11.D

Packet Pg. 338



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8919)  Meeting of June 21, 2021 

Updated: 6/16/2021 9:38 AM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 2 

RELATIONSHIP TO EXISTING ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTION:  N/A 

 

REQUIRED CHANGES TO WORK PROGRAMS:  N/A 

 

 

STAFF:  Recreation Staff 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Hawk Basketball Presentation FINAL UPDATED (PPTX) 

 

Review: 

 Michelle Johnson Completed 06/09/2021 11:32 AM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 06/11/2021 3:52 PM 

 Thomas Kuzniacki Completed 06/15/2021 8:50 AM 

 Mercedes Miller Completed 06/16/2021 9:46 AM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 06/21/2021 7:30 PM 

11.D

Packet Pg. 339



Hawks Basketball Court
Presentation

• Issues & Concerns
• Current Hours of Operation
• Proposed Hours of Operations
• Current Court Rules
• Proposed Court Rules

11.D.a

Packet Pg. 340



Issues & Concerns 

• Age of play

• Hours of operation

• Noise

• Vandalism 

• Safety concern

11.D.a

Packet Pg. 341



Issues & Concerns
• Age of play:

– Currently only ages 16 & under is allowed to play on the 
court.  

– Request from citizens to open the court to all ages to 
include adult play.

Recommendation for policy change to open the court to 
all ages to include adult play.

11.D.a

Packet Pg. 342



Issues & Concerns
• Hours of operation:

– Request from citizens for more hours, days and time.
– Request to open on Sunday. 
– Request for morning hours.

Recommendation for operational hours to be set Monday-
Saturday, 9:00 AM-7:00 PM, close on Sunday.  Due to 
increasing hours of operation and the recreation facilities are 
not open on Sunday’s along with consideration of citizens in 
close proximity a recommendation for court to be closed on 
Sundays. 

11.D.a

Packet Pg. 343



Issues & Concerns
• Noise:

- Citizen request to open the court 7 days a week. 
- Citizen living in close proximity of the court concern with 

7 days a week noise from play.
- Consideration of having a day of no play.

Recommendation to for operational hour to be set Monday-
Saturday, 9:00 AM-7:00 PM, Monday-Saturday, close on 
Sunday.  

11.D.a

Packet Pg. 344



Issues & Concerns
• Vandalism:

- Access to the court is being gained during non operational 
hours by damaging the fence. Costly expense for repairs.

Recommendation to expand operational hours to be set to 
allow more play time.  

11.D.a

Packet Pg. 345



Issues & Concerns
• Safety Concerns:

– Concerns for safety with a past incident regarding a weapon being 
drawn.  

Recommendation for police support and presence along 
with Recreation Staff for monitoring and oversight during 
operational hours.  

11.D.a

Packet Pg. 346



Current Hours of Operations

• Monday-Friday:  3:30 PM - 8:00 PM

• Saturday:  10:00 AM - 6:00 PM 

• Sunday: CLOSED

• Closed Holidays

Recreation Staff: Monday-Thursday opens and closes and Friday 
open

Court Monitor:  closes Friday and open and closes Saturday  

11.D.a

Packet Pg. 347



Proposed Hours of Operations

• Monday-Saturday:  9:00 AM - 7:00 PM

• Sunday: CLOSED

• Closed Holidays

Recreation Staff: Monday-Thursday opens and closes and Friday 
open

Court Monitor:  closes Friday and open and closes on Saturday

11.D.a

Packet Pg. 348



Current Court Rules 

• ATHLETIC GEAR ONLY
• AGE LIMIT 16 & UNDER
• SUPERVISION ALWAYS WELCOMED
• NO DUNKING
• NO FIGHTING
• NO GAMBLING
• NO HORSE PLAY
• NO PROFANITY
• NO LITTERING
• NO LOUD MUSIC
• NO SAGGING PANTS/SHORT
• NO SMOKING
• NO WEAPONS ALLOWED
• DO RESPECT OTHERS, FACILITY AND EQUIPMENT

11.D.a

Packet Pg. 349



Proposed Court Rules

• ATHLETIC GEAR ONLY
• ALL AGES WELCOMED
• CAPACITY LIMIT 50
• HALF COURT PLAY ONLY
• NO ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGEES
• NO DUNKING
• NO FIGHTING
• NO GAMBLING
• NO HORSE PLAY
• NO LITTERING
• NO MUSIC
• NO PROFANITY
• NO SAGGING PANTS OR SHORTS
• NO SKATES, SKATEBOARDS OR BIKES
• NO SMOKING
• NO TOURNAMENT PLAY (FREE PLAY ONLY)
• NO WEAPONS 
• DO RESPECT OTHERS, FACILITY AND 

EQUIPMENT
• 1 HOUR LIMIT WHEN OTHERS ARE WAITING
• DO HAVE FUN!

11.D.a

Packet Pg. 350



QUESTIONS

THANK YOU

11.D.a

Packet Pg. 351


	Full Agenda
	1. Opening Ceremonies
	A. Pledge Of Allegiance
	B. Invocation

	2. Additions, Deletions, Amendments, or Changes to the Agenda
	3. Presentation of Minutes of City Council
	A. 8925 : Regular Session Minutes dated June 7, 2021
	Printout: 8925 : Regular Session Minutes dated June 7, 2021
	a. RS060721

	B. 8926 : Workshop Session Minutes dated June 7, 2021
	Printout: 8926 : Workshop Session Minutes dated June 7, 2021
	a. WSS060721


	4. Proclamations, Resolutions, Plaques, and Announcements
	A. 8927 : Proclamations Presentation to Madison Gardner Favor House Track Team
	Printout: 8927 : Proclamations Presentation to Madison Gardner Favor House Track Team
	a. Madison Gardner Proclamation.Final 6.21.21

	B. 8902 : College Park Favor House Track Proclamation
	Printout: 8902 : College Park Favor House Track Proclamation
	a. College Park Favor Track Team Official Proclamation (FINAL)
	b. GRPA 2021 Proclamation Supplementary Document (version 2)


	5. Remarks of Citizens
	6. Other Business
	A. 8932 : Delinquent Property Tax Payers Update
	Printout: 8932 : Delinquent Property Tax Payers Update
	a. Top Ten Delinq Property Tax Accounts 06102021
	b. Top Ten Delinq Property Tax Accounts 06102021 2018

	B. 8931 : Top 10 Delinquent Customers
	Printout: 8931 : Top 10 Delinquent Customers
	a. CF Aging 061421 redacted
	b. CC Aging 061421
	c. RC Aging 061421
	d. RF Aging 061421 redacted
	e. Top Ten 06-14-2021 - redacted

	C. 8933 : College Park Utility Assistant Grant Program Update
	Printout: 8933 : College Park Utility Assistant Grant Program Update
	a. Grant Progress Memo June 15, 2021

	D. 8924 : Laster Chapel Summer Youth Event
	Printout: 8924 : Laster Chapel Summer Youth Event
	a. Laster Chapel SEP-modified 6-15-2021
	b. Laster Chapel Certifcate of Insurance 06152021
	c. Laster Chapel Hold Harmless 06152021


	7. Public Hearings
	8. Annual Contracts
	A. 8892 : City Judge - Annual Contract Renewal FY 2021-22
	Printout: 8892 : City Judge - Annual Contract Renewal FY 2021-22
	a. City Contract Chief Judge 2021- City Atty Revised

	B. 8891 : City Judge Pro Tempore (Morrow) Annual Contract Renewal FY 2021-22
	Printout: 8891 : City Judge Pro Tempore (Morrow) Annual Contract Renewal FY 2021-22
	a. Judge pro tempore Morrow Contract 2021- City Attorney Revised

	C. 8894 : City Judge Pro Tempore (Lacour) - Annual Contract Renewal FY 2021-22
	Printout: 8894 : City Judge Pro Tempore (Lacour) - Annual Contract Renewal FY 2021-22
	a. Judge pro tempore Lacour Contract 2021- City Atty Revised

	D. 8893 : City Solicitor - Annual Contract Renewal FY 2021-22
	Printout: 8893 : City Solicitor - Annual Contract Renewal FY 2021-22
	a. City Solicitor Contract 2021- City Atty Revised

	E. 8895 : City Solicitor (Part-Time) - Annual Contract Renewal FY 2021-22
	Printout: 8895 : City Solicitor (Part-Time) - Annual Contract Renewal FY 2021-22
	a. Part time solicitor Contract 2021- City Atty Revised

	F. 8896 : Public Defender - Annual Contract Renewal FY 2021-22
	Printout: 8896 : Public Defender - Annual Contract Renewal FY 2021-22
	a. Public Defender

	G. 8930 : City Photographer - Annual Contract Renewal FY2021-22
	Printout: 8930 : City Photographer - Annual Contract Renewal FY2021-22
	a. Warren Bond Photography Services Agreement_FY2021-22

	H. 8889 : Stenography Services Annual Contract Renewal (FY 2019-20)
	Printout: 8889 : Stenography Services Annual Contract Renewal (FY 2019-20)
	a. Stenographer Contract FY21-22
	b. CP Contract Ltr for FY2021 2022 (003)


	9. Bids, Change Order Requests and Contracts
	A. 8934 : U.S. Department of Treasury Terms & Conditions Agreement for the ARPA
	Printout: 8934 : U.S. Department of Treasury Terms & Conditions Agreement for the ARPA
	a. US Dept of Treasury-ARPA Agreement Local Fiscal Recovery

	B. 8917 : The Ferguson Group - Federal Lobbying Services
	Printout: 8917 : The Ferguson Group - Federal Lobbying Services
	a. Federal Advocacy Update 2020-2021
	b. The Ferguson Group Contract-Standard Agreement_FY2021-22

	C. 8913 : Service Agreement  with Interactive Utility Communications (IUC) for Call Center Services
	Printout: 8913 : Service Agreement  with Interactive Utility Communications (IUC) for Call Center Services
	a. IUC Service Agreement

	D. 8879 : Forensic Audit Proposal
	Printout: 8879 : Forensic Audit Proposal
	a. Tabulation Sheet - RFP - FORENSIC AUDIT SERVICES - 051121
	b. 6.16.21 FD Sub. City of College Park - Forensic Audit Agreement -

	E. 8907 : Splash Pad Bid Approval for CDBG Grant
	Printout: 8907 : Splash Pad Bid Approval for CDBG Grant
	a. Notice to Proceed for Splash Pad 03022021 signed and executed
	b. College Park -CDBG Award Notification-Charles E Phillips Splash Pad 9.10.20
	c. Regular Session Minute 011921 approval of CDBG Splash Pad Grant
	d. Agenda Memo ID #2021-8907 - RFP – CDBG PHILLIPS PARK SPLASH PAD
	e. RFP – CDBG PHILLIPS PARK SPLASH PAD -Specs
	f. RFP – CDBG UTILITY BUILDING & SITE IMPROVEMENTS - Specs
	g. Great Southern Recreation (Task 2)

	F. 8923 : On Event Services, LLC Approval of Service Agreement
	Printout: 8923 : On Event Services, LLC Approval of Service Agreement
	a. ON Event Services (OnSite) 2021 Contract Renew Request
	b. Agenda Memo ID #2021-8923 - RFQ - GICC AUDIO VISUAL SERVICE - 060821
	c. RFQ - GICC AUDIO VISUAL SERVICE - Specs
	d. GICC AUDIO VISUAL SERVICES 060821 RFQ Digital Copy 06022021RAC - Copy (ON Site)


	10. Unfinished (Old) Business
	11. New Business
	A. 8858 : Consideration of a Conditional Height Permit
	Printout: 8858 : Consideration of a Conditional Height Permit
	a. Conditional Height Permit Application 0 Rooselvelt Highway

	B. 8918 : Appointment for Ward 1 BZA Member
	Printout: 8918 : Appointment for Ward 1 BZA Member

	C. 8914 : Consideration of Utility Credit Resolution - Fiscal Year 2021-2022
	Printout: 8914 : Consideration of Utility Credit Resolution - Fiscal Year 2021-2022
	a. City Employee Utility Credit Resolution No. 2020-11
	b. City Employee Utility Credit Resolution No. 2021-13

	D. 8919 : Hawks Basketball Court Rules & Operational Policies
	Printout: 8919 : Hawks Basketball Court Rules & Operational Policies
	a. Hawk Basketball Presentation FINAL UPDATED


	12. City Attorney's Report
	13. City Manager's Report
	14. Report of Mayor and Council
	15. Executive Session
	16. Approval of Executive Session Minutes
	17. Adjournment

	Appendix
	3.A · 8925 : Regular Session Minutes dated June 7, 2021
	3.A.a · RS060721

	3.B · 8926 : Workshop Session Minutes dated June 7, 2021
	3.B.a · WSS060721

	4.A · 8927 : Proclamations Presentation to Madison Gardner Favor House Track Team
	4.A.a · Madison Gardner Proclamation.Final 6.21.21

	4.B · 8902 : College Park Favor House Track Proclamation
	4.B.a · College Park Favor Track Team Official Proclamation (FINAL)
	4.B.b · GRPA 2021 Proclamation Supplementary Document (version 2)

	6.A · 8932 : Delinquent Property Tax Payers Update
	6.A.a · Top Ten Delinq Property Tax Accounts 06102021
	6.A.b · Top Ten Delinq Property Tax Accounts 06102021 2018

	6.B · 8931 : Top 10 Delinquent Customers
	6.B.a · CF Aging 061421 redacted
	6.B.b · CC Aging 061421
	6.B.c · RC Aging 061421
	6.B.d · RF Aging 061421 redacted
	6.B.e · Top Ten 06-14-2021 - redacted

	6.C · 8933 : College Park Utility Assistant Grant Program Update
	6.C.a · Grant Progress Memo June 15, 2021

	6.D · 8924 : Laster Chapel Summer Youth Event
	6.D.a · Laster Chapel SEP-modified 6-15-2021
	6.D.b · Laster Chapel Certifcate of Insurance 06152021
	6.D.c · Laster Chapel Hold Harmless 06152021

	8.A · 8892 : City Judge - Annual Contract Renewal FY 2021-22
	8.A.a · City Contract Chief Judge 2021- City Atty Revised

	8.B · 8891 : City Judge Pro Tempore (Morrow) Annual Contract Renewal FY 2021-22
	8.B.a · Judge pro tempore Morrow Contract 2021- City Attorney Revised

	8.C · 8894 : City Judge Pro Tempore (Lacour) - Annual Contract Renewal FY 2021-22
	8.C.a · Judge pro tempore Lacour Contract 2021- City Atty Revised

	8.D · 8893 : City Solicitor - Annual Contract Renewal FY 2021-22
	8.D.a · City Solicitor Contract 2021- City Atty Revised

	8.E · 8895 : City Solicitor (Part-Time) - Annual Contract Renewal FY 2021-22
	8.E.a · Part time solicitor Contract 2021- City Atty Revised

	8.F · 8896 : Public Defender - Annual Contract Renewal FY 2021-22
	8.F.a · Public Defender

	8.G · 8930 : City Photographer - Annual Contract Renewal FY2021-22
	8.G.a · Warren Bond Photography Services Agreement_FY2021-22

	8.H · 8889 : Stenography Services Annual Contract Renewal (FY 2019-20)
	8.H.a · Stenographer Contract FY21-22
	8.H.b · CP Contract Ltr for FY2021 2022 (003)

	9.A · 8934 : U.S. Department of Treasury Terms & Conditions Agreement for the ARPA
	9.A.a · US Dept of Treasury-ARPA Agreement Local Fiscal Recovery

	9.B · 8917 : The Ferguson Group - Federal Lobbying Services
	9.B.a · Federal Advocacy Update 2020-2021
	9.B.b · The Ferguson Group Contract-Standard Agreement_FY2021-22

	9.C · 8913 : Service Agreement  with Interactive Utility Communications (IUC) for Call Center Services
	9.C.a · IUC Service Agreement

	9.D · 8879 : Forensic Audit Proposal
	9.D.a · Tabulation Sheet - RFP - FORENSIC AUDIT SERVICES - 051121
	9.D.b · 6.16.21 FD Sub. City of College Park - Forensic Audit Agreement -

	9.E · 8907 : Splash Pad Bid Approval for CDBG Grant
	9.E.a · Notice to Proceed for Splash Pad 03022021 signed and executed
	9.E.b · College Park -CDBG Award Notification-Charles E Phillips Splash Pad 9.10.20
	9.E.c · Regular Session Minute 011921 approval of CDBG Splash Pad Grant
	9.E.d · Agenda Memo ID #2021-8907 - RFP – CDBG PHILLIPS PARK SPLASH PAD
	9.E.e · RFP – CDBG PHILLIPS PARK SPLASH PAD -Specs
	9.E.f · RFP – CDBG UTILITY BUILDING & SITE IMPROVEMENTS - Specs
	9.E.g · Great Southern Recreation (Task 2)

	9.F · 8923 : On Event Services, LLC Approval of Service Agreement
	9.F.a · ON Event Services (OnSite) 2021 Contract Renew Request
	9.F.b · Agenda Memo ID #2021-8923 - RFQ - GICC AUDIO VISUAL SERVICE - 060821
	9.F.c · RFQ - GICC AUDIO VISUAL SERVICE - Specs
	9.F.d · GICC AUDIO VISUAL SERVICES 060821 RFQ Digital Copy 06022021RAC - Copy (ON Site)

	11.A · 8858 : Consideration of a Conditional Height Permit
	11.A.a · Conditional Height Permit Application 0 Rooselvelt Highway

	11.B · 8918 : Appointment for Ward 1 BZA Member
	11.C · 8914 : Consideration of Utility Credit Resolution - Fiscal Year 2021-2022
	11.C.a · City Employee Utility Credit Resolution No. 2020-11
	11.C.b · City Employee Utility Credit Resolution No. 2021-13

	11.D · 8919 : Hawks Basketball Court Rules & Operational Policies
	11.D.a · Hawk Basketball Presentation FINAL UPDATED





